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Ms. Janet Encarnacion
Head - Disclosure Department
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Atty. Marie Rose M. Magallen-Lirio
Head - Issuer Compliance and Disclosure Department (ICDD)

Sir and Mesdames:

Pursuant to the SEC Memorandum Circular No. 13, Series of 2020, P-h-o-e-n-i-x
Petroleum Philippines, Inc. (the "Corporation") hereby submits the attached
Amended Annual Report (SEC Form 17-A) to include the Sustainability Report for
the year ended 31 December 2019.

Relative thereto, we hereby certify that the following conditions have been met:

1) The information contained in the Amended Annual Report are true and
correct;

2) An Annual Report (SEC Form 17-A) had been previously filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) and was submitted to the SEC
through electronic mail on April 14, 2020.



3) The Amended Annual Report is filed solely for the purpose of submitting the
Sustainability Report attached thereto and no other changes were made to the
Annual Report as previously filed.

The undersigned is duly authorized by the Corporation to prepare and file the
Sustainability Report.

Thank you and warm regards.

ty. Socorro Ermac Cabreros
Acting Compliance Officer

Attested By:
of
HENRY ALBERT R. FADULLON
President
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To be an indispensable partner in the journey of everyone
whose life we touch

PHOENIX

14 April 2020

Securities & Exchange Commission
Secretariat Building, PICC Complex
Roxas Blvd., Metro Manila

Philippine Stock Exchange

Disclosure Department

6/F PSE Tower, 28t Street corner 5% Avenue
BGC, Taguig City, Metro Manila

Philippine Dealing & Exchange Corporation
37t Floor, Tower 1, The Enterprise Center
6766 Ayala Ave. corner Paseo de Roxas
Makati, 1226 Metro Manila, Philippines

Attention: Hon. Vicente Graciano P. Felizmenio, Jr.
Director, Market and Securities Regulation Department
Securities & Exchange Commission

Ms. Janet A. Encarnacion
Head - Disclosure Department
Philippine Stock Exchange

Atty. Marie Rose M. Magallen-Lirio
Head - Issuer Compliance and Disclosure Department (ICDD)
Philippine Dealing & Exchange Corp.

Sir and Mmes:

We are herewith submitting our SEC Form 17-A Annual Report for period ended 31 December
2019 in accordance with the Securities Regulations Code and the Revised Disclosure Rules.

Further, in relation to the submission of Sustainability Report as required by Commission to be
filed by Publicly Listed Companies along with its Annual Report, as per SEC Memorandum
Circular No. 4, Series of 2019, we have filed today with the Securities and Exchange Commission
our letter request for extension of time to file said report, copy of said letter is herewith attached
together with a copy of our email to the Commission.

Thank you and warm regards.

corro Ermac Cabreros
rporate Secretary
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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
SEC FORM 17-A, AS AMENDED

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 17 OF THE SECURITIES
REGULATION CODE AND SECTION 141 OF THE CORPORATION CODE OF THE

PHILIPPINES

For the period ended:

31 December 2019

2. SEC identification number: A200207283
3. BIR Tax Identification No. 006-036-274
4. Exact name of issuer as specified in its P-H-O-E-N-I-X PETROLEUM
charter PHILIPPINES, INC.
5. Province, country or other jurisdiction of Davao City, Philippines.
incorporation or organization
6. Industry Classification Code: (SEC Use Only)
7. Address of issuer's principal office: Stella Hizon Reyes Road, Bo.
Pampanga, Lanang, Davao City
Postal Code: 8000
8. Issuer's telephone number, including area (082) 235-8888
code:
9. Former name, former address and former Not Applicable
fiscal year, if changed since last report:
10. Securities registered pursuant to Sections 8 and 12 of the Code, or Sections 4 and 8
of the RSA
Title of each class Number of Shares Outstanding
COMMON 1,406,204,232
PREFERRED 27,000,000
Amount of Debt Outstanding as of Php65,034,622,017.00
December 31, 2019:
11. Are any or all of the securities listed on the Yes [v] No [ ]

Stock Exchange?

If yes, state the name of such Stock
Exchange and the class/es of securities
listed therein:

Philippine Stock Exchange
Common Shares
Preferred



12. Check whether the issuer has:

(a) has filed all reports required to be filed Yes [v] No [ ]

by Section 17 of the SRC and SRC
Rule 17.1 thereunder or Sections 11 of
the RSA and RSA Rule 11(a)-1
thereunder, and Sections 26 and 141 of
the Corporation Code of the
Philippines, during the preceding
twelve (12) months (or for such shorter
period the registrant was required to
file such reports):

(b) has been subject to such filing Yes [V] No [ ]

requirements for the past ninety (90)
days:

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

The Consolidated Financial Statements as of and for the year ended December 31,
2019 and 2018.
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PART | — BUSINESS AND GENERAL INFORMATION

1. Business Description

P-H-O-E-N-I-X Petroleum Philippines, Inc. (the Company or PPPI) was incorporated
in the Philippines on May 8, 2002 and is 41.88% owned by P-H-O-E-N-I-X
Petroleum Holdings, Inc. (PPHI), a company organized in the Philippines.

PPPI's shares of stock are listed with the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE). It is
engaged in marketing and distribution of petroleum products to retail and
commercial and industrial customers as well as operating oil depots, storage
facilities, and other allied services. Through its subsidiaries, it has expanded into
retailing of its fuel products and complementary non-fuel retail businesses such as
convenience store retailing and digital transaction services. The registered office of
PPPI, which is also its principal place of business is located at Stella Hizon Reyes
Road, Barrio Pampanga, Davao City.

PPHI was incorporated in the Philippines on May 31, 2006. Its primary purpose is to
provide management, investment, and technical advice for commercial, industrial,
manufacturing and other kinds of enterprises. PPHI’s registered office is located at
Stella Hizon Reyes Road, Barrio Pampanga, Davao City.

The ultimate parent company is Udenna Corporation, which is primarily organized to
purchase, acquire, take over and manage all or any part of the rights, assets,
business and property; undertake and assume the liabilities of any person, firm,
association, partnership, syndicate of corporation; and to engage in the distribution,
selling, importation, installation of pollution control devices, units and services, and
all other pollution control related products and emission test servicing. The ultimate
parent company’s registered office is located at Stella Hizon Reyes Road, Barrio
Pampanga, Davao City.

As of December 31, 2019, PPPI has a total of 655 completed retail service stations,
over 500 commercial and industrial customers, and over 10,000 LPG and lubricant
retail outlets combined, whose requirements are serviced by a wholly-owned trading
unit in Singapore and a network of 11 terminals and depots nationwide. Further, PPPI
has an emerging non fuel retail business comprised of 72 convenience stores and
over 6,000 Posible retailers.

1.1 Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and their Operations

As of December 31, the Company holds ownership interests in the following
entities which are all incorporated in the Philippines:



Explanatory Percentage of Cramership
Subsidiares/Joint Venturs Motes 2019 2018

Direct interest:

subsidianes

P-F-L Petroleum Management, Inc. (PPMI} (a) 100% 100.00%
P-H-0O-E-M-I-x Global Mercanfile, Inc. (PGMI) (b) 100% 100.00%
Subic Petroleum Trading and Transport

Phils., Inc. (SPTT) ic) 100% 100.00%
PNX Petroleum Singapore Pte. Ltd. (PNX 5G) (d) 100% 100.00%
Phoenix LPG Philippines, Inc. (FLPI) =) 100% 100.00%
Duta, Inc.{Duta)* {f) 100% 100.00%
Philippine FamilyMart CV3, Inc. (PFM) (gl 100% 100.00%
PHX Energy International Holdings, Pte. Ltd.

(PN Energy) (h) 100% 100.00%
Phoenix Pilipinas Gas and Power, Inc? {i} 100%: -
Action Able, Inc.{AAI H 74.90% 74.90%
Think_Able Limited (TAL) (k) 74.90% 74.90%
Joint venture
Phoenix Asphalt Philippines, Inc. (PAPI? {1 40.00% 40.00%

Indirect interest:

Kaparangan, Inc. (Kaparangan) -4 {mn} 100.00% 100.00%
PMx (Vietnam) Pte. Ltd. (PRX Vietnam)® inj 100.00% 100.00%
PFT Phoenix Petroleum Indonesia
(PN Indonesia)” (o) 100.00% 100.00%
Phoenix Gas (\Vistnam)
Limited Liability Company (PG LLC)E (p) 75.00% -
Galaxi Petroleum Fuel, Inc. (Galaxi)? (q) 51.00% 51.00%
Phoenix Southem Petroleum Corp. (PSPCE ir 49.00% 51.00%
Top Concord Quality Petroleum Com.
(TCQPCH is) 49.00% -
CJl Fuels Corp. {CJI® {t) 49.00% -
Firebird Evzon Fuels Corp. (FEFC)® (u) 49.00% -
Eastan Prime Development Corporation
(EPDC)2 ) 49.00% -
Zae Falco Energy Corp. (ZFEC) (W) 49.00% -
Motes:
T Newly incorporated subsidiary
2 Wholly-owned subsidiary of Duta
3 Jaint venture of Parent Company
4 Dika and Kaparangan, collectively known as Duta Group
3 Subsidiary of PNX Energy
& Subsidiary of PNX Vietnam
7 Subsidiary of PGMI

& Jaint venture of PEMI



(a)

()

(c)

(c)

(e)

(f)

(g)

(h)

(i)

(i

(k)

()

(m)

(n)

(o)

Incorporated on January 31, 2007 and is engaged in organizing, managing, administering, running
and supervising the operations and marketing of various kinds of services-oriented companies such
as petroleum service stations,

Incorporated on July 31, 2006 to engage in the manufacture, production and creation of all kinds of
motor, and all other transportation lulbricants, fluids and additives of all kinds and other petreleum
products purposely for motor vehicles and other transportation, PGM)| started commercial operations
in 2007 and temporarily ceased its operation in 2008 but has resumed its business in Cctober 2015
through selling of acid oil and coconut fatty acid distillates, both are by-products from manufacturing of
coconut methyl ester (CME).

Incorporated on February 20, 2007 and is engaged in buying and selling, supply and distribution,
importation and exportation, storage and delivery of all types of petroleum for industrial, marine,
aviation and automotive use,

Incorporated on October 30, 2012 in Singapore and started operations in October 2017, It is the
regional trading arm of the Group. It currently holds office in Singapere and is able to buy directly
from the refineries in the region due to its bigger requirements. It also sells to other local and regional
buyers,

Incorporated on June 20, 1995 to engage in the buying, selling, storing, distributing, and marketing at
wholesale of all kinds of goods, including but not limited to liquefied petroleum gas (LPG) and other
petroleum products.

Incorporated on November 9, 1994 to engage in the business of buying, investing, exchanging, selling
securities of every kind and description and leasing of land.

Incorporated on November 29, 2012, PFM is engaged in the business of operating convenience
stores (CVS) under the trademark "FamilyMart” either by direct operation and/or by franchise system
in the Philippines and to conduct business activities related to and in support to the aforesaid CVS
platforms including importation and export, advertisement and promotion, and in general, to exercise
and perform any and all powers necessary, incidental, or convenient to the business,

Incorporated on Cctober 29, 2018 in Singapore to engage in activities related to investment in
downstream and upstream energy activities and businesses but has not yet started commercial
operations as of December 31, 2019,

Incorporated on March 14, 2019 to engage in, conduct and carry on the business of selling, trading, on
wholesale basis, natural gas and liquefied natural gas (LNG),

[ncorporated on May 6, 2015 to engage in the business of selling, leasing or distributing electronic
devices to distributors, merchants or retailers for the purpose of digital marketing and/or ecommerce
and to engage in the business of providing an outline digital network for the purpose of digital
marketing and/or eccommerce accessible through electronic devices,

Incorporated on May 5, 2014 and is a Hong Kong based company that handles the trademark of AAL

[ncorporated on March 23, 2018 and was established to import, store, manufacture, sell market,
distribute bitumen, bitumen-related products and such other by-products of crude oil and such other
petroleum products including the operation of terminals and depots,

Incorporated on January 21, 1994 to engage in the business of buying, investing, exchanging, selling
securities of every kind and description and leasing land.

Incorporated on October 30, 2018 in Singapore to engage in activities related to investment in
downstream and upstream energy activities and businesses and has not yet started its commercial
operations as of December 31, 2019,

Incorporated on September 10, 2018 in Indonesia to serve as an avenue for the Parent Company to
explore business opportunities in different parts of Indonesia. PNX Indonesia has not yet started its
commercial operations as of December 31, 2019,
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() Formerdy known as Ongin LPG (Vietnam) Limited Liability Company, was incorporated and licensad to
conduct business under the |aws of Vietnam on August 6, 2008 to engage in wholesale of solid, |Iguid,
gas fuels and other related products,

{q) Incorporated om August 2, 2017 and is a joint venture with its previous owners, Galaxi owns and
operates a number of petroleum service stations in different parts of the Philippines,

(il Incorporated on July 5, 2018 to operate petroleum service stations in areas within Southern Luzon
under the Parent Company’'s name and brand,

{8} Incorporated an July 15, 2019 to operate petroleum service stations in areas of Cotabato,

) Incorporated on July 31, 2018 to operate petroleum service stations in areas of lleila,

i) Incorporated on August 28, 2019 to operate petroleum service stations in areas of South Luzon,
(vl Incorporated on August 28, 2019 to operate petroleum service stations in areas of Metro Manila,

(w! Incorporated on November 6, 2019 to operate petroleum service stations in Morthem part and other
areas of Luzon,

1.2 Other Corporate Information

The registered office and principal place of business of the existing subsidiaries and joint ventures, except
those presented below, is located at Stella Hizon Reyes Road, Barrio Pampanga, Davao City,

SPTT - Room 203 Greenwoods Park, Central Business District,
Subic Bay Freeport Zone, Zambales
PMNXY SG, PMX
Energy and
PMNX Vietnam  — 350 Orchard Road, #17-05/06 Shaw House, Singapore
PLPI - Phoenix Petroleum Corporate Headquarters, Stella Hizon
Reyes Road, Bo, Pampanga, Lanang, Davao City
Duta - 15" Floor, Citibank Tower, Valero 5t., Salcedo Village, Makati
City
Kaparangan - 15" Floor, Citibank Tower, Valero St,, Salcedo Village, Makati
City
FFM - 4" Floor, Tara Building, No. 383 Sen. Gil Puyat Avenue, Makati
City, Metro Manila
AA - 2™ Floor, Crown Center, 158 Jupiter Street Corner N, Garcia
Street, Bel-Air Village, Makati City
TAL - Room 1902, W Wilson House, 19-27 Wyndham Street, Central,

Hong Kaong

25" Floor Fort Legend Tower, 3™ Avenue Fort corner 31% Street,
Baonifacio Global City, Taguig City

The Prominence Office Tower, 12" Flaor B, JI. Jalur Sutera
Barat Mo, 15, Alam Sutera, Indonesia

PAP|and FSFC -

PMNX |ndonesia -

Galaxi
PG LLC

1846 FB Harrison Street Pasay City
Mo, 4568 Phan Xich Long Street, Ward 2, Phu Mhuan District,
Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam



OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

The year saw the retail businesses lead growth as the Company continued to build retail
stations nationwide. It also sustained its LPG expansion in Luzon, while maintaining its
stable LPG growth in Visayas and Mindanao. This was supported by efficiencies realized
from the Company’s synergies with its petroleum trading operations in Singapore as well as
the newly-acquired LPG business in Vietham. Overall volume was higher by 20%
year-on-year despite a challenging operating environment, with increased fuel premiums in
MOGAS and fuel oil and the passed-on impact of TRAIN | and Il excise taxes weighing on
competitiveness.

Improved Brand Value

Phoenix is increasingly becoming a trusted brand with a reputation for reliability and the
ability to delight its customers. In the 2019 brand health study on fuels conducted by 3rd
party research agency, Fast Forward, the Company rose to 3 as the most patronized
brand of station, with all metrics up from the prior year in terms of Brand Ever Tried, Brand
Used in the Past Month, and Brand Used Most Often. Brand Awareness also improved
year-on-year in terms of Top of Mind Awareness.

Further, as recognition for the Company’s achievements in brand and marketing, it was
awarded “Marketing Company of the Year” Award at the 40th Agora Awards.

Adding to its growing Cards program, the Phoenix Fleet Card was launched in March 2019
offering small and medium enterprises (SMEs) a customizable fleet card with the goal of
helping entrepreneurs grow their business through cost-efficient transport. About 87 new
fleet accounts were solicited during the year. The Pinoy Tsuper Card (PTC) - a loyalty
reward card for public utility drivers — also rolled out PTC-Grab which was developed
exclusively for drivers of the popular transport vehicle network (TVN) app.

Commitment to Quality and Excellence

Further proof of its strong orientation and drive toward excellence, the Company was
granted by Bureau Veritas Certification Holdings SAS-UK two International Organization for
Standardization (ISO) certifications in 2019: 1) the ISO 9001:2015 for Quality Management
System and 2) ISO 14001:2015 for Environmental Management System. Further, during
the year the Company’s in-house Quality Assurance and Product Development team
completed 39 in-house technical seminars and one industry seminar across the country.

Capital Market Initiatives

In July 2019, the Company’s Commercial Paper Program was awarded as the Best Debt
Deal for the Philippines during the 2019 Asian Banking and Finance Corporate and
Investment Banking Awards. This was in recognition of its Php 10-billion commercial paper
program registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission. In October 2019, the
Company listed PhP 7 billion in preferred shares, which was three times oversubscribed.



New Home, New Synergies

Symbolic of soaring to greater heights, Phoenix moved into its new home, the Udenna
Tower in Bonifacio Global City in Taguig — not only bringing its various business units
together but also joining its affiliates and sister companies within the Udenna Group of
Companies. The move is vital in creating physical and operational efficiencies, allowing
continuous and enhanced synergy with each other.

RETAIL FUELS

Fuel retailing volume was up by 23% from last year on an expanded network of 655
stations nationwide as of end-2019, led by strategic partnerships. These partnerships,
through a clustering program and territory assignments, further expanded its reach,
especially into previously untapped and difficult-to-penetrate areas such as key urban
markets in Metro Manila.

Consistent with our focus on enhancing customer experience, we upgraded the look of over
80% of our stations under Project Bright. New stations have also been equipped with a full
suite of offers from convenience stores, restaurants and food outlets, and car care services,
through Autoworx. A satisfaction rating of above 80% in Phoenix’s 2019 Mystery Motorist
program was also achieved, representing a 7% improvement in customer satisfaction from
the previous year.

COMMERCIAL AND INDUSTRIAL

Against the backdrop of increased volatility in prices, IFO (International Fuel Oil) premium
increase, supply challenges, and the implementation of the new IMO (International
Maritime Organization) 2020 regulation, which drove volume lower by 3% year-on-year, the
Company remained steadfast in its commitment to address the evolving needs of its
customers. During the year, it delivered its first IMO 2020-compliant bunker fuel, renewed
supply contracts with key accounts in power, manufacturing, and mining industries, and
commercial road transport, and won significant accounts from the fishing industry.

In aviation, the Company marked its 15th anniversary of its commercial partnership with
Cebu Pacific. The year also saw PPPI winning its first fuel supply contract with Philippine
Airlines, in addition to the new accounts in General Aviation combined, Aviation grew by
24% compared to the previous year. Further supporting the growth was the opening of new
airside depots and facilities at the Davao International Airport, Bacolod-Silay Airport and at
the General Santos International Airport as well as expansion of into-plane (ITP) services in
Mactan and San Jose, Mindoro airports.

Broadening the B2B product portfolio is the completion of the Phoenix Asphalt Philippines,
Inc. plant in December of 2019. The new infrastructure located in the Calaca Industrial



Seaport in Batangas serves as a storage facility, and in the future, will also be utilized as a
manufacturing plant.

LUBRICANTS

As Phoenix strives to provide the best value services and unrivalled motoring experience
with its comprehensive high-standard product line of lubricants, the lubricants high street
and retail volume in 2019 grew by 8% as Phoenix opened new stations, served more
commercial accounts, introduced new products, and strengthened its distributor network.

LPG

The LPG business grew by 25% fueled by a fresh marketing campaign called ‘Sarap Pala
Magluto’ with brand ambassador, Popstar Royalty Sarah Geronimo. This is complemented
by an aggressive distribution expansion in Luzon, while nurturing its established network
and customer base in Visayas and Mindanao. During the year, 85 LPG dealers were signed
up and 290 stand-alone, community-focused stores or SUPER Hubs were opened. It also
partnered with Hong Kong-based Clean Vehicle Solutions Limited (CLEVA) in the auto
LPG conversion of over 200 vehicles operating all over lloilo City and nearby provinces
under GDR Taxi, which boasts one of the biggest fleets in the region.

Meanwhile, through wholly-owned Phoenix Pilipinas Gas and Power Inc. (PPGPI), the
Company entered into an agreement with US-based Mesa Natural Gas Solutions LLC to
provide compact, mobile, and customizable generator sets to local industrial and
commercial businesses. These gensets can run on various gas variants such as liquefied
natural gas (LNG) and propane-rich LPG. The latter, which will be supplied by Phoenix
LPG, is being eyed as the initial transition fuel while the availability of LNG is still being
developed.

OVERSEAS OPERATIONS

In a strategic move to strengthen its network PNX Singapore entered into a partnership
with Singapore-based Hengyi Industries International Pte. Ltd. (HYII) to allow the Company
to offtake LPG from the latter’s Brunei refinery production. In addition, in the first quarter of
2019, the Company acquired 75 percent of Origin LPG Vietnam LLC, one of Vietnam’s
leading LPG companies, with presence in Central and South Vietham. Origin has since
been renamed Phoenix Gas Vietnam and is involved in LPG trading, storage, warehousing,
port and LPG tank servicing, as well as other services such as repair and maintenance of
LPG supply systems, and LPG transportation. PNX Singapore established a dedicated
regional LPG trading unit that consolidates internal needs of Philippines and Vietnam with
3" party sales for enhanced scale.

NON-FUEL RETAILING

FamilyMart ended the year with 72 stores and continued to build on its competitive
advantages and carve new paths for growth. The launch of FamilyMart’s new coffee offer,
“Coffee Creations”, exclusively blended by Japan’s renowned coffee company UCC,
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resulted in a 10-fold increase in cups sold per store on average. FamilyMart has also rolled
out a 3rd generation store concept that introduced a refreshed food offer anchored on its
Japanese heritage. With these new products, combined, these offers form central to
FamilyMart’s pivot to food strategy as it ramps up store expansions.

The biggest FamilyMart store in the Philippines was also unveiled at the Udenna Tower in
November, which serves as the ultimate showcase of all the best that the chain has to offer.
The 400-square-meter branch boasts of spacious dine-in sitting areas as well as other
amenities such as function rooms, a co-working space, a zen garden, and a walk-in chiller
that stocks local and imported beers and liquor.

Boosting the Company’s non-fuel retail platform is Posible’s digital transaction services
through its network of over 6,000 retailers from the ubiquitous sari-sari store, to bakeries,
Internet cafes, and laundry shops that cater to the needs of unbanked and underbanked
Filipinos.

2. Business of Issuer

i) Principal’s products or services and the Company’s market and
distribution method:

The Company is engaged in the marketing and distribution of fuels and other
petroleum products to retail and commercial and industrial customers. It also
provides ancillary services such as storage and into-plane services to its
Aviation customers as well as complementary convenience services to its
retail customers. The following are the Company’s primary business lines:

o Petroleum Products
m Trading — The Company, through its wholly-owned Singapore-based
subsidiary, PNX Petroleum Singapore, is engaged in the wholesale
trade of petroleum products to internal customers such as the
Company and 3" party customers in the region.
m Fuels - The Company markets and distributes fuels to retail and
industrial customers.

o Retail — Products are sold through the Company’s
network of retail stations, which are classified as
company owned- dealer-operated service stations
(“CODO”) dealer owned- dealer-operated service

stations (“DODO”), and company-
owned-company-operated service stations
(“COCO”).

o Commercial and Industrial — termed and spot

contracts with customers in various industries such
as power, manufacturing, mining, and fishing, as well
as institutional accounts in the commercial road
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transport, marine transport, and aviation sectors,
among others.

m LPG - The Company, through direct and indirect subsidiaries
Phoenix LPG Philippines, Inc. and Phoenix Gas Vietnam,
respectively, markets and distributes LPG and related products.

m Lubricants and Other Products —The Company is also engaged in
the marketing and distribution lubricants for automotive, commercial
and industrial uses; importing, manufacturing, and marketing and
distribution of bitumen and bitumen-related products; and
manufacturing of coco-methyl ester (CME) mainly for internal
requirements.

o Non-Fuel Retail

m Convenience Store Retailing — The Company owns, operates, and
franchises convenience stores under the FamilyMart brand.

m Digital Transaction Services — The Company through subsidiary
Action.Able, Inc., owns and operates the Posible, a digital payments
platform that offers various financial services and digital
transactions including payments and remittances.

o Fuel Services and Storage Income - The Company’s terminalling and
hauling services involve leasing of storage space in its terminal depot,
hauling and into-plane services (hauling of Jet A1 fuel to airports and
refuelling of aircraft) in airports.

ii) Percentage distribution of sales or revenues:

Revenues from petroleum products accounted for 99% of total revenues in
2019, of which fuel, LPG, lubricants, and other products contributed 92%, 7%,
and 1%, respectively. Revenues and other income from non-fuel retail
contributed 1%, while fuel service and storage income accounted for 1.2%.

iii) Other products or services:

Not Applicable

iv) Competition:

The Company operates in a deregulated business environment, selling its
products to individuals, commercial and industrial customers. The enactment
of the Downstream Oil Industry Deregulation Law in 1998 effectively removed
the rate-setting function of the Philippine government through what was then
known as the Energy Regulatory Board, leaving price-setting to market forces.
It also opened the oil industry to free competition.
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The Philippine downstream oil industry is dominated by three major oil
companies: Petron, Shell and Chevron, which control a combined 50.65% of
the total Philippine market as of end 2019. The Company is ranked fourth and
remained the largest independent player with a total market share of 7.06%.
Deregulation has seen the entry of more than 200 other industry market
participants, rendering the petroleum business more competitive. Apart from
Petron and Shell which operate the only petroleum refineries in the
Philippines, the rest of the industry market participants are importers of
finished petroleum products or purchase finished petroleum products from
other market participants in the local market.

The Company’s main competitors are the major players namely, Petron, Shell,
and Chevron and the local independent players such as Seaoil and Unioil.
The Company competes with other players in the industry in terms of pricing,
quality of service and products and strategic locations of its retail service
station network, with price being the most important competitive factor.

Further, the Company is one of the leading LPG providers in the Philippines in
terms of market share which was at 5.61% as of end 2019, according to the
Department of Energy data. Petron, which has the capacity to produce LPG
through its refinery, is the largest player with a 28.21% market share. It is
followed by wholesalers Liquigaz and South Pacific, with 21.96% and 17.87%
market share, respectively.

In the industrial sector, while the Company is the second largest fuel supplier
to the Philippine industrial sector based on internal estimates, the major
market participants continue to invest heavily in order to increase their market
share and tap new markets. In the lubricants sector, intense competition
among both domestic and global brands continues as brands compete for
limited shelf space.

v) Sources and availability of products and principal suppliers

From the start of its operation in 2005 until the first half of 2009, the Company
procured its petroleum products within the Philippines. Its main suppliers were
PTT Philippines Corporation and Total Philippines Corporation.

With the growth in volume and the availability of the storage capacities in
Calaca, Batangas and the Davao expansion, the Company started importing
refined petroleum products by September 2009 until the present from
Singapore and Taiwan. The Company also sources products from Thailand,
Korea, and China through various foreign traders and suppliers.

The Company continues to import its lubricants from Singapore and Thailand.
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The company’s trading arm based in Singapore started its operation in October
of 2017, allowing the company to have better access to suppliers.

vi) Transactions with and / or dependence on related parties.
The Company has existing synergies with related companies as follows:
e UDENNA Corporation.

Lease of properties from UDENNA Corporation which are identified
under Leased Properties;

e Chelsea Shipping Corporation (CSC).

The Company has existing Contracts of Affreightment with
CSC to haul the Company’s petroleum supplies. CSC serves
other clients including but not limited to Cebu Pacific Airways,
Marine Fuels and other petroleum companies. The Company
sold CSC in November 2016 to Udenna Corp to focus on core
business activities in petroleum marketing and distribution.

The Company also has provided fuel for the ships of CSC and
its affiliates and subsidiaries.

e PNX Petroleum Singapore Pte. Ltd. (PNX SG)

PNX SG has served as the Company’s trading arm in the
region for the procurement of its different fuel requirements.

e Galaxi Petroleum Fuel, Inc. (Galaxi), Phoenix Southern
Petroleum Corp. (PSPC), Top Concord Quality Petroleum Corp.
(TCQPC), CJI Fuels Corp. (CJI), Firebird Evzon Fuels Corp.
(FEFC), Eastan Prime Development Corporation (EPDC), Zae
Falco Energy Corp. (ZFEC)

The Company supplies fuels, lubricants and LPG for sale in the
Petroleum Retail Stations of the above mentioned companies.
These companies are business partners of its wholly-owned
subsidiaries.

vii) Patents, trademarks, licenses, franchises

The Company uses its registered trademark PHOENIXFuelsLife™

to identify its brand. Branding is a cornerstone of the Company’s
marketing program. It sells its refined petroleum products like Diesel,
Super Regular 91 Gasoline, Premium 95 Gasoline, Premium 98
Gasoline, and Phoenix JET A1.
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Below are the approved Trademarks by the Intellectual Property
Philippines (IPP) through the Trademark Department.

PRODUCT REGISTRATION Date of Term
NO. Registration

ACCELERATE Supreme 4-2012-005161 July26,2012 10yrs,until 7-26-2022
ZOELO Extreme 4-2012-005162 April27,2012 10yrs,until 8-2-2022
Heavy Duty Engine Oil
PHOENIX Cyclomax 4-2012-005164 April27,2012 10yrs,until 8-16-2022
Motorcycle Oils 4T Force
ZOELO Diesel Oil 4-2012-005163 Aug.16,2012 10yrs,until 8-16-2022
PHOENIX Cyclomax 4-2012-005165 Jan.03,2013 10yrs,until 1-3-2023
Motorcycle Oils
ACCELERATE 4-2012-005169 Jan.03,2013 10yrs,until 1-3-2023
Vega Fully
Synthetic Motor Oil
CYCLE Fork Oil 4-2012-00005168 | June14,2013 10yrs,until 6-14-2023

2T2-Stroke Motorcycle Oil

4-2012-00005167

Sept.27,2013

10yrs,until 9-27-2023

2T MAX

4-2012-00005166

Sept.12,2013

10yrs,until 9-12-2023

PHOENIX Premium 98

4-2014-002029

June12,2014

10yrs,until 6-12-2024

PREMIUM 98

4-2014-002028

June12,2014

10yrs,until 6-12-2024

PHOENIX Trip natin’to

4-2016-00000999

August 25, 2016

10yrs,until 8-25-2026

Ikaw, Ano’ng Trip mo?

4-2016-00001000

August 25, 2016

10yrs,until 8-25-2026

Trip natin’to

4-2016-00001001

August 26, 2016

10yrs,until 8-25-2026

PHOENIX Accelerate

4-2016-00002282

May 19, 2016

10yrs,until 5-19-2026

PHOENIX Accelerators

4-2016-0002722

June 10,2016

10yrs,until 6-10-2026

PHOENIX ZOELO

4-2016-00002286

July 21,2016

10yrs,until 7-21-2026

PHOENIX FuelMasters

4-2016-00002723

July 7, 2016

10yrs,until 7-7-2026

PHOENIX Zoelo Extreme
Heavy Duty Diesel Engine
0]]

4-2016-00002287

August 18, 2016

10yrs,until 8-18-2026

PHOENIX Tsuper Club

4-2016-00014745

March 24,2017

10yrs,until 3-24-2027

PHOENIX Premium 98 High| 4-2016-00014739| April 20, 2017 10yrs,until 4-20-2027
Performance Gasoline Fuel

with  Engine Rejuvenator|

Additives

With Era Engine| 4-2016-00014740| April 13, 2017 10yrs,until 4-13-2027
Rejuvenator Additive

With Active Cyclo Booster 4-2016-00014742| April 13, 2017 10yrs,until 4-13-2027
With Speed Booster 4-2016-00014743| April 13, 2017 10yrs,until 4-13-2027
PHOENIX FuelMasters 4-2016-00014744| April 13, 2017 10yrs,until 4-13-2027
With HDD Formula 4-2016-00014741| May 4, 2017 10yrs,until 5-4-2027

PHOENIX Super LPG

4-2017-00009625

October 5, 2017

10yr,until 10-5-2027
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PHOENIX Super Gas

4-2017-00017633

March 01, 2018

10 yrs, until 3-01-2028

Phoenix Pulse Technology

4-2017-00013303

March 01, 2018

10 yrs, until 3-01-2028

Pulse Technology

4/2018/00004208

23 August 2018

10 years August 2028

for enhanced Power &
Acceleration

viii)  Total number of employees

The Company has a total of 1,076 employees as of December 31, 2019 from 989
employees on December 31, 2018. This is broken down as follows:

2019 2018
Chairman 1 1
President / CEO 1 1
Vice President 5 3
Assistant Vice President/GM 22 24
Senior Manager 4 3
Manager 138 131
Supervisor 335 341
Rank and File 570 485

1,076 989

The increase in the number of employees is in line with the expansion of the business.

There are no labor unions in the Company and its subsidiaries nor are there any labor
cases filed against the Company and its subsidiaries that may materially and adversely
affect the Company’s financial or operational results or position.

Aside from the statutory benefits, the Company grants group term life insurance and
hospitalization benefits fully paid by the Company. It also provides free uniforms, free
meals, and vacation, sick, emergency leaves and, recently, entittement to avail of the
Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP) to all its regular employees based on annual
performance evaluation.

The Commission has approved the application for exemption from the registration
requirements of the Securities Regulations Code of the Company for the proposed
issuance of 24,493,620 common shares for the Company’s Employees Stock Options
Plan (ESOP).

The ESOP Committee of the Company has already approved the ESOP internal
guidelines. The initial offering date of ESOP was July 1, 2016 as approved by the BOD.

Management of Key Risks

The Company recognizes and regularly assesses, and manages certain risks that could
materially and adversely affect its business, financial condition, results of operations and
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prospects. Monthly Business Unit reviews are conducted to identify risks, threats and
opportunities, and to ensure that concerned units manage or promptly address identified
risks. Below, we describe certain important strategic, operational, financial, and legal and
compliance risks.

Risks Relating to the Philippines

The Company’s business and sales may be negatively affected by slow growth rates
as well as economic and political instability globally and in the Philippines. Further,
if foreign exchange controls were to be imposed, the Company’s ability to access
foreign currency to purchase petroleum, petroleum products, raw materials,
equipment and other imported products, could be adversely affected.

The Company derives majority of its revenues and operating profits from sales of its
petroleum products in the Philippines. The Company’s business has mostly been
influenced by the Philippine economy and the level of business activity in the country.

A slowdown in the Philippine economy may adversely affect consumer sentiment and lead
to a reduction in demand for the Company’s products. There is also no assurance that
current or future Government administrations will adopt economic policies conducive to
sustaining economic growth.

Further, political instability or acts of terrorism in the Philippines could destabilize the
country and may have a negative effect on the Company. The Philippines has experienced
political and military instability. An unstable political environment, whether due to the
imposition of emergency executive rule, martial law, or widespread popular demonstrations
or rioting, could negatively affect the general economic conditions and operation
environment in the Philippines, which could have a material adverse effect on the
Company’s business, financial condition, and results of operations.

In addition, the Monetary Board of the BSP, with the approval of the President of the
Philippines, has statutory authority, during a foreign exchange crisis or in times of national
emergency, to suspend temporarily or restrict sales of foreign exchange, require licensing
of foreign exchange transactions or require delivery of foreign exchange to the BSP or its
designee. The Company purchases some critical materials, particularly petroleum and
petroleum products, and some capital equipment from abroad and needs foreign currency
to make these purchases. Although the Government has from time to time made public
pronouncements of a policy not to impose restrictions on foreign exchange, there can be no
assurance that the Government will maintain such policy or will not impose economic or
regulatory controls that may restrict free access to foreign currency. Any such restrictions
imposed in the future could adversely affect the ability of the Company to purchase
petroleum and other materials and equipment from abroad in U.S. dollars.

To mitigate the risks mentioned, the Company has been diversifying its revenue base
outside of the Philippines. In the past two years, it has expanded its regional presence
through its trading unit in Singapore and the newly-acquired LPG business in Vietham.
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These overseas investments were selected based on their market growth and profit
potential. Overseas operations constitute more than 20% of revenues at present.

The occurrence of natural catastrophes, blackouts, or global pandemics may
materially disrupt the Company’s operations.

The Philippines has encountered and is expected to experience a number of major natural
catastrophes including typhoons, volcanic eruptions, earthquakes, mudslides, droughts, or
floods. Such natural catastrophes may cause disruption to the Company’s operations, and
distribution of its petroleum products. Electricity black-outs are also experienced caused by
insufficient power generation following strong typhoons and other natural catastrophes.

Global outbreaks and global pandemics, such as the Coronavirus, can also prompt the
national government to place the entire country under enhanced community quarantine,
which dramatically restricts mobility and constrains industrial activities. This can lead to
disruptions due to social distancing, decreased productivity, strained supply chain, and
overall economic instability.

These types of events may materially disrupt and adversely affect the Company’s business
and operations. Demand for the Company’s fuel products may be reduced as consumers
stay home during the quarantine period. Consumption of industrial customers may also
decrease as business activities slow down.

The Company has its critical assets, including storage and distribution, dispersed
nationwide to allow for business continuity in cases of incidents — natural and man-made.
This is supported by contingency plans and dedicated response teams that can be
immediately activated. To date, the Company has 11 terminals and depots, which are
distributed all over the country. Digitization is also supporting the Company’s efforts to
diversify its products, services, and network to facilitate contactless transactions in times of
pandemics and other public health concerns.

RISKS RELATING TO THE COMPANY

Risks from volatility of the price of crude oil

The Company’s financial results are primarily affected by the difference between the price
and cost of its petroleum products, which accounts for more than 99% of the Company’s
total cost of goods sold.

International crude oil prices have been volatile and are likely to continue being volatile
going forward as these are influenced by a number of domestic and international factors
including but not limited to the changes in supply and demand for crude oil, economic
conditions, conflicts or acts of terrorism, weather conditions, and governmental regulation.

The Company holds about thirty (30) to forty-five (45) days of inventory and uses the
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average method to account for its inventory. This makes it particularly vulnerable to wild
swings in oil prices, i.e. sharply rising or steeply declining price environments, and may
weaken its ability to pass on price fluctuations, in turn resulting in an adverse effect on the
Company’s business, results of operations, and financial condition.

Further, a sharp rise in oil prices will require higher working capital and may force the
Company to acquire higher financing costs. A material adverse effect on the Company’s
financial condition and results of operations may follow should the Company face
challenges in securing short-term financing for working capital.

To mitigate this risk, the Company closely monitors the prices of fuel in the international and
domestic markets. Following industry practice, prices for the upcoming week are set based
on the world market price of fuel of the immediately preceding week. These enable the
Company not only to anticipate any significant price movement but likewise plan out
contingencies to hasten the disposition of its existing inventory as necessary to various
distributors and other clients. Further, the Company aims to keep inventories at
“‘just-in-time” levels in order to minimize the impact on the margins and working capital
should oil prices remain volatile.

The Company’s business, financial condition and results of operations may be
adversely affected by intense competition.

The Company faces intense multinational, national, regional and local competition in the
sale of refined petroleum products and other related products in the Philippines.

Competition is driven and dictated primarily by the price, as oil is one of the basic
commodities. Differences in product specifications, and other overhead costs such as
transportation, distribution and marketing costs, account for the price differentials amongst
industry players. Such factors may materially adversely affect the Company’s business,
operational, and financial condition if it is unable to compete effectively against other
players in terms of its ability to manage overhead costs, streamline transportation and
distribution costs, and maximize utilization of its assets.

Smuggling and illegal trading activities of petroleum products have affected the domestic
petroleum market as well. These activities have translated to lower sales price and volumes
for legitimate market players in the domestic market. The Company’s financial condition
and results of operations may be adversely affected if the Government is unable to properly
enforce and regulate the domestic oil market.

Competition risk is primarily mitigated by the Company continually strengthening and
expanding its distribution network to improve its presence in both growing and high
potential markets. Further, the Company continues to invest in building brand equity to
ensure that its core value proposition is consistently recognized and recalled by its target
market and improving customer service to a level at par with or superior to its competitors.

The growth of the Company is dependent on the successful execution of its
expansion plans.
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Proper execution and successful implementation of the Company’s expansion plans is
critical to maintain the growth of Phoenix going forward. These plans are based on certain
assumptions about oil demand, oil prices, competition, financing cost and acquiring the
necessary timely regulatory approvals, among other things. The Company cannot and does
not represent with absolute certainty that these assumptions would materialize as
predicted. In the event that these prove to be incorrect, the Company’s future financial
performance may be negatively affected.

To mitigate this risk, business units are organized with specialized portfolios and
competencies to carry out the plans, including a dedicated team that reviews the capital
expenditure proposals prior to the approval of senior management. Further, the Company is
able to mobilize financial and operating resources in a timely manner and allocate
resources effectively to support plans. More importantly, capital spending and investment
programs are regularly assessed. Given the relative size of the Company and its localized
Management, Phoenix has the agility and flexibility to adjust such programs accordingly
and as necessary.

The Company’s business strategies require significant capital expenditures and
financing, which are subject to a number of risks and uncertainties. Its financial
condition and results of operations may be adversely affected by its debt levels.

The Company’s business is capital intensive, particularly the importation, storage and
distribution of petroleum products. The Company’s financial condition, sales, net income
and cash flows, will depend on its capital expenditures for, among others, the construction
of storage and wholesale distribution facilities and equipment, the construction of retail gas
stations and the acquisition of tanker trucks.

The Company has incurred additional indebtedness to support its capital expenditure
program. The Company’s ability to follow this program and meet its debt obligations will
partly depend on the business’ ability to generate cash flows from its operations and obtain
additional financing. There can be no assurance that the Company will be able to generate
sufficient cash flows from its operations or obtain adequate financing for its capital
expenditure projects or to meet its debt servicing obligations, on acceptable terms or at all,
which may adversely affect its business, financial condition, and results of operations.

The Company is mitigating financing risk by focusing on improving its cash generation,
specifically reducing collection days and optimizing inventory days to shorten the cash
cycle. Further, it follows a conservative financing strategy to optimize its leverage and
ensure that the costs of financing are well within the Company’s ability to meet these costs.
The Short Term Commercial Paper Program and the Preferred Equity issuance in 2019
support this direction in terms in terms of working capital funding and long term financing,
respectively. In addition, the Company has been embarking on a capital-light retail
expansion through strategic partnerships.

Any significant disruption in operations or casualty loss at the Company’s storage
and distribution facilities could adversely affect its business and results of
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operations and result in potential liabilities.

The Company’s operation of its storage and terminal facilities and retail gasoline stations
could be adversely affected by several factors, including but not limited to equipment failure
and breakdown, accidents, power interruption, human error, natural disasters and other
unforeseen incidents and issues. These disruptions could result in product run-outs, facility
shutdown, equipment repair or replacement, increased insurance costs, personal injuries,
loss of life and / or unplanned inventory build-up, all of which could have a material adverse
effect on the business, results of operations, and financial condition of the Company.

Company has purchased insurance policies covering majority of foreseeable risks but do
not cover all potential losses as insurance may not be available for all such risks or on
commercially reasonable terms. Operational disruptions may occur going forward, and as
such, insurance may not be able to adequately cover the entire scope or extent of the
losses or other financial impact on the Company.

The Company aims to mitigate this risk by following best practices to prevent the
occurrence of or minimize the impact of accidents or other untoward incidents. These
include measures to isolate the physical effects of any incidents (for example, the
dispersed locations of its storage depots and other critical assets, alternative storage
arrangements), minimize their financial impact on the Company (by ensuring that insurance
coverage is adequate), and prevent their occurrence (for example, by ensuring that
maintenance and safety procedures follow ISO standards and maintaining an adequate
security force).

Continued compliance with safety, health, environmental, and zoning laws and
regulations may adversely affect the Company’s results of operations and financial
condition.

The operations of the Company’s business are subject to a number of national and local
laws and regulations, including safety, health, environmental and zoning laws and
regulations. These laws and regulations impose controls on air and water discharges,
storage, handling, discharge and disposal of waste, location of storage facilities, and other
aspects of the operations of the Company’s business. Financial penalties, administrative,
legal proceedings against the Company, or revocation or suspension of the Company’s
licenses or operation of its facilities may arise should the Company fail to comply with
relevant laws and regulations.

The Company has incurred, and expects to continue to incur, operating costs to comply
with such laws and regulations. In addition, the Company has made and expects to
continue to make capital expenditures on an ongoing basis to comply with safety, health,
environmental, and zoning laws and regulations.

To mitigate this risk, the Company keeps itself updated on government policies and
regulations pertaining to the oil industry and other relevant industries. Through its
Corporate Affairs department, the Company maintains lines of communication with
regulatory agencies to allow Phoenix to identify potential regulatory risks and proactively
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respond to these risks.

Regulatory decisions and changes in the legal and regulatory environment could
increase the Company’s operating costs and adversely affect its business, results of
operations, and financial condition.

Even though the local downstream oil industry is a deregulated industry, the Government
has historically intervened to limit and restrict increases in the prices of petroleum products,
including freezing prices in the midst of national calamities. There is no assurance that the
Government will not invoke similar measures or reinstate price regulation in the future,
which may adversely affect the Company’s results of operations.

The Company’s operations are subject to various taxes, duties, and tariffs. The oil industry
in the Philippines has experienced some key changes in its tax and duty structure, with the
recent imposition of TRAIN LAW increasing excise taxes imposed on Petroleum products.
Such taxes, duties, and tariffs may or may not change going forward, that could result in a
material and adverse effect on the Company’s business, financial condition, and results of
operations.

As indicated in the previous item, the Company has a group dedicated to monitor
compliance with regulations as well as anticipate any new regulations that may be
implemented by the authorities. This ensures that any additional costs resulting from
changes in the legal and regulatory environment can be anticipated and prepared for by the
Company.

The Company’s business, and financial condition may be adversely impacted by the
fluctuations in the value of the Philippine Peso against the U.S. dollar.

The Company’s revenues are mostly denominated in PHP while a bulk of its expenses,
notably the cost of its imported petroleum products, is US $-denominated. The Company’s
reporting currency in its financial statements is the PHP. Changes in the US$:PHP
exchange rate may adversely affect the financial condition of the Company.

To mitigate this risk, the Company limits its exposure to foreign currency denominated
liabilities. The risk posed by foreign exchange fluctuations on the cost of its imported
petroleum products is generally mitigated by the Company’s ability to pass on any such
additional costs to its selling prices.

The Company currently benefits from income tax holidays on the operation of
certain of its depots.

If the Company did not have the benefit of income tax holidays, its profitability will be
adversely affected, as it will have to pay income tax at the prevailing rates. Currently, under
its registration with the BOI, the Company enjoys certain benefits, including an income tax
holiday (“ITH”) on the operations of the Davao Extension, the Calaca (Batangas) and the
Zamboanga depots. New income tax holidays for Villanueva and Calaca expansions, Tayud
and Calapan depots were granted in 2017. The ITH runs for a period of five (5) years from
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the commencement of operations of each depot. In addition, if the Company fails to meet
certain conditions imposed by the BOI, it may lose its right to the ITH. There is also no
guarantee that the Company will be able to secure similar income tax holidays for any new
depots that it may establish in the future or for the statutes granting the said ITH to be
superseded or amended.

The Company continuously monitors its compliance with the requirements and conditions
imposed by the BOI to mitigate this risk.

The Company depends on certain key personnel, and its business and growth
prospects may be disrupted if their services were lost.

Certain key executives and employees are critical to the continued success of the
Company’s business. There is no assurance that such key executives and employees will
remain employed with the Company. Should several of these key personnel be unable or
unwilling to continue their present roles, the Company may face difficulties in looking for
replacements and the business and operations may be disrupted as a result, which may
materially and adversely affect the financial condition and operations of the Company.

To mitigate this risk the Company ensures that compensation and benefit packages for its
officers, staff and rank and file are competitive with industry standards. Promotions and pay
raises are merit-based and performance appraisals are conducted regularly. Key personnel
are also regularly sent to training programs in the Philippines and abroad to ensure that
their knowledge and skills are continually updated. Further, the Company has been
investing in building its people capabilities to ensure that the next generation of talents and
leaders are developed.

The Company’s controlling shareholder may have interests that may not be the same
as those of other shareholders.

Udenna Corp, the ultimate holding company, directly or indirectly through PPHI and UMRC,
is the largest shareholder of the Company. Neither Udenna nor PPHI is obligated to provide
the Company with financial support or to exercise its rights as a shareholder in the
Company’s best interests or the best interests of the Company’s other shareholders.
Should there be a conflict between the interests of Udenna Corp or PPHI and the interests
of the Company, the Company may be affected by the actions done by Udenna Corp.

The Company has an operating lease agreement with its parent, Udenna Corp, for the use
of various properties for its operations and for office space. Furthermore, the Company
regularly charters the use of marine tankers from its affiliate, CSC, for the hauling of its fuel
products from suppliers’ terminals and from its own depots to Company depots and to its
customers. The Company also avails of the freight forwarding services of another affiliate,
F2 Logistics, Inc. for the delivery of goods to customers and for internal movement of
non-commercial cargo. While the Company believes that the terms of these transactions
were negotiated on an arm's-length basis, there is no assurance that the Company cannot
avail of better terms if it contracted with parties other than its affiliates.
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To mitigate this risk, the Company follows good corporate governance standards in dealing
with its shareholders and other related parties. These standards include, but are not
necessarily limited to, “arms-length” practices in all commercial dealings with related
interests and transparency and full disclosure in all such dealings.

If the number or severity of claims for which the Company is insured increases, or if
it is required to accrue or pay additional amounts because the cost of damages and
claims prove to be more severe than its insurance coverage, the Company’s financial
condition and results of operations may be materially adversely affected.

The Company uses a combination of self-insurance and reinsurance to cover its properties
and certain potential liabilities. The Company’s insurance coverage includes property,
marine cargo, and third-party liability. The Company estimates the liabilities associated with
the risks retained by it, in part, by considering historical claims, experience, and other
actuarial assumptions which, by their nature, are subject to a degree of uncertainty and
variability. A number of external factors affects the uncertainty and variability including but
not limited to future inflation rates, discount rates, litigation trends, legal interpretations and
actual claim settlement patterns. If the number or severity of claims for which the Company
is insured increases, or if it is required to accrue or pay additional amounts because the
claims prove to be more severe than its original assessments, the Company’s financial
condition, results of operations, and cash flows may be materially adversely affected.

To mitigate this risk the Company continually reviews and updates its insurance policies so
that it is reasonably protected from foreseeable events and risks. Insurance coverage is
acquired through competitive bidding to ensure that the Company’s premium costs are
reasonable and at par with industry standards.

Risk relating to failure to maintain technology and innovation growth

The Company is subject to technological change which affects its ability to market products
and services, increase productivity, and respond to evolving market trends. In particular, the
introduction of disruptive technologies such as increasing automation and digitization in
markets we operate in can pose risks in the form of new competitors and new business
models, and security.

Increased requirements and heightened vulnerabilities and threats in cybersecurity can
imperil the Company’s systems, networks, and data and can extend to customers',
partners', suppliers' and third-party service providers'. In addition, a cyber-related attack
can result in other negative consequences such as reputational damage, litigation or
regulatory action.

Further, a failure to anticipate and address the evolving customer requirements brought
about by developments such as climate change, and a move towards increased use of
alternative and cleaner energy sources may adversely impact business activities and
profitability.
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The Company’s capacity to invest in technology and innovation depends on the available
financial resources for such initiatives relative to capital allocation priorities, and an
underinvestment could lead to reduced market share for our products and services.

To mitigate the risks above, the Company continuously evaluates potential solutions that
leverage technology for operations to create value, safely deliver plans, and achieve
greater operating efficiencies. These include regular employee training, monitoring and
testing, maintenance of systems and contingency plans, and the use of reasonable and
appropriate controls to protect the Company’s systems and sensitive, confidential or
personal data or information. To maintain pace with technology-driven changes in
consumer preferences, the Company has embraced digital transformation and are using
such innovations to increase operational and work efficiencies, and employs practices such
as social listening through digital analytics, which is a vital pillar of customer experience.
Lastly, the Company continues to expand its portfolio in line with emerging demand for
cleaner alternative fuels, such as gas either in form of propane, LPG, or LNG.

3. Description of Properties:

The Company’s properties consist of its terminal, depot facilities, head office building, pier
and pipeline structures and its accessories, steel cylindrical tanks, and stocks of all
petroleum products stored and contained inside the depot.

Under the terms of agreements covering the liabilities under trust receipts, certain
inventories of petroleum products released to the Company are held in trust for the bank.
The Company is accountable to the bank for the trusteed inventories or their sales
proceeds.

3.1 Leased Properties

3.1.1 Lease with Udenna Corporation

The Company’s headquarters is currently located at Stella Hizon Reyes Road, Bo.
Pampanga, Davao City. The premises are covered by existing lease contracts with
Udenna Corporation and the Heirs of Stella Hizon Reyes, as lessors.

Following are the relevant terms of the lease contracts:

The Company’s sublease contract with Udenna Corporation was originally for a
term of three (3) years, from January 2007 to December 2009. The lease was
renewed for another term of five (5) years, commencing from January 1, 2019 to
December 31, 2023, subject to further renewal under terms and conditions to be
agreed to by the parties.

On the other hand, the lease contract by Udenna Corporation with the Heirs of
Stella Hizon Reyes over 1.1 hectares is effective for twenty-one (21) years, which
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shall expire on March 20, 2027, subject to renewal under terms and conditions to
be agreed to by the parties. To synchronize the expiry of the Leases entered into
by the Company with the Lessor and with the Heirs of Stella Hizon Reyes for the
lease of the remaining area of 1.2 hectares (entered into subsequently) and for the
expanded area which is now leased directly by the Company, the Lease Contracts
shall have the same term or expiration of the lease.

= For areas, Leased by the Company from Udenna Corporation, the
Company shall pay latter a monthly lease rental for the parcels of
land used as sites of its Depot Facilities in Davao and a retail
station site.

= The leased premises shall be exclusively used by the Company for
petroleum and fuel products storage and for its pier facilities or any
other related business. The Company is prohibited from using the
leased premises for any other purpose without the prior written
consent of lessors.

= The Company may not introduce improvements or make
alterations or changes without the written consent of Udenna
Corporation, except the construction of the necessary offices,
storage tanks, and other improvements required by the business of
the Company.

= Udenna Corporation shall have the right to pre-terminate the
sublease on any of the following grounds: (a) non-payment of
rentals for at least two (2) consecutive months; (b) if the Company,
at any time, fails or neglects to perform or comply with any of the
covenants, conditions, agreements, or restrictions stipulated in the
lease contract; or (c) if the Company shall become insolvent.
Udenna Corporation shall give the Corporation one (1) month
notice prior to the intended date of termination. The Company may
pre-terminate the lease, upon prior thirty-day (30) written notice to
Udenna Corporation.

= Payment of real property taxes on the land shall be for the account
of the Lessor while the real property taxes pertaining to the
improvements found there on shall be for the account of the
Company, as lessee.

3.1.2 Leased Properties for Terminal / Depot Sites

The Company likewise executed valid lease agreement over various parcels of
lands in various areas of the country where its Terminal / Depots are located and
established as part of its expansion program, namely:

= Zamboanga City. The Company entered into a lease agreement
with Jordan Fishing Corporation for an area of 10,000 square
meters for a period of ten (10) years, with an option to renew for
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another five (5) years. The said lease agreement commenced on
November 16, 2018. The depot in Zamboanga City has a 5.5
million liter capacity that supports the retail network and the
commercial and industrial accounts.

= Bacolod City. A land with an area consisting of 5,000 square
meters more or less was leased by the Company from Jordan
Fishing Corporation for ten (10) years starting January 01, 2018
with option to renew for another five (5) years. The Depot in
Bacolod City has a 9-million-liter capacity that supports the retalil
network and the commercial and industrial accounts in the area.

= Mindoro. A land with an area consisting of 3,723 square meters
more or less was leased by the Company from Benjamin Espiritu
for twenty (20) years starting September 2013 with option to renew
for another ten (10) years. The depot supports the Company’s
retail network and commercial and industrial accounts in the area.

= Navotas. The Company entered into a lease contract with
Philippine Fisheries Development Authority (instrumentality of
government) for an area of 5,209 square meters. The contract
shall be a for a period of 15 years commencing August 1, 2019
and shall expire on July 31, 2034. The premise shall be used as a
fuel depot.

3.1.3 Leased Properties for Company- owned, Dealer-operated (CODO)
Stations

In addition to the aforementioned leases, the Company likewise has existing lease
contracts with various property owners covering the properties where its CODOs
are situated. Relevant terms of said lease contracts are as follows:

= The lease shall be for a term often (10) to twenty (20) years,
subject to renewal upon such terms and conditions as maybe
agreed upon in writing and signed by the parties.

= The Company shall pay monthly rentals, subject to annual
escalation ranging from 3% to 10%, plus applicable real estate and
government taxes.

= The leased premises may be occupied and used by the Company
exclusively as a gasoline service station. In some areas, the
leased premises for the CODOs include the operation of
convenience stores, coffeeshops, service bays and other facilities
as might be deemed appropriate for a gasoline service station and
for no other purpose without the written consent of the lessors.

= Given the nature of the business, the Company is expressly
permitted to sublease the leased premises.
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4. Legal Proceedings
Involvement in Certain Legal Proceedings

The Company’s Independent Director, Monico V. Jacob, in his capacity as the then
Chairman of Petron Corporation, was impleaded in a case together with some
government officials for Violation of Republic Act 3019, otherwise known as the Anti-Graft
and Corrupt Practices Act involving tax credit payments. The case has been dismissed
by the Sandiganbayan, Fourth Division, Quezon City in a Resolution dated March 2, 2017.

The Department of Justice (DOJ) filed twenty-five (25) Information against Dennis A. Uy,
President and CEO of the Company, for alleged violations of the Tariff and Customs Code
of the Philippines, twenty-two (22) of which were filed with the Regional Trial Court of
Davao City, and three (3) Information filed with the Regional Trial Court of Batangas City.

With respect to the Information filed with the Regional Trial Court of Batangas City, upon
filing by Mr. Uy on September 2, 2013 of an Omnibus Motion for the Determination of Lack
of Probable Cause, the Regional Trial Court of Batangas City granted said motion on
September 17, 2013 and DISMISSED all three (3) Information. The DOJ filed a Motion for
Reconsideration with Motion for Inhibition of Judge Ruben A. Galvez, which was
subsequently denied on December 6, 2013. On July 7, 2014, the Regional Trial Court of
Batangas City issued a Certificate of Finality certifying that its Order dated December 6,
2013, which denied the Motion for Reconsideration and affirmed the Order dated
September 17, 2013 which dismissed the 3 Information filed against Mr. Uy for lack of
probable cause, has already become final and executory since no appeal was filed
therefrom.

With respect to the Information filed with the Regional Trial Court of Davao City, on October
4, 2013, the Regional Trial Court of Davao City ordered the DISMISSAL of the criminal
cases against Mr. Uy. The subsequent Motion for Reconsideration of the Plaintiff, People of
the Philippines, was also denied in an Order dated August 18, 2014. Hence, the People of
the Philippines (“Petitioner”) filed on October 27, 2014 with the Court of Appeals (CA),
Cagayan de Oro City a Petition for Certiorari under Rule 65 of the Rules of Court docketed
as CA G.R. SP No. 06500-MINm CA, CDO, 23" Division. On October 24, 2016, Mr. Uy
received a copy of the Decision of the CA dated October 12, 2016 DENYING the Petition
for Certiorari. On November 10, 2016, Mr. Uy received a copy of the Motion for
Reconsideration filed with the CA.

As of January 25, 2017, the Court of Appeals has DENIED the Petitioner’s Motion for
Reconsideration and upheld the decision the Court on October 12, 2016.

On 4 April 2017, we received a copy of the Petition for Review on Certiorari dated 27 March

2017 filed by petitioner docketed as GR No. 229705, SC, Manila, 3™ Division. To date,
The Company is waiting for the Supreme Court to issue a resolution directing the
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Company to file a COMMENT to the PETITION FOR REVIEW.

Several cases of Grave Coercion, Robbery and Libel were filed against the Sales Team of
South Mindanao and other officers, including all the members of the Board of Directors
except for Domingo T. Uy, Paul G. Dominguez and Carolina Inez Angela S. Reyes, in
relation to the Company’s closure and take-over of six (6) Phoenix Fuel Stations in Davao
City. To date, the cases have been dismissed by the City Prosecutor’s office of Davao City.

Other court cases typical and customary in the course of the business operations of the
Company such as those, among others, involving collection, qualified theft, breach of
contract and reckless imprudence have been filed by and against the Company, by and
against its employees and/or third parties. The results of which will not significantly affect
the financial standing of the Company. Other than the above stated, no other significant
cases were filed by and against the Company and its subsidiaries.

Except for the above, to the best of the Company’s knowledge there has been no
occurrence during the past five (5) years up to the date of this Prospectus of any of the
following events which are material to an evaluation of the ability or integrity of any director,
person nominated to become a director, executive officer, or control person of the
Company:

e Any insolvency or bankruptcy petition filed by or against any business of which such
person was a general partner or executive officer either at the time of the insolvency
or within two years prior to that time;

e Any conviction by final judgment in a criminal proceeding, domestic or foreign, or
any pending criminal proceeding, domestic or foreign, excluding traffic violations
and other minor offenses;

e Any final and executory order, judgment, or decree or any court of competent
jurisdiction, domestic or foreign, permanently or temporarily enjoining, barring,
suspending, or otherwise limiting involvement in any type of business, securities,
commodities, or banking activities; and

e Any final and executory judgment by a domestic or foreign court or competent
jurisdiction (in a civil action), the Commission, or comparable foreign body, or a
domestic or foreign exchange or electronic marketplace or self-regulatory
organization, for violation of a securities or commodities law.

There are no other pending significant legal cases as far as the records of the
Company is concerned.
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PART Il - SECURITIES OF THE REGISTRANT

(A)

(1)

Market price of and Dividends on the Registrant's common equity
shares and Related Stockholders Matters

Market Information

On 11 July 2007, the Parent Company’s common shares became
listed for trading on the Philippine Stock Exchange (“PSE”). The
high and low sale prices of each quarter for the year 2019 are here

under shown:

Highest Close

2019 Price
First Quarter 12.30
Second Quarter 12.30
Third Quarter 12.20
Fourth Quarter 11.94

Lowest Close

Price

10.70
11.76
10.44
10.98

As of December 31, 2019, the market capitalization of the Company,

based

on the closing price of P11.94, was

P16,790,078,530.60

(2)

Top 20 Stockholders as of December 31, 2019

approximately

# NAME OF STOCKHOLDERS OWNERSHIP | OUTSTANDING
(in %) & ISSUED
SHARES
1 | PHOENIX PETROLEUM HOLDINGS INC. 41.88 588,945,630
2 | ES CONSULTANCY GROUP, INC. 2420 340,270,980
3 | TOP DIRECT INVESTMENTS LIMITED 10.12 142,000,000
4 | UDENNA CORPORATION 8.34 117,245,918
5 | PCD NOMINEE CORPORATION (FILIPINO) 5.35 75,251,238
6 |PCD NOMINEE  CORPORATION - 4.68 65,881,451
(NON-FILIPINO)
7 |UDENNA MANAGEMENT & RESOURCES 0.83 11,661,195
CORP.
8 |JOSELITO R. RAMOS 0.34 4,812,600
9 |DENNISA.UY 0.28 3,991,811
10 | UDENCO CORPORATION 0.11 1,614,787
11 | DENNIS A. UY &OR CHERYLYN C. UY 0.08 1,098,060
12 | DOMINGO T. UY 0.05 645,919
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13 | ERIC U. LIM OR CHRISTINE YAO LIM 0.02 319,000
14 | MARJORIE ANN LIM LEE OR PAULINE ANN 0.02 300,000
LIM
15 | EDWIN U. LIM OR GENEVIEVE LIM 0.021 300,000
16 | ZENAIDA CHAN UY 0.010 149,058
17 | REBECCA PILAR CLARIDAD CATERIO 0.010 148,453
18 | SOCORRO ERMAC CABREROS 0.007 103,316
19 | IGNACIA S. BRAGA IV 0.005 71,019
20 | CHRYSS ALFONSUS V. DAMUY 0.005 70,980

&)

Dividends

The Company’s dividend policy is to declare dividends of up to 20% of the
Company’s net income of the previous year after appropriation. This will be
taken out of the Company’s unrestricted retained earnings.

Each holder of a common share is entitled to such dividends as may be
declared in accordance with the Company’s dividend policy. The Company’s
current dividend policy entitles holders of common shares to receive dividends

based on

the

recommendations  will
implementation of business plans, and working capital.

History of Dividend Income Payment

1. Company

recommendation of the Board of Directors.
consider

Such

such factors as operating expenses,

a. Dividends on Common Shares

Date Declared Dividend Rate Record Date | Payment Date Total Amount

March 14, 2019 Cash Dividend of P0.15 | April 8, 2019 | May 8, 2019 £210,495,634.80
per share

January 25, 2018 | Cash Dividend of P0.15 | Apr 2, 2018 | April 26, 2018 P207,954,037.36
per share

January 25, 2017 | Cash Dividend of P0.10 | March 30, | April 27, 2017 P136,468,719.08
per share 2017

March 18, 2016 Cash Dividend of P0.08 | April 05, | April 29, 2016 P114,302,178.56
per share 2016

March 4, 2015 Cash Dividend of £0.05 | March 18, | April 16, 2015 P71,438,861.60
per share 2015

January 29, 2014 | Cash Dividend of P£0.10 | March 17, | April 11, 2014 P142,877,723.20
per share 2014
30% Stock Dividend May 15, | June 10,2013 | P329,717,232.00

January 24, 2013 2013
Cash Dividend of £0.10 | April 11, | May 8, 2013 £103,605,941.60
per share 2013
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b. Cash Dividend on Preferred Shares

Since the issuance of the preferred shares of the Company on September 21, 2010
(the 1° tranche), the Company has declared quarterly dividends fixed at 11.50% per
annum, calculated in respect of each share with reference to the Issue Price thereof
on each dividend period. This translates to a cash dividend amounting to P2.875 per
share per quarter. The cash dividends were paid on September 21, December 21,
March 21 and June 21 of each year starting December 21, 2010 until the preferred
shares were redeemed on December 20, 2013.

15t Tranche

Date Declared Dividend Rate Record Date | Payment Date Total Amount

December 5, 2013 | P2.875 per | N/A Dec. 20, 2013 £14,375,000.00
share

September 5, 2013 | P2.875 per | N/A Sep. 21, 2013 £14,375,000.00
share

June 5, 2013 P2.875 per | N/A June 21, 2013 P14,375,000.00
share

Mar 5, 2013 P2.875 per | N/A Mar. 21, 2013 P14,375,000.00
share

December 5, 2012 | P2.875 per | N/A Dec. 21, 2012 P14,375,000.00
share

September 5, 2012 | P2.875 per | N/A Sep. 21, 2012 P14,375,000.00
share

June 4, 2012 P2.875 per | N/A June 21, 2012 P14,375,000.00
share

March 05, 2012 P2.875 per | N/A Mar. 21, 2012 £14,375,000.00
share

December 1, 2011 P2.875 per | N/A Dec. 21, 2011 P14,375,000.00
share

August 12, 2011 P2.875 per | N/A Sep. 21, 2011 £14,375,000.00
share

May 12, 2011 P2.875 per [ N/A June 21, 2011 £14,375,000.00
share

March 11, 2011 P2.875 per | N/A Mar. 21, 2011 £14,375,000.00
share

September 21, | P2.875 per | N/A Dec. 21, 2010 £14,375,000.00

2010 share

On December 20, 2013, in order to redeem the 1% tranche of preferred shares, the
Company issued the 2™ tranche of preferred shares with the same amount and
features except for the rate,which was reduced to 8.25% per annum. The dividends
are calculated on a 30/360 day basis and have a priority in the payment of dividends
at the fixed rate of 8.25% per annum at the time of issuance, which translates to a
cash dividend amounting to P2.0625 per share per quarter. These shares are also
preferred in the distribution of corporate assets in the event of liquidation and
dissolution of the Company.

The 2™ tranche preferred (PNXP) shares of the Company were redeemed last
December 20, 2018 at Php 100.00 per share or a total of Five Hundred Million Pesos
(Php500,000,000.00). These PNXP shares shall form part of the preferred treasury
shares of the company.
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2" Tranche

Date Declared

Dividend Rate

Record Date

Payment Date

Total Amount

Nov. 7, 2018 P2.0625 per | Nov. 23, 2018 Dec. 20, 2018 £10,312,500.00
share

Aug 6, 2018 P2.0625 per | Aug 24, 2018 Sep. 20, 2018 £10,312,500.00
share

May 7, 2018 P2.0625 per | May 24, 2018 June 20, 2018 £10,312,500.00
share

Feb, 2018 P2.0625 per | Feb 22,2018 Mar. 20, 2018 £10,312,500.00
share

Nov. 6, 2017 P2.0625 per | Nov. 23, 2017 Dec. 20, 2017 £10,312,500.00
share

Aug 3, 2017 P2.0625 per | Aug. 24, 2017 Sep. 20, 2017 £10,312,500.00
share

May 4, 2017 P2.0625 per | May 24, 2017 June 20, 2017 £10,312,500.00
share

Feb 6, 2017 P2.0625 per | Feb 22, 2017 Mar. 20, 2017 £10,312,500.00
share

Nov 7, 2016 P2.0625 per | Nov 2016 Dec. 2016 £10,312,500.00
share

Aug 10, 2016 P2.0625 per | Aug 24, 2016 Sep. 20, 2016 £10,312,500.00
share

May 11, 2016 P2.0625 per | May 26, 2016 June 20, 2016 £10,312,500.00
share

March 10, 2016 | P2.0625 per | Feb 23, 2016 Mar. 21, 2016 £10,312,500.00
share

Nov 10, 2015 P2.0625 per | Nov. 26, 2015 Dec. 20, 2015 £10,312,500.00
share

Aug 10, 2015 £2.0625 per | Aug. 25, 2015 Sep. 21, 2015 £10,312,500.00
share

May 12, 2015 P2.0625 per | May 12, 2015 June 22, 2015 £10,312,500.00
share

Feb 6, 2015 P2.0625 per | Feb. 24, 2015 Mar. 20, 2015 £10,312,500.00
share

N/A P2.0625 per | N/A Dec. 22, 2014 £10,312,500.00
share

N/A P2.0625 per | N/A Sep. 22, 2014 £10,312,500.00
share

N/A P2.0625 per | N/A June 20, 2014 £10,312,500.00
share

N/A P2.0625 per | N/A Mar. 20, 2014 £10,312,500.00
share

The 3rd tranche preferred shares of the Company consisting of 20,000,000 preferred
shares were registered on December 3, 2015 and listed with the Exchange on

December 18, 2015. The 3rd tranche were issued under the following series:

Series 3A (PNX3A) is entitled to an Optional Redemption on the 3rd Anniversary of
the Listing Date and is subject to a Step-Up Dividend Rate on the 5th anniversary of

the Listing Date; and
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Series 3B (PNX3B) is entitled to an Optional Redemption on the 5th anniversary of the
Listing Date and is subject to a Step-Up Dividend Rate on the 7th anniversary of the

Listing Date.

3" Tranche PNX3A

Date Declared Dividend Rate Record Date Payment Date Total Amount

Nov. 6, 2019 P1.857 per share | Nov. 22, 2019 Dec. 18, 2019 P23,212,500.00
Aug. 5, 2019 P1.857 per share | Aug. 22, 2019 Sep. 18, 2019 P23,212,500.00
May 6, 2019 P1.857 per share | May 22, 2019 June 18, 2019 P23,212,500.00
Feb. 4, 2019 P1.857 per share | Feb. 19, 2019 March 18, 2019 | P23,212,500.00
Nov. 7, 2018 P1.857 per share | Nov. 21, 2018 Dec. 18, 2018 P23,212,500.00
Aug. 6, 2018 P1.857 per share | Aug. 22, 2018 Sep. 18, 2018 £23,212,500.00
May 7, 2018 P1.857 per share | May. 22,2018 | June 18, 2018 £23,212,500.00
Feb. 5, 2018 P1.857 per share | Feb. 21, 2018 Mar 19, 2018 P23,212,500.00
Nov. 3, 2017 P1.857 per share [ Nov. 23, 2017 Dec. 18, 2017 P23,212,500.00
Aug. 2, 2017 P1.857 per share | Aug. 24, 2017 | Sep. 16, 2017 P23,212,500.00
May 3, 2017 P1.857 per share | May 24, 2017 June 19, 2017 P23,212,500.00
Feb. 13, 2017 P1.857 per share | Feb. 22, 2017 Mar. 20, 2017 P23,212,500.00
Nov. 7, 2016 P1.857 per share | Nov. 22, 2016 Dec. 19, 2016 P23,212,500.00
Aug. 10, 2016 P1.857 per share | Aug. 23, 2016 Sep. 19, 2016 P23,212,500.00
May 11, 2016 P1.857 per share | May. 25,2016 [ June 21, 2016 P23,212,500.00
Mar.10, 2016 P1.857 per share | Feb. 23, 2016 Mar 18, 2016 P23,212,500.00

3" Tranche PNX3B

Date Declared Dividend Rate Record Date Payment Date Total Amount

Nov. 6, 2019 P2.027 per share | Nov. 22, 2019 Dec. 18, 2019 P15,202,500.00
Aug. 5, 2019 P2.027 per share | Aug. 22, 2019 Sep. 18, 2019 £15,202,500.00
May 6, 2019 P2.027 per share | May 22, 2019 June 18, 2019 £15,202,500.00
Feb. 4, 2019 P2.027 per share | Feb. 19, 2019 Mar. 18, 2019 £15,202,500.00
Nov. 7, 2018 P2.027 per share | Nov. 21, 2018 Dec. 18, 2018 £15,202,500.00
Aug. 6, 2018 P2.027 per share | Aug. 22, 2018 Sep. 18, 2018 £15,202,500.00
May 7, 2018 P2.027 per share | May. 22,2018 | June 18, 2018 £15,202,500.00
Feb. 5, 2018 P2.027 per share | Feb. 21, 2018 Mar 19, 2018 £15,202,500.00
Nov. 3, 2017 P2.027 per share | Nov. 23, 2017 Dec. 18, 2017 P£15,202,500.00
Aug. 2, 2017 P2.027 per share | Aug. 24, 2017 | Sep. 16, 2017 P15,202,500.00
May 3, 2017 P2.027 per share | May 24, 2017 June 19, 2017 P15,202,500.00
Feb. 13, 2017 P2.027 per share | Feb. 22, 2017 Mar. 20, 2017 P15,202,500.00
Nov. 7, 2016 P2.027 per share | Nov. 22, 2016 Dec. 19, 2016 P15,202,500.00
Aug. 10, 2016 P2.027 per share | Aug. 24, 2016 Sep. 19, 2016 P£15,202,500.00
May 11, 2016 P2.027 per share | May. 26, 2016 | June 21, 2016 P£15,202,500.00
Mar.10, 2016 P2.027 per share | Feb. 23, 2016 Mar. 18, 2016 £15,202,500.00

The 4th tranche of the preferred shares of the Company under PNX4 consisting of
7,000,000 preferred shares were issued at P1,000 per share and listed with the
Exchange on November 7, 2019. It has a fixed dividend rate of 7.5673% or P75.673
per annum, payable quarterly, and is entitled to an Optional Redemption on the 3rd
Anniversary of the Listing Date and is subject to a Step-Up Dividend Rate on the 3rd
anniversary of the Listing Date.
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4" Tranche (PNX4)

Date Declared Dividend Rate Record Date Payment Date Total Amount

Feb. 5, 2020 P18.92 per share | Feb.19, 2020 Feb.21, 2020 P132,427,750.00

(4) Recent Sale of Unregistered Securities or Exempt Securities Including
Recent Issuance of Securities Constituting an Exempt Transaction

The Company has not sold or transferred any securities that is not registered under
the Code nor did it issue any additional securities in exchange for any properties,
services and other securities.

(5) Re-acquisition / buy-back of its Own Securities

On September 21, 2007, the Board of Directors approved the buy-back program of
the Company’s common shares, worth a total of P50,000,000.00 or 5.15% of the
Company’s then market capitalization. Using PSE facilities, the program commenced
on the second week of October 2007. The program concluded upon exhaustion of
the approved allotment, subject to the disclosure requirements of the SEC and the
PSE. No repurchase of shares were made in 2009 to 2015.

On May 11, 2016, the Board of Directors approved the buy-back share program of the
Company’s common shares, involving up to P250,000,000.00 worth of common
shares (PNX) or about 3.4% of the Company’s then market capitalization. Using PSE
facilities, the program commenced on the 3rd week of May 2016 and shall conclude
upon exhaustion of the approved allotment or one year from commencement,
whichever comes first, subject to the proper disclosure to the SEC and the PSE.

On January 25, 2017, the Board of Directors approved the increase in the share
buy-back program of the Company from Php250,000,000 up to a total of
Php700,000,000.00.

As of December 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018, the Company treasury shares
have cumulative costs of PO and 344,800,000 respectively. No repurchase of shares
was made in 2019. A total of 31,000,000 shares were bought back in 2018.

The funds allocated for the repurchase of the shares were taken from the Company’s
unrestricted retained earnings. The program was basically designed to enhance
shareholders’ value through the repurchase of the shares whenever the same is
trading at a value lower than its actual internal corporate valuation. The program did
not involve any funds allotted for the Company’s impending expansion projects and
investments nor any of those allotted for the payment of obligations and liabilities.

(B) Description of Shares
The Company’s shares consist of common shares with a par value of P1.00 per

share and preferred shares with a par value of P1.00 per share. As of December 31,
2019, total outstanding common shares, with voting rights, is 1,406,204,232.
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Preferred shares issued and outstanding by the Company as of December 31, 2019
is 27,000,000 shares with a par value of P1.00 per share.

(C) Employee Stock Option Plan

On June 22, 2011, the Commission approved the application for exemption
from the registration requirement of the Securities Regulations Code of the
Company for the proposed issuance of 24,493,620 common shares for the
Company’s Employees Stock Options Plan (ESOP).

On May 14, 2014, the Philippine Stock Exchange (the Exchange) has
approved the listing of 24,493,620 Common shares pertaining to the
Company’s Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP);

On July 26, 2017, the Company, through its Stock Transfer Agent,
implemented for the first time the Corporation’s ESOP after its vesting period
for 1 year. For the first tranche, the Company issued additional 2,160,000 PNX
Common shares to qualified employees pursuant to the Employee Stock
Option Plan (ESOP) in scripless form and on November 15, 2017, the
company issued additional 601,000 PNX Common shares at the price of
Php5.68 per share.

As of December 31, 2019, a total of 8,427,000 common shares(ESOP) have
been exercised and subscribed by the company’s grantees.

PART lil - FINANCIAL INFORMATION

(A) Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditions

The following is a discussion and analysis of the PPPI and its Subsidiaries’
financial performance for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018. The
discussion should be read in conjunction with the audited consolidated
financial statements and the accompanying notes. In the discussion of
financial information, any reference to “the Company” or the “Group”
means PPPI and its Subsidiaries.

The selected financial information set forth in the following table has been
derived from the Company’s audited consolidated financial statements for the
years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018.

The Company’s financial statements were audited by Punongbayan & Araullo

for 2019 and 2018, in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting
Standards.
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Comparable discussion on Material Changes in Results of Operations for the
Year Ended December 31, 2019 vs. December 31, 2018.

Revenues, Cost of Sales and Gross Margins

The Group’s Revenues in 2019 grew to £97.823 billion, 10.4% higher compared to
the P88.611 billion generated in 2018. This was mainly due to the 19.8% growth in
total volume sold for the comparative years to 3,259 million liters in 2019 from 2,720
million liters in 2018. This was augmented by the £1.185 billion sales contributed by
Philippine FamilyMart CVS, Inc. (PFM) and 113 million sales contributed by Action
Able, Inc. On the other hand, despite the implementation of the second round of
increase in the excise tax rates of petroleum products under the Tax Reform for
Acceleration and Inclusion (TRAIN) law starting January 2019, the average price of
petroleum products was lower as a result of the 8.7% drop in the price of Dubai crude
average, which is the benchmark crude of Asian refineries, from US$63.15/ bbl to
US$69.13/bbl.

Of the 579 million liters incremental sales volume in 2019, 56% came from the volume
sold by foreign-based subsidiaries namely, Pnx Singapore and Pnx Vietham, which
contributed 237.5 million liters and 88.6 million liters, respectively. Domestic
operations accounted for the remaining 44%.

Similarly, Cost of Sales and Services increased by 10.1%, to £86.811 billion in 2019
from #78.838 billion in 2018, as sales volume grew.

Higher sales volume likewise drove Gross Profit higher by 12.7% to £11.012 billion in
2019 from £9.772 billion in 2018.

Operating Expenses, Non-operating Expenses, Recurring Income

The Group’s Selling and Administrative Expenses, or Operating Expenses
(OPEX), were higher by 13.5% at £6.518 billion in 2019 from #5.742 billion in 2018.
However, OPEX per unit liter improved to £2.00 from #2.11 as the Company
continued to implement cost-effective programs to streamline its processes and
reduce cost.

The Company’s Net Non-Operating Charges reached £2.652 billion in 2019, which
was #1.996 billion more than the £0.656 billion incurred in 2018. This was driven by
the rise in average borrowing rates, as well as the additional debts incurred during the
year to finance network expansion, including support systems and facilities. The
following also drove changes to the net non-operating charges: 1) ©0.553 billion
decrease in the recognized fair value gains on investment properties from #0.625
billion in 2018 ; 2) £0.013 billion decrease in finance income from £0.073 billion; and
3) £0.009 billion increase in equity share in the JV income from £0.007 billion in 2018.

37



Operating, Net and Comprehensive Incomes

Notwithstanding the increase in operating expenses, Operating Income grew by
11.5% to 4.494 billion in 2019 from £4.030 billion in 2018. However, with the rise in
Net Non-Operating Charges, Net Income Before Tax (NIBT) declined by 45.4%
decline to £1.842 billion in 2019 from #3.374 billion in 2018. Net Income After Tax
(NIAT) was subsequently lower by 46.0% at #1.494 billion from 2.767 billion in 2018.

Meanwhile, the Company recorded a £0.070 billion translation adjustment charge
related to Pnx SG’s operations compared to the0.029 income recorded in 2018. The
gain on revaluation of land amounting to £0.145 billion was 87.4% lower than £1.149
billion recorded in 2018. As such, Comprehensive Income was 58.6% lower at
£1.499 billion in 2019 versus #3.625 billion in 2018.

Financial Condition
(As of December 31, 2019 versus December 31, 2018)

Consolidated resources as of December 31, 2019 stood at 86.950 billion, 34.5%
higher than 64.660 billion as of December 31, 2018. This was mainly due to the
additions in property, plant, and equipment (PPE) related to the Company’s retail
expansion, the recognition of the Right-of-Use Asset for the lease contracts with
reference to PFRS 16 — Leases which took effect January 1, 2019, increase in
Receivable, Cash and Cash Equivalents, Prepayments and Deposits and Input VAT.

Cash and Cash Equivalents increased by 24.3% to £9.811 billion as of December
31, 2019 from P7.890 billion as of December 31, 2018 as the company intensified its
collection efforts.

Similarly, Trade and Other Receivables increased by 6.3% to £15.973 billion as of
December 31, 2019 from £15.031 billion as of December 31, 2018 in line with the
increase in revenue, which was mainly driven by higher sales volume.

Inventory was 4.9% higher at #11.680 billion as of December 31, 2019, almost of the
same level as the 11.135 billion as of December 31, 2018.

As of December 31, 2019, the Group’s Property and Equipment, net of accumulated
depreciation, increased to P27.379 billion versus the £18.715 billion as of December
31, 2018. The 46.3% growth represented the value of the assets of the newly
acquired subsidiaries, as well as the continuing expansion program of the group.

Investment Properties was 9.8% higher at £1.909 billion as of December 31, 2019
from #1.739 billion as of December 31, 2018. The £0.170 million increment mainly
pertained to the market revaluation of the company’s real estate properties in
compliance with accounting standards.

Intangible Assets was 5.4% lower at £0.310 billion as of December 31, 2019 from
£0.328 billion as of December 31, 2018 in line with normal amortization.
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Right of Use assets amounting to #1.143 billion is a new account related to the
implementation of PFRS 16 effective January 1, 2019.

Investment in Joint Ventures was 214.9% higher at #1.433 billion as of December
31, 2019, from £0.455 billion as of December 31, 2018 as the company entered into
Joint Venture Agreements in line with its retail expansion program.

Goodwill was 4.8% higher at £0.213 billion as of December 31, 2019 from £4.419
billion as of December 31, 2018 as a result of the acquisition of Origin LPG (Vietnam)
LLC by PNX Vietnam, a subsidiary of PNX Energy Investments, which in turn is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

Deferred Tax Asset was 6.1% higher at £0.156 billion as of December 31, 2019 from
£0.147 billion as of December 31, 2018 coming from subsidiaries reporting losses.

Other Non-current Assets was 478.6% higher at £7.638 billion as of December 31,
2019 from P1.596 billion as of December 31, 2018 as the company entered into
Contract to Sell agreements in connection to the purchase of certain real estate
properties.

Interest-bearing Loans and Borrowings, both current and non-current of £49.896
billion as of December 31, 2019 increased by 25.1% from #39.900 billion as of
December 31, 2018, mainly from the financing of Pnx SG’s working capital
requirements and the Group’s capital expenditures and partly offset by the settlement
of debts.

Trade and Other Payables increased by 59.3% from #7.435 billion as of December
31, 2018 to P11.842 billion as of December 31, 2019 related to the timing of
purchases of petroleum products, especially for Pnx SG.

Deferred Tax Liabilities amounting to P0.748 billion as of December 31, 2019,
increased by 18.4% from £0.632 billion as of December 31, 2018, primarily related to
the first time recognition of right-of-use asset in compliance to PRFS 16.

Total Stockholders’ Equity increased to £21.923 billion as of December 31, 2019,
which was higher by 37.2% from £15.974 billion as of December 31, 2018. This
increase was primarily from the higher Capital Stock and Additional Paid-in Capital
resulting from the release of 7 billion PNX4 Preferred shares, net of the redeemed
1.5 billion privately placed with RCBC Capital Corporation. Further contributing to the
higher Stockholders’ Equity was the 14.0% growth in retained earnings coming from
the P1.494 billion net income realized in 2019, which was offset by the payment of
dividends on both Common and Preferred shares, as well as the partial redemption of
Preferred shares issued in prior years.

Key Performance Indicators and Relevant Ratios
The Group’s key performance indicators and relevant ratios and how they are
computed are listed below:
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December 31, 2019

December 31, 2018

Current Ratio’ 0.8x : 1x 1.1x:1x
Debt to Equity Ratio? 3.0x : 1x 3.0x : 1x
Debt to Equity Interest-Bearing® 2.3x : 1x 2.5x : 1x
Net Book Value per Share* P9.36 $8.55
Earnings per Share® £0.61 £1.72

Notes: Formula are based on Philippine Accounting Standards
1 - Total current assets divided by current liabilities

2 - Total liabilities divided by tangible net worth

3 - Interest Bearing Debts divided by Total stockholder’s equity
4 - Total stockholder’s equity (net of Preferred) divided by the total number of shares issued

and outstanding

5 - Period or Year Net income after tax divided by weighted average number of outstanding

common shares

These key indicators were chosen to provide management with a measure of the
Group’s financial strength (Current Ratio and Debt to Equity) and the Group’s ability to
maximize the value of its stockholders’ investment in the Group (Net Book Value Per
Share and Earnings Per Share). Likewise, these ratios are used to compare the
Group’s performance with similar companies.

Material (5% or more) Changes to the Group’s Balance Sheet as of December 30,

2019 vs. December 31, 2018

24% increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Release of P7 billion PNX4 Preferred Shares net of the settlement of matured debts.

6% increase in Trade and Other Receivables
In relation to increase and timing of revenue generated.

100% decrease in Due from Related Party
Offset against payment for properties leased with option to purchase as well as

acquired properties.

91% increase in Input VAT Net

Primarily from the deferred input VAT on Property, Plant, and Equipment.

178% increase in Prepayments and other current assets.
Primarily from the increase of PNX SG’s marginal deposit and creditable withholding

taxes.

46% increase in Property, Plant, and Equipment
Due to new acquisitions and construction of new retail and depot facilities.

10% increase in Investment Properties
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Due to new acquisitions, improvements and appraisal of Land classified as investment
properties.

100% increase in Right of Use Asset
First time adoption of PFRS 16 — leases.

5% decrease in Intangible Asset
Normal amortization

215% increase in Investment in Joint Ventures
Due to the additional Joint Venture Agreements entered into during the period.

379% increase in Other Non-current Assets
Due to the increase in security and rent deposit for leases and rentals as well as the
deposits made for the purchase of certain properties.

45% increase in Interest Bearing Loans- Current
Due to the Long Term Contracts maturing within 12 months from December 30, 2019,
including additional short-term loans and trust receipts.

59% increase in Trade Payables
In relation to the inventory level and Trust Receipt Bookings classified as
Interest-Bearing Loans-current

100% increase in Derivative Financial Liabilities
Related to the forward contracts entered into by PNX SG

100% increase in Lease Liabilities - Current
The current portion of the Lease Liability related to PFRS 16

50% decrease in Income Tax Payable
Net of the offset against creditable withholding taxes applied and the 46% decline in
net income before tax.

14% decrease in Interest Bearing Loans - Non-current
Net of the settled and maturing in the next 12 months after December 31, 2019.

100% increase in Lease Liability
First time adoption of PFRS 16

51% increase in Other Non-current liabilities
Increase in Customer Cylinder Deposits, Cash Bonds, Security Deposits, Unearned
Rent and Post- employment benefit obligation.

66% increase in Additional Paid-in Capital
Due to the issuance P7 bilion PNX4 Preferred Shares, net of the P2 billion
redemption

5% decrease in Revaluation Reserves
Due to increased transaction of the foreign currency denominated subsidiary, PNX
Singapore.
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16% increase in Retained Earnings
From the Net Income After Tax generated in 2019 net of the dividends declared and
distributed during the year.

Material (5% or more)changes to the Group’s Income Statement as of December
30, 2019 vs. December 30, 2018

10% increase in Sale of Goods

Due to the revenues coming from the new subsidiaries namely; PFM, AAIl, PNX SG
and PNX Energy as well as the 19.8% growth in overall volume sales. The Parent
recorded a 10.9% improvement on its volume sold this year, while volume from foreign
sales increased by 25.2% compared to the same period last year.

46% increase in fuel service and other revenue
This is due increase in into-plane services and other non-fuel related businesses as
well as revenues from Action Able, Inc. (AAl).

10% increase in Cost of Sales and Services

This mirrors the increase in the sale of goods, reflecting the price movements in the
world market during the year, which were higher compared to the same period in
2018. The increase in excise tax rates on petroleum products also contributed to the
increase.

14% increase in Selling and Admin Expenses
Related to the Company’s growth and expansion.

88% decrease in Gain in Revaluation of Land (OCI)
Regular full year revaluation was made in 2019.

16% increase in Remeasurement of Post-Employment Benefit Obligation (OCI)
Result of the actuarial valuation.

91% decrease in Tax Expense (OCI)
Net effect of the decrease in Gain in Revaluation of Land and Remeasurement of
Post-employment Benefit Obligation under Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)

There are no other material changes in the Group’s financial position (5% or more)
and conditions that will warrant a more detailed discussion. Furthermore, there are no
material events and uncertainties known to management that would impact or change
the reported financial information and condition of the Group.

Audit and Audit-Related Fees

The financial statements of the Company were audited by Punongbayan & Araullo for
the years ended December 31, 2019, 2018, and 2017. Said external auditor has no
shareholdings in the Company, or any right, whether legally enforceable or not, to
nominate persons or to subscribe to the securities of the Company, in accordance with
the professional standards on independence set by the Board of Accountancy and
Professional Regulation Commission.
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(B) External Audit Fees and Services

The following table sets out the aggregate fees billed for each of the last three (3)
fiscal years for professional services rendered by the Company’s external auditors.

Audit and Related

Fees
Amount in Thousands Php
Particulars Nature 2017 2018 2019
Punongbayan and Audit of FS for the 1,920.00
Araullo year 2016 - I_Da_rent
and Subsidiaries
Punongbayan and Audit of FS for the 2,728.00 3,460.80
Araullo year 2017 - I_Da_rent
and Subsidiaries
Punongbayan and Audit of FS for the 1,904.17 4,637.52
Araullo year 2018 - I?arent
and Subsidiaries
Audit of FS for 3,616.54
Punongbayan and the year 2019 -
Araullo Parent and
Subsidiaries
Sub-total 4,648.00 5,364.97 8,254.06
Tax Advisory
Services
Sycip,\/(jlzl;'ss and Tax Consultancy 120.18 120.00 120.00
Sub-total 120.18 120.00 120.00
All Other Fees
Entia Accounting Professiopal F.ee 1,526.63 2,885.80 1,445.17
Office for BOI Reglst.r_a_tlon
of Depot Facilities
Professional Fee 5,557.75 4,216.48
for Special Audit,
Punongbayan and | Transfer Pricing, tax
Araullo Compliance for PLPI
and Due Diligence
Engagement
Sub-total 7,084.38 2,885.80 5,661.65
GRAND TOTAL 11,852.56 8,370.77 14,035.71
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Audit Committee and Policies

Under the Company’s By-laws, the Audit Committee is responsible for, among
others, the setting-up of an internal audit department and considers the
appointment of an internal auditor as well as the independent external auditor,
the audit fees and any question of resignation or dismissal, and the review of
the quarterly, half-year and annual financial statements before their submission
to the Board of Directors.

In accordance with the Company’s By-laws and Manual of Corporate
Governance, in 2007, the Company formed its Audit Committee. The
Company’s Audit Committee shall be composed of at least three (3) members
of the Board, preferable with accounting and finance background, one of whom
shall be an Independent Director and another should have related audit
experience. The chairman of the Audit Committee should be an independent
director and he should be responsible for inculcating in the minds of the
members of the Board the importance of management responsibilities in
maintaining a sound system of internal control and the Board’s oversight
responsibility.

The following are the members of the Audit Committee: Consuelo Ynares
Santiago (Independent Director) as Chairman, Monico V. Jacob, Domingo T.
Uy as members.

The Internal Audit systems of the Company are in place since 2008 but these
auditing tools are strengthened this year. The Internal Audit's role and
responsibilities are defined in the Audit Charter approved by the Board of
Directors. Primarily, it assists the Audit Committee of the Board in fulfilling its
oversight responsibility to the shareholders by bringing a systematic,
disciplined approach to evaluating and improving the effectiveness of
governance, risk management and internal control processes.

Internal Audit, in fulfilling its role, performs the following general functions: 1.)
evaluating the Company’s governance processes including ethics-related
programs; 2.) performing an objective assessment of the effectiveness of risk
management and internal control framework, identifying risk exposures and
recommending strategies to mitigate them; 3.) evaluating the reliability and
integrity of financial statements and the financial reporting process; 4.)
analyzing and evaluating business processes and associated controls; 5.)
determining compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

Changes In and Disagreements With Accountants
The Company has not had any material disagreement with its previous and current

external auditor/independent public accountant on any matter of accounting principles
or practices, financial statement disclosure or auditing scope or procedure.
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PART IV - MANAGEMENT AND CERTAIN SECURITYHOLDERS

(A) Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrants

The Company’s members of the Board of Directors are herewith described below
with their respective experiences.

Board of Directors

Directors

The members of the Board of Directors of the Company are elected during the
annual stockholders’ meeting to hold office until the next succeeding annual
stockholders’ meeting and until their successors have been appointed or
elected and qualified. The following is the list of the incumbent members of the
Board of Directors, and their business experiences during the past five (5)

years:

Domingo T. Uy
Chairman

Mr. Domingo T. Uy, Filipino, 73 years old, is a co-founder and has been
a member of the Board of Directors of the Company since 2002. Mr. Uy
was elected Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Company on
February 15, 2007. He is also a Director of Granland Resources
Corporation, a corporation involved in real estate development. Mr. Uy is
actively involved in socio-civic programs and is a Director of the
Philippine National Red Cross, Davao Chapter. He is also a Past
President of the Davao City Sta. Ana Lions Club and the Kang Ha Uy

Association - Davao Chapter.

Dennis A. Uy
Director, President and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Dennis A. Uy, Filipino, 46 years old, is the founder of the Company
and has served as President and Chief Executive Officer since
inception. He is the Chairman and President of Udenna Corporation, the
parent company, which has businesses in the shipping, logistics,
distribution, real estate, and service industries. Among the subsidiaries
of Udenna Corporation are Phoenix Petroleum Holdings, Inc. (PPHI),
Udenna Management & Resources Corp. (UMRC), Chelsea Logistics

Holdings, Corp., Udenna Development Corporation (UDEVCO),

Penseur, Udenna Trade Corporation and PH Resorts Group Holdings,
Inc. The subsidiaries of Phoenix Petroleum Philippines are Phoenix
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Global Mercantile, Inc., Subic Petroleum Trading & Transport
Philippines, Inc., and PFL Petroleum Management. The subsidiaries of
Udenna Management & Resources Corp. (UMRC) are Global Synergy
Trade and Distribution Corp., Value Leases, Inc., Udenna Capital,
PNX-Udenna Insurance Brokers, Udenna Environmental Services,
Udenna Energy Corporation, and F2 Logistics. Under UDEVCO are
Calaca Industrial Seaport Corp.(CISC), Udenna Tower Corporation,
LapuLapu Land Corp., Clark Global City Corp. and GoHotels Davao
Inc.. The Chelsea Logistics Corp. has the shipping businesses Chelsea
Shipping Corp. and Trans-Asia Shipping Lines. Mr. Uy is also Chairman
of PH Resorts Group Holdings, Inc., Phoenix Philippines Foundation
and Udenna Foundation. He is director of shipping and logistics provider
2Go Group, Inc. through his Udenna Investments BV subsidiary
KGLI-NM Holdings Inc. He also serves as independent director of Apex
Mining Corp. Mr. Uy is a member of the Young Presidents
Organization’s Philippine chapter and the Philippine Business for Social
Progress. Since November 2011, Mr. Uy has been the Honorary Consul
of Kazakhstan to the Philippines. In 2016, he was appointed as the
Presidential Adviser on Sports. He is a graduate of De La Salle
University with a degree in Business Management.

Romeo B. De Guzman
Director, Vice Chairman

Mr. Romeo B. De Guzman, Filipino, 70 years old, was elected Director
of the Company in 2009. He is the Vice Chairman and Senior Strategic
Adviser, and previously was Chief Operating Officer of the Company,
bringing over 40 years of outstanding experience in the oil industry.
Before joining the Company, he was with Pilipinas Shell Petroleum
Corporation, where he was Vice President for External Affairs for Asia
Pacific and a member of the Board of Directors up to December 2006.
He was with the said company holding various management and
executive positions. Prior to that, he worked at Getty Oil Philippines Inc.
for 10 years. Mr. De Guzman is also the Chairman of the Board of
Directors of Mirait Philippines, Inc. He holds a Marketing Management
and MBA degrees from San Sebastian College — Manila.

Atty. Jose Victor Emmanuel A. De Dios
Director

Atty. J.V. Emmanuel A. De Dios, Filipino, 55 years old, was elected
Director of the Company on February 15, 2007 and regular director on
March 7, 2008. He is the CEO of GE Philippines, and prior to that was
President and CEO of Nido Petroleum Pty Ltd., an Australian Stock
Exchange-listed oil and gas company. He was Managing Director of
Merritt Advisory Partners, Inc. and was a member of the Board of
Directors of Davies Energy Systems, Inc. He also served as Chairman
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of the Board of the Philippine National Oil Company Exploration
Corporation and was former Undersecretary of the Philippine
Department of Energy. Atty. De Dios obtained his Master of Laws
degree from Harvard Law School and completed his Bachelor of Laws
at the Ateneo School of Law.

Frederic C. DyBuncio
Director

Mr. Frederic C. DyBuncio, Filipino, 59 years old, was elected as a
Director of the Company on May 27, 2017. He is the President of SM
Investments Corporation. He is a Director of Atlas Consolidated Mining
and Development Corporation, Premium Leisure Corp., 2GO Group,
Inc., and Pacific Online Systems Corporation. Prior to holding the post,
he was a career banker who spent over 20 years with JP Morgan Chase
and its predecessor institutions. During his stint in the banking industry,
he was assigned to various executive positions where he gained
substantial professional experience in the areas of credit, relationship
management and origination, investment banking, capital markets, and
general management. He has worked and lived in several major cities
including New York, Seoul, Bangkok, Hong Kong and Manila. He
graduated from Ateneo de Manila University with a Bachelor of Science
degree in Business Management and completed a Master’s degree in
Business Management from the Asian Institute of Management.

Cherylyn C. Uy
Director

Ms. Cherylyn Chiong-Uy, Filipino, 40 years old, is a graduate of
Business and Finance from Ateneo de Davao University. Ms. Uy is one
of the pioneers/incorporators of Udenna Corporation, the ultimate parent
company of Phoenix Petroleum and which has subsidiaries engaged in
the petroleum, shipping, logistics, services, and real estate businesses,
among others. She is the Corporate Treasurer of Udenna Corporation
and a member of the Board of Director of PH Resorts Group Holdings,
Inc.. Ms. Uy is also one of the Executive Directors of Phoenix
Philippines Foundation, Inc., the corporate social responsibility arm of
the Company. She is the Corporate Treasurer of Udenna Management
and Resources Corporation and Chelsea Shipping Corp.

Stephen T. CuUnjieng
Director

Stephen T. CuUnjieng, Filipino, 60 years old, was elected as a Director
of the Company on January 15, 2018, after being a long-time adviser to
the Board. He is Chairman of Evercore Asia Limited, and has
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substantial and wide experience in investment banking. He has acted
as Financial Adviser to several financial transactions of companies
involving initial public offerings, major and strategic acquisitions, and
mergers of various companies from various industries. He is a member
of the Executive Advisory Board for Asia of the Wharton School of
Business, and an Independent Director of Century Properties Group
and Aboitiz Equity Ventures. He has received several awards and
distinctions, such as the Best Independent Advisory Firm in Asia in
2016 for Evercore, and Deals of the Year for various acquisitions. He
graduated from Ateneo de Manila University and Ateneo School of Law,
and completed an MBA in Finance from the Wharton School of
Business.

Monico V. Jacob
Director

Monico V. Jacob, Filipino, 74 years old, has been a Director of the
Company since March 7, 2008. He is President and Chief Executive
Officer of the STI Education Systems Holdings, Inc., a publicly listed
company; of STI Education Services Group, Inc.; and of West Negros
University. He is also the Chairman of Philplans First, Inc., a pre-need
company; of Philippine Life Financial, Inc., a life insurance company,
and of Republic Surety and Insurance Co., a non-life insurance
Company. He likewise sits as an independent director of Jollibee
Foods, Inc., Century Properties, Lopez Holdings, Inc. and 2GO
Shipping. He sits as Director of Asian Terminals, Inc., Philhealthcare
Systems, Inc., an HMO, Philippine Women's University and IAcademy.

Consuelo Yhares-Santiago*
Independent Director

Ms. Consuelo Ynares-Santiago, Filipino, 80 years old, is a Retired
Justice of the Philippine Supreme Court. Justice Santiago (Ret) is
currently an independent director of Anchor Insurance Brokerage Corp.,
a leading insurance brokerage company based in New York, USA, SMC
Global Power Holdings, Inc., one of the country’s leading power
companies which is the power generation unit of San Miguel
Corporation, South Luzon Tollway Corp., and Top Frontier Investment
Holdings, Inc. She is the Chair Advisory Council of the Office of
Alternative Dispute Resolution under the Department of Justice. She
earned her Law Degree at the University of the Philippines. After being
admitted to the bar, she started her career as a Legal Officer of the
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC). After 5 years of legal
practice, she decided to enter the Judiciary and spent 36 years of her
career as Municipal Judge, Metropolitan Trial Court judge, Regional Trial
Court judge, and Associate Justice of Court of Appeals, before
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becoming an Associate Justice of the highest court of the country, the
Supreme Court. During her time in the Supreme Court, she became the
chairperson of the Supreme Court’s 3rd Division and also joined various
committees, among them the Justice on Wheels Program as
Chairperson, the Foreign Travel Committee as Chairperson, the House
of Representative Electoral Tribunal (HRET) as Chairperson, and
member of the Presidential Electoral Tribunal. She was also a
consultant of the Judicial and Bar Council (JBC) and a Bar Examiner of
Labor Law and Social Legislation during the 1996 Bar Examination and
Taxation Law in the 1998 Bar Examination.

Nicasio Il. Alcantara*
Independent Director

Nicasio |. Alcantara, Filipino, 77 years old, is the Chairman and
President of ACR Mining Corporation and Chairman of Conal
Corporation. He currently serves as the Chairman of the Corporate
Governance Committee of BDO Private Bank, Inc. and is a member of
the Bank’s Audit Committee and Related Party Transactions Committee.
He is currently a Director of Alsons Corporation, Alsons Development
and Investment Corporation and several other prestigious corporations.
Prior to this, Mr. Alcantara also held the position of Chairman and
President in various corporations, namely, Petron Corporation, Alsons
Consolidated Resource Inc., lligan Cement Corporation, Alsons Cement
Corporation, Northern Mindanao Power Corporation, Refractories
Corporation of the Philippines, and Alsons Insurance Brokers
Corporation. He was also the Chairman of Alsons Prime Investments
Corporation.  Mr. Alcantara holds a Masters degree in Business
Administration (MBA) from Sta. Clara University, California, and a
Bachelor of Science degree in Business Administration from Ateneo de
Manila University.

Minoru Takeda*
Independent Director

Minoru Takeda, Japanese, 66 years old is the Chairman of aNew Energy
(an advisory company for Renewables/LNG), Senior Advisor of GLX
LNG (LNG Trading Platform Company), Director of Oxalis Chemicals
KK, and Sr. Advisor of Uyeno Kosan KK. Mr. Takeda was with
ExxonMobil for 22 years and with Royal Dutch Shell group for 14 years.
He was the Chairman of the Board of Showa Shell KK, Country
Chairman of Shell Group of Companies in Japan, and GM of Shell
Upstream International in charge of the ASEAN/India LNG Market
Development. For Mobil Oil Corporation, in addition to holding key
positions in Japan, he was Director of Mobil Oil New Zealand, and has
experience in Global HQ Downstream Corporate Planning. He also
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spent over 4 years in Deloitte, as Partner of Deloitte Tohmatsu
Consulting and served as CEO of Deloitte Tohmatsu Corporate Finance.
He holds BS and MS from Keio University and MS from MIT Sloan

School of Management.
University, Energy and Environmental Policy Center.

He was a Visiting Researcher at Harvard

* Independent director — the Company is compliant with the Guidelines set forth by the
Securities Regulation Code (SRC)) Rule 38 regarding the Nomination and Election of
Independent Director. The Company’s By-Laws incorporate the procedures for the
nomination and election of independent director/s in accordance with the requirements

of the said Rule.

Period of Directorship in the Company

Name

Dennis A. Uy

Domingo T. Uy

Romeo B. De Guzman
J.V. Emmanuel De Dios
Cherylyn C. Uy

Monico V. Jacob

Consuelo Ynares Santiago

Stephen T. CuUnjieng
Frederic C. DyBuncio
Minoru Takeda
Nicasio |. Alcantara

Period of Service

since incorporation to present
since incorporation to present
since 2009 to present

2007 to present

2004 to 2006, 2013 to present
2008 to present

2013 to present

January 15, 2018 to present
May 27, 2017 to present
2019 to present

2019 to present

Directorships in Other Reporting Companies

Term of Office

1 year
1 year
1 year
1 year
1 year
1 year
1 year
1 year
1 year
1 year
1 year

The following are directorships held by the directors and executive officers in
other reporting companies during the last five (5) years:

Name of Director

Name of
Reporting Company

Position Held

Consuelo Ynares

Top Frontier Investment

Independent Director

Holdings, Inc.;
Apex Mining Co., Inc.;
Chelsea Logistics and

Corp.;

Infrastracture Holdings

Santiago Holdings, Inc.
Dennis A. Uy ISM Communications President & CEO
Corporation;
PH Resorts Group Chairman

Independent Director
Chairman
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2GO Group, Inc. Chairman
Cherylyn C. Uy ISM Communications Director/Treasurer
Corporation;
PH Resorts Group Director
Holdings, Inc.;
Chelsea Logistics and Treasurer
Infrastructure Holdings
Corp.
Frederic C. Dybuncio 2GO Group, Inc. President/Director
SM Investments President/Director
Corporation

and the following Independent Directors have held directorships in other
reporting companies for the last five (5) years:

Name of Director Name of Position Held
Reporting Company
Nicasio I. Alcantara ACR Mining Corporation. | Chairman & President
Minoru Takeda Showa Shell Sekiyu K.K. Chairman

Certificate of Qualification of the Independent Directors

The Company will submit an updated Certificate of Qualification of all
independent directors pursuant to the October 20, 2006 notice of the
Commission on or before the Company’s distribution of the Definitive
Information Statement to the security holders on March 6, 2020.

Executive Officers

The following is a list of other executive officers and their business
experiences during the past five (5) years:

Henry Albert R. Fadullon, Filipino, 52 years of age, was appointed
Chief Operating Officer of the Company on April 17, 2017. Prior to this,
he served Shell Shared Services (Asia) B.V. as General Manager for its
global businesses. He has over 25 years of experience in the petroleum
industry, having held various roles at Pilipinas Shell Petroleum Corp., a
decade of which were spent overseas with postings in Malaysia, Oman,
and London. He has a wealth of experience in Retail and B2B
performing a variety of frontline and functional roles leading into General
Management positions. He completed his BS Industrial Management
Engineering, minor in Mechanical Engineering, from De La Salle
University.
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Ma. Concepcion F. De Claro, Filipino, 62 years of age, holds a
Bachelor of Science degree in Commerce, Major in Accounting from the
Colegio de San Juan de Letran. She has been the Company’s Chief
Financial Officer since March 2018. She was Director of Alsons Prime
Investment Corporation and Alsons Power Holdings Corporation and the
Vice-President and Chief Operating officer of Alsons Corporation. She
also served as the Director of Limay Energen Corporation and Manila
North Harbour Port, Inc. Ms. de Claro also worked with Petron
Corporation for several years. She was a Consultant for M&A Projects
and a member of the Board of Trustees of Petron Corporation
Employees Retirement Fund. She also served as Petron's Vice
President for Corporate Planning & Services, Controller for the company
and its subsidiaries, and held various positions in Corporate Planning.
In addition, Ms. De Claro also served as a Director of New Ventures
Realty Corporation, Las Lucas Development Corporation, Petron
Marketing Corporation and Petron Freeport Corporation.

Alan Raymond T. Zorrilla, Filipino, 50 years of age, is the Senior Vice
President for External Affairs, Business Development, and Security of
the Company. Prior to his employment with the Company, he was Chief
Legal Counsel of the Unioil Group of Companies where he headed the
Legal, Human Resources, and Administrative Departments. He also
served as Director for Freeport Services Corporation, a 100% subsidiary
of Subic Bay Metropolitan Authority and was once a Legal Consultant of
the Department of Environment and Natural Resources. Atty. Zorrilla
was engaged in litigation practice with Pangilinan, Britanico, Sarmiento
and Franco Law Offices before he entered corporate practice. He
formerly worked as Corporate Legal Counsel of publicly-listed Fil-Estate
Group of Companies in its Litigation and Labor Department. Atty.
Zorrilla completed his law studies at the San Beda College of Law in
1994 and was admitted to the Philippine Bar in 1995. He also took up
his masteral studies at the Ateneo Graduate School of Business. He is
an Army Reservist and a concurrent Commander (Lt. Colonel) of the
Philippine Coast Guard Auxiliary.

Charlie R. Valerio, Filipino, 52 years old, is the Chief Digital Officer. He
also leads the IT group of the Udenna Group of Companies. Charlie
has more than 20 years of in-depth exposure and experience in the Oil
& Gas, Power Generation, and Fast-Moving Consumer Goods (FMCG)
industries as well as in local conglomerates, having worked for Procter &
Gamble for 7 years, Royal Dutch Shell for 14 years, and 5 years for First
Gen Corporation and First Philippine Holdings in concurrent capacity.
As Chief Information Officer at First Gen Corp. and First Philippine
Holdings and led IT for the conglomerates (composed of 11 companies
covering 5 industries - power generation, manufacturing, real
estate/property, health care, and construction). Charlie received his
Bachelor of Science degree in Computer Science from De La Salle
University. He is a certified Project Management Professional and
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completed several leadership trainings in Switzerland and Singapore.

Socorro T. Ermac-Cabreros, Filipino, 55 years old, is concurrently the
Vice President for Corporate Legal and Corporate Secretary of the
Company. She is also the Corporate Secretary of Phoenix Petroleum
Holdings, Inc. Prior to joining the Company, she was a Legal Counsel of
Philippine National Bank in Davao City. She has worked for the
government such as the Office of the Ombudsman for Mindanao and
later as Prosecutor for the Province of Davao del Norte after engaging in
the private practice of law. She finished her law degree at the Ateneo de
Davao University College of Law. She was President for the Davao City
Chapter of the Integrated Bar of the Philippines, Davao City Chapter
from 2009-2011 and President of the Davao Lady Lawyers Association
from 2000-2002.

Jonarest Z. Sibog, Filipino, 39 years old, is the Asst. Vice President for
Comptrollership. She joined the company in 2006, starting her career in
Procurement which she headed for seven years before moving to
Finance. She is a graduate of Ateneo de Davao University with a degree
in Bachelor of Science in Accountancy. She finished her Masters in
Business Administration at the University of Mindanao where she also
earned a few units in LLB. She is a Certified Public Accountant and is
currently the President of the Association of CPAs in Commerce and
Industry (ACPACI) - Davao City Chapter

Richard C. Tiansay, Filipino, 56 years old, is the General Manager for
Pricing and Demand. Mr. Tiansay has more than 22 years of experience
in the oil industry covering domestic and international operations. His
last position in Royal Dutch Shell is as Global SAP IT Order to Cash
Team Lead in London, U.K. This after being assigned to various key
managerial positions not limited in the Philippines but as well as in a
number in Asia Pacific and other countries. Mr. Tiansay completed his
Bachelor of Science in Mechanical Engineering degree from the
University of San Carlos, Cebu City.

Roy O. Jimenez, Filipino, 57 years of age is currently the General
Manager for Commercial and Industrial Business. Prior to joining the
Company he was connected with Chevron Phil. Inc for almost 30 years
and handled various National and District Managerial positions, as well
as supervisory positions for various trades such as Retalil,
Commercial/Industrial, Marketing Support, Liquefied Petroleum Gas and
Lubricants. He also handled regional positions such as Programs
Manager and as team lead for Philippines in various Chevron Regional
projects. He was assigned as a District Manager covering various areas
like North Metro Manila/North Luzon, Visayas and Mindanao. He is a
licensed Mechanical Engineer and graduated from the University of
Santo Tomas. He has MBA units from De La Salle University and
attended various Leadership and Management programs in Asian
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Institute of Management, as well as in-house training programs of
Chevron in Asia Pacific and South Africa.

Joselito G. de Jesus, Filipino, 64 years old, is the General Manager
for Business Development, Strategies and Portfolio Unit. Prior to joining
the Company, Mr. de Jesus was the Assistant Vice-President for
Reseller Trade of Petron Corporation. He joined the oil industry in the
late 1970’s as a Corporate Planning Analyst, then later as Corporate
Planning Manager/Coordinator, of the Philippine National Oil Company
(PNOC). Mr. de Jesus also became a Manager in the Corporate
Planning Department of PNOC Shipping and Transport Corporation and
at the same time, he was also an assistant to the Chairman of PNOC. In
the late 90’s, Mr. de Jesus transferred to Petron Corporation and stayed
with said Company for almost 17 years. He is a graduate of Bachelor of
Science in Business Administration Major in Marketing and Finance
from the University of the Philippines and holds a Masters in Business
Administration from the Ateneo Graduate School of Business.

Ericson S. Inocencio, Filipino, 45 years old, is the General Manager
for Retail Business. Eric has more than 20 years of extensive
experience in the petroleum industry. Prior to joining the Company, he
was connected with Chevron Phils. where he held various positions
primarily leading the Commercial and Industrial business as District
Sales Manager for more than five years and as concurrent National
Fleet Cards Sales Manager. He has exposure in marketing support
function in charge of developing and executed local & global
process/programs which includes profitability modelling. He is a
certified Mechanical Engineer from De La Salle University and
attended his MBA at Ateneo Graduate School of Business.

Joven Jesus G. Mujar, Filipino, 49 years of age, is the General
Manager for Lubricants Sales and Distribution Business. He joined
Phoenix last May 4, 2015. He brought with Him twelve and a half years
of pure lubricant experience from a major petroleum company holding
various positions in sales, business development and marketing
handling both B2C and B2B.Within those years, he had 2 years
assignment in the Asia Pacific Region doing Channel Development
Specialist work.

Maria Rita A. Ros, Filipino, 60 years old, is the Asst. Vice President for
CME. Ms. Ros has more than thirty (30) years of experience in the oil
industry covering materials management, supply chain management,
production planning, imports-exports, warehousing and logistics. She
held various positions in Petron Corporation from 1981 up to 2011 when
she handled Biofuels and Special Projects, and Supply Optimization.
Ms. Ros set up a personal business before joining Phoenix Petroleum
Philippines, Inc. in November 2013. She is a graduate of B.S. Chemical
Engineering from the University of the Philippines, and is a licensed
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Chemical Engineer, and took up Basic Management at the Asian
Institute of Management.

Celina I. Matias, Filipino, 55 years old, is presently the Asst. Vice
President for Brand and Marketing Group of the Company. Ms.
Matias has more than 25 years of expertise on strategic marketing and
client servicing. She honed her skills from Ogilvy & Mather and McCann
Erickson and had worked with a local ad agency as partner. She
handled over 25 local and global brands across different product
categories from petroleum, telecoms, real estate, automotive,
pharmaceutical and a lot more. She finished Communication Arts
major in Advertising & Public Relations in Assumption College.

Reynaldo A. Phala, Filipino, 53 years old, is the Asst. Vice President for
Treasury. He joined the Company in 2008 as its Credit and Collection
Manager. Before joining the Company, he led a progressive banking
career for 17 years, which he started at UCPB. He also worked with the
Department of Trade and Industry as Municipal Trade and Industry
Officer for a year. He graduated from Mindanao State
University-General Santos City with the degree Bachelor of Science in
Civil Engineering as a consistent academic scholar and passed the
licensure examinations for Civil Engineers in May 1989. He recently
finished his Master in Business Administration (MBA) under the Regis
Program at the Ateneo Graduate School of Business.

Celeste Marie G. Ong, Filipino, 52 years old, is currently the Asst. Vice
President for Human Resources. Ms. Ong has more than 20 years of
solid human resources management experience from local and
multinational companies (Concrete Aggregates Inc., Van Melle Phils.,
Fujitsu Computer Products and Optodev, Inc.) Her expertise includes
compensation management, talent acquisition, training and
development, employee relations/engagement, benefits administration
and HRIS. She finished A.B. Psychology from Pamantasan ng Lungsod
ng Maynila and took her M.A. in Psychology at University of Santo
Tomas. She completed Essilor Management Training course in
Singapore & France.

Ignacio Raymund S. Ramos, Jr., Filipino, 57 years old, is the AVP for
Engineering. He has more than 25 years of specialized practice in the
fuel industry. He previously worked with Shell Philippines (1985 to 2003)
and worked his way up to key positions like Special Projects Manager,
Head Retail Construction, Retail Engineering Manager and Field
Facilities Engineering Manager. He also worked in Enmar Construction
Inc. (2004-2009) where his role as General Manager propelled the
business in the field of construction and maintenance of bulk oil terminal
facilities and equipment for major petroleum companies. Among the
projects he managed from 2006-2017 were: SMART Pigging (Intelligent
Inspection of Pipelines) Shell Guam Inc.; In Indonesia: Pulau Laut
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Terminal bulk storage & distribution and jetty facility' PT Banten Energy
for the construction of Refrigerated LPG Terminal, New IBT Barge Fuel
Loading facility and in Singapore the construction of Lube Oil & Grease
Manufacturing Plant. He finished Civil Engineering from the University of
the Philippines.

Arnel G. Alban, Filipino, 52 years old, has been recently appointed as
the Asst. Vice President for Retail Operations and Network
Development. He joined Phoenix in April 2018, moving from Total
(Philippines) Corporation as Asst. Vice President for Retail
Development and Compliance. He has a solid 25 years experience in
the oil industry, starting out as a Business Counselor (or Retail Territory
Manager) in 1993 at Caltex (Philippines), Inc. where he stayed for 5
years. In 1998, he moved to Total where he stayed for 20 years, moving
in various Sales positions, including a stint as AVP for Retail
Development and Compliance. Arnel is a licensed Civil Engineer and
graduated from the University of the Philippines.

Jaime T Diago Jr., Filipino, 64 years old, joined Phoenix Petroleum in
September 2018 as AVP Technical Service and QAPD. Prior to joining
the company, he was connected with Pilipinas Shell where he served for
32 years holding the following key roles: Fuels Product Quality (PQ)
Lead (PH & HK), Fuels PQ Manager (MEA), Fuels Technical Manager,
Head Trading & Economics, Marketing Sales Manager, Commercial
Development Manager and Lubricants Assistant Supply. Prior to his
employment with Pilipinas Shell, Jaime also had six years with Mobil
Philippines where he served as Marketing Representative and Technical
Service Engineer. He finished BSME from Silliman University and is a
licensed Mechanical Engineer.

Joriz Tenebro, Filipino, 41 years old, is the General Manager for Joint
Ventures. Prior to joining Phoenix in November 2018, he has 15 years of
combined business and commercial finance experience with Shell in
retail, trading, upstream and integrated gas covering Asia Pacific, Middle
East, and Europe. Role includes retail territory management; reporting,
planning and economics; finance management; M&A and New Business
Development; and internal audit. He was based in Davao, Manila and a
combined 10 years in Singapore and Dubai. Prior to joining Shell, he
spent a total of 3 years as P&G distributor Finance Manager and PwC
Finance Auditor. Most of his key development trainings were in Shell
Headquarter in Netherlands and INSEAD France. He graduated from
Ateneo de Davao University.

Magtanggol C. Bawal, Filipino, 58 years old, is the General Manager
for Shared Services and is a Certified Public Accountant with 35 years
of work experience in the oil industry, IT, and Services. Prior to joining
Phoenix in 2017 after the company’s acquisition of Family Mart, he was
with Shell Shared Services (Asia) B.V. as Contracts & Procurement
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Operations Delivery Center Manager. Among his other work, he was
previously IT consultant of Phoenix Petroleum in 2010; Chief Finance
Officer and COO of Microsoft Phils.; and LPG Finance Manager, among
other roles, at Pilipinas Shell Petroleum Corp. He earned a Bachelor of
Science degree in Commerce, major in Accounting, from the University
of Batangas, and took MBA classes at the DLSU Graduate School of
Business.

Lester C. Khan, Filipino, 39 years old, the General Manager for Aviation
Business is a driven sales and technical professional with nearly two
decades of experience in the FMCG and oil/gas industry. Previously, he
served as General Manager for both Pure Essence Inc. and Margarrett
Enterprise Inc., which produce biodiesel and toll-packs for major FMCG
companies. He started his career in Procter & Gamble where he was
recognized for leading the reformulation and process development of
the company’s soap brands. In between his stints in manufacturing, he
worked in Pilipinas Shell Petroleum Corp., handling Retail in South
Mindanao. He is a licensed Chemical Engineer from the University of
the Philippines Los Bafos and a Six Sigma Green Belt Certified
Practitioner. He completed his MBA studies at the Ateneo Graduate
School of Business.

Elmer A. Baguioro, Filipino, 47 years old, is the General Manager for
LPG Trading. Before joining Phoenix in 2018, he worked for
multinational corporations such as Procter & Gamble, Coca-Cola, and
Royal Dutch Shell in over 20 years, performing various roles, including
Global LPG Trader in the field of research and development,
manufacturing, strategic infrastructure planning, logistics and supply
chain planning and network optimization, and global LPG trading and
chartering. He graduated at the University of St. La Salle Bacolod and
is a licensed Chemical Engineer.

Bernard C. Suiza, Filipino, 52 years old, is the General Manager for
Philippine FamilyMart. Bernard has 30 years of experience in network
planning, marketing, and operations, having worked in industries from
fuel to food. He joined Phoenix in 2017, and was previously with San
Miguel Foods as its Area Sales Manager for North Luzon. He was
formerly marketing director of Prominex Ventures, and General Manager
of Emerging Channels Inc. where he handled marketing and distribution
of food and non-food products. He spent 11 years in Pilipinas Shell
Petroleum Corp. in various roles in retail, finance, network planning, and
non-fuels retailing. Bernard graduated from the University of the
Philippines with a degree in Business Administration, and obtained his
MBA from UP in 2017.

Julgin Anthony G. Villanueva, Filipino, 35 years old, is the General
Manager for LPG Luzon. Ton is a sales professional with over a decade
of experience in selling and negotiation, account management, and
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business development. Before joining Phoenix in 2017, he was Head of
the Mid and High-Rise Segment of Republic Cement Services, formerly
Lafarge Cement Services Phils. He started his career at Pilipinas Shell
Petroleum Corp., where he was assigned to the LPG business (Shellane
LPG) for nine years in retail and industrial trades across the country. He
is a graduate of De La Salle University with a degree in Management of
Financial Institutions, and holds an MBA from the Ateneo Graduate

School of Business.

Period of Service in the Company

Name

Henry Albert R. Fadullon
Ma. Concepcion F. De Claro
Charlie R. Valerio

Socorro Ermac Cabreros
Jonarest Z. Sibog

Reynaldo A. Phala

Alan Raymond T. Zorrilla
Joselito G. De Jesus
Richard C. Tiansay

Ericson S. Inocencio

Roy O. Jimenez

Joven Jesus Mujar

Ma. Rita A. Ros

Celeste Marie G. Ong
Celina I. Matias

Ignacio Raymund Ramos, Jr.
Arnel G. Ablan

Jaime T. Diago, Jr.

Joriz B. Tenebro
Magtanggol C. Bawal
Lester C. Khan

Elmer A. Baguioro

Bernard C. Suiza

Julgin Anthony G. Villanueva

Period of Service

April 17, 2017 to present
May 1, 2018 to present
March 1, 2019 to present
July 2, 2006 to present
March 27, 2006 to present
October 16, 2008 to present
April 1, 2009 to present
March 15, 2011 to present
March 1, 2013 to present
February 15, 2014 to present
May 11, 2015 to present

May 4, 2015 to present
November 1, 2013 to present
July 2, 2012 to present

July 2, 2012 to present
January 16, 2018 to present
April 16, 2018 to present
September 3, 2018 to present
November 5, 2018 to present
December 1, 2017 to present
February 18, 2019 to present
August 1, 2018 to present
August 16, 2017 to present
October 16, 2017 to present

There are no Directors and/or Executives working in any government agency.

(a.) Nominations of Directors and Independent Directors for the term 2020-2021

The following are the final nominees who were duly screened by the
nomination committee for election to the Board of Directors for the
following fiscal year 2020 at the forthcoming Annual Meeting:
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1. Dennis A. Uy

2. Henry Albert R. Fadullon

3. Romeo B. De Guzman

4. J.V. Emmanuel A. de Dios

5. Minoru Takeda (Independent Director)

6. Cherylyn C. Uy

7. Nicasio |. Alcantara (Independent Director)
8. Consuelo Ynares-Santiago (Independent Director)
9. Monico V. Jacob

10. Frederic C. DyBuncio

11. Stephen T. CuUnjieng

Minoru Takeda, Nicasio I. Alcantara and Consuelo Ynares-Santiago are
nominated as Independent Directors based on following qualifications:

1. They have no transaction, affiliations or relations with the
Issuer/Corporation

2. Their current business activities are different from the current
business activities of the Corporation. Thus, their credentials
add diversity in the business backgrounds of the Board of
Directors

3. They have and will maintain independent judgment and views
with the Board of Directors

4. Except for the 1 share each, they do not own any shares in the
Corporation

5. Prior to initially being elected as Directors of the Company,
they have not, at any time, rendered any service to the
Company.

6. They possess none of the disqualifications of an Independent
Director.

Retired Supreme Court Justice Consuelo Ynares-Santiago was
nominated as Independent Director by Atty. J.V. Emmanuel A. de Dios.
On the other hand, Mr. Nicasio I. Alcantara and Mr. Minoru Takeda were
nominated by Ms. Cherylyn C. Uy. Atty. de Dios and Ms. Cherylyn C. Uy
or any of the nominated directors are not related to either Retired
Justice Santiago, Mr. Alcantara or Mr. Takeda by consanguinity or
affinity and have no professional or business dealings with them. Retired
Justice Santiago, Mr. Takeda and Mr. Alcantara are neither officers nor
substantial stockholders of the Company. They possess the
qualifications and none of the disqualifications of independent directors.
Retired Justice Santiago, Mr. Alcantara and Mr. Takeda hold only one
(1) share each in the Company. Prior to being elected as Director of the
Company, they have not, at any time, rendered any service to the
Company.
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(d)

The members of the Nomination and Governance Committee are:
Nicasio I. Alcantara (Chairman), Minoru Takeda, and J.V. Emmanuel A.
De Dios as members.

For the scheduled Annual Meeting, the Committee has screened and
evaluated the candidates for Independent Directors based on the Rule
38 of the Securities Regulation Code (“SRC”) and the Company’s
amended By-laws and New Code of Corporate Governance.
Amendments to the By-laws of the Company incorporating the
provisions of SRC Rule 38 were approved by the SEC on February 19,
2007.

(For the individual write-ups of the other nominees, please refer to item
5 of this Information.)

Significant Employees

No single person is expected to make a significant contribution to the
Company’s business since the Company considers the collective efforts
of all its employees as instrumental to the overall success of the
Company’s performance.

Family Relationships

With the exception of Messrs. Domingo T. Uy and Dennis A. Uy who are
related to each other by consanguinity within the first civil degree,
Cherylyn C. Uy and Dennis A. Uy, who are spouses and related to each
other by affinity, and Domingo T. Uy and Cherylyn C. Uy who are related
to each other by affinity, there are no other family relationships either by
consanguinity or affinity up to the fourth civil degree among the
directors, executive officers, and persons nominated and chosen by the
Company to become directors and executive officers of the Company.

Involvement in Certain Legal Proceedings

The Company’s Independent Director, Monico V. Jacob, in his capacity as the
then Chairman of Petron Corporation, was impleaded in a case together with
some government officials for Violation of Republic Act 3019, otherwise known
as the Anti-Graft and Corrupt Practices Act involving tax credit payments. The
case has been dismissed by the Sandiganbayan, Fourth Division, Quezon
City in a Resolution dated March 2, 2017.

The Department of Justice (DOJ) filed twenty-five (25) Information against
Dennis A. Uy, President and CEO of the Company, for alleged violations of the
Tariff and Customs Code of the Philippines, twenty-two (22) of which were filed
with the Regional Trial Court of Davao City, and three (3) Information filed with
the Regional Trial Court of Batangas City.
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With respect to the Information filed with the Regional Trial Court of Batangas
City, upon filing by Mr. Uy on September 2, 2013 of an Omnibus Motion for the
Determination of Lack of Probable Cause, the Regional Trial Court of Batangas
City granted said motion on September 17, 2013 and DISMISSED all three (3)
Informations. The DOJ filed a Motion for Reconsideration with Motion for
Inhibition of Judge Ruben A. Galvez, which was subsequently denied on
December 6, 2013. On July 7, 2014, the Regional Trial Court of Batangas City
issued a Certificate of Finality certifying that its Order dated December 6, 2013,
which denied the Motion for Reconsideration and affirmed the Order dated
September 17, 2013 which dismissed the 3 Information filed against Mr. Uy for
lack of probable cause, has already become final and executory since no
appeal was filed therefrom.

With respect to the Information filed with the Regional Trial Court of Davao
City, on October 4, 2013, the Regional Trial Court of Davao City ordered the
DISMISSAL of the criminal cases against Mr. Uy. The subsequent Motion for
Reconsideration of the Plaintiff, People of the Philippines, was also denied in
an Order dated August 18, 2014. Hence, the People of the Philippines
(“Petitioner”) filed on October 27, 2014 with the Court of Appeals (CA),
Cagayan de Oro City a Petition for Certiorari under Rule 65 of the Rules of
Court docketed as CA G.R. SP No. 06500-MINm CA, CDO, 23" Division. On
October 24, 2016, Mr. Uy received a copy of the Decision of the CA dated
October 12, 2016 DENYING the Petition for Certiorari. On November 10,
2016, Mr. Uy received a copy of the Motion for Reconsideration filed with the
CA.

As of January 25, 2017, the Court of Appeals has DENIED the Petitioner’s
Motion for Reconsideration and upheld the decision the Court on October 12,
2016.

On 4 April 2017, we received a copy of the Petition for Review on
Certiorari dated 27 March 2017 filed by petitioner docketed as GR No.
229705, SC, Manila, 3™ Division. While awaiting Resolution from the
Supreme Court on the parties’ Memoranda, in a “Manifestation in Lieu
of Reply” filed by the Office of the Solicitor General on July 10, 2019, the
SOJ has prayed that their manifestation be duly considered and to
DISMISS all three (3) petitions without prejudice to the possible filing, if
the Court desires, of supplemental memoranda from the parties.

Several cases of Grave Coercion, Robbery and Libel were filed against
the Sales Team of South Mindanao and other officers, including all the
members of the Board of Directors except for Domingo T. Uy, Stephen
Cu-Unjieng, Minoru Takeda, Nicasio Alcantara and Justice Consuelo
Ynares-Santiago in relation to the Company’s closure and take-over of
six (6) Phoenix Fuel Stations in Davao City. To date, the cases have
been dismissed by the City Prosecutor’s office of Davao City.

Other court cases typical and customary in the course of the business
operations of the Company such as those, among others, involving
collection, qualified theft, breach of contract and reckless imprudence
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have been filed by and against the Company, by and against its
employees and/or third parties. The results of which will not significantly
affect the financial standing of the Company. Other than the above
stated, no other significant cases were filed by and against the
Company and its subsidiaries.

Except for the above, to the best of the Company’s knowledge there has
been no occurrence during the past five (5) years up to the date of this
Prospectus of any of the following events which are material to an
evaluation of the ability or integrity of any director, person nominated to
become a director, executive officer, or control person of the Company:

. Any insolvency or bankruptcy petition filed by or against any
business of which such person was a general partner or
executive officer either at the time of the insolvency or within two
years prior to that time;

. Any conviction by final judgment in a criminal proceeding,
domestic or foreign, or any pending criminal proceeding,
domestic or foreign, excluding traffic violations and other minor
offenses;

. Any final and executory order, judgment, or decree or any court of
competent jurisdiction, domestic or foreign, permanently or
temporarily enjoining, barring, suspending, or otherwise limiting
involvement in any type of business, securities, commodities, or
banking activities; and

. Any final and executory judgment by a domestic or foreign court
or competent jurisdiction (in a civil action), the Commission, or
comparable foreign body, or a domestic or foreign exchange or
electronic marketplace or self-regulatory organization, for
violation of a securities or commodities law.

There are no other pending significant legal cases as far as
records of the Company is concerned.

(e) Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

The Group’s related parties include the ultimate parent company, parent
company, subsidiaries, stockholders, the Group’s key management and others
as described below.

The Company has an operating lease agreement with its ultimate parent
company, Udenna Corporation, for the use of various properties for its
operations and for office space. Furthermore, the Company regularly charters
the use of marine tankers from its affiliate, Chelsea Shipping, for the hauling of
its fuel products from suppliers’ terminals and from its own depots to Company
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depots and to its customers. These contracted services are made on
reasonable arms-length terms as would be obtainable from third party
providers. The following are the transactions with related parties:

(B) Compensation of Director and Executive Officers

The Company’s executives are regular employees and are paid a compensation
package of twelve months’ pay. They also receive performance bonuses similarly to
those of the managerial, supervisory and technical employees.

The members of the Board of Directors who are not employees of the Company are
elected for a period of one (1) year. The Company pays its non-executive directors a
per diem of P30,000.00 for each meeting. There are no other arrangements for which
the members of the Board of Directors are compensated.

The members of the Board of Directors are elected for a period of one (1) year.
The aggregate compensation paid or incurred during the last two (2) fiscal years and

estimated to be paid in the ensuing fiscal year to the executive officers of the
Company are as follows:

Summary of Compensation Table

Projected Compensation of Executive Officers and Directors (in thousand Pesos)

Year ended December 31, 2020

Bonuses / 13*

Name Principal Position Salaries Month / Other Total
(inP) Income (inP)
(inP)
Dennis A. Uy President and Chief

Executive Officer

Henry Albert R. | Chief Operating Officer

Fadullon 56,640* 4,720* 61,360*
Ma. Concepcion F. De | Chief Finance Officer
Claro
Alan Raymond T. | SVP - External Affairs,
Zorrilla Business Development and
Security
Charlie R. Valerio Chief Digital Officer
All other officers and 71,434 5,953 77,387

directors as a group
unnamed

* Total salaries and bonuses/ 13" month and other income of the above named individuals
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Compensation of Executive Officers and Directors (in thousand Pesos)

Year ending December 31, 2019

Bonuses / 13"
Name Principal Position Salaries Month / Other Total
(inP) Income (inP
(in P

Dennis A. Uy President and Chief

Executive Officer
Henry Albert R. | Chief Operating Officer
Fadullon
Ma. Concepcion F. De | Chief Finance Officer 48,898 4,074 52,972
Claro
Alan Raymond T. | SVP — External Affairs,
Zorrilla Business Development and

Security
William M. Azarcon VP - Business development

for terminals and depots
All  other officers and 80,363 6,697 87,060
directors as a group
unnamed

Compensation of Executive Officers and Directors (in thousand Pesos)

Year ending December 31, 2018

Bonuses / 13"
Name Principal Position Salaries Month / Other Total
(inP) Income (inP)
(inP
Dennis A. Uy President and Chief 44,453 3,704 48,157
Executive Officer
Henry Albert R. | Chief Operating Officer
Fadullon
Joseph John L. Ong Chief Finance Officer
Alan Raymond T. | VP - External Affairs,
Zorrilla Business Development and
Security
William M. Azarcon VP — Business development
for terminals and depots
All other officers and 73,057 6,088 79,145
directors as a group
unnamed

The Directors and Officers of the Company hold no Outstanding

Warrants and Options.

Generally, a typical employment contract executed between the Company and
its named executive officers has the following terms:

1. Specification of job
employment, work assignment and possible need for

title,

commencement

reassignment of work or location as the need may arise;
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2. A probation period of six months probationary period from
commencement of employment. If the job performance is
found to be satisfactory, employment shall be converted to
regular basis.

3. Salary & Benefits: specifies that the executive shall
receive his monthly salary and a guaranteed 13" month
pay less the necessary government deductions allowed by
law such as but not limited to SSS premium, Philhealth,
Pag-IBIG contributions.  The same section likewise
provides that the executive’s salary shall be subject to
annual review which shall take into consideration his
performance and the achievement of mutually-agreed
goals.

4. Exclusivity: The employment contract provides that the
executive shall render exclusive service to the Company
and the prohibition to work with other companies
regardless of whether such work is done outside office
hours, without the consent of the Company.

5. Confidentiality: The executive/employee is duty bound to
keep all information, materials and records which he or
she may access in the course of his/her employment with
the Company are confidential in nature and he or she may
not disclose or reproduce the same without the consent of
the Company.

6. Professional Conduct: The executive concerned is
expected to comply with all the policies and procedures
which the Company may issue from time to time. It is
specifically prohibited to accept any or all kinds of gifts
from suppliers and customers without the consent of the
Company

Compensation Committee (Now under the Nomination and Governance
Committee)

The duties and functions of the Company’s Compensation Committee have
now been folded into the Nomination and Governance Committee, as such it
shall be composed of at least three (3) members of the Board, one of whom
shall be an Independent Director. The function of the Compensation Committee
to be folded into the Nomination and Governance Committee include
establishing a formal and transparent procedure for developing a policy on
executive remuneration and for fixing the remuneration packages of corporate
officers and directors, and provides oversight over remuneration of senior
management and other key personnel.
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The following are the members of the Nomination and Governance Committee:

Nicasio I. Alcantara (Independent Director)
Minoru Takeda (Independent Director)
J.V. Emmanuel A. de Dios

Chairperson

Member
Member

(C ) Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management

As of December 31, 2019, the following are the owners of the Company’s common

stock in excess of five percent (5%) of the total outstanding shares:

Title of Name/Address of Record Name of Citizenship No. of % of
Class of Owners and Relationship Beneficial Shares Ownership
Securities with Phoenix Owners/Relation Held
ship with
Record Owner
Common Phoenix Petroleum Record Owner is Filipino 588,945,630 41.88%
Holdings, Inc. the direct
beneficial owner
Maijority Shareholder
Common ES Consultancy Group, Record Owner is Filipino 340,270,980 24.20%
Inc. the direct
beneficial owner
Common Top Direct Investments Record Owner is Filipino 142,000,000 10.10%
Limited the direct
beneficial owner
Common Udenna Corporation Record Owner is Filipino 117,245,918 8.34%
the direct
beneficial owner
Common PCD Nominee Corporation Record Owner is Filipino 124,799,238 8.87%

(Filipino)

the indirect
beneficial owner

As of December 31, 2019, there are no beneficial owners under the PCD Nominee
Corp. of the Company’s common stock in excess of five percent (5%) of the total
outstanding shares.

There are NO voting trust agreements entered into by the Company or any of the
major stockholders of the Company.

However, the persons are authorized for purposes of this annual meeting to vote for
and in behalf of the following stockholders are as follows:
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Name of Stockholders Representative

1. Phoenix Petroleum Holdings, Inc. Domingo T. Uy

2. Udenna Corporation Cherylyn C. Uy

3. Udenna Management & Resources Igna S. Braga IV
Corp.

4. PCD Nominees/ Trading Participants Ultimate Beneficial Owners

representing the trading
participants shall be made
available after lapse of the Record
Date and only after submission of
their respective proxy forms for
validation
Security Ownership of Management

As of December 31, 2019, the security ownership of Management is as

follows:
Common
Title of Name of Beneficial Amount and Nature Citizenship % of
Class of Owner of Beneficial Ownership
Securities Ownership
Directors:
Common Dennis A. Uy 5,304,811 Filipino 0.38%
direct beneficial
owner
Common Dennis A. Uy &/or Cherylyn 1,098,099 Filipino 0.08%
C. Uy
direct beneficial
owner
Common Domingo T. Uy 645,919 Filipino 0.05%
direct beneficial
owner
Common Romeo B. De Guzman 1,325,746 Filipino 0.09%
direct beneficial
owner
Common J.V. Emmanuel A. De Dios 776,819 Filipino 0.06%
direct beneficial
owner
Common Minoru Takeda 1 Japanese 0.00%

direct beneficial
owner
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Common Consuelo Ynares Santiago

Common Monico V. Jacob
Common Frederic C. DyBuncio
Common Nicasio |. Alcantara
Common Stephen T. CuUnjieng

Senior Management

Common Socorro T. Ermac Cabreros
Common Reynaldo A. Phala
Preferred

1
direct beneficial

owner

1

direct beneficial
owner

1
direct beneficial
owner
1

direct beneficial
owner

1

direct beneficial
owner

139,216

direct beneficial
owner

24,830

direct beneficial
owner

Filipino

Filipino

Filipino

Filipino

Filipino

Filipino

Filipino

0.00%

0.00%

0.00 %

0.00 %

0.00 %

0.01%

0.00%

Title of Class Name/Address of Amount and Nature of Beneficial % of
of Securities Beneficial Owner Ownership Ownership
Number of Shares
Directors: PNX3A PNX3B Total % to total
1/0 shares
Preferred Domingo T. Uy* - 10,000 10,000 0.05%
direct
beneficial
owner
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Preferred Romeo B. De Guzman* 25,000 - 25,000

Indirect
beneficial
owner thru
Spouse
Preferred Consuelo Ynares - 10,000 10,000
Santiago
direct
beneficial
owner

*named directors are likewise officers of the Company or Corporation per By-Laws

The other executive officers of the Company, Alan Raymond T. Zorrilla — SVP
for External Affairs, Business Development and Security; Ericson
Inocencio-General Manager for Retail Business; Joselito De Jesus-General
Manager for Business Development, Strategies and Portfolio Unit; Ma. Rita A.
Ros — Asst. Vice President for CME; Richard Tiansay-General Manager for
Supply & Pricing and Demand, Roy Jimenez-General Manager for
Commercial and Industrial Business; Celina |. Matias-AVP for Integrated
Marketing and Strategies, Celeste Marie G. Ong-AVP for Human Resources;
Jonarest Z. Sibog, Asst. Vice President for Comptrollership; and Joven Jesus
G. Mujar-General Manager for Lubricant Sales and Distribution Business own
common shares in scripless form through the Company’s Employees Stock
Option Plan (ESOP) as of December 6, 2019 as follows:

Names No. of Shares

Alan Raymond T. Zorrilla 267,000
Ericson S. Inocencio 143,000
Joselito G. De Jesus 164,000
Ma. Rita A. Ros 164,000
Richard R. Tiansay 135,000
Roy O. Jimenez 102,000
Ma. Celina I. Matias 146,000
Celeste Marie G. Ong 110,000
Jonarest Z. Sibog 62,800

Joven Jesus G. Mujar 44,000

However, some of the officers have disposed of their shares through their
respective brokers.

The numbers of aggregate shares for all directors and executive officers is
TEN MILLION SIX HUNDRED FIFTY-THREE THOUSAND TWO HUNDRED
FORTY-SIX (10,653,246) for common shares and Forty Five Thousand
(45,000) for preferred shares.
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Other than those mentioned above, there are no persons holding more than
five percent (5%) of a class under a voting trust or any similar agreements as
of the date of this Report.

(e) Change in Control

On May 22, 2017, the Corporation was informed by its major stockholders, Udenna
Corporation (UC) and Udenna Management & Resources Corp. (UMRC) of a joint
block sale, using the Philippine Stock Exchange’s (PSE) facilities, totaling 340,270,958
common shares of the Corporation in favor of a certain ES Consulting Group, Inc.
(ESGI), a consulting firm that is focused on financial strategy, capital mergers and
acquisitions as well as joint ventures. This consists of about 23.77% of the
Corporation’s outstanding capital stock.

On January 4, 2018, the Corporation received a copy of SEC Form 18-A from a
certain Top Direct Investments Limited (Top Direct Investments), a foreign corporation
organized in the British Virgin Islands with registered office in Hongkong, SAR through
a reporting person identified as Miguel Jose C. Valencia who is holding office at the
PSE Center in Ortigas, Metro Manila. The form indicated that Top Direct Investments
acquired about 142,000,000 shares in the Corporation representing about 9.92% of
the total outstanding capital stock, through a special block sale crossed at the PSE at
the price of Php15.00 per share. It further disclosed that the purpose of the
acquisition of an equity interest in the Corporation is for investment purposes in the
petroleum industry and it does not intend to acquire shares of the Corporation for
purposes of taking over the same.

On March 5, 2020, the Corporation received a copy of the SEC Form 18-A from Top
Direct Investments indicating its disposition of 142,000,000 shares through a special
block sale crossed at the PSE at the price of Php15.00 per share.

(D) Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

The Group’s related parties include the ultimate parent company, parent
company, subsidiaries, stockholders, the Group’s key management and
others as described below.

The Company has an operating lease agreement with its ultimate parent
company, Udenna Corporation, for the use of various properties for its
operations and for office space. Furthermore, the Company regularly
charters the use of marine tankers from its affiliate, CSC, for the hauling of
its fuel products from suppliers’ terminals and from its own depots to
Company depots and to its customers. These contracted services are
made on reasonable arms-length terms as would be obtainable from third
party providers. The following are the transactions with related parties:
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a.) Rentals
The Group has an operating lease agreement with Udenna Corporation, the
ultimate parent company. The total rent expense of the Company is presented as

follows:

2016 2017 2018 2019 TOTALS

75,198,160.90  68,093,074.22  7,106,448.53 - 150,397,683.65

b.) Contract of Affreightment

The Company entered into a Contract of Affreightment with CSC, an affiliate to
haul the Company’s petroleum supplies for both regional and domestic markets.
c.) Due to and Due from Related Parties

The breakdown of due from related parties as of December 31, 2019 and 2018 is
as follows:

The breakdewn of tha Due from Redated Partes as of Decamber 31 (5 a5 fallaws:

Mote 2019 2018

Fas P 1979538 P 5241248
P-H-0-E-M-I- ¥ Philippinas

Foaundation, Inc. {PPFI) 24,083 58118

cisc - B33 008 022

zalaxi Petroleum Fuelis, Inc. - 876, 256

Ldanna Corparation - 24 810

2,073,827 L38 812 454

Allowance for impairment 4.3 i BE.B16) | 1 908 282

P 1986811 P 937904172
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d.) List of Related Party Transaction

Fefated Party Amount of Transactians Dutstanding Balance
Category Motes 2019 018 2017 2018 2018
Other relxted paries
under ¢omman
ST hip

Sale of subsidaies 7294 P . P P P Bo0.0od080 5000000600
Sale ol godds 7231 TR0, 7.5 ATILIOTEST  L030.504 003 4207806 TS 1501 260462
Fale of senvices T.22.10 BB8.533.2198 221 V03050 ; TH4BI5 432 45705004
Purchase of goods 22,12 FARLAITLATS 1,005.534.670 : J4074 046 a3
Purchass of sendices 20,232 3 352,010,893 115,202,871 : 2AGT SHE
Purcfage of land 0.26.11 . 92,E20,000 : : 15876520
Advances 1o suppliers 7,292 184 125,041 115,305 467 : 30801887 115305 467
Wanagemeni fees 7.23.6 281173 : £, B33, 023 ) 38.612,507 06008 506
Renlals 20,293 101,894, 780 104,631 407 41,954 155 . 5774870
Prepaid Hani 2AELET : ; BIZET
Aduances fof oplion 0

purchase propertres 7072802 TT.05& v81) 2577056 1491 2,500,060 060 2 5TTOH6 151
Due from nelaied

partes 254 0T A2 41 266 T4E SEE 465 628 1886811 535271 84
Donatices 142913 6.B23,000 610,000 )

Ultimate. parent

Advarces oauspliens 17,23.2 230 TILAN T42.056.217 13455, 078 LEHEN, T 1T 194840
Leas= hiabilty 12,24, 254,298 167,665,447 167,658 447
Renlas 20,193 . 7,106,440 1,101,775 - .
Sale of Fereices 2910 #41.5083.666  100.000.000 - 437,083,788 112000000
Sale of goods 7280 TS 6IE P ; 126 557

(E)

Corporate Governance

Corporate powers and governance of the Company is exercised by the Board
of Directors which consists of eleven (11) members, three (3) of whom are
independent directors. As a matter of policy and based on good corporate
practice, unless a special meeting is called upon for a specific purpose, the
Board regularly meets every quarter wherein which the relevant corporate
issues may be raised for discussion and voted by the members of the Board.

Last March 07, 2008, during the regular meeting of the Board, the Manual of
Corporate Governance which incorporated the best practices was approved
and adopted to establish the principles of good corporate governance for the
entire Corporation. The adoption of the new Manual of Corporate Governance
replaces the old manual of corporate governance prescribed by the SEC which
was then observed and followed by the Company. Moreover, the adoption of
the new Manual now complies with the SEC requirement that before assuming
office, a director must attend a seminar on corporate governance conducted by
a duly recognized government or private institution.

Last January 30, 2008, the Company through the Corporate Secretary has
submitted a document certifying the attendance of the members of the Board
of Directors in all regular meetings for the year 2007 as well as the compliance
to the provisions of the Manual of Corporate Governance prescribed by the
SEC as adopted by the Company.
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On March 03, 2009 the Company submitted the Certification of the Company’s
Compliance Officer to the extent of compliance with its Manual for Corporate
Governance.

As part of the Corporate Governance, the Group works on the early
disclosures of quarterly and annual reports to the SEC and PSE.

Internal Audit Group of the Company conducts regular internal audit review to
both processes, compliance to Company policies and procedures and risk
analysis. Reports and recommendations submitted for board review and
actions.

The Company plans on constantly improving corporate governance. The
Company recognizes that corporate governance is not just a set of rules but a
way of life, not just for the directors and officers of the Company but for every
single employee. The Company intends to continuously re-evaluate its existing
policies, implement reforms, emulate and improve on the best existing
corporate practices of industry leaders in order to improve the quality of life of
every employee, maximize returns to shareholders, to improve its relationship
with business partners, and strengthen and widen the reach of its corporate
social responsibility programs.

The Company's I-ACGR is also posted in the Company's official website,
www.phoenixfuels.ph

PART V - EXHIBITS AND SCHEDULES
Exhibits and Reports on SEC Form 17-C and others
Exhibits
The following exhibits are incorporated by reference in this report.
e Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company as of and for the year
ended 31 December 2019
e Index to Financial Statements and Supplementary Schedules
Reports on SEC Form 17-C and others
The following disclosures have been reported and disclosed to the Commission for the

year 2019 up to March 31, 2020 which were duly supported by disclosure letters:

2019 Disclosures (including disclosures up to March 31, 2020:

Template Name Announce Date and Time PSE Report or Circular
Form Number
Number
Material Mar 31, 2020 11:36 AM 4-30 C02445-2020

Information/Transactions
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http://www.phoenixfuels.ph/
https://edge.pse.com.ph/companyDisclosures/form.do?cmpy_id=608#viewer
https://edge.pse.com.ph/companyDisclosures/form.do?cmpy_id=608#viewer

Press Release

Postponement of Annual
Stockholders' Meeting

Material
Information/Transactions

Material
Information/Transactions

[Amend-1]information
Statement

Press Release

Material
Information/Transactions

Information Statement

Report by Owner of More Than
Five Percent

Statement of Changes in
Beneficial Ownership of
Securities

[Amend-3]Notice of Annual or
Special Stockholders' Meeting

Press Release
Information Statement
Press Release

[Amend-2]Notice of Annual or
Special Stockholders' Meeting

[Amend-1]Notice of Annual or
Special Stockholders' Meeting

Declaration of Cash Dividends
Declaration of Cash Dividends

[Amend-1]Declaration of Cash
Dividends

Declaration of Cash Dividends

Amendments to Articles of
Incorporation

Amendments to By-Laws

Notice of Annual or Special
Stockholders' Meeting

Material
Information/Transactions

List of Top 100 Stockholders

Public Ownership Report

Mar 23, 2020 01:30 PM
Mar 18, 2020 05:44 PM

Mar 18, 2020 02:37 PM

Mar 16, 2020 01:07 PM

Mar 13, 2020 09:44 AM

Mar 06, 2020 08:19 AM
Mar 05, 2020 10:27 AM

Mar 05, 2020 09:49 AM
Mar 05, 2020 07:58 AM

Mar 05, 2020 07:54 AM

Mar 02, 2020 04:12 PM

Mar 02, 2020 07:59 AM
Feb 21, 2020 07:57 AM
Feb 20, 2020 08:21 AM
Feb 07, 2020 09:40 AM

Feb 06, 2020 10:44 AM

Feb 06, 2020 09:23 AM
Feb 06, 2020 09:23 AM
Feb 06, 2020 09:13 AM

Feb 05, 2020 03:08 PM
Jan 28, 2020 09:13 AM

Jan 28, 2020 09:08 AM
Jan 28, 2020 07:56 AM

Jan 27, 2020 03:16 PM

Jan 14, 2020 04:08 PM
Jan 14, 2020 03:58 PM
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4-31
7-2

4-30

4-30

17-5

4-31
4-30

17-5
17-8

17-7

7-1

4-31
17-5
4-31

7-1

6-1
6-1
6-1

6-1
4-3

4-4
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4-30

17-12
POR-1

C02228-2020
C02089-2020

C02074-2020

C01948-2020

CR01395-2020

C01431-2020
C01399-2020

CR01266-2020
CR01258-2020

CR01257-2020

C01298-2020

C01258-2020
CR01165-2020
C01051-2020
C00765-2020

C00743-2020

C00740-2020
C00739-2020
C00736-2020

C00715-2020
C00484-2020

C00483-2020
C00477-2020

C00462-2020

CR00494-2020
CR00492-2020


https://edge.pse.com.ph/companyDisclosures/form.do?cmpy_id=608#viewer
https://edge.pse.com.ph/companyDisclosures/form.do?cmpy_id=608#viewer
https://edge.pse.com.ph/companyDisclosures/form.do?cmpy_id=608#viewer
https://edge.pse.com.ph/companyDisclosures/form.do?cmpy_id=608#viewer
https://edge.pse.com.ph/companyDisclosures/form.do?cmpy_id=608#viewer
https://edge.pse.com.ph/companyDisclosures/form.do?cmpy_id=608#viewer
https://edge.pse.com.ph/companyDisclosures/form.do?cmpy_id=608#viewer
https://edge.pse.com.ph/companyDisclosures/form.do?cmpy_id=608#viewer
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https://edge.pse.com.ph/companyDisclosures/form.do?cmpy_id=608#viewer
https://edge.pse.com.ph/companyDisclosures/form.do?cmpy_id=608#viewer
https://edge.pse.com.ph/companyDisclosures/form.do?cmpy_id=608#viewer
https://edge.pse.com.ph/companyDisclosures/form.do?cmpy_id=608#viewer
https://edge.pse.com.ph/companyDisclosures/form.do?cmpy_id=608#viewer
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Other SEC Forms, Reports and
Requirements

Clarification of News Reports

Statement of Changes in
Beneficial Ownership of
Securities

Press Release
Press Release

Material
Information/Transactions

Statement of Changes in
Beneficial Ownership of
Securities

Material
Information/Transactions

Material
Information/Transactions

Material
Information/Transactions

Press Release

Quarterly Report

Press Release

Press Release

Press Release

Declaration of Cash Dividends
Declaration of Cash Dividends

Material
Information/Transactions

Statement of Changes in
Beneficial Ownership of
Securities

Statement of Changes in
Beneficial Ownership of
Securities

Statement of Changes in
Beneficial Ownership of
Securities

Statement of Changes in
Beneficial Ownership of
Securities

Press Release

Jan 07, 2020 09:58 AM

Dec 18, 2019 09:38 AM

Dec 18, 2019 07:43 AM

Dec 16, 2019 02:10 PM
Dec 13, 2019 07:53 AM
Dec 12, 2019 02:53 PM

Dec 10, 2019 07:41 AM

Dec 02, 2019 08:53 AM

Nov 22, 2019 02:25 PM

Nov 18, 2019 08:04 AM

Nov 14, 2019 02:38 PM
Nov 14, 2019 08:35 AM
Nov 14, 2019 07:34 AM
Nov 08, 2019 12:10 PM
Nov 08, 2019 11:13 AM
Nov 06, 2019 02:54 PM
Nov 06, 2019 02:54 PM
Nov 06, 2019 11:04 AM

Nov 06, 2019 08:05 AM

Nov 05, 2019 09:11 AM

Nov 04, 2019 08:44 AM

Oct 30, 2019 09:09 AM

Oct 29, 2019 12:43 PM

17-18

4-13

17-7

4-31
4-31
4-30

17-7

4-30

4-30

4-30

4-31
17-2
4-31
4-31
4-31
6-1
6-1
4-30

17-7

17-7

17-7

17-7

4-31

CR00064-2020

C08875-2019

CRO07716-2019

C08813-2019
C08745-2019
C08731-2019

CR07608-2019

C08419-2019

C08223-2019

C08116-2019

C08067-2019
CR07186-2019
C08033-2019
C07868-2019
C07867-2019
C07767-2019
C07765-2019
C07753-2019

CR06911-2019

CR06892-2019

CR06868-2019

CR06834-2019

C07532-2019

75


https://edge.pse.com.ph/companyDisclosures/form.do?cmpy_id=608#viewer
https://edge.pse.com.ph/companyDisclosures/form.do?cmpy_id=608#viewer
https://edge.pse.com.ph/companyDisclosures/form.do?cmpy_id=608#viewer
https://edge.pse.com.ph/companyDisclosures/form.do?cmpy_id=608#viewer
https://edge.pse.com.ph/companyDisclosures/form.do?cmpy_id=608#viewer
https://edge.pse.com.ph/companyDisclosures/form.do?cmpy_id=608#viewer
https://edge.pse.com.ph/companyDisclosures/form.do?cmpy_id=608#viewer
https://edge.pse.com.ph/companyDisclosures/form.do?cmpy_id=608#viewer
https://edge.pse.com.ph/companyDisclosures/form.do?cmpy_id=608#viewer
https://edge.pse.com.ph/companyDisclosures/form.do?cmpy_id=608#viewer
https://edge.pse.com.ph/companyDisclosures/form.do?cmpy_id=608#viewer
https://edge.pse.com.ph/companyDisclosures/form.do?cmpy_id=608#viewer
https://edge.pse.com.ph/companyDisclosures/form.do?cmpy_id=608#viewer
https://edge.pse.com.ph/companyDisclosures/form.do?cmpy_id=608#viewer
https://edge.pse.com.ph/companyDisclosures/form.do?cmpy_id=608#viewer
https://edge.pse.com.ph/companyDisclosures/form.do?cmpy_id=608#viewer
https://edge.pse.com.ph/companyDisclosures/form.do?cmpy_id=608#viewer
https://edge.pse.com.ph/companyDisclosures/form.do?cmpy_id=608#viewer
https://edge.pse.com.ph/companyDisclosures/form.do?cmpy_id=608#viewer
https://edge.pse.com.ph/companyDisclosures/form.do?cmpy_id=608#viewer
https://edge.pse.com.ph/companyDisclosures/form.do?cmpy_id=608#viewer
https://edge.pse.com.ph/companyDisclosures/form.do?cmpy_id=608#viewer
https://edge.pse.com.ph/companyDisclosures/form.do?cmpy_id=608#viewer
https://edge.pse.com.ph/companyDisclosures/form.do?cmpy_id=608#viewer
https://edge.pse.com.ph/companyDisclosures/form.do?cmpy_id=608#viewer
https://edge.pse.com.ph/companyDisclosures/form.do?cmpy_id=608#viewer
https://edge.pse.com.ph/companyDisclosures/form.do?cmpy_id=608#viewer
https://edge.pse.com.ph/companyDisclosures/form.do?cmpy_id=608#viewer
https://edge.pse.com.ph/companyDisclosures/form.do?cmpy_id=608#viewer
https://edge.pse.com.ph/companyDisclosures/form.do?cmpy_id=608#viewer
https://edge.pse.com.ph/companyDisclosures/form.do?cmpy_id=608#viewer
https://edge.pse.com.ph/companyDisclosures/form.do?cmpy_id=608#viewer
https://edge.pse.com.ph/companyDisclosures/form.do?cmpy_id=608#viewer
https://edge.pse.com.ph/companyDisclosures/form.do?cmpy_id=608#viewer
https://edge.pse.com.ph/companyDisclosures/form.do?cmpy_id=608#viewer
https://edge.pse.com.ph/companyDisclosures/form.do?cmpy_id=608#viewer
https://edge.pse.com.ph/companyDisclosures/form.do?cmpy_id=608#viewer
https://edge.pse.com.ph/companyDisclosures/form.do?cmpy_id=608#viewer
https://edge.pse.com.ph/companyDisclosures/form.do?cmpy_id=608#viewer
https://edge.pse.com.ph/companyDisclosures/form.do?cmpy_id=608#viewer
https://edge.pse.com.ph/companyDisclosures/form.do?cmpy_id=608#viewer

Material Information/Transactions

Statement of Changes in Beneficial

Ownership of Securities

Material Information/Transactions

Statement of Changes in Beneficial
Ownership of Securities

Statement of Changes in Beneficial

Ownership of Securities

Press Release

Material Information/Transactions

Statement of Changes in Beneficial

Ownership of Securities

Notice of Analysts'/Investors' Briefing
List of Top 100 Stockholders

Public Ownership Report

Change in Corporate Contact Details

and/or Website

Acquisition or Disposition of Shares of
Another Corporation

Statement of Changes in Beneficial

Ownership of Securities

Press Release

Material Information/Transactions
Material Information/Transactions

Press Release

Press Release

Clarification of News Reports
[Amend-1]Creation and Issuance of New

Equity Security
Reply to Exchange's Query

Oct 28, 2019 11:34
AM

Oct 28, 2019 09:17
AM

Oct 25, 2019 11:09
AM

Oct 25, 2019 07:38
AM

Oct 24, 2019 07:38
AM

Oct 23, 2019 03:07
PM

Oct 22, 2019 09:48
AM

Oct 22, 2019 07:32
AM

Oct 17, 2019 02:06
PM

Oct 14, 2019 12:37
PM

Oct 14, 2019 12:26
PM

Oct 04, 2019 03:14
PM

Oct 01, 2019 08:40
AM

Sep 27, 2019 11:45
AM

Sep 27, 2019 11:03
AM

Sep 24, 2019 10:55
AM

Sep 18, 2019 07:51
AM

Sep 13, 2019 07:55
AM

Sep 05, 2019 11:01
AM

Sep 02, 2019 10:54
AM

Aug 29, 2019 11:13
AM

Aug 28, 2019 10:58
AM
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4-30

17-7

4-30

17-7

17-7

4-31

4-30

17-7

14-1

17-12

POR-1

4-6

4-2

17-7

4-31

4-30

4-30

4-31

4-31

4-13

C07484-2019

CR06729-2019

C07433-2019

CR06679-2019

CR06655-2019

C07367-2019

C07331-2019

CR06621-2019

C07254-2019

CR06352-2019

CR06350-2019

C06764-2019

C06646-2019

CR05831-2019

C06585-2019

C06505-2019

C06378-2019

C06312-2019

C06137-2019

C06067-2019

C05998-2019

C05969-2019
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Creation and Issuance of New Equity
Security

Material Information/Transactions
[Amend-1]Information Statement
[Amend-2]Other SEC Forms, Reports
and Requirements

Clarification of News Reports
[Amend-1]Other SEC Forms, Reports
and Requirements

[Amend-1]Material
Information/Transactions

Material Information/Transactions
Information Statement

Statement of Changes in Beneficial
Ownership of Securities

Material Information/Transactions
[Amend-1]Quarterly Report

Quarterly Report

Press Release

[Amend-1]information Statement
Information Statement

Declaration of Cash Dividends
Declaration of Cash Dividends
Statement of Changes in Beneficial
Ownership of Securities

Press Release

Material Information/Transactions

Material Information/Transactions

Aug 23, 2019 03:48
PM

Aug 23, 2019 03:32
PM

Aug 22, 2019 10:37
AM

Aug 22, 2019 08:32
AM

Aug 19, 2019 10:19
AM

Aug 19, 2019 10:02
AM

Aug 16, 2019 09:29
AM

Aug 16, 2019 08:45
AM

Aug 16, 2019 08:04
AM

Aug 15, 2019 02:23
PM

Aug 14, 2019 02:34
PM

Aug 14, 2019 08:16
AM

Aug 09, 2019 11:49
AM

Aug 09, 2019 08:21
AM

Aug 08, 2019 08:00
AM

Aug 07, 2019 08:15
AM

Aug 06, 2019 10:59
AM

Aug 06, 2019 10:58
AM

Aug 06, 2019 10:30
AM

Aug 06, 2019 08:11
AM

Aug 06, 2019 08:11
AM

Aug 06, 2019 08:04
AM
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4-15

4-30

17-5

17-18

4-13

17-18

4-30

4-30

17-5

17-7

4-30

17-2

17-2

4-31

17-5

17-5

6-1

17-7

4-31

4-30

4-30

C05919-2019

C05916-2019

CR05476-2019

CR05470-2019

C05825-2019

CR05436-2019

C05797-2019

C05795-2019

CR05413-2019

CR05400-2019

C05735-2019

CR05212-2019

CR05141-2019

C05647-2019

CR05101-2019

CR05081-2019

C05469-2019

C05468-2019

CR05050-2019

C05459-2019

C05458-2019

C05456-2019
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Statement of Changes in Beneficial Aug 05,2019 07:49 17-7 CR05029-2019

Ownership of Securities AM

Change in Corporate Contact Details Aug 02, 2019 08:45 4-6 C05407-2019

and/or Website AM

Material Information/Transactions Jul 29, 2019 08:28 4-30 C05241-2019
AM

Statement of Changes in Beneficial Jul 26, 2019 07:33 17-7 CR04927-2019

Ownership of Securities AM

Statement of Changes in Beneficial Jul 25, 2019 07:34 17-7 CR04912-2019

Ownership of Securities AM

Material Information/Transactions Jul 23, 2019 07:34 4-30 C05096-2019
AM

Statement of Changes in Beneficial Jul 22,2019 08:41 AM  17-7 CR04876-2019

Ownership of Securities

Statement of Changes in Beneficial Jul 19,2019 07:39 AM 17-7 CR04865-2019

Ownership of Securities

Statement of Changes in Beneficial Jul 18,2019 07:42 AM 17-7 CR04847-2019

Ownership of Securities

List of Top 100 Stockholders Jul 16, 2019 08:31 AM  17-12 CR04826-2019

Public Ownership Report Jul 15,2019 08:19 AM  POR- CR04669-2019

1

Material Information/Transactions Jul 12, 2019 03:48 PM 4-30 C04902-2019

Statement of Changes in Beneficial Jul 10, 2019 07:49 AM 17-7 CR04406-2019

Ownership of Securities

[Amend-1]Material Jul 03,2019 03:50 PM  4-30 C04736-2019

Information/Transactions

Clarification of News Reports Jul 03,2019 01:38 PM  4-13 C04725-2019

Material Information/Transactions Jul 02, 2019 09:46 AM 4-30 C04682-2019

Statement of Changes in Beneficial Jun 28, 2019 08:50 AM 17-7 CR04065-2019

Ownership of Securities

Statement of Changes in Beneficial Jun 26,2019 07:38 AM 17-7 CR04017-2019

Ownership of Securities

Statement of Changes in Beneficial Jun 25,2019 08:23 AM 17-7 CR04009-2019

Ownership of Securities

Material Information/Transactions Jun 24, 2019 03:42 PM 4-30 C04413-2019

Statement of Changes in Beneficial Jun 21,2019 07:28 AM 17-7 CR03972-2019

Ownership of Securities

Statement of Changes in Beneficial Jun 20, 2019 07:37 AM 17-7 CR03956-2019

Ownership of Securities

Statement of Changes in Beneficial Jun 19,2019 07:33 AM 17-7 CR03940-2019

Ownership of Securities

Statement of Changes in Beneficial Jun 18,2019 07:35 AM 17-7 CR03931-2019
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Ownership of Securities

Integrated Annual
Governance Report

Corporate

Press Release

Quarterly Report
Clarification of News Reports
Press Release

Initial Statement of Beneficial Ownership
of Securities

Declaration of Cash Dividends
Declaration of Cash Dividends
Press Release
Annual Report
Press Release

Public Ownership Report

List of Top 100 Stockholders

Other SEC
Requirements

Forms, Reports and

Material Information/Transactions

Initial Statement of Beneficial Ownership
of Securities

Initial Statement of Beneficial Ownership
of Securities

Results of Organizational
Board of Directors

Meeting of

Results of  Annual or
Stockholders' Meeting

Special

Declaration of Cash Dividends
[Amend-1]information Statement
Press Release

Press Release

Press Release

Material Information/Transactions
Material Information/Transactions
Information Statement

Press Release

Material Information/Transactions

May 31, 2019 07:58 AM

May 16, 2019 02:38 PM
May 14, 2019 03:27 PM
May 14, 2019 11:39 AM
May 10, 2019 03:36 PM
May 08, 2019 03:24 PM

May 06, 2019 03:53 PM
May 06, 2019 03:39 PM
Apr 23, 2019 07:36 AM
Apr 16, 2019 10:30 AM
Apr 16, 2019 08:41 AM
Apr 16, 2019 07:13 AM

Apr 16, 2019 07:05 AM
Apr 15,2019 09:52 AM

Apr 01, 2019 08:35 AM
Mar 28, 2019 08:04 AM

Mar 28, 2019 08:03 AM

Mar 19, 2019 07:42 AM

Mar 18, 2019 08:28 AM

Mar 15, 2019 09:00 AM
Mar 08, 2019 08:25 AM
Mar 01, 2019 08:02 AM
Feb 28, 2019 09:44 AM
Feb 28, 2019 09:43 AM
Feb 28, 2019 08:16 AM
Feb 27, 2019 08:46 AM
Feb 27, 2019 08:42 AM
Feb 26, 2019 08:41 AM
Feb 26, 2019 08:38 AM
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I-AC
GR

4-31
17-2
4-13
4-31
17-6

6-1
6-1
4-31
17-1
4-31
POR-

17-12
17-18

4-30
17-6

17-6

4-25

4-24

6-1
17-5
4-31
4-31
4-31
4-30
4-30
17-5
4-31
4-30

CR03591-2019

C03388-2019
CR02915-2019
C03285-2019
C03237-2019
CR02724-2019

C02992-2019
C02991-2019
C02598-2019
CR02368-2019
C02492-2019
CR02281-2019

CR02265-2019
CR02096-2019

C02006-2019
CR01396-2019

CR01395-2019

C01660-2019

C01621-2019

C01592-2019
CR01174-2019
C01213-2019
C01172-2019
C01171-2019
C01167-2019
C01134-2019
CR01078-2019
C01084-2019
C01083-2019
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 17 of the Code and Section 141 of the Corporation
Code, this report is signed on behalf of the issuer by the undersigned, thereunto duly
authorized, in the City of Davao on April 14, 2020.
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JONAI:?E'L'T Z. SIBOG
Comptroller

RRO ERMAC CABREROS
Orporate Secretary

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO before me on 14 April 2020 in Davao City, Philippines.
Affiant have confirmed their identities by presenting competent evidence of identity:

Name

DENNIS A. UY

MA. CONCEPCION F. DE CLARO
JONAREST Z. SIBOG
SOCORRO ERMAC CABREROS

and that they further attest that the same are true and correct.
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To be an indispensable partner in the journey of everyone
whose life we touch

PHOENIX

04 March 2020

Securities & Exchange Commission
Secretariat Building, PICC Complex
Roxas Blvd, Metro Manila

Philippine Stock Exchange

Disclosure Department

6/F PSE Tower, 28th Street Cor. 5th Avenue
BGC, Taguig City, Metro Manila

Philippine Dealing & Exchange Corporation
37th Floor, Tower 1, The Enterprise Center
6766 Ayala Ave. corner Paseo de Roxas
Makati, 1226 Metro Manila, Philippines

Attention: Hon. Vicente Graciano P. Felizmenio, Jr.
Director, Market and Securities Regulation Department
Securities & Exchange Commission

Ms. Janet Encarnacion
Head - Disclosure Department
Philippine Stock Exchange

Atty. Marie Rose M. Magallen-Lirio
Head - Issuer Compliance and Disclosure Department (ICDD)

Gentlemen and Madam:

We would like to submit our recently concluded Annual Audited Financial Statement
(AAFS) for period ended 31 December 2019 complete with its attachments as will be
attached to our Definitive Information Statement (SEC Form 20-IS) and distributed to
our shareholders.

Thank you and warm regards.

J . f /‘-
Very truly yours /|
oy truly ygars, J
'\ N / [ /
~ AU -\ J
—— L
lv ocorro Ermac Cabreros
“—Corporate Secretary
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Ta be an fndispansable partner in the journey of everyone
wehose [ife we fouch

PHOENIX

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT™S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The management of P-H-0-E-M-|-X Pelroleum Philippines, Inc. and Subsidiaries {ihe Group) is
regponsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statemants,
including the schadules attached thessin, for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2018 n
accordance wilh the prescribed financial reporling framework ndicated therein, and for such
internal control as management determnes is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements thel are free from malerial misstaterment, whather due to fraud o amor.

In preparing the financial statements, managemen! is esponsible for assessing ihe Group's
abiity 1o continue ag a going concam, disciosng, as apphcable. matlers related o going concem
and wsing the going concern basis of accounting unbess managerment aither infends 1o liquidate
the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic attemative to do so.

The Board of Directors is respansibie for overseaing the Group's financial reporting process

The Board of Direciors reviews and approves the financial statemants. inchading the schedules
attached theredn, and submits the same o the stockholders

Punongbayan & Araullo, the indepandant auditors appointed by the stockholders, has audited the
financiel stalements of the Group in accordance with Philppme Standards on Audding, and m
thair repod io the siockholders, have axpressad thair opindion on the faimess of presentation upon
completion of such audd

sgned this_} Unaay of M‘v

HEAD DFTICE: Tt D Ooped Lorarg, Daers Ol WAL SPPRGE T 1T Mesey (e Ve Foml 20w o Bk bveras CEBIF D FROEr P iy Cagoess Dalen WO [ingnes Syem

A Bt g Wk s iy Taguisy W06 P Fhabs ol i np Bl oy Coles 55710 Paippews
Murisem: =§1 E1 27 8550 Frimiine, +83 2 a0l 4] Tilrpin. =8 23 200 8 b8 20 i
P Hul ) S0 e ma #6007 #37 dl

www.phoenixfuels.ph




REPUBLIC OF THE PHLIPPINES)
City of Davao } 5.5

SUUBSCRIBED AND SWORN 1o before me on February 28, 2020 in Davao City,
Philippines. Affiants have confirmed their identities by presenting competent evidence of

identity, viz:

Name Competent Evidence of [dentity
Domingo T. Uy TIN 140-162-193
Dennis A. Uy TIN 172-020-135
Ma. Concepeion F. De Claro TIN 120-135.353

and that they further artest that the same are tre and correct.
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Report of Independent Auditors

T« & 08 2250

The Board of Directors and Stockhalders

P-H-0-E-N-I-X Petraleum Philippines, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Stella Hizon Reyes Road

Barrioc Pampanga, Davaao City

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of P-H-0-E-N-1-X Petreleumn Phiippines,
Inc. and subsidiaries (the Group), which comprise the consalidated stalerments of financial
position as at December 31, 2019 and 2018, and the consolidated statements of comprahensive
income, censolidated statements of changes in equity and consolidated statements of cash flows
for the three years in the period endad December 31, 2019, and notes fa consoidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In gur opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statemaents present fairy, In all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of the Group as at December 31, 2019 and 2018,
and Its censclidatad financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for each of the threa
years in the period ended December 31, 2019 in accardance with Philippine Financial
Reporting Standards (PFRS).

Basis for Opinion

We conducled our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSA). Our
responsibiliies under those standards are further described in the Audiors” Responsibilities for
fhe Audit of the Consofidated Financial Staternents section of cur repart. We are independent
of the Group In accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants in the
Fhillppines (Code of Ethics) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audits of the consolidated financial stalements in the Philippines, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with thess requirements and the Code of Ethics. We

believe that the audit evidence we have cbiained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion,
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matiers are those matters that, in our professional judgment, wara of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current pericd. These
matters were addressed in the context of cur audit of the consclidated financial stataments as a
whole, and in ferming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on thass
matters.

(a) Rewenue Recognition
Description of the Maller

The Group's revenue is primarily generated from the sale of goods [fuals, liquefied petroleum
gas {LPG), lubricants and other petroleum products), which & recegnized as the goods are
delivered. The Group's tetal revenué for the yvear ended December 31, 2019 amounted o
P87,823.1 million, of which, P96 501.7 million or 88.6% pertains to sale of goods.

Thi Group focuses on revenue as a key periormance measure, which could create an
ncentive for management o aversiate revenues, particularly from sale of goods. In our view,
revenue recognition is a key audil matter due to its significance Lo profit and high volume of
revenue iransactions. Redative to this, we consider that there s a higher risk associated with
revenue cocurrence and appropriate recognition of sales in the comect accounting period

The Group's revenus recognition pelicy and disaggregation of revenves are disclosed in
Motes 2 and 23, respectively, to the consclidated financal statemenis.

Haw ha Malier was Addressed in the Audi

Cur audit procedures to address the risk of malerial misstatement relating o revenue
recognition inciuced, among others, the following:

» Updating our understanding of the Group's revenus recognition policy and procedures:

» Assessing the design effectiveness and testing the operating effectiveness of internal
controds retated to revenue recognifion process;

= Reviewing the existing coniracts with customers and evaluating the appropriateness of the
(Group’s revenue recognition poficies and application in accordance with PFRS 15,
Revenue from Contracts with Customers;

= Ferlorming sales cut-off procedures immadiately before and afier the year-end by testing
the sales inveoices o evidence of delivery to ensure that revenue was recegnized in the
correct pariod,

= Confirming trade receivabies, on a sample basis, a5 of the end of the raparting penod,

= Performing detailed ransaction testing by agreeing sample revenue items to supporting
documents, including sales inveices, contracts and third party cormespondence; and,

= Performing substantive analytical review procedures over revenues such as, but not limited
to, yearly and manihly analyses of revenues, verifying validity of the underlying data used
in the analyses, and fellowing up variances from our expectations.
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(b} Existence and Measurement of lnventories
Descriplion of the Maler

As of December 31, 2018, the Group held P11.679.6 million of mventories. which Is 13.4% of
the total assels of the Group. Given the size of the inventory balance relative lo the totsl assets
of the Group, and tha estimates and judgments involved in this sccount, the measurement of
Inventory required our significant audit attention, As disclosed in Note 2. inventories are held at
the lower of cost and net realizabie vajve using the moving average method. As of year-end,
the measurement of inventory s reviewed by the management and the cost of inventory is
reduced where inventory Is forecast to be sold below cost. The reakdown of inventory as of
December 31, 2018 is disclosed in Mote 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

How the Matter was Addressed in the Audit

Our audit procedures to address the risk of material misstatement relating to existence and
measuramant of imentorias included, among others, the folbewing:

= Assessing the design effectivansss and testing the cparating effectiveness of internal
controls redatad to measurement of inventony;

= Observing inventory counts and parfarming test of guantities;

= Performing test of purchases and test on the moving average cost calculation; and,
* Testing the net realizable values of sample inventory items ta recent seliing prices,
(¢} Business Combination

Dascriplion of the Matfar

Ag disciosed in Note 1 fo the consolidated financial statements, in 2019, the Group completed
the acquisition of Phoenix Gas Vietnam Limited Liablity Company (PGV LLC), formerty known
as Origin LPG (Vietnam) Limited Liabillty Company for a total consideration of PEB2.8 million.
The Group has determined this business combination as acquisition of business for which the
purchase price is to be allocated between the identifiable assets end llabilities at their
respaciive fair values,

The management has determined Goodwill amounting to P213.5 million for the acquisition of
PGEV LLC. The accounting for this business acquisition is compiex due o the significant
judgments and estimates that are reguired to determine the values of the consideration
transferred ana the identification and measurement of the falr value of the assets acquired and
liabilities assumed. We, therefore, consider the business acquisition to be a key audit mattar
due to the significance of the amount invalved and the complexity of the sccounting
requirgments.

The Group's disclosure on policies on business combinations is prezentad (n Note 2 ta the
consclidated financial statements.
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HMow the Melter was Addmessed in the Audi

Ciur audit procedures to address the risk of material misstatement refating ta business
combinations included, amaong others, the following;

* Reviewing the execuled share purchase agreament,

= Involving our own vaiuallon specizlist to assist in evaluating the approgriateness of the
valuation methods and relevant assumgpbons used;

= Examining supporting doecurnant of the casn consideration given:

= Reviewing the epproprialeness and reasonableness of valuations prepared by independent
@ppraisers on certain properties; in addition, assessing the competencies, objectivity and
capabilities of the appraisers;

= Testing the reasonablenass of the fair values of the assets acquired and ligbiliies assumed
as at the scquisition date;

= Recalculating the difference between the net assets acquired and considerations given; and,

= Evaluating the adequacy of the financial statement disclosures, including disclosures of key
assumptions and judgmeants,

{d} Impalrmeant of Gooowill
Description of the Matler

The Group has recognized goedwill amounting to P4,632.4 million as of Dacember 31, 2019
Uncer Philippine Accounting Standard 38, impairment of Assals, the Group is required ko
annually test the amount of its goodwill for impalrment. The annual impairment testing of goadwill
|5 considered 1o be a key audit matter due to the compilexity of management process in assessing
the recoverabllity of gooowill. In agditien, the assumplions used in determining the
cash-generating units {CGUS) whare the goodwill s allccated and estimating the recoverable
amount involves significant judgment. The recoverable amount of the CBUs has been computed
using discounted cash flows methed. This valuation method uses several key assumptions,
including estimated of future sales volume and prices, operating costs, lerminal value, grewih
rates and discount rate.

The Grovp's disclogures about Goodwil and the policy are included In Notes 15 and 2,
respactively.

How the Matter was Addressed in the Audit

Our audit procedures to address the rizk of material misstaternent relating to goodwill included,
ameong others. the following:

=  Invalving our own valuation specialist to assist in evaluating the appropriateness of
assumplions used In eskmating the recoverabie amount of CGLUs:

= Evaluating the appropristeness of assumptions and methodologies used by the
management, in perticular, those relating to the estimated of future sales volume and
prices, and operating costs a5 well as the discount rate used: and,

= Evaluating the adequacy of the financial statement disclosures, including disclosures of kay
essumptions and judgments.
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(a) Adoption of Philippine Financial Reporting Standard (PFRS) 16, Leases
Dascrpfion of the Mattar

Effective January 1, 2019, the Group adepted PFRS 18, which replaced PAS 17, Leasses, and ils
related interpratations. The adoption of this new standard, which primarily affecied the Group's
accounting for leases as a lessee by recegnizing “right-of-use” assets and lease llabilites
“on-balance sheet’, is considered significant due o the complexities of the accounting
raquiremants and the significant judgments required In determining assumptions to be used in
applying the standard,

Further, the recagnition of right-of-use assets and lease liabiities, which are particularly covered
by the provisions of PFRS 16, amounted to P1.142.7 million and P1,250.2 millian, respectively as
st Decamber 31, 2018 is considered sgnificant in amount refative to the Group's total assets and
total llabidities.

The impact of the adeption of PFRS 18, and the related changes in accounting policies and
bases of judgments and estimates, are discloged (n Noles 2 and 2 to the consolidated

financial statemants, white the carrying amounts of nght-of-uze assets and lease lishilities as of
December 31, 2018, including the new disclosure requirameants of PFRS 16, zre disclosed In
Nate 12 (o the consalidated financial staternants.

How the Maller was Addressed in the Audit

Qur audit procedures o address the risk of matenal misstatement retating to the adoption of
PFRS 16 included, among others, the foowing:

= Uncerstanding the pelicies and procedures applied by the Group in identifying leases that
qualify under FFRS 16, and leases that quality under the recognition exemptions on
shor-term leases and low-value leases, a5 well as compliance therewih

= Assessing the completeness of the lease conlracts and verifying the accuracy of tha leass
information provided, considering the reconciliation of the Group's operating lease
commifments;

= Evaluakng the appropriateness of adjustments as a result of the adoption of PFRS 16 on the
recognition and measurement of right-of-use assets and lease liabilites and determining the
adequacy of refated financial statement disclosures, including changes in accounting policies
and bases of judgments and estimates; and,

= Evaluatng the reasonableness of the inputs and assumptions used by the management in
determining the lesse term and Incremental borrowing rate used, such as but not limited to,
ranawal and termination options, contractual terms of the lease, nature and quality of security,
if any, and the economic enviranment in which the transaction occurs,
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Other Information

Managemant |5 responsible for the other information. The ather information comprises the
Infermation included in the Group's Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) Form 20-15
(Definitive Information Statement), SEC Form 17-A and Annual Report, which are expected to
be made available to us after the date of the auditors’ repart, for the year ended

December 31, 2019, but does not includa the consolidated financial statemeants and our
suditors’ rapor theraon,

Cur opinicn on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the olher infarmation and
we will not express any farm of assurance conclusion thenson.

In cannection with our audits of the consolidated financial statements, our respons:biiity is 1o
read the cther information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so,
consider whather the clher information is materally inconsistant with the consolidated financial
stataments or our knowledge cbtained in the audits, or ctherwise appears to be materially
rriisstated.

If, besed an the work performed on the other information that we obtained prior ta the date of
this auditors' report, we conclude that there is 3 material misetatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact Wi have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consalidated
financial statements in accordance with PFRS, and for such internal contral as management
datermines is necessary to enable the preparation of consclidated financial siatemants that are
free from material misstatament, whether due to fraud or errar.

In prepanng the conschdated financial statements, management |s responsible for assessing the
Group's abliity to continue as a geing concem, disclosing, as appiicable, matiers related to gaing
concem and using the going concern basis af accounting uniess management either intends to
liquidate the Group or o ce=se operations, or kas no realistic atsmative but o do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting
process,

Auditors’ Responsibliities for the Audit of the Consalldated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to oblain reasonable sssurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from matenal misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, ana
to issue an auditars” repocd that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantes that an audit conducted in accordance with PSA will always
detect a material misstalement when it exists. Misstatements can anse from fraud or errer and
are considered material if, individually or In the aggregale, they could reasanably be axpected
m the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidsied financial
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P&A
a Grant Thornton

An instinct for growth

A5 part of an audit in accordance with PSA, we exercise profassional judgment and maintain
professional skepticiam throughout the audit. We also;

Identify and assasa the rnsks of material misstaterment of the consofdated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those riske, and obiein audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriste (o provide & bases
fer our opinion. The risk ef net detecting & material misstatement resulting from fraud is
highar than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, Intentional
oamisslons, misrepresaniations, or the override of internal control,

Ubtain an undersianding of intema control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an apinon on the effectvenass of the Sroup's intermal contal.

Evaluate the appropristeness of accounting policies used and the remsonablenass of
accounling estimates and related discosures made by managamant.

Concluge on the appropriateness of managament's use of the going concerm basis of
accounting and, based on the audil evidence obtained, whether a material uncenainty
exisls retated to events or condifions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability
o cantinue &s a going concem, |f we conclude thal a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw aftention in cur auditors’ report to the refated disclosures in the
consolldated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadeguate, to modify our
opinion, Our conclugions are based on fhe audit evidence cbtained up to the date of our
auditors’ report, However, fulure events or conditions may cause the Group to cease 1o
canlinueg 4% & gaing concern,

Evaluate the overall presentation, strecture and contant of the consolidated financtal
statements, inchuding the disciosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements

represant the underlying transactions and events in 2 manner that achiaves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate sudit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Group o express an opindion on the consalidated
financial staternents. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the growp audit, We remain zolely respansibie for cur audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governanca regarding, among other mattars, the
planned scope and Siming of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficlences in intarnal control thal we identify during our audit,

We also provice those charged with govemance with & statement that we have complied with
refevant ethical requirements regarding independenca, and fo communicale with them all
refationships and cther matters that may reasonably be thought to basr on our indepencence,
and where epplicable, retated safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with govemance, we determing those
matters that were of most significance in the sudit of the consolidated financial statements of
the currant penod and are therefare the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditors’ repart unless faw or regulation precludes public disclosure about the mattar or when,
extramaly rare circumslances, we determine that a8 matier should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consaquances of doing so would reasonably be expecied to
autweigh the public interest banafits of such communication.
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The engagement partner on the audits resulfing in this independent auditors’ repaort iz
Ramilito L. Nafiola
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P-H-O-E-N-I-X PETROLEUM PHILIPPINES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables - net
Inventories
Due from related parties - net
Restricted deposits
Input value-added tax - net
Prepayments and other current assets

Total Current Assets

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment - net
Right-of-use assets - net
Investment properties
Intangible assets - net
Investments in joint ventures
Goodwill - net
Deferred tax assets - net

Other non-current assets

Total Non-current Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings
Trade and other payables
Derivative financial liabilities
Lease liabilities
Income tax payable

Total Current Liabilities

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings
Lease liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities - net
Other non-current liabilities

Total Non-current Liabilities

Total Liabilities

EQUITY
Equity attributable to parent company
Capital stock
Additional paid-in capital
Revaluation reserves
Retained earnings

Non-controlling interests

Total Equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018
(Amounts in Philippine Pesos)

2018
(As Restated -
Notes 2019 see Note 2)

6 P 9,810,770,115 P 7,889,708,807
7 15,973,133,966 15,030,714,704
8 11,679,616,905 11,135,494,286
29 1,986,811 937,904,172
9 54,462,326 52,719,265

2,905,878,621 1,517,537,410
10 1,931,536,398 695,698,779

42,357,385,142

37,259,777,423

11 27,378,864,900
12 1,142,726,144
16 1,908,972,835
13 310,277,916
14 1,432,709,636
15 4,632,397,418
28 155,781,031
17 7,638,262,244

18,715,994,505

1,739,021,205
328,054,350
455,436,370
4,418,842,831
147,484,516
1,595,667,530

44,599,992,124

27,400,501,307

P 86,957,377,266

P 64,660,278,730

P 26,309,487,284
7,434,839,252

99,380,682

33,843,707,218

18 P 38,143,058,891
20 11,841,661,093
21 311,019,650
12 153,360,799
49,872,393

50,498,972,826

18 11,753,129,172
12 1,096,852,276
28 748,398,599
22 937,269,144

13,590,520,166

631,776,224
620,602,265

14,535,649,191

14,842,898,655

65,034,622,017

48,686,605,873

30

1,119,904,232
12,042,788,045

1,112,004,232
7,233,692,486

806,868,975 852,438,822

7,876,463,627 6,812,482,236

21,846,024,879 16,010,617,776
76,730,370 36,944,919 )

21,922,755,249

15,973,672,857

P 86,957,377,266

P 64,660,278,730

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.



P-H-O-E-N-I-X PETROLEUM PHILIPPINES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019, 2018 AND 2017

REVENUES
Sale of goods
Fuel service and other revenues
Rent income

COST AND EXPENSES
Cost of sales and services

Selling and administrative expenses

OTHER CHARGES (INCOME)
Finance costs
Finance income
Fair value gains on investment properties
Equity share in net income of joint ventures
Excess of fair value of net assets acquired

over acquisition cost

Others - net

PROFIT BEFORE TAX
TAX EXPENSE

NET PROFIT

NET PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
Parent company
Non-controlling interests

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

Item that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

Translation adjustment related to a foreign subsidiary

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss
Gain on revaluation of land
Remeasurements of post-employment
defined benefit obligation
Tax expense

Other Comprehensive Income - net of tax

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO:

Parent company
Non-controlling interests

Basic Earnings per share

Diluted Earnings per share

See Notes to Consc

(Amounts in Philippine Pesos)

25
25

14

28

26
28

31

31

2019

2018

2017

P 96,501,653,189 87,672,722,663 P 44,148,952,252
1,205,744,987 824,182,312 301,402,792
115,711,069 113,863,129 92,626,832
97,823,109,245 88,610,768,104 44,542 981,876
86,811,287,081 78,838,964,820 38,345,104,529
6,518,065,904 5,741,750,297 4,207,027,951
93,329,352,985 84,580,715,117 42,552,132,480
2,838,294,987 1,449,247,671 804,707,861
( 86,595,790 ) 73,374,342)  ( 56,313,476 )
( 71,569,675 ) 624,941,000 ) -
( 16,510,018 ) 7,342,245 ) -
. . ( 650,182,327 )
( 12,100,025 ) 87,267,127)  ( 36,852,747 )
2,651,519,479 656,322,057 61,359,311
1,842,236,781 3,373,730,030 1,929,490,085
347,659,233 606,588,321 408,067,238
P 1,494,577,548 2,767,141,709 P 1521422847
P 1,537,339,096 2,776,255,552 P 1521422847
( 42,761,548 ) 9,113,843 ) -

P 1,494,577,548 2,767,141,709 P 1521422847
(P 69,712,613 ) 28719880 (P 3,791,486 )
145,379,972 1,219,846,043 -

( 39,889,840 ) 34,393,933 ) 14,060,076
( 31,647,040 ) 355,635,633)  ( 4,218,023 )

73,843,092 829,816,477 9,842,053

4,130,479 858,536,357 6,050,567

P 1,498,708,027 3,625,678,066 P 1527473414
P 1,541,454,672 3,634,791,909 P 1527473414

( 42,746,645 ) 9,113,843 ) -

P 1,498,708,027 3,625,678,066 P 1527473414
P 0.61 1.72 p 1.11
P 0.61 1.72 p 1.10

in] Sfaf £




Balance at January 1, 201¢
As previously reportec
Restatements
As restatec
Cash dividends
Issuance of shares during the year
Redemption of shares during the year
Share-based compensation
Business combination
Transfer to retained earnings
Total comprehensive income
for the year

Balance at December 31, 2019

Balance at January 1, 2018
As previously reported
Restatements
As restated
Cash dividends
Issuance of shares during the year
Acquisition of shares during the year
Share-based compensation
Business combination
Total comprehensive income
for the year

Balance at December 31, 2018

Balance at January 1, 2017
As previously reported
Restatements
As restated
Sale of treasury shares
Cash dividends
Acquisition of shares during the year
Issuance of shares during the year
Share-based compensation
Total comprehensive income
for the year

Balance at December 31, 2017

P-H-O-

1-X PETROLEUM PHILIPPINES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019, 2018 AND 2017
(Amounts in Philippine Pesos)

Capital Stock Total Equity
Preferred Common Accumulated Attributable to
Treasury Stock - Treasury Stock - Additional Revaluation Other Translation Retained the of N Total
Preferred Stock At Cost Common Stock At Cost Total Paid-in Capital Reserves Reserves Adjustment Earnings Parent Company Interests Equity
P 32,000,000 (P 10,000,000 ) 1,434,304,232 (P 344,300,000) P 1,112,004,232 P 7,233,692,486 P 827,510,428 (P 730,361,725 ) P 24,928,394 P 7,542,843,961 P 16,010,617,776 (P 36,944,919 ) 15,973,672,857
. - - - - - 24,928,394 730,361,725 ( 24,928,394) ( 730,361,725) - - -
( 10,000,000 ) 1,434,304,232 ( 344,300,000 ) 1,112,004,232 7,233,692,486 852,438,822 - - 6,812,482,236 16,010,617,776 ( 36,944,919) 15,973,672,857
- - - - - - - - - ( 523,046,503)  ( 523,046,503 ) - ( 523,046,503 )
7,000,000 - 2,900,000 - 9,900,000 6,807,095,559 - - - ( 8,852,437 ) 6,808,143,122 - 6,808,143,122
2,000,000 ) - - - 2,000,000) ( 1,998,000,000 ) - - - - ( 2,000,000,000 ) - ( 2,000,000,000 )
- - - - - - - - - 8,855,812 8,855,812 - 8,855,812
- - - - - - - - - - - 156,421,934 156,421,934
- - - - - - ( 49,685,423 ) - - 49,685,423 - - :
- - - - - - 4,115,576 - - 1,537,339,096 1,541,454,672 ( 42,746,645 1,498,708,027
P 37,000,000 (P 10,000,000 ) 1,437,204,232 (P 344,300,000 ) P 1,119,904,232 P__12,042,788,045 P 806,868,975 P - P - P 7,876,463,627 P__21,846,024,879 P 76,730,370 21,922,755,249
P 30,000,000 (P 5,000,000 ) 1,431,538,232 P - P 1,456,538,232 P 5,709,303,309 (P 2,306,049) (P 730,361,725) (P 3,791,486 ) P 5177,429,776 P 11,606,812,057 P - 11,606,812,057
- - - - - - ( 3,791,486 ) 730,361,725 3,791,486 ( 730,361,725) - - -
30,000,000 ( 5,000,000 ) 1,431,538,232 - 1,456,538,232 5,709,303,309 ( 6,097,535 ) - - 4,447,068,051 11,606,812,057 - 11,606,812,057
- - - - - - - - - ( 409,640,735)  ( 409,640,735 ) - ( 409,640,735 )
2,000,000 - 2,766,000 - 4,766,000 2,019,389,177 - - - ( 8,444,298 ) 2,015,710,879 - 2,015,710,879
- ( 5,000,000 ) - ( 344,300,000 ) 349,300,000)  ( 495,000,000 ) - - - - ( 844,300,000 ) - ( 844,300,000 )
- - - - - - - - - 7,243,666 7,243,666 - 7,243,666
- - - - - - - - - - - ( 27,831,076) ( 27,831,076 )
- - - - - - 858,536,357 - - 2,776,255,552 3,634,791,909 ( 9,113,843 ) 3,625,678,066
P 000,000 (P 10,000,000 ) 1,434,304,232 (P__344,300,000) P 1,112,004,232 P 7,233,692,486 P 852,438,822 P - P - P 6,812,482,236 P__16,010,617,776 (P 36,944,919 ) 15,973,672,857
P 30,000,000 (P 5,000,000 ) 1,428,777,232 (P 330,679,783) P 1,123,097,449 P 5320,816,182 (P 12,148,102) (P 730,361,725) P - P 3,983,964,480 P 9,685,368,284 P - 9,685,368,284
- - - - - - - 730,361,725 - ( 730,361,725) - - -
30,000,000 ( 5,000,000 ) 1,428,777,232 ( 330,679,783 ) 1,123,097,449 5,320,816,182 ( 12,148,102) - - 3,253,602,755 9,685,368,284 - 9,685,368,284
- - - 440,087,488 440,087,488 367,136,612 - - - - 807,224,100 - 807,224,100
- - - - - - - - - ( 331,118,383)  ( 331,118,383 ) - ( 331,118,383 )
- - - ( 109,407,705 ) 109,407,705 ) - - - - - ( 109,407,705 ) - ( 109,407,705 )
- - 2,761,000 - 2,761,000 21,350,515 - - - ( 8,429,034 ) 15,682,481 - 15,682,481
- - - - - - - - - 11,589,866 11,589,866 - 11,589,866
- - - - - - 6,050,567 - - 1,521,422,847 1,527,473,414 - 1,527,473,414
P 0,000,000 (P 5,000,000 ) 1,431,538,232 P - P 1,456,538,232 P__5,709,303,309 (P 6,097,535 ) P - P - P 4,447,068,051 P__11,606,812,057 P - 11,606,812,057

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.




P-H-O-E-N-I-X PETROLEUM PHILIPPINES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019, 2018 AND 2017
(Amounts in Philippine Pesos)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Interest expense on bank loans and other borrowings
Depreciation and amortization

Fair value loss on financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Interest expense from lease liabilities
Fair value gains on investment properties
Translation adjustment
Interest income
Unrealized foreign exchange currency loss (gain) - net
Impairment losses on trade and other receivables
Share in net income of indirectly-owned joint ventures
Employee share options
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Recovery of accounts written off
Provision for loss on lost cylinders
Excess of fair value of net assets acquired over acquisition cost
Gain on reversal of impairment losses on investment properties
Impairment losses on non-financial assets

Operating profit before working capital changes
Decrease (increase) in trade and other receivables
Decrease in inventories
Increase in restricted deposits
Decrease (increase) in input value-added tax - net
Increase in prepayments and other current assets
Increase in trade and other payables

Increase in other non-current liabilities

Cash generated from operations

Cash paid for income taxes

Net Cash From Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisitions of property, plant and equipment
Investments in joint ventures
Acquisition of subsidiaries
Decrease (increase) in other non-current assets
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Acquisitions of intangible assets
Acquisitions of investment properties
Collections from related parties
Advances to related parties
Interest received

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Repayments of interest-bearing loans and borrowings and lease liabilities

Proceeds from additional interest-bearing loans and borrowings
Proceeds from issuance of shares of stock

Interest paid

Redemption of shares of stock

Payments of cash dividends

Acquisition of treasury shares

Proceeds from sale of treasury shares

Net Cash Used in Financing Activities

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR

Supplemental Information on Non-cash Investing and Financing Activities:

Notes 2019 2018 2017
1,842,236,781 3,373,730,030 P 1,929490,085
25 2,582,918,502 1,376,994,786 780,917,196
24 1,436,858,783 1,056,749,318 851,080,582
21 464,161,271 - -
25 80,990,270 - -
16 ( 71,569,675)  ( 624,941,000 ) -
2 ( 69,712,613 28,719,880  ( 3,791,486)
25 ( 35,417,469)  ( 34,370,501)  ( 18,480,943 )
( 32,188,301)  ( 30,577,666 ) 3,803,468
24 29,938,952 68,465,111 50,335,399
14 ( 16,510,018)  ( 7,342,245) -
26 8,855,812 7,243,666 11,589,866
5238151  ( 1,006,348 ) 9,165,790
7 3,762,459  ( 2,768,583 ) -
11 - 24,290,486 -
1 - - ( 650,182,327 )
16 - - ( 40,785,503 )
- - 92,823
6,229,562,905 5,235,186,934 2,923,324,950
( 5,160,600,319)  ( 7,415,944,495 ) 1,784,568,722
24,578,136,862 26,812,185,929 11,723,876,386
- ( 1,437,706)  ( 356,155 )
( 1,388,341,211) 363,028,626  ( 1,027,547,440 )
( 1,522,485,193)  ( 549,914,871)  ( 235,826,739 )
4,293,563,280 3,555,861,541 101,084,787
175,194,648 607,880,833 63,749,068
27,205,030,973 28,606,846,791 15,332,873,579
( 99,380,682)  ( 20.603,287)  ( 7,345,345 )
27,105,650,291 28,577,243,504 15,325,528,234
1 ( 8,257,359,794)  ( 4517,753320)  ( 3,176,343,510)
14 ( 960,763,248)  ( 448,094,125 ) -
1 ( 628,933,314)  ( 397,455,037)  ( 6,705,620,931 )
( 614,008,547)  ( 1,698,692,056 ) 27,350,919
78,850,768 22,618,656 14,531,586
13 ( 43,332,685)  ( 58,062,513)  ( 50,548,722 )
16 ( 14,025,825 ) - -
29 6,716,432 25,952,983 1,158,519,706
29 ( 2,073,627)  ( 524,778,830)  ( 669,526,678 )
24,007,195 29,022,512 15,769,301
( 10,410,922,646)  ( 7,567,241,730)  ( 9,385,868,329 )
19 ( 88,838,174,724) ( 71,873587,858) (  43,104,708,403)
19 72,552,323,218 57,798,571,804 37,016,647,657
30 6,808,143,122 2,015,710,879 15,682,481
( 2,772,911,450)  ( 1,638,604,940)  ( 741,202,295 )
30 ( 2,000,000,000 ) - -
30 ( 523,046,503)  ( 409,640,735)  ( 331,118,383 )
30 - ( 844,300,000)  ( 109,407,705 )
30 - - 807,224,100
( 14,773,666,337)  ( 14,951,850,850)  ( 6,446,882,548 )
1,921,061,308 6,058,150,924  ( 507,222,643 )
7,889,708,807 1,831,557,883 2,338,780,526
9,810,770,115 7,889,708,807 P 1,831557,883

1) In 2019, the Group recognized right-of-use assets and lease liabilities both amounting to P403.1 million (see Notes 12 and 19).

2) Interest payments amounting to P695.7 million, P261.6 million and P19.7 million in 2019, 2018 and 2017, respectively, were capitalized as part of the cost of property, plant and

equipment (see Notes 11.1)

L

(see Note 27).

K]

In 2018, the Parent Company acquired certain land from a related party amounting to P92.9 million, of which, P19.9 million remained unpaid as of December 31, 2018

Certain software development cost acquired in 2019 amounting to P1.0 million was transferred from property, plant and equipment to intangible assets in the same year (see Note 13).

5) On August 14, 2017, the Parent Company acquired the 100.00% shares of stocks of Duta, Inc. and Subsidiary for the amount of P394.2 million, of which P267.3 million advances of

Duta, Inc.'s previous stockholder was novated in favor of the former.

See Notes to C




P-H-O-E-N-I-X PETROLEUM PHILIPPINES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018
(Amounts in Philippine Pesos)

GROUP INFORMATION
1.1 Incorporation and Operations

P-H-O-E-N-I-X Petroleum Philippines, Inc. (the Parent Company) was incorporated in the Philippines on
May 8, 2002 and is 41.88% owned by P-H-O-E-N-I-X Petroleum Holdings, Inc. (PPHI), a company
organized in the Philippines.

The Parent Company made its initial public offering with the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE) on

July 11, 2007. The Parent Company is presently engaged in trading of petroleum products on wholesale
and retail basis and operating of gas stations, oil depots, storage facilities and allied services. The
registered office of the Parent Company, which is also its principal place of business, is located at Stella
Hizon Reyes Road, Barrio Pampanga, Davao City.

PPHI was incorporated in the Philippines and was registered with the Philippine Securities and Exchange
Commission (SEC) on May 31, 2006. PPHI’s primary purpose is to provide management, investment and
technical advice for commercial, industrial, manufacturing and other kinds of enterprises. PPHI’s
registered office is located at Stella Hizon Reyes Road, Barrio Pampanga, Davao City.

The ultimate parent is Udenna Corporation (UC), which is primarily organized to purchase, acquire, take
over and manage all or any part of the rights, assets, business and property; undertake and assume the
liabilities of any person, firm, association, partnership, syndicate of corporation; and to engage in the
distribution, selling, importation, installation of pollution control devices, units and services, and all other
pollution control related products and emission test servicing. The ultimate parent company’s registered
office is located at Stella Hizon Reyes Road, Barrio Pampanga, Davao City.

The Parent Company has a total of 655 operating retail service stations, and a total of 11 service stations
under construction as of December 31, 2019.
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1.2 Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and their Operations

As of December 31, the Parent Company holds ownership interests in the following entities, which are all
incorporated and domiciled in the Philippines or otherwise stated:

Explanatory Percentage of Ownership
Subsidiaries/Joint Venture Notes 2019 2018
Direct interest:
Subsidiaries
P-F-L Petroleum Management, Inc. (PPMI) (a) 100% 100.00%
P-H-O-E-N-I-X Global Mercantile, Inc. (PGMI) (b) 100% 100.00%
Subic Petroleum Trading and Transport

Phils., Inc. (SPTT) (c) 100% 100.00%
PNX Petroleum Singapore Pte. Ltd. (PNX SG) (d) 100% 100.00%
Phoenix LPG Philippines, Inc. (PLPI) (e) 100% 100.00%
Duta, Inc.(Duta)?* ) 100% 100.00%
Philippine FamilyMart CVS, Inc. (PFM) (9) 100% 100.00%
PNX Energy International Holdings, Pte. Ltd.

(PNX Energy) (h) 100% 100.00%
Phoenix Pilipinas Gas and Power, Inc.’ (i) 100% -
Action.Able, Inc.(AAl) 0] 74.90% 74.90%
Think.Able Limited (TAL) (k) 74.90% 74.90%
Joint venture
Phoenix Asphalt Philippines, Inc. (PAPI)3 0] 40.00% 40.00%
Indirect interest:

Kaparangan, Inc. (Kaparangan)?2 4 (m) 100.00% 100.00%
PNX (Vietnam) Pte. Ltd. (PNX Vietnam) 3 (n) 100.00% 100.00%
PT Phoenix Petroleum Indonesia

(PNX Indonesia)’ (0) 100.00% 100.00%
Phoenix Gas (Vietnam)

Limited Liability Company (PGV LLC)® (p) 75.00% -
Galaxi Petroleum Fuel, Inc. (Galaxi)® (a) 51.00% 51.00%
Phoenix Southern Petroleum Corp. (PSPC)? (r) 49.00% 51.00%
Top Concord Quality Petroleum Corp.

(TCQPC)? (s) 49.00% -

CJI Fuels Corp. (CJI)8 (t) 49.00% -
Firebird Evzon Fuels Corp. (FEFC)® (u) 49.00% -
Eastan Prime Development Corporation

(EPDC)? (v) 49.00% -

Zae Falco Energy Corp. (ZFEC)8 (w) 49.00% -
Notes:

1 Newly incorporated subsidiary

2 Wholly-owned subsidiary of Duta

3 Joint venture of Parent Company

4 Duta and Kaparangan, collectively known as Duta Group
5 Subsidiary of PNX Energy

6 Subsidiary of PNX Vietnam

7 Subsidiary of PGMI

8 Joint venture of PPMI
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Incorporated on January 31, 2007 and is engaged in organizing, managing, administering, running
and supervising the operations and marketing of various kinds of services-oriented companies such
as petroleum service stations.

Incorporated on July 31, 2006 to engage in the manufacture, production and creation of all kinds of
motor, and all other transportation lubricants, fluids and additives of all kinds and other petroleum
products purposely for motor vehicles and other transportation. PGMI started commercial operations
in 2007 and temporarily ceased its operation in 2008 but has resumed its business in October 2015
through selling of acid oil and coconut fatty acid distillates, both are by-products from manufacturing of
coconut methyl ester (CME).

Incorporated on February 20, 2007 and is engaged in buying and selling, supply and distribution,
importation and exportation, storage and delivery of all types of petroleum for industrial, marine,
aviation and automotive use.

Incorporated on October 30, 2012 in Singapore and started operations in October 2017. It is the
regional trading arm of the Group. It currently holds office in Singapore and is able to buy directly
from the refineries in the region due to its bigger requirements. It also sells to other local and regional
buyers.

Incorporated on June 20, 1995 to engage in the buying, selling, storing, distributing, and marketing at
wholesale of all kinds of goods, including but not limited to liquefied petroleum gas (LPG) and other
petroleum products.

Incorporated on November 9, 1994 to engage in the business of buying, investing, exchanging, selling
securities of every kind and description and leasing of land.

Incorporated on November 29, 2012. PFM is engaged in the business of operating convenience
stores (CVS) under the trademark “FamilyMart” either by direct operation and/or by franchise system
in the Philippines and to conduct business activities related to and in support to the aforesaid CVS
platforms including importation and export, advertisement and promotion, and in general, to exercise
and perform any and all powers necessary, incidental, or convenient to the business.

Incorporated on October 29, 2018 in Singapore to engage in activities related to investment in
downstream and upstream energy activities and businesses but has not yet started commercial
operations as of December 31, 2019.

Incorporated on March 14, 2019 to engage in, conduct and carry on the business of selling, trading, on
wholesale basis, natural gas and liquefied natural gas (LNG).

Incorporated on May 6, 2015 to engage in the business of selling, leasing or distributing electronic
devices to distributors, merchants or retailers for the purpose of digital marketing and/or ecommerce
and to engage in the business of providing an outline digital network for the purpose of digital
marketing and/or e-commerce accessible through electronic devices.

Incorporated on May 5, 2014 and is a Hong Kong based company that handles the trademark of AAI.

Incorporated on March 23, 2018 and was established to import, store, manufacture, sell market,
distribute bitumen, bitumen-related products and such other by-products of crude oil and such other
petroleum products including the operation of terminals and depots.

Incorporated on January 21, 1994 to engage in the business of buying, investing, exchanging, selling
securities of every kind and description and leasing land.

Incorporated on October 30, 2018 in Singapore to engage in activities related to investment in
downstream and upstream energy activities and businesses and has not yet started its commercial
operations as of December 31, 2019.

Incorporated on September 10, 2018 in Indonesia to serve as an avenue for the Parent Company to
explore business opportunities in different parts of Indonesia. PNX Indonesia has not yet started its
commercial operations as of December 31, 2019.
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Formerly known as Origin LPG (Vietnam) Limited Liability Company, was incorporated and licensed to
conduct business under the laws of Vietnam on August 6, 2008 to engage in wholesale of solid, liquid,

gas fuels and other related products.

Incorporated on August 2, 2017 and is a joint venture with its previous owners. Galaxi owns and
operates a number of petroleum service stations in different parts of the Philippines.

Incorporated on July 5, 2018 to operate petroleum service stations in areas within Southern Luzon
under the Parent Company’s name and brand.

Incorporated on July 15, 2019 to operate petroleum service stations in areas of Cotabato.

Incorporated on July 31, 2019 to operate petroleum service stations in areas of lloilo.

Incorporated on August 28, 2019 to operate petroleum service stations in areas of South Luzon.

Incorporated on August 28, 2019 to operate petroleum service stations in areas of Metro Manila.

Incorporated on November 6, 2019 to operate petroleum service stations in Northern part and other

areas of Luzon.

Other Corporate Information

The registered office and principal place of business of the existing subsidiaries and joint ventures, except
those presented below, is located at Stella Hizon Reyes Road, Barrio Pampanga, Davao City.

SPTT

PNX SG, PNX
Energy and
PNX Vietnam

PLPI

Duta

Kaparangan

PFM

AAl

TAL

PAPI and PSPC

PNX Indonesia

Galaxi
PGV LLC

Room 203 Greenwoods Park, Central Business District,
Subic Bay Freeport Zone, Zambales

350 Orchard Road, #17-05/06 Shaw House, Singapore
Phoenix Petroleum Corporate Headquarters, Stella Hizon
Reyes Road, Bo. Pampanga, Lanang, Davao City

15t Floor, Citibank Tower, Valero St., Salcedo Village, Makati
City

15™ Floor, Citibank Tower, Valero St., Salcedo Village, Makati
City

4t Floor, Tara Building, No. 389 Sen. Gil Puyat Avenue, Makati
City, Metro Manila

2" Floor, Crown Center, 158 Jupiter Street Corner N. Garcia
Street, Bel-Air Village, Makati City

Room 1902, W Wilson House, 19-27 Wyndham Street, Central,
Hong Kong

25" Floor Fort Legend Tower, 3 Avenue Fort corner 315t Street,
Bonifacio Global City, Taguig City

The Prominence Office Tower, 12 Floor B, JI. Jalur Sutera
Barat No. 15, Alam Sutera, Indonesia

1846 FB Harrison Street Pasay City

No. 456 Phan Xich Long Street, Ward 2, Phu Nhuan District,
Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam



1.4 Business Combinations

a)

On February 21, 2019, the Group, through PNX Vietnam, a subsidiary of PNX Energy, acquired
51.00% and 24.00% interest in PGV LLC from Origin Energy Holdings PTY LTD and Cong Ty TNHH
Cong Nghiep, respectively. The acquisition resulted in 75.00% equity ownership interest of the Group
over PGV LLC and recognition of goodwill amounting to P213.6 million (see Note 15) for a total
consideration of P682.8 million. The acquisition is part of the growth and expansion footprint of the
Group not only in the Philippines but also within the region. The Group expects the acquisition to
result in synergies in terms of network related to solid, liquid, gas fuels and other related products.

Goodwill amounting to P213.6 million is primarily related to growth expectations, expected future
profitability and business synergies. Goodwill has been allocated to the trading segment and is not
expected to be deductible for tax purposes.

On January 11, 2018, the Parent Company has signed a deed of absolute sale and concluded the
acquisition of the 100.00% equity ownership interest in PFM from its previous shareholders, namely:
SIAL CVS Retailers, Inc., FamilyMart Co. Ltd. and ITOCHU Corporation, for P352.1 million. The
objective of the acquisition is to broaden Group’s portfolio of retail offers.

The goodwill recognized related to the acquisition amounting to P273.1 million is related to growth
expectations and expected future profitability. Goodwill has been allocated to the trading segment
and is not expected to be deductible for tax purposes.

On May 25, 2018, the Parent Company entered into a deed of absolute sale of shares with
Wildlemon, Inc. and Seawood Prime Limited for the acquisition of the voting rights for AAl and TAL,
respectively (referred to as “AAl Group”). The Parent Company acquired 74.90% equity ownership
interest in AAl Group for total consideration of P72.0 million.

AAl and TAL are the owners of Pos!ble.net, a two and a half year old digital payment-platform.
The acquisition supports business operations of the Parent Company, aside from synergies on its retail
network development, for its various fuel products as well as the business operations of PFM.

The acquisition has resulted to recognition of goodwill amounting to P155.0 million and is related to
growth expectations and expected future profitability. Goodwill has been allocated to the trading
segment and is not expected to be deductible for tax purposes.

On August 14, 2017, the Parent Company finalized the purchase and sale agreements with PDB
(Netherlands) B.V., an entity organized under the laws of Netherlands and is an investment holdings
Company of PETRONAS Dagangan Berhad (a Malaysia-listed entity), for the acquisition of the
100.00% equity ownership interest in PLPI and Duta Group for P6,481.1 million and P394.2 million,
respectively. The objective of the acquisition is to broaden Group’s portfolio of retail offers and to
expand the Group’s business to include real estate.

The goodwill recognized related to the acquisition of PLPI amounting to P3,980.4 million is attributable
to growth expectations, expected future profitability and business synergies. Goodwill has been
allocated to the trading segment and is not expected to be deductible for tax purposes.

The excess of the fair value of the net assets of Duta Group over the acquisition cost amounting to
P650.2 million is mainly attributable to the fair value gains on Investment property of Duta Group as of
the date of acquisition, which is not taken into consideration upon negotiation of acquisition cost with
PDB (Netherlands) B.V. This gain on bargain purchase of Duta Group arose as a result of
PETRONAS Dagangan Berhad selling parts of its business as part of its restructuring and strategic
plan based on its review of portfolio of businesses and geographies in which it operates.

The Parent Company acquired 100.00% equity ownership interest in SPTT, PGMI and PPMI in 2011.
These three business acquisitions prior to 2017 resulted in a total goodwill of P11.5 million as the total
cash consideration paid amounting to P9.5 million exceeded the fair values of the acquired net
identifiable assets. The acquisition supports business operations of the Parent Company which
include synergies on its retail network development for various fuel products.

There were no contingent consideration arrangements for all of the above acquisitions. There were also
no business combinations after December 31, 2019 but before the issuance of the consolidated financial
statements.



-6-

Aggregate information of the entitites acquired in 2019 and 2018 are as follows:

Entities Acquired

2019 2018
AAl
PGV LLC PFM Group
Reference 75.00% 100.00% 74.90%
Fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed
Cash and cash equivalents P 71,849,432 P 21,601,695 P 6,687,746
Trade and other receivables (i) 102,525,465 22,534,222 1,482,807
Inventories 23,702,793 80,744,545 1,031,489
Prepayments and other current assets 20,507,347 158,786,825 4,518,678
Property, plant and equipment (i) 952,310,893 369,603,000 537,357
Intangible asset - 21,476,320 -
Other non-current assets 169,579,990 46,832,213 640,304
Total assets 1,340,475,920 721,578,820 14,898,381
Trade and other payables 197,630,783 642,639,484 125,779,164
Short-term loans and borrowings 321,141,124 - -
Deferred tax liabilities 110,446,823
Other non-current liabilities 85,569,455 - -
Total liabilities 714,788,185 642,639,484 125,779,164
Total identifiable net assets (liabilities) 625,687,735 78,939,336 (__110,880,783)
Fair value of cash consideration transferred 682,820,388 352,070,202 71,995,652
Share of non-controlling interests 156,421,934 - ( 27,831,076)
839,242,322 352,070,202 44,164,576
Goodwill P_ 213,554,587 P 273,130,866 P 155,045,359
Excess of fair value of net assets acquired over
cash consideration transferred n/a n/a n/a
Cash consideration settled in cash P__ 682,820,388 P__ 352,070,202 P 71,995,652
Cash and cash equivalents acquired 71,849,432 21,601,695 6,687,746
Less: Share of non-controlling interests 17,962,358 - 1,678,624
53,887,074 21,601,695 5,009,122
Net Cash Flow of Acquisition P_ 628,933,314 P 330,468,507 P 66,986,530
Acquisition costs charged to expenses P 1,458,944 P 6,440,651 P 1,738,116
Pre-acquisition income (iii) ( 7,821,881) - 1,628,790
Revenue contribution 1,472,189,346  1,307,944,277 34,957,821
Net profit (loss) contribution ( 43,127,051)(  193,507,767)( 36,310,130)

(i) The carrying amount of the acquired trade and other receivables is determined to be the reasonable
approximation of fair value as these are only short-term and are expected to be collectible in whole.

(i) The property, plant and equipment of PGV LLC and PFM were appraised by an independent
appraiser [see Note 3.2(i)]. The fair values of the said properties are determined by reference to
market-based evidence, which are the amounts for which the assets could be exchanged between
the knowledgeable willing buyer and a knowledgeable willing seller in an arm’s length transactions as
at the valuation date.

(i) The 2019, 2018 and 2017 consolidated statements of comprehensive income are presented net of
the pre-acquisition income of the entities acquired.

1.5 Subsidiary with Material Non-controlling Interest

The Group includes one subsidiary, PGV LLC with material non-controlling interest (NCI) with details
shown below.

Proportion of Ownership Interest

and Voting Rights held NCI 25.00%
Loss allocated to NCI P 12,891,901
Other comprehensive income

allocated to NCI 14,903
Accumulated NCI 143,544,935

No dividends were paid to the NCI in 2019.



The summarized financial information of PGV LLC in 2019, before intragroup eliminations, is shown

below.

Non-current assets
Current assets

Total assets

Non-current liabilities
Current liabilities

Total liabilities
Equity attributable to owners of the parent

Non-controlling interest

Revenue

Profit for the year attributable to
owners of the parent

Profit for the year attributable to NCI

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year
(all attributable to owners of the parent)

Total comprehensive income for the year
attributable to owners of the parent

Total comprehensive income for the year
attributable to NCI

Total comprehensive income for the year
Net cash from operating activities
Net cash used in investing activities

Net cash used in financing activities

Net cash outflow

P1,013,835,665
280,452,076

P1,294,287,741

P 236,807,047
483,300,954

P 720,108,001

P_574.179,740

P 143.544,935

P1,962.919,129

P 38,675,706
12,891,902
51,567,608

44,709

38,720,415
12,906,805
P 51,627,220

P 201,456,397
(___145,297,784)

(P___56,158,613)

1.6 Approval of Consolidated Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements of the Group as of and for the year ended December 31, 2019
(including the comparative consolidated financial statements as of December 31, 2018 and for the years
ended December 31, 2018 and 2017) were authorized for issue by the Parent Company’s

Board of Directors (BOD) on February 28, 2020.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies that have been used in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are summarized below and in the succeeding pages. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements

(@)

(b)

(c)

Statement of Compliance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with Philippine
Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS). PFRS are adopted by the Financial Reporting Standards
Council (FRSC) from the pronouncements issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(IASB), and approved by the Philippine Board of Accountancy.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared using the measurement bases specified
by PFRS for each type of asset, liability, income and expense. The measurement bases are more
fully described in the accounting policies that follow.

Presentation of Consolidated Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements are presented in accordance with Philippine Accounting
Standard (PAS) 1, Presentation of Financial Statements. The Group presents all items of income and
expenses in a single consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

The Group presents a third consolidated statement of financial position as at the beginning of the
preceding period when it applies an accounting policy retrospectively, or makes a retrospective
restatement or reclassification of items that has a material effect on the information in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the beginning of the preceding period. The related
notes to the third consolidated statement of financial position are not required to be disclosed.

Certain items under Equity in the 2018 consolidated statement of financial position were restated to
conform to the presentation in the 2019 consolidated statement of financial position. Other reserves
amounting to P730.4 million as of December 31, 2018, which pertain to the difference between the
Parent Company'’s consideration received and disposed net assets of former subsidiaries that were
already deconsolidated in 2016, was closed to Retained earnings. In addition, Accumulated
translation adjustment amounting to P24.9 million as of December 31, 2018, which was previously
presented as a separate item under Equity, was reclassified to Revaluation reserves (see Note 30.5).
No third consolidated statement of financial position as of January 1, 2018 is presented as the
restatement did not affect the amount of total equity presented.

Functional and Presentation Currency

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Philippine pesos, the Group’s functional
and presentation currency (see Note 2.15), and all values represent absolute amounts except when
otherwise indicated.

Items included in the consolidated financial statements of the Group are measured using its
functional currency. Functional currency is the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the Group operates.



2.2 Adoption of New and Amended PFRS

(a) Effective in 2019 that are Relevant to the Group

The Group adopted for the first time the following PFRS, amendments, interpretations and annual
improvements to PFRS, which are mandatorily effective for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2019:

PAS 19 (Amendments) : Employee Benefits — Plan Amendment,
Curtailment or Settlement
PAS 28 (Amendments) : Investment in Associates and Joint

Ventures — Long-term Interests in
Associates and Joint Ventures

PFRS 9 (Amendments) :  Financial Instruments — Prepayment Features
with Negative Compensation
PFRS 16 :  Leases

International Financial
Reporting Interpretations
Committee (IFRIC) 23 : Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments
Annual Improvements to
PFRS (2015-2017 Cycle)
PAS 12 (Amendments) : Income Taxes — Tax Consequences of
Dividends
PFRS 23 (Amendments) :  Borrowing Costs — Eligibility for
Capitalization
PFRS 3 and 11
(Amendments) : Business Combinations and Joint Arrangements —
Remeasurement of Previously Held Interests
in a Joint Operation

Discussed below are the relevant information about these amendments and improvements.

(i)

(ii)

(iif)

PAS 19 (Amendments), Employee Benefits — Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement.
The amendments clarify that past service cost and gain or loss on settlement is calculated by
measuring the net defined benefit liability or asset using updated actuarial assumptions and
comparing the benefits offered and plan assets before and after the plan amendment,
curtailment or settlement but ignoring the effect of the asset ceiling that may arise when the
defined benefit plan is in a surplus position. Further, the amendments now require that if an
entity remeasures its net defined benefit liability or asset after a plan amendment, curtailment
or settlement, it should also use updated actuarial assumptions to determine current service
cost and net interest for the remainder of the annual reporting period after the change to the
plan. The application of these amendments had no significant impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

PAS 28 (Amendments), Investment in Associates and Joint Ventures — Long-term Interest in
Associates and Joint Ventures. The amendments clarify that the scope exclusion in PFRS 9
applies only to ownership interests accounted for using the equity method. Thus, the
amendments further clarify that long-term interests in an associate or joint venture — to which
the equity method is not applied — must be accounted for under PFRS 9, which shall also
include long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the entity’s net investment in an
associate or joint venture. The application of these amendments had no significant impact on
the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

PFRS 9 (Amendments), Financial Instruments — Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation. The amendments clarify that prepayment features with negative
compensation attached to financial assets may still qualify under the “solely payments of
principal and interests” (SPPI) test. As such, the financial assets containing prepayment
features with negative compensation may still be classified at amortized cost or at fair value
through other comprehensive income (FVOCI). The application of these amendments had no
significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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PFRS 16, Leases. The new standard replaced PAS 17, Leases, and its related interpretation
IFRIC 4, Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease, Standard Interpretations
Committee (SIC) 15, Operating Leases — Incentives and SIC 27, Evaluating the Substance of
Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. For lessees, it requires an entity to
account for leases “on-balance sheet” by recognizing a “right-of-use” asset and lease liability
arising from contract that is, or contains, a lease.

For lessors, the definitions of the type of lease (i.e., finance and operating leases) and the
supporting indicators of a finance lease are substantially the same with the provisions under
PAS 17. In addition, basic accounting mechanics are also similar but with some different or
more explicit guidance related to variable payments, sub-leases, lease modifications, the
treatment of initial direct costs and lessor disclosures.

The Group has adopted PFRS 16 using the modified retrospective approach as allowed
under the transitional provisions of the standard, where right-of-use asset is measured at an
amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by prepayments or accrued lease payments.

The new accounting policies of the Group as a lessee are disclosed in Note 2.14(a), while the
accounting policies of the Group as a lessor, as described in Note 2.14(b), were not
significantly affected.

Discussed below are the relevant information arising from the Group’s adoption of PFRS 16
and how the related accounts are measured and presented on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements as at January 1, 2019.

a. The Group recognized lease liabilities in relation to leases which had previously been
classified as operating leases under PAS 17. These liabilities were measured at the
present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the Group’s
incremental borrowing rate as of January 1, 2019. The Group’s weighted average
incremental borrowing rate applied to the lease liabilities on January 1, 2019 was 7.48%.

b. The Group has elected not to include initial direct costs in the measurement of
right-of-use assets at the date of initial application. The Group also elected to measure
the right-of-use assets at an amount equal to the lease liability adjusted for any prepaid
and accrued lease payments, and estimated cost to restore the leased asset that existed
as at January 1, 2019.

c. Forleases previously accounted for as operating leases with a remaining lease term of
less than 12 months or has assessed by the management to discontinue in the
succeeding year and for leases of low-value assets, the Group has applied the optional
exemptions to not recognize right-of-use assets but to account for the lease expense on
a straight-line basis over the remaining lease term.

d. The Group has also used the following practical expedients, apart from those already
mentioned above, as permitted by the standard:

i. application of a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with reasonably similar
characteristics;

ii. reliance on its historical assessments on whether leases are onerous as an
alternative to performing an impairment review on right-of-use assets. As at
January 1, 2019, the Group has no onerous contracts; and,

iii. use of hindsight in determining the lease term where the contract contains options to
extend or terminate the lease.
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The following table shows the effects of the adoption of PFRS 16 in the carrying

amounts and presentation of certain accounts in the consolidated statement of financial

position as at January 1, 2019.

Carrying Carrying
Amount Amount
(PAS 17) (PFRS 16)
December 31, January 1,
Note 2018 Reclassification Remeasurement 2019
Assets:
Right-of-use
assets — net b P - (P 55,764,894) P 973,167,940 P 917,403,046
Liabilities:
Trade and other
payables 7,434,839,252 ( 55,764,894) - 7,379,074,358
Lease liabilities a - - 973,167,940 973,167,940
Impact on net assets P - P -

A reconciliation of the opening lease liabilities recognized at January 1, 2019 and the
total operating lease commitments determined under PAS 17 at December 31, 2018
is shown below.

Notes

Operating lease commitments,

December 31, 2018 (PAS 17) 33.3 P 4,593,487,223
Recognition exemptions :

Leases of low value assets (c) ( 419,339)

Leases with remaining term

of less than 12 months (c) ( 206,558,474)
Reasonably certain termination

options (d) (__2,728,855,733)
Operating lease liabilities before

discounting 1,657,653,677
Discount using incremental

borrowing rate (a) ( 684,485,737)
Lease liabilities, January 1, 2019

(PFRS 16) P 973,167,940

IFRIC 23, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments. This interpretation provides clarification
on the determination of taxable profit, tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits, and

tax rates when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments. The core principle of the
interpretation requires the Group to consider the probability of the tax treatment being
accepted by the taxation authority. When it is probable that the tax treatment will be
accepted, the determination of the taxable profit, tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax
credits, and tax rates shall be on the basis of the accepted tax treatment. Otherwise, the
Group has to use the most likely amount or the expected value, depending on the
surrounding circumstances, in determining the tax accounts identified immediately above.
The application of this interpretation had no significant impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

Annual Improvements to PFRS 2015-2017 Cycle. Among the improvements, the following

amendments, which are effective from January 1, 2019, are relevant to the Group but did
not have material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements:

e  PAS 12 (Amendments), Income Taxes — Tax Consequences of Dividends. The

amendments clarify that an entity should recognize the income tax consequence of
dividend payments in profit or loss, other comprehensive income or equity according to
where the entity originally recognized the transactions that generated the distributable
profits.
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e  PAS 23 (Amendments), Borrowing Costs — Eligibility for Capitalization. The
amendments clarify that if any specific borrowing remains outstanding after the related
qualifying asset is ready for its intended use or sale, such borrowing is treated as part
of the entity’s general borrowings when calculating the capitalization rate.

e  PFRS 3 (Amendments), Business Combinations and PFRS 11 (Amendments), Joint
Arrangements — Remeasurement of Previously Held Interests in a Joint Operation.
The amendments to IFRS 3 clarify that when an entity obtains control of a business
that is a joint operation, it remeasures previously held interests in that business. The
amendments to IFRS 11 clarify that when an entity obtains joint control of a business
that is a joint operation, the entity does not remeasure previously held interests in that
business.

(b) Effective Subsequent to 2019 but not Adopted Early

There are new PFRS, interpretation, amendments and annual improvements to existing standards
effective for annual periods subsequent to 2019, which are adopted by the FRSC. Management
will adopt the following relevant pronouncements in accordance with their transitional provisions;
and, unless otherwise stated, none of these are expected to have significant impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements:

(i)

(ii)

(i)

PAS 1 (Amendments), Presentation of Financial Statements and PAS 8 (Amendments),
Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors — Definition of Material
(effective from January 1, 2020). The amendments provide a clearer definition of ‘material’ in
PAS 1 by including the concept of ‘obscuring’ material information with immaterial information
as part of the new definition, and clarifying the assessment threshold (i.e., misstatement of
information is material if it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions made by
primary users, which consider the characteristic of those users as well as the entity’s own
circumstances). The definition of material in PAS 8 has been accordingly replaced by
reference to the new definition in PAS 1. In addition, amendment has also been made in
other Standards that contain definition of material or refer to the term ‘material’ to ensure
consistency.

Revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting (effective from January 1, 2020).

The revised conceptual framework will be used in standard-setting decisions with immediate
effect. Key changes include: (a) increasing the prominence of stewardship in the objective of
financial reporting, (b) reinstating prudence as a component of neutrality, (c) defining a
reporting entity, which may be a legal entity, or a portion of an entity, (d) revising the
definitions of an asset and a liability, (e) removing the probability threshold for recognition and
adding guidance on derecognition, (f) adding guidance on different measurement basis, and,
(g) stating that profit or loss is the primary performance indicator and that, in principle, income
and expenses in other comprehensive income should be recycled where this enhances the
relevance or faithful representation of the financial statements.

No changes will be made to any of the current accounting standards. However, entities that
rely on the framework in determining their accounting policies for transactions, events or
conditions that are not otherwise dealt with under the accounting standards will need to apply
the revised framework from January 1, 2020. These entities will need to consider whether
their accounting policies are still appropriate under the revised framework.

PFRS 10 (Amendments), Consolidated Financial Statements, and PAS 28 (Amendments),
Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures — Sale or Contribution of Assets Between an
Investor and its Associates or Joint Venture (effective date deferred indefinitely). The
amendments to PFRS 10 require full recognition in the investor’s financial statements of
gains or losses arising on the sale or contribution of assets that constitute a business as
defined in PFRS 3, Business Combinations, between an investor and its associate or joint
venture. Accordingly, the partial recognition of gains or losses (i.e., to the extent of the
unrelated investor’s interests in an associate or joint venture) only applies to those sale of
contribution of assets that do not constitute a business. Corresponding amendments have
been made to PAS 28 to reflect these changes. In addition, PAS 28 has been amended to
clarify that when determining whether assets that are sold or contributed constitute a
business, an entity shall consider whether the sale or contribution of those assets is part of
multiple arrangements that should be accounted for as a single transaction.
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2.3 Basis of Consolidation

The Group’s consolidated financial statements comprise the accounts of the Parent Company and its
subsidiaries (see Note 1) after the elimination of intercompany transactions. All intercompany assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between entities under
the Group, are eliminated in full on consolidation. Unrealized profits and losses from intercompany
transactions that are recognized in assets are also eliminated in full. Intercompany losses that indicate
impairment are recognized in the consolidated financial statements.

The financial statements of subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the Parent
Company, using consistent accounting principles.

The Parent Company accounts for its investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and non-controlling
interests as follows.

(a) Investments in Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities (including structured entities) over which the Parent Company has control.
Parent Company controls an entity when (i) it has power over the investee; (ii) it is exposed, or has
rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity; and, (iii) has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity (see Note 2.12). The acquisition method is applied to
account for acquired subsidiaries.

The Parent Company reassesses whether or not it controls an entity if facts and circumstances
indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control indicated above.
Accordingly, entities are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

(b) Investments in Joint Ventures

A joint venture pertains to a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement have rights to the net assets of the arrangement. A joint venture entity pertains to
whose economic activities are controlled jointly by the Group and by other venturers independent of
the Group (joint venturers). Investment in a joint venture is accounted for under the equity method
of accounting. Under this method, on initial recognition the investment in joint venture is recognized
at cost, and the carrying amount is increased or decreased to recognize the investor’s share in the
profit or loss of the investee after the date of the acquisition. The Group’s share of the investee’s
profit or loss is recognized as equity share in the net income of joint venture in the Group’s profit or
loss. Distributions received from an investee reduce the carrying amount of the investment.
Adjustments to the carrying amount may also be necessary for a change in the investor’s
proportionate interest in the investee arising from changes in the investee’s other comprehensive
income.

The investments in joint ventures is subject to impairment testing (see Note 2.16). The
management has assessed that no impairment loss is required to be recognized for its investments
in joint ventures in 2019 and 2018.

(c) Transactions with Non-controlling Interests

The Group’s transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions — that is, as transaction with the owners of the Group in their
capacity as owners. The difference between the fair value of any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying value of the net assets of the subsidiary is recognized in
equity. Disposals of equity investments to non-controlling interests result in gains and losses for
the Group that are also recognized in equity.
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When the Group ceases to have control over a subsidiary, any retained interest in the entity is
remeasured to its fair value at the date when control is lost, with the change in carrying amount
recognized in profit or loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes of
subsequently accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint venture or financial asset.

In addition, any amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive income in respect of that
entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

This may mean that amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive income are reclassified
to profit or loss.

The Parent Company holds interests in various subsidiaries and joint ventures as presented in
Notes 1.2 and 14, respectively.

2.4 Financial Assets

Financial assets are recognized when the Group becomes a party to the contractual terms of the
financial instrument. For purposes of classifying financial assets, an instrument is considered as an
equity instrument if it is non-derivative and meets the definition of equity for the issuer in accordance with
the criteria of PAS 32, Financial Instruments: Presentation. All other non-derivative financial instruments
are treated as debt instruments.

(a) Classification, Measurement and Reclassification of Financial Assets

The classification and measurement of financial assets is driven by the entity’s business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets.
The financial assets are classified into the following categories: financial assets at amortized cost,
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss. Currently, the financial assets category relevant to the Group is financial
assets at amortized cost.

Financial assets are measured at amortized cost if both of the following conditions are met:

e the asset is held within the Group’s business model whose objective is to hold financial assets
in order to collect contractual cash flows (“hold to collect”); and,

e the contractual terms of the instrument give rise, on specified dates, to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Except for trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component and are
measured at the transaction price in accordance with PFRS 15, all financial assets meeting these
criteria are measured initially at fair value plus transaction costs. These are subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment in value.

The Group’s financial assets measured at amortized cost are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position as Cash and Cash Equivalents, Trade and Other Receivables
(excluding advances to suppliers and advances subject to liquidation), Due from Related Parties,
Restricted Deposits, and Refundable rental deposits (presented as part of Other Non-Current
Assets in the consolidated statement of financial position).

For purposes of cash flows reporting and presentation, cash and cash equivalents comprise
accounts with original maturities of three months or less, including cash. These generally include
cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term, highly liquid investments readily convertible to
known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

Refundable rental deposits are initially recognized at fair value. Interest on the rental deposits
arising from subsequent amortization is accounted for using the effective interest method and is
presented as part of Finance Income under Other Charges (Income) in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income. The excess of the principal amount of the deposit over its present value
is immediately recognized as deferred minimum lease payments (presented as part of Other
Non-Current Assets in the consolidated statement of financial position). Meanwhile, rent expense
arising from subsequent amortization of deferred minimum lease payments is accounted for using
the straight-line method over the lease term and is presented as part of Rent under Selling and
Administrative Expenses in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of
the financial assets except for those that are subsequently identified as credit-impaired. For
credit-impaired financial assets at amortized cost, the effective interest rate is applied to the net
carrying amount of the financial assets (after deduction of the loss allowance). The interest earned
is recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as part of Other Charges
(Income).

(b) Impairment of Financial Assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group assesses its ECL on a forward-looking basis
associated with its financial assets carried at amortized cost. The Group considers a broader range
of information in assessing credit risk and measuring expected credit losses, including past events,
current conditions, reasonable and supportable forecasts that affect collectability of the future cash
flows of the financial assets.

For trade and other receivables, and due from related parties, the Group recognizes lifetime ECL
when there has been a significant increase in credit risk on a financial asset since initial recognition.
Lifetime ECL represents the expected credit loss that will result from all possible default events over
the expected life of a financial asset, irrespective of the timing of the default. However, if the credit
risk on a financial asset has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group measures
and provides for credit losses that are expected to result from default events that are possible within
12 months after the end of the reporting period.

The Group determines whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk for financial asset
since initial recognition by comparing the risk of default occurring over the expected life of the
financial asset between the reporting date and the date of the initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both quantitative and qualitative information that may indicate an
actual or expected deterioration of the credit quality of the financial assets.

The key elements used in the calculation of ECL are as follows:
) Probability of default — It is an estimate of likelihood of default over a given time horizon.

o Loss given default — It is an estimate of loss arising in case where a default occurs at a given
time. Itis based on the difference between the contractual cash flows of a financial
instrument due from a counterparty and those that the Group would expect to receive,
including the realization of any collateral.

) Exposure at default — It represents the gross carrying amount of the financial instruments
subject to the impairment calculation.

The Group recognizes an impairment loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments subjected to
impairment assessment with a corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss
allowance account.

(c) Derecognition of Financial Assets

The financial assets (or where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of financial
assets) are derecognized when the contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financial
instruments expire, or when the financial assets and all substantial risks and rewards of ownership
have been transferred to another party. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
recognizes its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to
pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred
financial asset, the Group continues to recognize the financial asset and also recognizes a
collateralized borrowing for the proceeds received.

2.5 Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined using the moving
average method. The cost of inventories includes all costs directly attributable to acquisitions, such as
the purchase price, import duties and other taxes that are not subsequently recoverable from taxing
authorities.
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Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. Allowance is made, where
necessary, for obsolete, slow-moving and defective inventories (see Note 8).

2.6 Prepayments and Other Assets

Prepayments and other current assets pertain to other resources controlled by the Group as a result of
past events. They are recognized in the consolidated financial statements when it is probable that the
future economic benefits will flow to the Group and the asset has a cost or value that can be measured
reliably.

Other recognized assets of similar nature, where future economic benefits are expected to flow to the
Group beyond one year after the end of the reporting period or in the normal operating cycle of the
business, if longer, are classified as non-current assets.

2.7 Property, Plant and Equipment

Land is measured at fair value less any impairment in value. As no finite useful life for land can be
determined, related carrying amount are not depreciated. All other property, plant and equipment are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment in value.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to
working condition for its intended use. Expenditures for additions, major improvements and renewals
are capitalized only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part
is derecognized. All other expenditures for repairs and maintenance are charged to expense as
incurred.

Following initial recognition at cost, land is carried at revalued amounts, which are the fair values at the
date of the revaluation, as determined by independent appraisers, less any accumulated impairment
losses. Appraisal is made once every two years or more frequently if market factors indicate a material
change in fair value (see Note 5.5).

Any revaluation surplus is recognized in other comprehensive income and credited to the Revaluation
Reserves account in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Any revaluation deficit directly
offsetting a previous surplus in the same asset is charged to other comprehensive income to the extent
of any revaluation surplus in equity relating to this asset and the remaining deficit, if any, is recognized in
profit or loss. Annually, an amount from the Revaluation Reserves account is transferred to Retained
Earnings account for the impairment, if any, relating to the revaluation surplus. Upon disposal of
revalued assets, amounts included in Revaluation Reserves account relating to them are transferred to
Retained Earnings account.

Depreciation is computed on the straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as
follows:

LPG cylinders 30 years
Buildings, depot, plant and pier facilities 5-25 years
Transportation and other equipment 1-10 years
Gasoline and LPG station equipment 1-5 years
Hauling and heavy equipment 1-5 years

Office furniture and equipment 1-3 years
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LPG cylinders, which are circulating and are utilized by customers in their households or business
premises, are presented at cost less accumulated depreciation and provision for losses on lost LPG
cylinders. The Group performs an internal simulation and assessment of the quantity of LPG cylinders
circulating and being stored in the market. A provision is provided for lost assets in accordance with the
computed quantities. The assessment is conducted every other year and when the lost LPG cylinders
are ascertained, the lost cylinders will be written-off.

Leasehold and land improvements are amortized over the terms of the related leases or the useful lives
of the improvements, whichever is shorter.

Construction in progress represents properties under construction and on-going major repair works and
is stated at cost. This includes cost of construction, applicable borrowing costs (see Note 2.18) and
other direct costs. The account is not depreciated until such time that the assets are completed and
available for use.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying
amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (see Note 2.16).

The residual values, estimated useful lives and method of depreciation of property, plant and equipment
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An item of property, plant and equipment, including the related accumulated depreciation, amortization
and impairment losses, if any, is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
item) is included in profit or loss in the year the item is derecognized.

2.8 Investment Properties

Investment properties, which include parcels of land and lot improvements, are properties held to earn
rental income under operating lease, but not for sale in the ordinary course of business, use in services
or for administrative purposes.

Land classified as investment property is accounted for under the fair value model. It is revalued every
two years and is reported in the consolidated statement of financial position at its fair value. Fair value
is supported by market evidence and is determined by independent appraisers with sufficient
experience with respect to both the location and the nature of the investment property

(see Note 5.5).

Any gain or loss resulting from either a change in the fair value or the sale or retirement of an
investment property is immediately recognized in profit or loss as Fair value gains (losses) from
investment property as part of Other Charges (Income) in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Lot improvements is stated at cost, which includes acquisition price plus directly attributable costs
incurred such as legal fees, transfer taxes and other transaction costs, less accumulated depreciation
(except for land) and any impairment losses.

Depreciation of lot improvements is computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of
five years. The residual values, estimated useful lives and method of depreciation of investment
properties are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

Investment property is derecognized upon disposal or when permanently withdrawn from use and no
future economic benefit is expected from its disposal.

2.9 Intangible Assets

Intangible assets include acquired computer software licenses, software development costs, store
franchise and basketball franchise, which are measured at cost less accumulated amortization and
impairment in value, if any. The cost of the asset is the amount of cash or cash equivalents paid or the
fair value of the other considerations given up to acquire an asset at the time of its acquisition. The
useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.
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The Group assessed the useful life of basketball franchise to be indefinite because this is expected to
contribute to net cash flows indefinitely. The basketball franchise is not amortized but is reviewed
annually to determine whether the indefinite life assessment continues to be supportable. If not, the
change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalized on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and
install the specific software. Costs associated with maintaining computer software and those costs
associated with research activities are recognized as expense in profit or loss as incurred.

Capitalized costs for computer software licenses are amortized on a straight-line basis over the

estimated useful lives (ranging from one to ten years) as the lives of these intangible assets are

considered finite. In addition, intangible assets are subject to impairment testing as described in
Note 2.16.

Costs that are directly attributable to the development phase of new customized software for information
technology and telecommunications systems are recognized as intangible assets if, and only if, the
Group can demonstrate all of the following recognition requirements:

(i) technical feasibility of completing the prospective product for internal use or sale;
(ii) the intangible asset will generate probable economic benefits through internal use or sale;

(iii) intention and ability to complete, i.e., availability of sufficient technical, financial and other
resources necessary for completion, and use or sell the asset; and,

(iv) ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during
development.

Development costs not meeting these criteria for capitalization are expensed as incurred. Directly
attributable costs include employee costs incurred on software development along with an appropriate
portion of relevant overheads and borrowing costs.

The store franchise relates to asset acquired from business combination with PFM. Such is for taking in
the name and management know-how of the FamilyMart mark. Amortization is computed on a straight-
line method over its estimated useful life of 10.50 years (see Note 13).

When an intangible asset is disposed of, the gain or loss on disposal is determined as the difference
between the proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in profit or loss.

2.10 Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities, which include interest-bearing loans and borrowings, trade and other payables
(excluding tax-related payables), derivative financial liabilities, lease liabilities, security deposits,
customers’ cylinder deposits and cash bond deposits (which are presented under Other Non-Current
Liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position), are recognized when the Group becomes a
party to the contractual terms of the instrument. All interest-related charges incurred on financial liability
are recognized as an expense in profit or loss under the caption Finance Costs in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, except for interest charges that are attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of a qualifying asset (i.e., an asset that takes a substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sale) which are capitalized as part of the cost of such asset

(see Note 2.18).

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings are raised for support of long-term funding of operations. Finance
charges, including premiums payable on settlement or redemption and direct issue costs, are charged to
profit or loss on an accrual basis using the effective interest method and are added to the carrying
amount of the instrument to the extent that these are not settled in the period in which they arise.

Trade and other payables (excluding tax-related payables), security deposits, customers’ cylinder
deposits and cash bond deposits are recognized initially at their fair values and subsequently measured
at amortized cost, using effective interest method for maturities beyond one year, less settlement
payments.
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Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is
entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period.
Changes in fair value of derivatives are recognised in profit of loss. Derivative financial assets are set off
against derivative financial liabilities and the net financial instruments are presented as either Derivative
Financial Assets of Derivative Financial Liabilities in the statement of financial position (see Note 5.6).

Security deposits are initially recognized at fair value. Interest on security deposits arising from
subsequent amortization is accounted for using the effective interest method and is presented as part of
Finance Costs. The excess of the principal amount of the deposit over its present value is immediately
recognized as Unearned rent (presented as part of Other Non-Current Liabilities in the consolidated
statement of financial position). Meanwhile, the rent income arising from subsequent amortization of
unearned rent is accounted for using the straight-line method over the lease term and is presented as
part of Rent Income in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

The Group purchases LPG cylinders, which are loaned to dealers upon payment by the latter of an
amount equivalent to 44.00-79.00% of the acquisition cost of the cylinders. At the end of each reporting
date, customers’ cylinder deposits, shown under Other Non-Current Liabilities in the consolidated
statements of financial position, are reduced for estimated non-returns. Estimated non-returns are
determined through amortization of the balance over the estimated useful life of cylinders and/or
estimated proportion of the provision for lost cylinders (see Note 2.7). The reduction is recognized
directly in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as part of Fuel Service and Other
Revenues.

Dividend distributions to shareholders are recognized as financial liabilities upon declaration by the
Parent Company.

Financial liabilities are classified as current liabilities if payment is due to be settled within one year or
less after the end of the reporting period (or in the normal operating cycle of the business, if longer), or
the Group does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least

12 months after the end of the reporting period. Otherwise, these are presented as non-current
liabilities.

Financial liabilities are derecognized from the consolidated statement of financial position only when the
obligations are extinguished either through discharge, cancellation or expiration. The difference between
the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognized and the consideration paid or payable is
recognized in profit or loss.

2.11 Provisions and Contingencies

Provisions are recognized when present obligations will probably lead to an outflow of economic
resources and they can be estimated reliably even if the timing or amount of the outflow may still be
uncertain. A present obligation arises from the presence of a legal or constructive obligation that has
resulted from past events.

Provisions are measured at the estimated expenditure required to settle the present obligation, based on
the most reliable evidence available at the end of the reporting period, including the risks and
uncertainties associated with the present obligation. Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the class of
obligations as a whole. When time value of money is material, long-term provisions are discounted to
their present values using a pretax rate that reflects market assessments and the risks specific to the
obligation. The increase in provision due to passage of time is recognized as interest expense.
Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimate.

In those cases, where the possible outflow of economic resource as a result of present obligations is
considered improbable or remote, or the amount to be provided for cannot be measured reliably, no
liability is recognized in the consolidated financial statements. Similarly, possible inflows of economic
benefits to the Group that do not yet meet the recognition criteria of an asset are considered contingent
assets, hence, are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements. On the other hand, any
reimbursement that the Group can be virtually certain to collect from a third party with respect to the
obligation is recognized as a separate asset not exceeding the amount of the related provision.
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2.12 Business Combinations

Business acquisitions are accounted for using the acquisition method of accounting and
pooling-of-interest method.

The acquisition method requires recognizing and measuring the identifiable assets acquired, the
liabilities assumed and any non-controlling interest in the acquiree. The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interest issued by the Group, if any. The consideration transferred
also includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. Acquisition-related costs are expenses as incurred and subsequent changes in the fair
value of contingent consideration is recognized directly in profit or loss.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination
are measured initially at fair values at the acquisition date. On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the
Group recognizes any non-controlling interest in the acquiree, either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interest’s proportionate share of the recognized amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable assets.

In cases wherein the accounting for the acquisition is not yet complete as of the end of the year, the fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities are presented as provisionary amounts and will be adjusted
upon finalization of the valuation, which is expected to be completed within 12 months from the date of
acquisition.

Gooduwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share of
the net identifiable assets of the acquired subsidiary at the date of acquisition. Subsequent to initial
recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested
annually for impairment and carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Impairment losses on
goodwill are not reversed (see Note 2.16).

Negative goodwill which is the excess of the Group’s interest in the fair value of net identifiable assets
acquired over acquisition cost is charged directly to income.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units or groups of
cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the business combination in which the goodwill
arose. The cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating units are identified according to
operating segment.

Gains and losses on the disposal of an interest in a subsidiary include the carrying amount of goodwill
relating to it.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquirer is required to remeasure its previously
held equity interest in the acquiree at its acquisition-date fair value and recognize the resulting gain or
loss, if any, in the profit or loss or other comprehensive income, as appropriate.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the Group is recognized at fair value at the acquisition
date. Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration that is deemed to be an
asset or liability is recognized in accordance with PAS 37, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets, either in profit or loss or as a change to other comprehensive income. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured, and its subsequent settlement is accounted
for within equity.

Under the pooling-of-interest method which is applicable for the acquisition and disposal of an entity
under common control (see Note 30.4), similar accounts of the entities are combined on a line-by-line
basis except for the equity accounts which were offset with the new shares issued by the new entity in
which the difference between the net assets received and the amount of the consideration

(shares issued and cash) is accounted for as Other Reserves.
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2.13 Revenue and Expense Recognition

Revenue arises mainly from the sales of goods (fuels and by-products, lubricants, LPG, and
merchandise inventories) and from rendering into-plane, terminalling and hauling services.

To determine whether to recognize revenue, the Group follows a five-step process:

(1) identifying the contract with a customer;

(2) identifying the performance obligation;

(3) determining the transaction price;

(4) allocating the transaction price to the performance obligations; and,
(5) recognizing revenue when/as performance obligations are satisfied.

For Step 1 to be achieved, the following five gating criteria must be present:

(1) the parties to the contract have approved the contract either in writing, orally or in accordance
with other customary business practices;

(2) each party’s rights regarding the goods or services to be transferred or performed can be
identified;

(3) the payment terms for the goods or services to be transferred or performed can be identified;

(4) the contract has commercial substance (i.e., the risk, timing or amount of the future cash flows is
expected to change as a result of the contract); and,

(5) collection of the consideration in exchange of the goods and services is probable.

Revenue is recognized only when (or as) the Group satisfies a performance obligation by transferring
control of the promised goods or services to a customer. The transfer of control can occur over time or
at a point in time.

A performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time unless it meets one of the following criteria, in
which case it is satisfied over time:

o the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs;

o the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the asset
is created or enhanced; and,

o the Group’s performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Group and the
entity has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date.

The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:

(a)  Sale of goods — Sale of goods include fuel and by-products (such as CME), lubricants, LPG, and
merchandise inventories. Revenue is recognized when the Group transfers control of the assets at a
point in time to the customer. Invoices for goods transferred are due upon receipt by the customer.

(b)  Fuel service and other revenues — Fuel service and other revenues mainly consist of hauling,
into-plane services, management services, and transport services, is recognized over time and is
based on a fixed agreed fee. These services are generally performed within the day. Invoices for
services transferred are due upon receipt by the customer.

The Group presents a contract asset when performing services to a customer before the customer pays
consideration or before payment is due. A contract asset is the Group’s right to consideration in
exchange for goods or services that the Group has transferred to a customer.

The Group presents a contract liability when a customer pays the consideration, or a Group has the right
to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., a receivable), before the Group performs
services to the customer. A contract liability is the Group’s obligation to transfer goods or services to a
customer for which the Group has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the
customer.
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In obtaining customer contracts, the Group incurs incremental costs. As the expected amortization
period of these costs, if capitalized, would be less than one year, the Group uses the practical expedient
in PFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, and expenses such costs as incurred. The Group
also incurs costs in fulfilling contracts with customers. However, as those costs are within the scope of
other financial reporting standards, the Group accounts for those costs in accordance with accounting
policies related to those financial reporting standards.

In 2017, the Group recognized revenues based on the provisions of PAS 18, which is to the extent that
such revenues and the related costs incurred or to be incurred can be measured reliably and it is
probable that future economic benefits will flow to the Group. Specifically, for sale of goods, revenues
were recognized when the risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer.

Cost and expenses are recognized in profit or loss upon utilization of goods or services or at the date
they are incurred. Expenditure for warranties is recognized and charged against the associated
provision when the related revenue is recognized. All finance costs are reported in profit or loss on an
accrual basis, except capitalized borrowing costs, which are included as part of the cost of the related
qualifying asset (see Note 2.18).

2.14 Leases
The Group accounts for its leases as follows:
(a) Group as Lessee
(i) Accounting for Leases in Accordance with PFRS 16 (2019)

For any new contracts entered into on or after January 1, 2019, the Group considers whether a
contract is, or contains, a lease. A lease is defined as a contract, or part of a contract, that conveys
the right to use an asset (the underlying asset) for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To
apply this definition, the Group assesses whether the contract meets three key evaluations which
are whether:

¢ the contract contains an identified asset, which is either explicitly identified in the contract or
implicitly specified by being identified at the time the asset is made available to the Group;

o the Group has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the
identified asset throughout the period of use, considering its rights within the defined scope of
the contract; and,

o the Group has the right to direct the use of the identified asset throughout the period of use. The
Group assess whether it has the right to direct ‘how and for what purpose’ the asset is used
throughout the period of use.

At lease commencement date, the Group recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability in the
statement of financial position. The right-of-use asset is measured at cost, which is made up of the
initial measurement of the lease liability, any initial direct costs incurred by the Group, an estimate of
any costs to dismantle and remove the asset at the end of the lease, and any lease payments made
in advance of the lease commencement date (net of any incentives received). Subsequently, the
Group depreciates the right-of-use asset on a straight-line basis from the lease commencement date
to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The
Group also assesses the right-of-use asset for impairment when such indicators exist

(see Note 2.16).
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On the other hand, the Group measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments
unpaid at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease if that rate
is readily available or the Group’s incremental borrowing rate. Lease payments include fixed
payments (including in-substance fixed) less lease incentives receivable, if any, variable lease
payments based on an index or rate, amounts expected to be payable under a residual value
guarantee, and payments arising from options (either renewal or termination) reasonably certain to
be exercised. Subsequent to initial measurement, the liability will be reduced for payments made
and increased for interest. It is remeasured to reflect any reassessment or modification, or if there
are changes in in-substance fixed payments. When the lease liability is remeasured, the
corresponding adjustment is reflected in the right-of-use asset, or profit and loss if the right-of-use
asset is already reduced to zero.

The Group has elected to account for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets using the
practical expedients. Instead of recognizing a right-of-use asset and lease liability, the payments in
relation to these are recognized as an expense in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

On the statement of financial position, right-of-use assets and lease liabilities have been presented
separately from property, plant and equipment and other liabilities, respectively.

(i) Accounting for Leases in Accordance with PAS 17 (2018 and 2017)

Leases which do not transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the
asset are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments (net of any incentive received
from the lessor) are recognized as expense in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Associated costs, such as repairs and maintenance and
insurance, are expensed as incurred.

Group as Lessor

Leases which do not transfer to the lessee substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the
asset are classified as operating leases. Lease income from operating leases is recognized in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group determines whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease based on the substance of
the arrangement. It makes an assessment of whether the fulfilment of the arrangement is
dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the
asset.

2.15 Foreign Currency Transactions and Translations

(@)

Transactions and Balances

Except for PNX SG, PNX Energy, PNX Vietnam, which use the United States (U.S.) Dollars,
PTPPI, which uses Indonesian Rupiah, and PGV LLC, which uses Vietnamese Dong, as functional
currencies, the accounting records of the Parent Company and its subsidiaries are maintained in
Philippine Peso. Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated into functional
currency at exchange rates that approximate those prevailing on transaction dates.

Foreign currency gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognized in profit or loss.
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(b) Translation of Financial Statements of Foreign Subsidiaries

The operating results and financial position of a foreign subsidiaries, in which their functional
currency are measured as stated in Note 2.15(a), are translated to Philippine pesos, to the Group’s
functional currency as follows:

i. Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position presented are translated at the
closing rate at the end of the reporting period;

ii. Income and expenses for each profit or loss account are translated at the average exchange
rates over the reporting period (unless this average is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the dates of the transactions); and,

iii.  All resulting exchange differences are recognized in other comprehensive income and in a
separate component of equity under Revaluation Reserves account.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of the net investment in the foreign
subsidiaries are recognized under Translation Adjustment Related to Foreign Subsidiaries in the
consolidated statements of comprehensive income. When a foreign operation is partially disposed or
sold, such exchange differences are recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
as part of gains or loss on sale.

The translation of the consolidated financial statements into Philippine peso should not be construed as
a representation that the Singapore Dollar, Indonesian Rupiah and Viethamese Dong amounts could be
converted into Philippine Peso amounts at the translation rates or at any other rates of exchange.

2.16 Impairment of Non-financial Assets

The Group’s property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, goodwill, investments in joint venture and
other non-financial assets are subject to impairment testing. Individual assets or cash-generating units
are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable, except for goodwill and franchise with indefinite useful lives that are
tested for impairment at least annually.

For purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). As a result, some assets are tested
individually for impairment and some are tested at cash-generating unit level. Goodwill is allocated to
cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the business
combination in which the goodwill arose.

The cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating units are identified according to operating
segment.

Impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss for the amount by which the asset’s or

cash-generating unit’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amounts which is the higher of its fair
value less costs to sell and its value in use. In determining value in use, management estimates the
expected future cash flows from each cash-generating unit and determines the suitable interest rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. The data used for impairment testing
procedures are directly linked to the Group’s latest approved budget, adjusted as necessary to exclude
the effects of asset enhancements. Discount factors are determined individually for each
cash-generating unit and reflect management’s assessment of respective risk profiles, such as market
and asset-specific risk factors.

Except for goodwill and franchise with indefinite useful lives, all assets are subsequently reassessed for
indications that an impairment loss previously recognized may no longer exist. An impairment loss,
except impairment loss on goodwill (see Note 2.12), is reversed if the asset’s or cash generating unit's
recoverable amount exceeds its carrying amount.
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2.17 Employee Benefits

The Group provides post-employment benefits to employees through a defined benefit plan and a
defined contribution plan, and other employee benefits which are recognized as follows:

(@)

(b)

(c)

Post-employment Defined Benefit Plan

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment plan that defines an amount of post-employment
benefit that an employee will receive on retirement, usually dependent on one or more factors such
as age, years of service and salary. The legal obligation for any benefits from this kind of
post-employment plan remains with the Group, even if plan assets, if any, for funding the defined
benefit plan have been acquired. Plan assets, if any, may include assets specifically designated to
a long-term benefit fund, as well as qualifying insurance policies. The Group’s defined benefit
post-employment plan covers all regular full-time employees. The pension plan is noncontributory
and administered by a trustee.

The liability recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position for a defined benefit plan
is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair
value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by independent actuaries
using the projected unit credit method. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is
determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows for expected benefit payments using
a discount rate derived from the interest rates of a zero coupon government bonds [using the
reference rates published by Bloomberg using its valuation technology, Bloomberg Valuation
(BVAL) in 2019 and 2018, and PDEx PDST-R2 in 2017], that are denominated in the currency in
which the benefits will be paid and that have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the
related post-employment liability. BVAL provides evaluated prices that are based on market
observations from contributed sources.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments
and changes in actuarial assumptions and the return on plan assets (excluding amount included in
net interest) are reflected immediately in the consolidated statement of financial position with a
charge or credit recognized in other comprehensive income in the period in which they arise. Net
interest is calculated by applying the discount rate at the beginning of the period, unless there is a
plan amendment, curtailment or settlement during the reporting period. The calculation also takes
into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability or asset during the period as a result of
contributions to the plan or benefit payments. Net interest is reported as part of Finance Costs or
Finance Income in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Past service costs are recognized immediately in profit or loss in the period of a plan amendment
and curtailment.

Post-employment Defined Contribution Plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment plan under which the Group pays fixed
contributions into an independent entity. The Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay
further contributions after payment of the fixed contribution. The contributions recognized in
respect of defined contribution plans are expensed as they fall due. Liabilities or assets may be
recognized if underpayment or prepayment has occurred and are included in current liabilities or
current assets as they are normally of a short-term nature.

Termination Benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the Group before the normal
retirement date, or whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these
benefits. The Group recognizes termination benefits at the earlier of when it can no longer
withdraw the offer of such benefits and when it recognizes costs for a restructuring that is within the
scope of PAS 37 and involves the payment of termination benefits. In the case of an offer made to
encourage voluntary redundancy, the termination benefits are measured based on the number of
employees expected to accept the offer. Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the
reporting period are discounted to their present value.
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Profit-sharing and Bonus Plans

The Group recognizes a liability and an expense for bonuses and profit-sharing, based on a formula
that takes into consideration the profit attributable to the Group’s shareholders after certain
adjustments. The Group recognizes a provision where it is contractually obliged to pay the
benefits, or where there is a past practice that has created a constructive obligation.

Compensated Absences

Compensated absences are recognized for the number of paid leave days (including holiday
entitlement) remaining at the end of the reporting period. They are included in Trade and Other
Payables account in the consolidated statement of financial position at the undiscounted amount
that the Group expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement.

Share-based Payments

The Parent Company grants share options to its qualified employees eligible under a share option
plan. The services received in exchange for the grant, and the corresponding share options, are
valued by reference to the fair value of the equity instruments granted at grant date. This fair value
excludes the impact of non-market vesting conditions (for example profitability and sales growth
targets and performance conditions), if any.

The share-based remuneration, if any, is recognized as an expense in profit or loss and the
corresponding credit to retained earnings.

The expense is recognized during the vesting period based on the best available estimate of the
number of share options expected to vest. The estimate is subsequently revised, if necessary,
such that it equals the number that ultimately vests on vesting date. No subsequent adjustment is
made to expense after vesting date, even if share options are ultimately not exercised.

Upon exercise of share option, the proceeds received net of any directly attributable transaction
costs up to the nominal value of the shares issued are allocated to capital stock with any excess
being recorded as additional paid-in capital.

2.18 Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs are recognized as expenses in the period in which they are incurred, except to the
extent that they are capitalized. Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of a qualifying asset (i.e., an asset that takes a substantial period of time to

get ready for its intended use or sale) are capitalized as part of cost of such asset. The capitalization of

borrowing costs commences when expenditures for the asset and borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.
Capitalization ceases when substantially all such activities are complete.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure

on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization.
2.19 Income Taxes

Tax expense recognized in profit or loss comprises the sum of deferred tax and current tax not
recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, if any.

Current tax assets or liabilities comprise those claims from, or obligations to, fiscal authorities relating to
the current or prior reporting period, that are uncollected or unpaid at the end of reporting period. They

are calculated according to the tax rates and tax laws applicable to the fiscal periods to which they
relate, based on the taxable profit for the year. All changes to current tax assets or liabilities are
recognized as a component of tax expense in profit or loss.
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Deferred tax is accounted for using the liability method on temporary differences at the end of reporting
period between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes. Under the liability method, with certain exceptions, deferred tax liabilities are recognized for
all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary
differences and the carry forward of unused tax losses and unused tax credits to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences can be
utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets, if any, are reassessed at the end of each reporting period
and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will be available to
allow such deferred tax assets to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
when the asset is realized or the liability is settled provided such tax rates have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced
to the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilized.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow
from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. For purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities, the
carrying amount of such properties is presumed to be recovered entirely through sale, unless the
presumption is rebutted, that is when the land held for sale and development costs are held within the
business model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in
the property over time, rather than through sale.

Most changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognized as a component of tax expense in profit
or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if the Group has a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same entity
and the same taxation authority.

2.20 Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the resulting net amount, considered as a single
financial asset or financial liability, is reported in the consolidated statement of financial position when
the Group currently has legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The right of
set-off must be available at the end of the reporting period, that is, it is not contingent on future event. It
must also be enforceable in the normal course of business, in the event of default, and in the event of
insolvency or bankruptcy; and must be legally enforceable for both entity and all counterparties to the
financial instruments.

2.21 Related Party Transactions and Relationships

Related party transactions are transfer of resources, services or obligations between the Group and its
related parties, regardless whether a price is charged.

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise
significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions. These parties
include: (a) individuals owning, directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, control or are
controlled by, or under common control with the Group; (b) associates; (c) individuals owning, directly or
indirectly, an interest in the voting power of the Group that gives them significant influence over the
Group and close members of the family of any such individual; and, (d) the Group’s funded retirement
plan.

In considering each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the substance of the
relationship and not merely on the legal form.
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Transactions amounting to ten percent (10%) or more of the Group’s total assets that were entered into
with related parties, either individually or in aggregate over a twelve-month period, are considered
material. All material related party transactions shall be approved by the majority of the BOD and
shareholders. Attendance and votes of directors with personal interest in the transactions shall not be
counted for the purposes of assessing the quorum and determining majority approval, respectively.

2.22 Segment Reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
Parent Company’s BOD and management committee responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments.

In identifying its operating segments, management generally follows the Group’s products and service
lines as disclosed in Note 32, which represent the main products and services provided by the Group.

Each of these operating segments is managed separately as each of these service lines requires
different technologies and other resources as well as marketing approaches. All inter-segment transfers
are carried out at arm's length prices.

The measurement policies the Group uses for segment reporting under PFRS 8 are the same as those
used in its consolidated financial statements, except that post-employment benefit expenses are not
included in arriving at the operating profit of the operating segments.

In addition, corporate assets which are not directly attributable to the business activities of any operating
segment are not allocated to a segment.

2.23 Equity
Preferred and common stock represents the nominal value of shares that have been issued.

Treasury shares are stated at the cost of reacquiring such shares and are deducted from equity
attributable to the Group’s equity holders until the shares are cancelled, reissued or disposed of.

Additional paid-in capital includes any premiums received on the initial issuance of capital stock.
Any transaction costs associated with the issuance of shares are deducted from additional paid-in
capital, net of any related income tax benefits.

Revaluation reserves comprise of gains arising from the revaluation of the Group’s parcels of land under
property, plant and equipment and from the remeasurements of post-employment defined benefit
obligation, net of applicable taxes.

Retained earnings include all current and prior period results of operations as reported in the profit or
loss section of the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, reduced by the amounts of
dividends declared.

2.24 Earnings per Share
Basic earnings per share (EPS) is computed by dividing net profit attributable to common shareholders
by the weighted average number of common shares issued and outstanding, adjusted retroactively for

any stock dividend, stock split or reverse stock split declared during the current period.

Diluted EPS is computed by adjusting the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding to
assume conversion of dilutive potential shares, if any.
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2.25 Events After the End of the Reporting Period

Any post-year-end event that provides additional information about the Group’s position at the end of the
reporting period (adjusting event) is reflected in the consolidated financial statements. Post-year-end
events that are not adjusting events, if any, are disclosed when material to the consolidated financial
statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements in accordance with PFRS requires
management to make judgments and estimates that affect amounts reported in the consolidated
financial statements and related notes. Judgments and estimates are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may ultimately differ from these
estimates.

3.1 Critical Management Judgments in Applying Accounting Policies

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following
judgments, apart from those involving estimation, which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognized in the consolidated financial statements.

(a) Determination of Lease Term of Contracts with Renewal and Termination Options (2019)

In determining the lease term, management considers all relevant factors and circumstances that
create an economic incentive to exercise a renewal option or not exercise a termination option.
Renewal options and/or periods after termination options are only included in the lease term if the
lease is reasonably certain to be extended or not terminated.

The lease term is reassessed if an option is actually exercised or not exercised or the Group
becomes obliged to exercise or not exercise it. The assessment of reasonable certainty is only
revised if a significant event or a significant change in circumstances occurs, which affects this
assessment, and that is within the control of the Group.

(b) Determination of Timing of Satisfaction of Performance Obligations
(i) Rendering of Fuel Services and Other Revenues

The Group determines that its revenue from rendering of fuel services and other revenues shall be
recognized over time. In making its judgment, the Group considers the timing of receipt and
consumption of benefits provided by the Group to the customers. The Group transfers control of
the services over time, based on the actual service provided to the end of the reporting period as a
proportion of the total services to be provided, because the customer receives and uses the
benefits simultaneously. However, significant services are generally performed within the day.

(i) Sale of Goods

The Group determines that its revenue from sale of goods shall be recognized at a point in time
when the control of the goods have passed to the customer, i.e., generally when the customer has
acknowledged delivery of the goods.

(c) Determination of ECL of Financial Assets at Amortized Cost

The Group uses an external benchmarking to calculate ECL for financial assets at amortized cost.
The Group applies the PFRS 9 using internal credit ratings translated to external credit ratings
[i.e. Standard & Poor’s (S&P)] in order to reference/benchmark with published equivalent external
cumulative PD (see Note 4.2).

The Group’s internal credit rating for each customer is re-assessed when there are changes in
credit limit and payment terms.
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Evaluation of Business Model Applied in Managing Financial Instruments

The Group developed business models which reflect how it manages its portfolio of financial
instruments. The Group’s business models need not be assessed at entity level or as a whole but
shall be applied at the level of a portfolio of financial instruments (i.e., group of financial instruments
that are managed together by the Group) and not on an instrument-by-instrument basis

(i.e., not based on intention or specific characteristics of individual financial instrument).

In determining the classification of a financial instrument under PFRS 9, the Group evaluates in
which business model a financial instrument or a portfolio of financial instruments belong to taking
into consideration the objectives of each business model established by the Group

(e.g., held-for-trading, generating accrual income, direct matching to a specific liability) as those
relate to the Group’s investment and trading strategies.

Distinction between Operating and Finance Leases for Contracts where the Group is the Lessor

The Group has entered into various lease agreements as lessor. Critical judgment was exercised
by management to distinguish each lease agreement, either as a lessor or a lessee, as either an
operating or finance lease by looking at the transfer or retention of significant risks and rewards of
ownership of the properties covered by the agreements. Failure to make the right judgment will
result in either overstatement or understatement of assets and liabilities.

Recognition of Provisions and Contingencies

Judgment is exercised by management to distinguish between provisions and contingencies.
Policies on recognition of provisions and contingencies are discussed in Note 2.11 and disclosures
on relevant contingencies are presented in Note 34.

Determination of Qualifying Assets on Borrowing Costs

A qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its
intended use or sale. Determining if an asset is a qualifying asset will depend on the circumstances
and requires the use of judgment in each case. In making judgment, the management takes into
account its planned use when it determines whether the asset is a qualifying asset and considers
the facts and circumstances and uses its judgment to determine whether an asset takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale. Based on the facts and
circumstances affecting the Group’s qualifying asset, the management concludes that the Group’s
retail station, depot facilities and development costs are qualifying assets as the management
assesses that it takes substantial period of time for the completion of those assets.

Distinction between Investment Properties and Owner-Managed Properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as investment property. In making its judgment,
the Group considers whether the property generates cash flows largely independent of the other
assets held by an entity. Owner-occupied properties generate cash flows that are attributable not
only to the property but also to other assets used in the production or supply process.

In 2019, the Group reclassified a certain property to investment property from property, plant and
equipment. The said property was previously used for administrative purposes but is now currently
held for capital appreciation (see Notes 11 and 16).

Joint Control of Entities in which the Group Holds More than 50%

Management considers that the Group does not have control of Galaxi and PSPC even though the
Group holds more than 50% each of the ordinary shares of these entities. In making judgment
regarding its involvement in Galaxi and PSPC management considered the Group’s voting rights,
the relative size and dispersion of the voting rights held by other shareholders and the extent of
recent participation by those shareholders in general meetings. Even though the Group has 51%
shareholdings and appoints three out of five members of the directors for both entities, all decisions
shall require affirmative votes of at least 75% of the directors and any variation in the business of
Galaxi and PSPC shall require the mutual consent of the parties. Moreover, the JV partners of the
Group are responsible in managing the day-to-day operations of the Galaxi and PSPC.
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Impairment of Basketball Franchise

The determination when the Group's basketball franchise is considered impaired requires
significant judgment. In making this judgment, the Group evaluates, among other factors, the
continuity and going concern status of the Philippine Basketball Association, changes in viewership
of basketball leagues and the period over which the Group expects to benefit from holding the
franchise, which include but are not limited to marketing and publicity, brand awareness and media
mileage. Based on the recent evaluation of information and circumstances affecting the Group's
basketball franchise, management has assessed that the period over which the Group expects the
basketball franchise to generate inflows for the Group is indefinite and has determined that no
impairment loss is required to be recognized on the Group's basketball franchise in 2019, 2018 and
2017. Future changes in those information and circumstances might significantly affect the carrying
amount of the basketball franchise disclosed in Note 13.

3.2 Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

Presented below and in the succeeding pages are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next reporting
period.

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Determination of Appropriate Discount Rate in Measuring Lease Liabilities (2019)

The Group measures its lease liabilities at present value of the lease payments that are not paid at
the commencement date of the lease contract, for new lease contracts. The lease payments were
discounted using a reasonable rate deemed by management equal to the Group’s incremental
borrowing rate. In determining a reasonable discount rate, management considers the term of the
leases, the underlying asset, credit risk of the Group and the economic environment. Actual
results, however, may vary due to changes in estimates brought about by changes in such factors.

Estimation of Allowance for ECL

The measurement of the allowance for ECL on financial assets at amortized cost is an area that
requires the use of significant assumptions about the future economic conditions and credit
behavior (e.g., likelihood of customers defaulting and the resulting losses). Explanation of the
inputs, assumptions and estimation used in measuring ECL is further detailed in Note 4.2(b).

Determination of Net Realizable Value of Inventories

In determining the net realizable values of inventories, management takes into account the most
reliable evidence available at the dates the estimates are made. Future realization of the carrying
amounts of inventories, as presented in Note 8, is affected by price changes and action from
competitors. Both aspects are considered key sources of estimation uncertainty and may cause
significant adjustments to the Group’s inventories within the next financial reporting period.

Estimation of Useful Lives of Property, Plant and Equipment, Right-of-use Assets, Intangible Assets
and Investment Properties

The Group estimates the useful lives of property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets,
intangible assets and investment properties based on the period over which the assets are
expected to be available for use. The estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets, intangible assets and investment properties are reviewed periodically and are
updated if expectations differ from previous estimates due to physical wear and tear, technical or
commercial obsolescence and legal or other limits on the use of the assets.

The carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets, intangible assets and
investment properties are analyzed in Notes 11, 12, 13 and 16, respectively. Based on
management’s assessment as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, there is no change in the
estimated useful lives of the property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and investment
properties during those years. Actual results, however, may vary due to changes in estimates
brought about by changes in factors mentioned above.
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Fair Value Measurement of Property, Plant and Equipment and Investment Properties

The Group’s property, plant and equipment and investment properties include parcels of land, that
are carried at revalued amount at the end of the reporting period. In determining the fair value of
these assets, the Group engages the services of professional and independent appraisers applying
the relevant valuation methodologies as discussed in Note 5.5.

The amounts of revaluation and fair value gains recognized on parcels of land under property, plant
and equipment and investment properties are disclosed in Notes 11 and 16, respectively.

Determination of Realizable Amount of Deferred Tax Assets

The Group reviews its deferred tax assets at the end of each reporting period and reduces the
carrying amount to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to be utilized. Management assessed that
the deferred tax assets recognized as of December 31, 2019 and 2018 will be fully utilized in the
coming years. The carrying value of deferred tax assets as of December 31, 2019 and 2018 is
disclosed in Note 28.

Valuation of Post-employment Defined Benefit Obligation

The determination of the Group’s obligation and cost of post-employment defined benefit is
dependent on the selection of certain assumptions used by actuaries in calculating such amounts.
Those assumptions are described in Note 25 and include, among others, discount rates and salary
increase rate. A significant change in any of these actuarial assumptions may generally affect the
recognized expense, other comprehensive income or losses and the carrying amount of the
post-employment benefit obligation in the next reporting period.

The amounts of post-employment benefit obligation and expense and an analysis of the
movements in the estimated present value of retirement benefit obligation are presented in
Note 26.3.

Impairment of Non-financial Assets

In assessing impairment, management estimates the recoverable amount of each asset or a cash-
generating unit based on expected future cash flows and uses an interest rate to calculate the
present value of those cash flows. Estimation uncertainty relates to assumptions about future
operating results and the determination of a suitable discount rate (see Note 2.16). Though
management believes that the assumptions used in the estimation of fair values reflected in the
consolidated financial statements are appropriate and reasonable, significant changes in those
assumptions may materially affect the assessment of recoverable values and any resulting
impairment loss could have a material adverse effect on the results of operations.

Management has assessed that no impairment losses are required to be recognized on the Group’s
goodwill, investments in joint venture, property, plant and equipment, investment properties, and
intangible assets in 2019, 2018 and 2017.

Fair Value Measurements of Business Combinations

On initial recognition in a business combination using the purchase method of accounting, the
assets and liabilities of the acquired business and the consideration paid for them are included in
the consolidated financial statements at their fair values. In measuring fair value, management
uses market-based evidence and obtains assistance from third party valuation specialists on the
acquired property, plant and equipment (see Note 1.4). Any subsequent change in these estimates
would affect the amount of goodwill if the change qualifies as a measurement period adjustment.
Any other change would be recognized in profit or loss in the subsequent period.
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()  Provision for Losses on Lost LPG Cylinders

Management estimates provision for losses on lost LPG cylinders based on the quantities
computed from its internal simulations and computations. The estimated quantities do not
represent the exact quantities of the LPG cylinders but they are assessed based on management’s
assumptions and historical loss experience representing the management’s best estimate of the
quantities of lost cylinders. Management will arrange for the appraisal by an external expert to take
place every other year to obtain confidence in the estimate of the provision amount.

Management has recognized provision for losses on lost LPG cylinders amounting to P24.3 million
in 2018 (see Note 11) while the gain on reversal of cylinder deposits amounted to P91.8 million in
2018 (see Notes 2.10 and 22). There were no similar transaction in 2019.

RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group is exposed to a variety of financial risks in relation to financial instruments. The Group’s
financial assets and liabilities by category are summarized in Note 5. The main types of risks are market
risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Group’s risk management is coordinated with its Parent Company, in close cooperation with the
BOD, and focuses on actively securing the Group’s short to medium-term cash flows by minimizing the
exposure to financial markets.

The Group does not engage in the trading of financial assets for speculative purposes nor does it write
options. The most significant financial risks to which the Group is exposed to are described below and in
the succeeding pages.

4.1 Market Risk

The Group is exposed to market risk through its use of financial instruments and specifically to foreign
currency risk and interest rate risk which result from both its operating, investing and financing activities.

(a) Foreign Currency Risk

Most of the Group’s transactions are carried out in Philippine pesos, its functional currency.
Exposures to currency exchange rates arise from the Group’s sales to a certain customer and, fuel
and tanker importations, which are primarily denominated in U.S. dollars. The liability covering the
fuel importation is covered by letter of credits (LCs) which is subsequently closed to Philippine peso
trusts receipts (TRs). The Group also holds U.S. and Singapore dollar-denominated cash and cash
equivalents. The Group also has trade receivables and payables primarily denominated in
Vietnamese Dong, as a result of the Group’s acquisition of PGV LLC which situated in Vietnam.
Financial instruments that are Indonesian Rupiah denominated are considered immaterial, hence, not
included in the analyses below.

To mitigate the Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk, non-Philippine peso cash flows are
monitored.

Foreign currency-denominated financial assets and financial liabilities, translated into Philippine
pesos at the closing rate follow:

2019 2018
U.S. Singapore Vietnamese u.S. Singapore
Dollar Dollar Dong Dollar Dollar

Financial assets P 6,205,264,630 P 5,988,698 P 165,720,486 P 5,361,837,054 P 5,566,810
Financial liabilites ~ (__15,874,853,970) - (__470,584,602) (_5,253,328,012) (_14,176,750)

Net exposure (P_9,669,589,340) P 5,988,698 (P_304,864,116) P 108,509,042 (P 8,609,940)
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The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the Group’s profit before tax with respect to changes
in Philippine peso against U.S. and Singapore dollar, and Vietnamese Dong exchange rates. The
percentage changes in rates have been determined based on the average market volatility in
exchange rates, using standard deviation, in the previous 12 months at a 99.00% confidence level.

2019 2018
U.S. Singapore Vietnamese u.s. Singapore
Dollar Dollar Dong Dollar Dollar
Reasonably possible
change in rate 12.93% 21.49% 13.28% 11.14% 16.28%
Effect in profit before tax (P 1,250,277,902) P 1,286,971 (P 40,485,955) P 12,087,907 (P 1,401,698)
Effect in equity after tax  ( 875,194,531) 900,880 ( 28,340,168) 8,461,535 (  981,189)

Exposures to foreign exchange rates vary during the year depending on the volume of foreign
currency denominated transactions. Nonetheless, the analysis above is considered to be
representative of the Group’s currency risk.

(b) Interest Rate Risk

The Group’s policy is to minimize interest rate cash flow risk exposures on long-term financing.
Long-term borrowings are therefore usually made at fixed rates. As of December 31, 2019 and
2018, the Group is exposed to changes in market interest rates through its cash and cash
equivalents and certain interest-bearing loans and borrowings which are subject to variable interest
rates (see Notes 6 and 18). All other financial assets and financial liabilities have fixed rates.

Cash in banks are tested on a reasonably possible change of +/-1.40% and +/-1.93% in 2019 and
2018, respectively, for Philippine Peso. Short-term money placements and time deposits are tested
on a reasonably possible change of +/-2.03% and +/-2.28% in 2019 and 2018, respectively. Banks
loans subject to variable interest rates (or repricing) are tested on a reasonably possible change of
+/-0.44% and +/-0.79% for Philippine peso in 2019 and 2018, respectively, and +/-0.66% and
+/-0.96% in 2019 and 2018, respectively for U.S. dollar for both years. These percentages have
been determined based on the average market volatility of interest rates, using standard deviation,
in the previous 12 months estimated at 99.00% level of confidence. The sensitivity analysis is
based on the Group’s financial instruments held at the end of each reporting period, with effect
estimated from the beginning of the year. All other variables are held constant.

The changes in percentages would affect profit or loss before tax by +/-P363.9 million and

+/- P470.5 million for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively, and equity after
tax by +/-P254.7 million and +/-P329.3 million for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018,
respectively.

(c) Other Price Risks

The Group’s market price risk arises from its purchases of fuels. It manages its risk arising from
changes in market prices by monitoring the daily movement of the market price of fuels and to
some extent, using forward and other similar contracts to manage the fluctuation of the fuel price.

The Group is also exposed to price risk arising from the current non-qualifying hedges — forward
contracts entered into by PNX SG. Such instruments are used to mitigate the fluctuations of
expected physical oil sales and purchases contracts. These instruments are fair valued by
third-party brokers/banks using observable market data and other sources. In 2019, fair value of the
open derivative positions recorded within the financial instruments amounted to P311.0 million

(see Note 21). The impact of a ten percent (10%) increase in prices on profit or loss, net of
Singapore statutory tax rate of 17% amounted to P25.8 million in 2019 (nil in 2018).

4.2 Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty may fail to discharge an obligation to the Group. The Group is

exposed to this risk for various financial instruments arising from granting of loans and selling goods and
services to customers including related parties; and placing deposits with banks.
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The Group employs a range of policies and practices to mitigate credit risk. The Group continuously
monitors defaults of customers and other counterparties, identified either individually or by group, and
incorporates this information into its credit risk controls. The Group’s policy is to deal only with
creditworthy counterparties. In addition, for a significant proportion of sales, collaterals such as cash
bonds, standby letter of credits and real estate mortgage are received to mitigate credit risk. Estimates
of fair values are based on the value of collaterals assessed at the time of first dealing with the customer
and are updated and monitored periodically, e.g., annually for real estate properties.

Estimate of the fair value of collateral held against trade and other receivables (excluding due from
related parties) as of December 31 follows:

2019 2018
Standby letter of credits P 590,461,106 P 940,522,926
Cash bond 261,881,695 318,976,639
Real estate mortgage 74,192,730 68,138,850

P__ 926,535,531 P _1.327,638.415

The maximum credit risk exposure of financial assets is the carrying amount of the financial assets as
shown in the consolidated statements of financial position or in the detailed analysis provided in the
notes to the consolidated financial statements, as summarized below.

Notes 2019 2018
Cash and cash equivalents 6 P 9,810,770,115 P 7,889,708,807
Trade and other receivables — net* 7 15,617,098,103 11,363,226,589
Due from related parties - net 29.4 1,986,811 937,904,172
Construction bond** 6,727,753 5,504,822
Restricted deposits 9 54,462,326 52,719,265
Refundable rental deposits 17 323,634,283 289,572,937

P25,814,67 1 P20,538,636.592

*excluding advances to suppliers and advances subject to liquidation
**included as part of Others under Prepayments and Other Current Assets

(a) Cash and Cash Equivalents and Restricted Deposits

The credit risk for cash and cash equivalents and restricted deposits are considered negligible,
since the counterparties are reputable banks with high quality external credit ratings. Included in
the cash and cash equivalents are cash in banks and short-term placements which are insured by
the Philippine Deposit Insurance Corp. up to a maximum coverage of P0.5 million for every
depositor per banking institution.

(b) Trade and Other Receivables and Due from Related Parties

The Group applies simplified approach in measuring ECL which uses a lifetime expected loss
allowance for all Trade and Other Receivables and Due from Related Parties. The Group’s trade
and other receivables and due from related parties are assessed individually or on a per customer
basis.

The Group computes expected losses using internal credit ratings translated to external credit
ratings [i.e. Standard & Poor’s (S&P)] in order to reference/benchmark with published equivalent
external cumulative loss rate. The Group’s definition of Trade and Other Receivables and Due from
Related Parties classification [known as Phoenix Risk Rating (PRR)] and corresponding credit risk
ratings are presented in the succeeding page.
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S&P
Phoenix Risk Description Equivalent
Rating S&P Loss Rate (%)
(PRR) Financial and Business Other Information Rating 2019 2018
Counterparties with both These counterparties do not have BBB 0.13-0.56 0.14 -0.61
PRR 3A very strong financial and a greater-than-normal risk. The
business profiles. Lowest track record of the client in terms
risk of default in the scale. of profit is very good and exhibits
. . highest quality under virtually all
Counterparties with strong economic conditions. Probability BBB 0.13 - 0.56 0.14 - 0.61
PRR 2A financial profile and very of default is quite low and it bears
strong business profile or some degree of stability and
vice versa. substance. However, client may
Counterparties with a strong be susceptible to cyc_l|ca| changes BBB 0.13-0.56 0.14 -0.61
PRR 1A to adequate financial profile snd_ more g:(?(ncbentrat:jon tOf b
and very strong to adequate uSINess risk, by product or by
business profile. market.
Counterparties with a Counterparties whose risk BB 0.57-1.73 0.63 -1.90
PRR 3B sustainable financial profile elements are sufficiently
and adequate business pronounced to withstand normal
profile. business cycles but any
. - prolonged unfavorable economic
Counterparties with an and/or market period would create BB 0.57-1.73 0.63 -1.90
PRR 2B average financial profile and | 51 immediate deterioration
sustainable business profile. beyond acceptable levels.
Counterparties with both Credit exposure is not at risk of B 3.04 - 6.36 3.16 - 6.53
average financial and loss at the moment but
PRR 1B business profile. performance of the client has
weakened and unless present
trends are reversed, could lead to
losses.
Counterparties with an This rating is given to a client B 3.04 - 6.36 17.97 - 22.33
PRR 3C average financial profile and | where repayment of the
adequate business profile. receivable, through normal course ceeie
_ _ of business, may be in jeopardy
Counterparties with a weak due to adverse events. There B 3.04 - 6.36 17.97 —22.33
financial profile and exists the possibility of future
PRR 2C adequate business profile. losses to the institution unless ceere
given closer supervision.
Counterparties with a weak Counterparties credits or portions D 100 100
PRR 1C financial profile and thereof which exhibit more severe
sustainable business profile. | weaknesses. This rating is given
_ . to a counterparties whose
Counterparties with a weak | rgceivables or portions thereof are D 100 100
PRRD financial profile and average | considered uncollectible. The
business profile. collectible amount, with no
Counterparties with both <_:o||atera| or wh.ic_h collateral is of D 100 100
weak financial profleand | 28 e L ool
PRR F business profiles. than to defer even though partial
recovery may be obtained in the
future.
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The credit loss allowance provided as of December 31, 2019 and 2018 are as follows:

December 31, 2019

Trade and Other Receivables

Estimated Gross

S&P Loss Rate Carrying Amount Credit Loss
PRR Rating Range at Default Allowance
PRR 3A BBB 0.13-0.56 P 5,927,361,924 P 11,701,424
PRR 2A BBB 0.13-0.56 993,833,923 1,562,717
PRR 1A BBB 0.13-0.56 2,934,649,883 8,014,488
PRR 3B BB 0.57-1.73 2,504,670,300 13,179,051
PRR 2B BB 0.57-1.73 769,745,228 3,916,005
PRR 1B B 3.04 - 6.36 1,778,924,061 10,477,726
PRR 3C B 3.04 -6.36 574,105,409 22,086,150
PRR 2C B 3.04 - 6.36 211,818,047 7,073,111
PRR 1C/D/F D 100 577,628,510 577,628,510
P_16,272,737,285 P 182
Due From Related Parties
Estimated Gross
S&P Loss Rate Carrying Amount Credit Loss
PRR Rating Range at Default Allowance
PRR 3B BB 0.57 -1.73 P 2,073,627 P 86,816
December 31, 2018
Trade and Other Receivables
Estimated Gross
S&P Loss Rate Carrying Amount Credit Loss
PRR Rating Range at Default Allowance
PRR 3A BBB 0.14 - 0.62 P 87,378,373 P 215,228
PRR 2A BBB 0.14 - 0.62 2,436,112,580 5,789,403
PRR 1A BBB 0.14 - 0.62 3,376,579,304 5,932,107
PRR 3B BB 0.63-1.90 3,228,077,624 21,232,653
PRR 2B BB 0.63-1.90 1,569,274,748 6,774,836
PRR 1B B 3.16 - 6.53 405,322,564 25,020,588
PRR 3C CCcC/C 17.97 — 22.33 68,521,800 13,649,151
PRR 2C CCcC/C 17.97 — 22.33 335,572,541 64,998,979
PRR 1C/D/F D 100 490,783,183 490,783,183
P_11,997,622,717 P__ 634,396,128
Due From Related Parties
Estimated Gross
S&P Loss Rate Carrying Amount Credit Loss
PRR Rating Range at Default Allowance
PRR 3A BBB 0.14 - 0.62 P 61,149,279 P 85,609
PRR 1A BBB 0.14 - 0.62 808,510,976 1,414,100
PRR 3B BB 0.63-1.90 70,152,199 408,573
P 939,812,454 P 1,908,282

(c)

Refundable Rental Deposits

The credit risk for refundable rental deposits is considered negligible as the Group has ongoing lease
agreements with the counterparties and the latter are considered to be with sound financial condition
and sufficient liquidity.
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4.3 Liquidity Risk

The Group manages its liquidity needs by carefully monitoring scheduled debt servicing payments for
long-term financial liabilities as well as cash outflows due in a day-to-day business. Liquidity needs are
monitored in various time bands, on a day-to-day and week-to-week basis, as well as on the basis of a
rolling 30-day projection. Long-term liquidity needs for a 6-month and one-year period are identified
monthly.

The Group maintains cash and cash equivalents to meet its liquidity requirements for up to

60-day periods. Excess cash are invested in time deposits. Funding for long-term liquidity needs is
additionally secured by an adequate amount of committed credit facilities and the ability to sell long-term
financial assets.

As of December 31, 2019, the Group’s financial liabilities (except lease liabilities — see Note 12.2) have
contractual maturities, which are summarized as follows:

Current Non-current
Within 6to 12 1to5 More than
6 months months years 5 years

Interest-bearing loans

and borrowings P30,167,954,167 P9,330,631,443 P13,628,536,145 P -
Trade and other payables

(excluding tax-related

payables) 793,247,218 10,744,441,389 - -
Derivative financial

liabilities 311,019,650 - -
Security deposits - - 100,979,556 -
Customers’ cylinder deposits - - - 440,803,046
Cash bond - - 247,905,839 58,405,556

P31,272,221,035 P20,075,072,832 P13,977,421,540 P__499,2 2

As of December 31, 2018, the Group’s financial liabilities have contractual maturities, which are
summarized as follows:

Current Non-current
Within 6to 12 1to 5 More than
6 months months years 5 years

Interest-bearing loans

and borrowings P21,479,255,558 P6,272,692,441 P11,302,340,399 P4,925,525,000
Trade and other payables

(excluding tax-related

payables) 819,565,247  6,452,331,850 - -
Security deposits - - 266,616,512 -
Customers’ cylinder deposits - - - 276,285,588
Cash bond - - - 56,702,491

P22.298,820.805 P12,725.024.291 P11.568.956.911 P5.258,513.079
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CATEGORIES, FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS AND DISCLOSURES AND OFFSETTING OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
5.1 Carrying Amounts and Fair Values by Category

The carrying amounts and fair values of the categories of financial assets and liabilities presented in the consolidated statements of financial position are
presented below.

2019 2018
Notes Carrying Values Fair Values Carrying Values Fair Values
Financial Assets
Loans and receivables:
Cash and cash equivalents 6 P 9,810,770,115 P 9,810,770,115 P 7,889,708,807 P 7,889,708,807
Trade and other receivables-net* 7 15,617,098,103 15,617,098,103 11,363,226,589 11,363,226,589
Due from related parties 29.4 1,986,811 1,986,811 937,904,172 937,904,172
Construction bond** 10 6,727,753 6,727,753 5,504,822 5,504,822
Restricted deposits 9 54,462,326 54,462,326 52,719,265 52,719,265
Refundable deposits 17 323,634,283 323,634,283 289,572,937 289,572,937
P 25,814,679,391 P_ 25,814,679,391 P 20,538,636,592 P 20,538,636,592
Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities at FVTPL —
Derivative financial liabilities 21 P 311,019,650 P 311,019,650 P - P -
Financial liabilities at amortized cost:
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 18 49,896,188,062 48,324,629,062 39,900,007,450 36,188,613,995
Trade and other payables*** 20 11,537,688,607 11,537,688,607 7,271,897,097 7,271,897,097
Lease liabilities 12 1,250,213,075 1,250,213,075 - -
Customers’ cylinder deposits 22 440,803,046 440,803,046 276,285,588 276,285,588
Security deposits 22 100,979,556 100,979,556 266,616,512 266,616,512
Cash bond deposits 22 306,311,395 306,311,395 56,702,491 56,702,491

P_ 63,843203.391 P_ 62,271,644,391 P__47.771,509,138 P__44,060,115,683

* Excluding advances to suppliers and advances subject to liquidation
** Included as part of Others under Prepayments and Other Current Assets
*** Excluding tax-related payables
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See Notes 2.4 and 2.10 for a description of the accounting policies for each category of financial
instruments. A description of the Group’s risk management objectives and policies for financial
instruments is provided in Note 4.

5.2 Fair Value Hierarchy

In accordance with PFRS 13, Fair Value Measurements, the fair value of financial assets and
financial liabilities and non-financial assets which are measured at fair value on a recurring or
non-recurring basis and those assets and liabilities not measured at fair value but for which fair
value is disclosed in accordance with other relevant PFRS, are categorized into three levels
based on the significance of inputs used to measure the fair value. The fair value hierarchy has
the following levels:

. Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that an
entity can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and,

o Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

The level within which the asset or liability is classified is determined based on the lowest level of
significant input to the fair value measurement.

For purposes of determining the market value at Level 1, a market is regarded as active if quoted
prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing
service, or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market
transactions on an arm’s length basis.

For investments which do not have quoted market price, the fair value is determined by using
generally acceptable pricing models and valuation techniques or by reference to the current market of
another instrument which is substantially the same after taking into account the related credit risk of
counterparties, or is calculated based on the expected cash flows of the underlying net asset base of
the instrument.

When the Group uses valuation technique, it maximizes the use of observable market data where it is
available and relies as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to
determine the fair value of an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in Level 2.
Otherwise, it is included in Level 3.

5.3 Financial Instruments Measurement at Fair Value

In 2019, PNX SG entered into forward contracts which are not traded in active markets. These
contracts have been fair valued using observable forward commodity rates corresponding to the
maturity of the contracts by third party broker or banks. The effects of non-observable inputs are not
significant for forward contracts.

The fair value of derivative financial liabilities amounting to P311.0 million as of December 31, 2019 is
included in Level 2.
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5.4 Fair Value Hierarchy of Instruments Measured at Amortized Cost for which Fair Value is
Disclosed

The table below summarizes the fair value hierarchy of the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities which are not measured at fair value in the consolidated statements of financial position but
for which fair value is disclosed.

2019
Notes Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial Assets
Loans and receivables:
Cash and cash equivalents 6 P 9,810,770,115 P - P - P 9,810,770,115
Trade and other receivables 7 - - 15,617,098,103 15,617,098,103
Due from related parties 29.4 - - 1,986,811 1,986,811
Construction bond 10 - - 6,727,753 6,727,753
Restricted deposits 9 54,462,326 - - 54,462,326
Refundable deposits 17 - - 323,634,283 323,634,283

P _9,865232441 P - P 15,949,446,950 P 25,814,679,391

Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities at amortized cost:
Interest-bearing loans

and other borrowings 18 P - P - P 48,324,629,062 P 48,324,629,062
Trade and other payables 20 - - 11,537,688,607 11,537,688,607
Lease liabilities 12 - - 1,250,213,075 1,250,213,075
Customers’ cylinder deposits 22 - - 440,803,046 440,803,046
Security deposits 22 - - 100,979,556 100,979,556
Cash bond deposits 22 - - 306,311,395 306,311,395
P - P - P 61,960,624,741 P 61,960,624,741
2018
Notes Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial Assets
Loans and receivables:
Cash and cash equivalents 6 P 7,889,708,807 P - P - P 7,889,708,807
Trade and other receivables 7 - - 11,363,226,589 11,363,226,589
Due from related parties 29.4 - - 937,904,172 937,904,172
Construction bond 10 - - 5,504,822 5,504,822
Restricted deposits 9 52,719,265 - - 52,719,265
Refundable deposits 17 - - 289,572,937 289,572,937

P 7942428072 P - P 12,596,208,520 P 20.538,636,592

Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities at amortized cost:
Interest-bearing loans

and other borrowings 18 P - P - P 36,188,613,995 P 36,188,613,995
Trade and other payables 20 - - 7,271,897,097 7,271,897,097
Customers’ cylinder deposits 22 - - 276,285,588 276,285,588
Security deposits 22 - - 266,616,512 266,616,512
Cash bond deposits 22 - - 56,702,491 56,702,491
P - P - P 44,060,115,683 P 44.060,115,683

For financial assets with fair value included in Level 1, management considers that the carrying
amount of this short-term financial instrument approximates their fair values.
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5.5 Fair Value Measurement for Non-financial Assets

The fair values of the Group’s parcels of land, included as part of Property, Plant and Equipment and
Investment Properties accounts, were determined based on the appraisal reports of Asian Appraisal
Company, Inc. and Cuervo Appraisers, Inc., respectively, who are professional and independent
appraisers with appropriate qualifications and recent experience in the valuation of similar properties
in the relevant locations. To some extent, the valuation process was conducted by the appraisers in
discussion with the Group’s management with respect to the determination of the inputs such as the
size, age, and condition of the properties. In estimating the fair value of these properties,
management takes into account the market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by
using the assets in their highest and best use. Based on management assessment, the best use of
the Group’s non-financial assets indicated above is their current use.

The Level 3 fair value of the parcels of land for both recognized under property, plant and equipment
and investment properties was derived using the market comparable approach that reflects the recent
transaction prices for similar properties in nearby locations adjusted for differences in key attributes
such as property size, zoning, and accessibility. The most significant input into this valuation
approach is the price per square meter; hence, the higher the price per square meter, the higher the
fair value.

These properties were revalued in 2018 due to the change in the Group’s accounting policy.
The reconciliation of the carrying amount of investment properties is presented in Note 16.

5.6 Offsetting of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

The following financial assets with net amounts presented in the consolidated statements of financial
position are subject to offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangements and similar agreements:

December 31, 2019

Gross amounts recognized in the Related amounts not set-off in the
consolidated statement Net amount consolidated statement
of financial position presented in of financial position
the consolidated
Financial statement of
liabilities financial Financial Cash collateral
Financial assets set-off position instruments received Net amount
Trade and other
receivables* P 15,617,098,103 P - P15,617,098,103 P - (P 261,881,695) P 15,355,216,408
Derivative financial
asset 1,707,218  ( 1,707,218) - - - -
Restricted deposits 54,462,326 - 54,462,326 ( 54,462,326) - -
Total P _15,673,267,647 (P__1,707,218) P15,671,560,429 (B__54.,462,326) (P__261,881,695) P_15,355,216,408
December 31, 2018
Gross amounts recognized in the Related amounts not set-off in the
consolidated statement Net amount consolidated statement
of financial position presented in of financial position
the consolidated
Financial statement of
liabilities financial Financial Cash collateral
Financial assets set-off position instruments received Net amount
Trade and other
receivables* P 11,498,383,599 (P 135,157,010) P 11,363,226,589 P - P 318,976,639) P 11,044,249,950
Restricted deposits 52,719,265 - 52,719,265 ( 52,719,265 ) - -

Total P_11,551,102,864 (P_135,157,010) P11,415,945,854 (P___52,719,265) (P 318,976,639) P 11,044,249,950

* Excluding advances to suppliers and advances subject to liquidation
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The following financial liabilities with net amounts presented in the consolidated statements of
financial position are subject to offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangements and similar

agreements:
December 31, 2019
Gross amounts recognized in the Related amounts not set-off in the
consolidated statement Net amount consolidated statement
of financial position presented in of financial position
the consolidated
Financial statement of
Financial assets financial Financial Cash collateral
liabilities set-off position instruments received Net amount
Interest-bearing loans
and borrowings P 49,896,188,062 P - P 49,896,188,062 (P 54,462,326 ) P - P 49,841,725,736
Derivative financial
liabilities 312,726,868 ( 1,707,218 ) 311,019,650 (311,019,650 ) - -
Security deposits 100,979,556 - 100,979,556 - ( 100,979,556 ) -
Cash bond deposits 306,311,395 - 306,311,395 - ( 306,311,395 ) -
Total P _50,616,205,881 (P___ 1,707,218 ) P50,614,498,663 (P_365,481,976 ) (P___407,290,951 ) P_49,841,725,736

December 31, 2018

Gross amounts recognized in the Related amounts not set-off in the
consolidated statement Net amount consolidated statement
of financial position presented in of financial position
the consolidated
Financial statement of
Financial assets financial Financial Cash collateral
liabilities set-off position instruments received Net amount
Interest-bearing loans
and borrowings P 39,900,007,450 P - P 39,900,007,450 (P 52,719,265) P - P 39,847,288,185
Trade and other
payables ** 7,569,996,262 ( 135,157,010)  7,434,839,252 - - 7,434,839,252
Security deposits 266,616,512 - 266,616,512 - ( 266,616,512 ) -
Cash bond deposits 56,702,491 - 56,702,491 - ( 56,702,491 ) -
Total P_47,793,322,715 (P__135,157,010) P47,658,165,705 (P__ 52,719,265 ) (P___323,319,003 ) P_47,282,127,437

** Excluding tax-related payables

For financial assets and liabilities subject to enforceable master netting arrangements or similar
arrangements presented above, each agreement between the Group and counterparties allows for net
settlement of the relevant financial assets and liabilities when both elect to settle on a net basis. In the
absence of such an election, financial assets and liabilities will be settled on a gross basis, however,
each party to the master netting agreement or similar agreement will have the option to settle all such
amounts on a net basis in the event of default of the other party.

6. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents include the following components as of December 31:

2019 2018
Cash in banks P 7,618,074,475 P 7,728,117,276
Cash on hand 4,299,652 4,082,617
Revolving fund 20,663,842 16,968,918
Short-term placements 2,167,732,146 140,539,996

P 9,810,770,115 P_7,889.708,807
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Cash in banks generally earn interest based on daily bank deposit rates ranging from

0.10% to 2.50% per annum in all years presented. Short-term placements are made for varying
periods ranging from 7 to 90 days and earn effective interest ranging from 0.25% to 1.00% per annum
in all years presented. Interest income earned amounted to P30.0 million, P27.2 million and

P15.7 million in 2019, 2018 and 2017, respectively, and is included as part of Finance income under
Other Charges (Income) in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income (see Note 25.2).

The balances of cash in banks as of December 31, 2019 and 2018 exclude restricted time deposits
totalling to P54.5 million and P52.7 million, respectively, which are shown as Restricted Deposits
account (see Note 9) in the consolidated statements of financial position. Such amounts are not
available for the general use of the Group under the trust receipt agreements (see Notes 9 and 18.1).

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

This account is composed of the following:

Note 2019 2018
Trade receivables:
Third parties P 6,658,095,101 P 8,367,158,668
Related parties 29.1 4,207,636,773 1,851,415,359

10,865,731,874 10,218,574,027

Advances to suppliers:

Third parties 244,674,156 925,791,098
Related parties 29.2,29.3 30,811,857 2,692,341,658
275,486,013 3,618,132,756

Non-trade receivables:

Third parties 2,588,845,585 698,518,436
Related parties 29.6, 29.9, 29.10 2,795,715,925 1,045,301,862
5,384,561,510 1,743,820,298

Advances subject to liquidation 80,549,850 49,355,359
Other receivables 22,443,901 35,228,392

16,628,773,148 15,665,110,832
Allowance for impairment ( 655,639,182) ( 634,396,128)

P15973,133,966 P 15.030.714,704

Trade and other receivables generally do not bear any interest. All receivables are subject to credit
risk (see Note 4.2).

PLPI entered into deferred payment agreement (DPA) with customers that are unable to pay their due
and outstanding payable to PLPI. PLPI agreed to collect, inclusive of interest, through instalments as
stated in the terms and conditions of the agreement. As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, the
balances of receivables under DPA amounted to P105.8 million and P47.5 million, respectively, and
is presented as part of Trade Receivables — Third Parties in the Trade and Other Receivables
account in the 2019 and 2018 consolidated statements of financial position. There are no non-current
trade receivables as of those years.
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The parties have agreed to enter into the DPA for the full and final settlement of the debt subject to
the following terms and conditions enumerated below:

i)

ii)

Customer promises to pay PLPI through monthly instalment payment and by way of
post-dated checks;

The customer shall undertake to make full and final settlement of the remaining outstanding
amount of the debt in the event that the customer obtains any financial assistance from any
banks and/or financial institutions to finance its business operation. The entire remaining
outstanding amount of the debt shall become immediately due without further demand, formal or
informal advice in the event any of the monthly instalments are not received by the PLPI on or
before the due date;

Should PLPI be compelled to institute extra-judicial foreclosure of the collateral and/or judicial
actions to foreclose or collect unpaid amounts, the customer shall be liable for the costs and fees
incurred by PLPI in the preparation, monitoring and enforcement of the DPA, as well as costs and
fees incurred by the PLPI on account filing and prosecution and enforcement of any judicial
foreclosures, extra-judicial foreclosures, and collection suits; and,

The customer further agrees that in the event it fails to pay any of the monthly instalments, then
PLPI shall be at liberty to recover the same through the process of court, in which event all costs
and expenses incurred by the PLPI including the legal costs on a solicitor and client basis shall
be solely borne by them.

Impairment losses amounting to P29.9 million, P68.5 million and P50.3 million in 2019, 2018 and 2017,
respectively, are presented as part of Selling and Administrative Expenses in the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income (see Note 24). Recovery of bad debts are presented as part of
Others under Other Income (Charges) in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income.

A reconciliation of the allowance for impairment at the beginning and end of 2019 and 2018 is shown
below.

Notes 2019 2018

Balance at beginning of year,

as previously reported P 634,396,128 P 585,853,177
Business combination 14 2,006,443 -
Impairment loss for the year 24 29,852,136 68,465,111
Written-off during the year ( 6,853,066) ( 17,153,577)
Recovery of bad debts ( 3,762,459) ( 2,768,583)
Balance at end of year 4.2 P 655,639,182 P 634,396,128

The written-off accounts are not subject to any enforcement activity, nor the Group expects any
collections from these accounts.
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8. INVENTORIES

The breakdown of inventories are as follows:

Note 2019 2018
At cost:
Fuels and by-products P11,007,891,911 P 10,303,317,190
Lubricants 302,533,668 427,496,011
Merchandise 192,832,067 185,837,405
LPG 62,167,181 157,495,582
Others 114,192,078 61,348,098
23.2 P 11,679,61 P 11,135,494,286

Under the terms of agreements covering the liabilities under trust receipts, inventories with carrying
amount of P4,554.2 million and P3,045.6 million as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively, have
been released to the Group in trust for by the bank. The Group is accountable to the bank for the
trusted inventories or their sales proceeds (see Note 18.1).

There were no inventory write-down in 2019 and 2018.

An analysis of the cost of inventories included in the cost of fuels, lubricants, LPG and merchandise sold
in each year is presented in Note 23.2.

9. RESTRICTED DEPOSITS

This account pertains to the time deposits that are used as securities for various short-term credit
facilities and trust receipts covered by hold-out agreements (see Notes 6 and 18.1) amounting to
P54.4 million and P52.7 million as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively. As such, these are
restricted as to withdrawals. The proceeds from availment of the banking credit facilities and trust
receipts by the Group are used for the purpose of purchasing fuel and lubricant supplies. Interest rates
for this type of deposit range from 0.80% to 3.68% per annum for 2019, 2018 and 2017. Interest
income earned from restricted deposits amounted to P2.2 million, P1.4 million and P0.1 million in 2019,
2018 and 2017, respectively, and is included as part of Finance Income in the consolidated statements
of comprehensive income (see Note 25.2).

10. PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

The composition of this account as of December 31 is shown below.

Note 2019 2018
Prepayments 29.3 P 1,284,786,937 P 388,805,646
Creditable withholding tax 327,562,434 124,698,086
Supplies 251,942,783 165,373,021
Others 67,244,244 16,822,026

P1,931,536,398 P __695,698.779
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The gross carrying amounts and accumulated depreciation and amortization of property, plant and equipment at the beginning and end of 2019 and 2018 are shown below.

Buildings, Gasoline
Depot, Leasehold and LPG Office Hauling Transportation Construction
Plant and and Land Station LPG Furniture and and Heavy and Other in
Pier Facilities Improvements Equipment Cylinders Equipment Equipment Equipment Vessel Land Progress Total
December 31, 2019
Cost or revalued amount P 12,181,134,379 P 496,662,161 P 5,457,947,630 P 2,667,783,519 P 612,216,937 P 745,062,041 P 109,570,369 P 640,281,212 P 4,175,292,743 P 8,145,925,569 P 35,231,876,560
Accumulated depreciation,
amortization and
impairment ( 3,390,613.448) ( 299,091,098) ( 2,219,054,981) ( 946,000,750) ( 315,980,888) ( 553,117,590) ( 84,496,535) ( 44,656,370) - - ( 7,853,011,660)

Net carrying amount

December 31, 2018

P___8,790,520,931 P___197,571,063 P_3,238,892,649 P _1.721,782,769 P__ 296,236,049 P __191,944451 P __ 25,073,834 P__ 595,624,842 P _4,175292,743 P __8.145,925,569 P_27,378,864.900

Cost or revalued amount P 8,755,732,757 P 559,063,602 P 4,916,628,325 P 2,065,608,639 P 504,464,581 P 739,542684 P 71,943,639 P - P 3,836,203,184 P 3,323,038,453 P 24,772,225,864
Accumulated depreciation,

amortization and

impairment ( 2,202,616,943) ( 269,784.,374) ( 1,886,469,891) ( 860,115,301) ( 259,737,242) ( 519,693,346) ( 57,814,262) - - - (___6,056,231,359)
Net carrying amount P 6,553,115,814 P 289,279,228 P 3,030,158,434 P_1,205493,338 P 244,727,339 P 219,849,338 P__ 14,129,377 P - P_ 3,836,203,184 P__ 3,323,038,453 P_18,715,994,505
January 1, 2018
Cost P 7,938,264,335 P 278,440,237 P 4,307,161,317 P 1,725,126,080 P 176,628,000 P 723,956,478 P 60,325,908 P - P 2,431,765,273 P 761,915,936 P 18,403,583,564
Accumulated depreciation,

amortization, and

impairment ( 1,853,643,912) ( 172,468,591) (__1.547,282,631) ( 776,460,696 ) ( 106,368,564) ( 491,547,359) ( 55,832,003) - - - ( 5,003,603,756)
Net carrying amount P 6,084,620,423 P 105,971,646 P_2,759,878,686 P 948,665,384 P 70,259,436 P__ 232,409,119 P 4,493,905 P - P 2431765273 P 761,915,936 P_13,399,979,808
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A reconciliation of the carrying amounts at the beginning and end of 2019 and 2018 of property, plant and equipment is shown below and in the succeeding page.

Balance at January 1, 2019
net of accumulated
depreciation and amortization
Business combination
- cost (see Note 1.4)
Business combination
- accumulated depreciation
(see Note 1.4)
Additions
Revaluation increments
Transfers (see Notes 13 and 16)
Cost of asset disposed
Accumulated depreciation of
asset disposed
Depreciation and amortization
charges for the year
Reclassification
Translation adjustment

Balance at December 31, 2019
net of accumulated
depreciation and amortization

Buildings, Gasoline
Depot, Leasehold and LPG Office Hauling Transportation Construction
Plant and and Land Station LPG Furniture and and Heavy and Other in
Pier Facilities _Improvements Equipment Cylinders Equipment Equipment Equipment Vessel Land Progress Total
P 6,5653,115,814 P 289,279,228 P 3,030,158,434 P 1,205,493,338 P 244,727,339 P 219,849,338 P 14,129,377 P - P 3,836,203,184 P  3,323,038,453 P18,715,994,505
1,678,969,767 - - - 945,208 - 36,967,761 - - - 1,716,882,736
( 741,705,185) - - - 892,523) - 21,974,135) - - - 764,571,843)
285,906,315 12,809,729 121,868,306 602,174,880 118,626,421 121,536,635 658,969 659,106,000 278,714,587 6,751,688,501 8,953,090,343
- - - - - - - - 145,379,972 - 145,379,972
1,461,824,869 87,457 444,898,242 - 234,161 2,270,673 - - ( 85,005,000) (  1,910,278,156) ( 85,967,754)
( 3,617,682) (  74,376,474) ( 21,719,057 ) - ( 12,948,513) ( 136,126,180) - - - - ( 248,787,906)
3,591,822 22,788,852 38,381,073 - 10,706,062 89,231,178 - - - - 164,698,987
(  449,883,142) (  52,095,576) ( 370,966,163 ) ( 85,885,449) ( 66,057,185) ( 122,655,422) ( 4,708,138) ( 44,656,370) - - (- 1,196,907,445)
4,028,186 - ( 3,728,186 ) - 385,000 17,838,229 - - - ( 18,523,229) -
( 1,709.,833) ( 922,153) - - 510,079 - - 18,824,788) - - ( 20,946,695)




Balance at January 1, 2018
net of accumulated
depreciation and amortization
Business combination
- cost (see Note 1.4)
Business combination
- accumulated depreciation
(see Note 1.4)
Additions
Revaluation increments
Transfers (see Note 13)
Cost of asset disposed
Accumulated depreciation of
asset disposed
Depreciation and amortization
charges for the year
Provision for loss on lost cylinders
Translation adjustment

Balance at December 31, 2018
net of accumulated
depreciation and amortization
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Buildings, Gasoline
Depot, Leasehold and LPG Office Hauling Transportation Construction
Plant and and Land Station LPG Furniture and and Heavy and Other in
Pier Facilities Improvements Equipment Cylinders Equipment Equipment Equipment Land Progress Total
P 6,084,620,423 P 105,971,646 P2,759,878,686 P 948,665,384 P 70,259,436 P 232,409,119 P 4,493,905 P 2,431,765,273 P 761,915,936 P 13,399,979,808
- 209,860,851 - - 330,791,968 - 4,361,691 - 5,176,388 550,190,898
- ( 65,849,711) - - 111,527,344) - ( 2,673,486) - - 180,050,541)
1,038,828,696 60,964,354 96,270,515 393,588,977 6,418,615 33,809,407 11,494,707 184,591,868 2,953,396,335 4,779,363,474
- - - - - - - 1,219,846,043 - 1,219,846,043
(  221,360,274) 27,229,763 585,048,375 47,135,953) 2,542,575 44,072,911 - - ( 397,450,206) ( 7,052,809)
- ( 17,680,364) ( 71,851,882) ( 5,970,465) ( 12,195,514) ( 62,296,112) ( 4,238,667) - - ( 174,233,004)
- 4,709,356 66,892,056 3,942,624 10,550,372 62,296,112 4,230,176 - - 152,620,696
( 348,973,031) ( 36,175,428) (  406,079,316) ( 63,306,743) ( 52,391,706) ( 90,442,099) ( 3,5638,949) - - ( 1,000,907,272)
- - - ( 24,290,486) - - - - - ( 24,290,486)
- 248,761 - - 278,937 - - - - 527,698
P 6.553,115,814 P 289,279,228 P3,030,158,434 P 1,205,493,338 P_244,727,339 P__ 219,849,338 P 14,129,377 P 3,836,203,184  P3,323,038,453 P _18,715,994,505
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11.1 Borrowing Costs

Construction in progress includes accumulated costs incurred on the various depot facilities and retail
stations being constructed as part of the Group’s expansion program, including capitalized borrowing
costs of P695.7 million, P261.6 million and P19.7 million in 2019, 2018 and 2017, respectively

(see Note 18.5), representing the actual borrowing costs incurred on loans obtained to fund the
construction of depot facilities and retail stations. The average capitalization rate used was 8.50% in
both 2019 and 2018.

11.2 Depreciation and Amortization

The Group retired in its books fully-depreciated transportation equipment with a total cost of P39.5 million
and P21.6 million in 2019 and 2018, respectively. As of December 2019 and 2018, the cost of
fully-depreciated assets that are still being used in the Group’s operations amounted to P1,520.0 million
and P987.4 million, respectively.

The amount of depreciation and amortization is allocated as follows:

Notes 2019 2018 2017
Cost of sales
and services 23.2 P 65,183,757 P 63,306,743 P 23,964,493
Selling and
administrative
expenses 1,131,723,688 937,600,529 796,288,042

24 P_1,196,907,445 P 1,000,907,272 P 820,252,535

11.3 Fair Value of Land

The Group’s parcels of land are stated at their revalued amounts as of December 31, 2019 and 2018,
being the fair value at December 31, 2019 and 2018, the date of appraisal reports, less any subsequent
impairment losses. The revaluation surplus, net of applicable deferred income taxes, is presented as
part of the Revaluation Reserves account in the equity section of the 2019 and 2018 consolidated
statement of financial position.

The information on the fair value measurement and disclosures related to the revalued parcels of land
are presented in Note 5.5.

If the parcels of land were carried at cost model as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, the cost would be
P2,891.0 million and P2,616.4 million, respectively.

12. LEASES

The Group has leases for land where stations are built, store premises, office and warehouse. With
the exception of short-term leases and leases of low-value underlying assets, each lease is reflected
in the consolidated statement of financial position as a right-of-use asset and a lease liability.

Each lease generally imposes a restriction that, unless there is a contractual right for the Group to
sublet the asset to another party, the right-of-use asset can only be used by the Group. Leases are
either non-cancellable or may only be cancelled by incurring a substantive termination fee. Some
leases contain an option to purchase the underlying lease asset outright at the end of the lease, or to
extend the lease for a further term. The Group is prohibited from selling or pledging the underlying
leased assets as security. For leases over store premises, warehouses and offices, the Group must
keep those properties in a good state of repair and return the properties in their original condition at
the end of the lease. Further, the Group must insure the leased assets and incur maintenance fees
on such items in accordance with the lease contracts.
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The table below describes the nature of the Group’s leasing activities by type of right-of-use asset
recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Land Vessel Office Warehouse Store Premises

Number of right-of-use assets leased 60 1 1 1 34
Range of remaining term 5 to 20 years 1.4 years 4 years 12 years 1to 14 years
Average remaining lease term 15 years 1.4 years 4 years 12 years 2.7 years
Number of leases

with extension options - 1 1 - -
Number of leases

with options to purchase 60 - - 1 -
Number of leases

with termination options 60 - - 1 -

12.1 Right-of-use Assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets as at December 31, 2019 and the
movements during the period are shown below.

Store
Note Land Vessel Office Warehouse Premises Total

Balance at

beginning

of year P 731,258,664 P - P - P 54,362,449 P 131,781,933 P 917,403,046
Additions - 160,865,014 38,511,700 - 203,714,208 403,090,922
Depreciation and

amortization 24 ( 56,138,590) (___58,445,602) ( 3,775,657) ( 4,530,204) ( 54,877,771) (__177,767,824)
Balance at the end

of year P_675120,074 P 102,419,412 P__ 34,736,043 P__ 49,832,245 P 280,618,370 P1,142,726,144

12.2 Lease Liabilities

Lease liabilities are presented in the consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31,
2019 as follows:

Current P 153,360,799
Non-current 1,096,852,276
P_1,250,213,075

Additional information on the lease liabilities and amounts in respect of possible future lease extension
options not recognized as a liability are as follows:

Store
Land Vessel Office Warehouse Premises Total

Lease liabilities P 763,540,488 P 104,324,743 P 35,321,355 P 51,533,976 P 295492513 P 1,250,213,075
Number of leases with an

extension option that is

not considered

reasonably certain

of exercise - - 1 - -
Additional lease liabilities

that would be incurred

were it to become

reasonably certain that

the extension option

would be exercised P - P 130,456,106 P - P - P - P 130,456,106

The use of extension and termination options gives the Group added flexibility in the event it
has identified more suitable premises in terms of cost and/or location or determined that it is
advantageous to remain in a location beyond the original lease term. An option is only
exercised when consistent with the Group’s regional markets strategy and the economic
benefits of exercising the option exceeds the expected overall cost.
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The Group has pre-termination options on leases of land and warehouse. The termination is
at the option of the Group without any need of judicial action. The Group is not subject to any
penalties, should the Group exercise pre-termination of the lease.

As at December 31, 2019, the Group is not committed to leases which had not commenced.

The undiscounted maturity analysis of lease liabilities at December 31, 2019 is as follows :

Within 1t02 2t03 3to4 4t05 5t0 10 10to 20
1 year years years years years years years Total

Lease

payments P 236,158,942 P 189,678,175 P 143,059,687 P 141,063,606 P 126,927,824 P 645,284,061 P 448,568,943 P 1,930,741,238
Finance

charges (__88,071,133)(__81,207,710)(___75,000,812)(___69,903,931)(__64,788,303)(__238,731,166)(___62,825,108) (__680,528,163)

Net present
values P 148,087,809 P 108,470,465 P 68,058,875 P 71,159,675 P 62,139,521 P 406,552,895 P 385,743,835 P 1,250,213,075

12.3 Lease Payments Not Recognized as Liabilities

The Group has elected not to recognize a lease liability for short-term leases or for leases of
value assets. Payments made under such leases are expensed on a straight-line basis.

The expenses relating to short-term leases and low-value assets amounted to P639.7 million
P7.2 million, respectively, and are presented as part of Rent under Selling and administrative
expenses in the 2019 consolidated statement of comprehensive income (see Note 24).

At December 31, 2019, the Group is committed to short-term leases, and the total commitme
that date is P367.1 million.

12.4 Additional Profit or Loss and Cash Flow Information

low

and

nt at

The total cash outflow in respect of leases amounted to P203.6 million in 2019. Interest expense in
relation to lease liabilities amounted to P81.0 million and is presented as part of Finance costs under
Other charges (income) in the 2019 consolidated statement of comprehensive income (see Note 25.1).

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The gross carrying amounts and accumulated amortization of intangible assets at the beginning and

end of 2019 and 2018 are shown below.

Computer Software
Basketball Store Software Development
Franchise Franchise Licenses Cost Others Total
December 31, 2019
Cost P 176,861,660 P 42,028,644 P 261,155,875 P 73,180,177 P 1,585,143 P 554,811,499
Accumulated
amortization - ( 23,566,961) | 193.260.263) (. 27,598.071) ( 108.288) (. 244.533,583)
Net carrying amount P 176,861,660 P 18,461,683 P 67,895,612 P 45,582,106 P 1,476,855 P 310,277,916
December 31, 2018
Cost P 176,861,660 P 42,028,644 P 244,288,416 P 47,571,271 P 1,334,093 P 512,084,084
Accumulated
amortization - ( 19,675.619) ( 150,259,211) ( 13,986,616) ( 108,288) (. 184,029,734)
Net carrying amount P 176,861,660 P 22,353,025 P 94,029,205 P 33,584,655 P 1,225805 P 328,054,350
January 1, 2018
Cost P 176,861,660 P - P 216,578,945 P 9,638,891 P 1,262,393 P 404,341,889
Accumulated
amortization - - ( 101,764,923) ( 7.118.724) - ( 108.883,647)
Net carrying amount P 176,861,660 P - P 114,814,022 P 2,520,167 P 1,262,393 P 295,458,242




-53-

A reconciliation of the carrying amounts of intangible assets at the beginning and end of 2019

and 2018 are shown below.

Computer Software
Basketball Store Software Development
Franchise Franchise Licenses Cost Others Total
Balance at
January 1, 2019,
net of accumulated
amortization P 176,861,660 22,353,025 P 94,029,205 P 33,584,655 P 1,225,805 P 328,054,350
Additions - - 17,404,689 25,676,946 251,050 43,332,685
Transfers from
property, plant, and
equipment (see Note 11) - - 962,754 - 962,754
Amortization expense
for the year - 3,891,342) ( 43,001,052)  ( 14,642,249) - 61,534,643)
Reclassification/
adjustment - ( 537,230) - - 537,230)
Balance at
December 31, 2019,
Net of accumulated
amortization P 176,861,660 18,461,683 P 67,895,612 P 45,582,106 P 1,476,855 P 310,277,916
Balance at
January 1, 2018,
net of accumulated
amortization P 176,861,660 - P 114,814,022 P 2,520,167 P 1,262,393 P 295,458,242
Business combination
-cost (see Note 1.4) - 41,078,000 - 402,438 - 41,480,438
Business combination
-accumulated
amortization - 19,675,619) - ( 328,499) - 20,004,118)
Additions - 950,644 26,563,038 30,477,133 71,700 58,062,515
Transfers from
property, plant, and
equipment (see Note 11) - - 7,052,809 7,052,809
Amortization expense
for the year - ( 48,494,288)  ( 6,539,393) ( 108,288) 55,141,969)
Reclassification/
adjustment - 1,146,433 - - 1,146,433
Balance at
December 31, 2018,
Net of accumulated
amortization P 76,861,66( 22,353,025 P 94,029,205 P 33,584,655 P 1,225,805 P 328,054,350

Store franchise was acquired as a result of business combination in 2018 [see Notes 1.4(b) and 33.5].

14. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES

14.1 Joint Venture of the Parent Company

The Parent Company has entered into a joint venture (JV) agreement with TIPCO Asphalt Public
Company Limited (TIPCO Asphalt) and certain individual to set-up and incorporate a JV company —

Phoenix Asphalt Philippines, Inc. (PAPI). The JV company — PAPI was incorporated on
March 23, 2018 primarily to import, store, manufacture, sell, market, distribute bitumen,

bitumen-related products and such other by-products of crude oil and such other petroleum products
including the operation of terminals and depots. PAPI started commercial operations in 2019.

Under the JV agreement, PAPI’'s authorized share capital is P275.0 million divided into 275.0 million
shares with par value of P1 per share. The Parent Company owns P110.0 million shares or 40.00%
of the outstanding capital stock of PAPI. The JV has no restrictions as to transfer of funds in the
forms of cash dividend, or to pay advances made by PAPI. Moreover, the Parent Company shall be
responsible to enter into a lease agreement for land identified as part of a certain industrial park in
Batangas for the construction of terminal at fair rental value, and to cause to provide a minimum of
20 to 30 years’ access rights to the oil, gas and chemical jetty for receiving and importing bulk
bitumen cargo and other rights necessary for the construction and operations of terminal.
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14.2 JVs of PPMI

In 2019, PPMI entered into various JV agreements with certain individuals for the management and
operation of companies which are primarily established to operate petroleum service stations in
certain areas in the Philippines. PPMI does not have significant control of the entities and has no
significant commitments relating to the companies.

Presented below are the companies, percentage of interest and amounts of additional investments of
PPMI in 2019.

Percentage Amount of

Companies of interest Investment
Top Concord Quality Petroleum Corp. (TCQPC) 49.00% P 1,394,397
CJI Fuels Corp. (CJI) 49.00% 7,443,738
Firebird Evzon Fuels Corp. (FEFC) 49.00% 2,625,003
Zae Falco Energy Corp. (ZFEC) 49.00% 4,009,692
Eastan Prime Development Corporation (EPDC) 49.00% 18,500,000

Total amount of investment in joint venture P 72

In 2019, PPMI infused additional investment of P926.8 million into PSPC to acquire a portion of the
increase in capital stock of PSPC. The increase in capital stock of PSPC was approved by SEC on
December 17, 2019.

PPMI owns 162.9 million shares or 49% of the outstanding capital stock in 2019, and 30.6 million
shares or 51.00% of the outstanding capital stock in 2018, but does not have significant control on the
entity in both years [see Note 3.1(i)]. PPMI has no significant commitments relating to PSPC.

In 2018, PPMI entered into an agreement with Per Petroleum Corporation for the operation and
management of PPMI retail network including collateral businesses that may complement the
operation or the retail network in the whole of the Bicol Region. PSPC was incorporated and
registered with the SEC on June 1, 2018. The primary purpose of this company is to buy and sell
refined liquefied petroleum gas, various kinds of lubricants, car care products and to operate, manage
and carry out gasoline retail stations, convenience store and other non-fuel related businesses.

PPMI entered into a JV agreement in 2018 with certain individuals for the management and operation
of Galaxi Petroleum Fuel, Inc. (Galaxi). Galaxi was primarily established to sell petroleum products.
PPMI owns P5.0 million worth of shares or 51.00% of the outstanding capital stock, but does not have
significant control of the entity [see Note 3.1(i)]. PPMI has no significant commitments relating to
Galaxi.

14.3 JVs Financial Information and Reconciliation to Carrying Amount of Investments

Presented below are the financial information of the Group’s joint ventures and the reconciliation to the
carrying amount of the investments in JV as of December 31, 2019:

Total Equity Share
Total Total Total Total other Net Percentage in net income
Joint current non-current current non-current Total comprehensive income of (loss) during
Ventures assets assets liabilities liabilities revenues income (loss) ownership the year
PAPI P 101,965,227 P 23,370,986 P 34,055,096 P - 122,419,720 P P 1,079,738 40% P 431,895
PSPC 557,830,828 1,236,350,601 690,277,622 - 1,617,647,406 ( 25,831,003) 49% ( 12,657,191)
Galaxi 172,386,078 68,798,140 153,847,098 2,099,956 2,036,169,668 58,462,239 51% 29,815,742
CJI 35,384,570 54,084 1,151,738 - 1,353,406 - ( 126,669) 49% ( 62,068)
TCQPC 19,588,588 1,749,339 2,476,469 - 1,902,515 199,273 49% 97,644
ZFEC 29,775,193 6,466,009 13,708,946 10,000 21,762,842 ( 2,157,838) 49% ( 1,057,340)
EPDC 7,937,663 17,681,512 2,826,392 - 3,076,461 ( 119,723) 49% ( 58,664)
FEFC 15,000,003 - - - - 49% -
Total equity share in
net income during the year 16,510,018
Carrying value as of January 1, 2019 455,436,370
Additional investment during the year 960,763,248

Carrying Value as of December 31, 2019 P 1,432,709,636



15.

-55.-

Presented below are the financial information of the Group’s joint ventures and the reconciliation to the
carrying amount of the investments in JV as of December 31, 2018:

Total Equity Share

Total Total Total Total other Net Percentage  in netincome

Joint current non-current current non-current Total comprehensive income of (loss) during

Ventures assets assets liabilities liabilities revenues income (loss) ownership the year
PAPI P 275,278,082 P 8,786,996 P 10,613,773 P - P 6,828,601 P - (P 1,124,499) 40.00% P 449,800)
PSPC 67,459,164 - 7,988,212 - - ( 529,048) 51.00% ( 269,814)
Galaxi 172,295,310 68,143,118 152,326,905 1,756,000 398,627,902 - 15,807,567 51.00% 8,061,859
Total equity share in

net income during the year 7,342,245
Total acquisition costs 448,094,125
Carrying Value as of December 31, 2018 P 455,436,370

As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, no dividends were received from the joint ventures. In addition,
there are no share of contingent liabilities for all of the JVs. As of December 31, 2019 and 2018,
management believes that the investments in joint ventures are not impaired.

GOODWILL

Goodwill represents the excess of acquisition cost over the Group’s share in the fair value of identifiable
net assets of the acquired subsidiaries at the date of the acquisition and relates mainly to business
synergy for economies of scale and scope. The movements of this account are presented below.

Note 2019 2018
Balance at beginning of year
— net of allowance for impairment P 4,418,842,831 P 3,990,666,606
Additions due to business
combinations 1.4 213,554,587 428,176,225
Balance at end of year
— net of allowance for impairment P 4,632,397,418 P 4,418,842,831

Goodwill is subject to annual impairment testing and whenever there is an indication of impairment.
In 2013, the Parent Company has assessed that the goodwill pertaining with PGMI is impaired; hence,
full impairment loss amounting to P1.3 million was recognized.

The Group tests whether goodwill is impaired on an annual basis. The recoverable amount of the cash
generating units [identified as PLPI, PGV LLC (LPG), PFM (CVS) and AAI Group (Digital platform)] was
determined based on value-in-use calculations, which require the use of assumptions. The calculations
use cash flow projections based on budgets approved by the management covering a five-year period
with an assumed terminal growth rate of 1.2% to 4.0% and is based on the discount rate of weighted
average cost of capital of 12.0%. The growth rates reflect the long-term growth rates for the industries of
the trading segment.

Gooduwill recognized is allocated to the trading segment of the Group. Management'’s key assumptions
in assessment of goodwill impairment include stable profit margins in the cash flow projections.
Budgeted earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization (EBITDA) were based on
expectations of future outcomes taking into account past experience of five years, adjusted for
anticipated revenue growth. It is also further assumed that revenues coming from sales volume and
sales prices would grow at a constant margin above forecast inflation over the next five years. Based
on these, the estimated recoverable amount of each of the cash generating units exceeded its carrying
amount.
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The carrying values of goodwill for each of the cash-generating units are presented below.

2019 2018
PLPI P 3,980,444,757 P 3,980,444,757
PFM 14 273,130,868 273,130,868
AAI Group 14 155,045,359 155,045,359
PGV LLC 14 213,554,587 -
Others 10,221,847 10,221,847
Total P_4,632,397,418 P 4.418.842.831

Based on these analyses, management has assessed that no impairment of goodwill is required to be
recognized in 2019 and 2018.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group’s investment properties consist of several parcels of land and lot improvements, which are
held for investment purposes only. Rental income from investment property amounted to P20.2 million in
2019, P1.8 million in 2018 and P1.1 million in 2017 are presented as part of Rent Income in the
consolidated statements of comprehensive income.

Related real property taxes amounted to P0.7 million, P0.7 million and P0.2 million was recognized as a
related expense in 2019, 2018 and 2017, respectively, and are presented as part of Taxes and
Licenses under Selling and Administrative Expenses in the consolidated statements of comprehensive
income (see Note 24).

The gross carrying amounts and accumulated depreciation and impairment of investment properties at
the beginning and end of 2019 and 2018 are shown below.

Lot
Land Improvements Total

December 31, 2019

Revalued amount / cost P 1,908,807,754 P 3,500,390 P 1,912,308,144

Accumulated depreciation - ( 3,335,309) ( 3,335,309)

Net carrying amount P__1,908,807,754 P 165,081 P 1,908,972,835
December 31, 2018

Revalued amount / cost P 1,738,207,254 P 3,500,390 P 1,741,707,644

Accumulated depreciation - ( 2,686,439) ( 2,686,439 )

Net carrying amount P_1,738,207,254 P 813,951 P__1,739,021,205
January 1, 2018

Cost P 1,113,266,254 P 3,500,390 P 1,116,766,644

Accumulated depreciation - ( 1,986,362 ) ( 1,986,362 )

Net carrying amount P__1,113,266,254 P 1,514,028 P__1,114,780,282

A reconciliation of the carrying amounts of investment properties at the beginning and end of 2019 and
2018 is shown below.

Lot
Land Improvements Total

Balance at January 1, 2019

net of accumulated depreciation

and impairment loss P 1,738,207,254 P 813,951 P 1,739,021,205
Transfer from property and equipment

(see Note 11) 85,005,000 - 85,005,000
Fair value gains 71,569,675 - 71,569,675
Additions 14,025,825 - 14,025,825
Depreciation charges for the year - ( 648,870 ) ( 648,870 )
Balance at December 31, 2019

net of accumulated depreciation P__1,908,807,754 P 165,081 P__1,908,972,835
Balance at January 1, 2018

net of accumulated depreciation

and impairment loss P 1,113,266,254 P 1,514,028 P 1,114,780,282
Fair value gains 624,941,000 - 624,941,000
Depreciation charges for the year - ( 700,077 ) ( 700,077)

Balance at December 31, 2018
net of accumulated depreciation P__1,738,207,254 P 813,951 P__1,739,021,205
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In 2019, land with carrying amount of P85.0 million, which was previously used for administrative
purposes but is now held for capital appreciation, was transferred from Property, Plant and Equipment
account to Investment Properties account (see Note 11).

Other information about the fair value measurement and disclosures related to the investment
properties are presented in Note 5.5.

OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

The composition of this account as of December 31 are shown below.

Note 2019 2018
Advances to suppliers 29.2,29.12 P 7,056,126,489 P 1,167,194,841
Refundable rental deposits 29.3 323,634,283 289,572,937
Deferred minimum
lease payments 44,709,366 48,242,728
Other prepayments 163,003,036 83,386,615
Others 50,789,070 7,270,409

P 7.638,262,244 P_1,595,667.530

Advances to suppliers pertain to advances made for future acquisitions of real estate properties.
There are no capital commitments outstanding as of December 31, 2019 related to these acquisition.

Refundable rental deposits represent deposits of the Group for the lease of various parcels of land.
These deposits are refundable at the end of the term of agreement and are measured at amortized cost.
The fair values on initial recognition of the lease deposits were determined by calculating the present
value of the estimated future cash flows anticipated until the end of the lease terms using the market
interest rate of comparable financial instrument at the inception of the lease (i.e. BVAL). Meanwhile,
interest on subsequent amortization of rental deposits using effective interest method amounted to

P3.1 million in 2019, P2.8 million in 2018 and P2.7 million in 2017 and is presented as part of Finance
Income in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income (see Note 25.2).

The excess of the principal amount of the rental deposit over its present value is recognized in the
consolidated statements of financial position as Deferred Minimum Lease Payments. Rent expense on
subsequent amortization of the deferred minimum lease payments amounted to P3.5 million,

P3.2 million and P2.7 million in 2019, 2018 and 2017, respectively, and is presented as part of Rent
under Selling and Administrative Expenses in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income
(see Note 24).

INTEREST-BEARING LOANS AND BORROWINGS

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings are broken down as follow:

2019 2018
Current:

Liabilities under LC and TR P 6,206,767,833 P 3,045,567,756
Short-term loans 23,901,759,985 15,173,672,603
Current portion of long-term loans 1,843,333,333 1,493,333,334

Liabilities under short-term
commercial papers 6,191,197,740 6,596,913,591
38,143,058,891 26,309,487,284
Non-current term loans 11,753,129,172 13,590,520,166

P 49,896,188,063 P 39,900.007,450
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18.1 Liabilities under Letters of Credits and Trust Receipts

The Group avails of LC and TR lines with local banks to finance its purchases of inventories (see Note 8).
These short-term trust receipts bear interests based on prevailing market interest rates at an average of
6.125% and 6.14% per annum in 2019 and 2018, respectively.

The Group is required by the banks to maintain certain collaterals for the credit line facility provided to
the Group for working capital requirements. The collaterals are in the form of compensating deposits,
inventories and surety of certain stockholders (see Notes 6, 8, 9 and 29.5).

18.2 Term Loans

The breakdown of the outstanding balances of the term loans per creditor as at December 31 are as

follows:

BDO Unibank, Inc. (BDO)
i. Term Loan Agreement
ii. Notes Facility Agreements

Philippine National Bank (PNB)
i. Short-Term Commercial Papers
ii. Notes Payable
ii. Term Loan Agreement

Land Bank of the Philippines (LBP)
i. Term Loan Agreement
ii. Notes Payable

Multinational Investment
Bancorporation (MIB)

i. Notes Payable
ii. Medium-term loan

Robinsons Bank Corporation (RBC)
i. Notes Payable
ii. Term Loan Agreement

Development Bank
of the Philippines (DBP)
Asia United Bank (AUB)

China Banking Corporation

Rizal Commercial Banking Corporation
Bank of Commerce

United Coconut Planters Bank
Maybank Philippines, Inc.

CTBC Bank (Philippines)

Union Bank of the Philippines (UBP)

ANZ Bank Vietnam Limited

Explanatory
Notes Term
(a) 5to 7 years
(b) 1 to 3 months
(18.3) 6 to 12 months
(b) 2 months to
3 years
(c) 5 years
(e) 7 years
(e) 3 years
(b) 2 to 3 months
(b) 2 to 6 months
(d) 1 yearand 6
months
(b) 2 to 6 months
) 5 years
(b) 3 months
(b) 1 to 2 months
(b) 3 months to
18 months
(b) 2 to 3 months
(b) 1 month
(b) 3 to 6 months
(b) 2 to 3 months
(b) 1 month
(b) 3 months
(b) 6 to 12 months

Interest
Rates

5.38% -5.71%
5.50% - 6.00%

7.10% - 7.50%
4.67% - 7.00%

6.21%
5.30% - 8.16%

4.85%
6.00%
5.00% - 6.50%

4.25% - 6.75%

3.75%

5.25-6.25%
5.50%

5.30%

5.50%

4.63%
5.00%
6.38%
5.00%
5.25%
5.25%
5.50%

7.0%-8.0%

Outstanding Balance

2019

2018

P 7,488,129,172 P
2,000,000.,000

8,142,186,833
200,000,000

9,488,129,172

8,342,186.,833

6,191,197,740 6,596,913,591
600,000,000 3,670,000,000
125,000,000 225,000,000
6,916,197,740 10,491,913,591
4,950,000,000 5,000,000,000
333,333,333 666,666,667
2,000,000,000 1,100,000,000
7,283,333,333 6,766,666,667
11,470,436,645 4,304,042,213
- 200,000,000
11,470.436,645 4,504,042,213
900,000,000 375,000,000
100,000,000 200,000,000
1,000,000.,000 575,000,000

2,000,000,000

1,715,000,000

1,000,000,000

1,009,630,390

1,005,000,000

1,000,000.,000 985,000,000
- 810,000,000
712,480,000 450,000,000
1,200,000,000 200,000,000

443,000,000

1,000,000,000

175,843,340

P__43,689,420,230 P_36,854,439,604
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(a) TLA with BDO

In 2017, the Parent Company obtained a seven-year term loan amounting to P6,000.0 million to finance
the 100.00% acquisition of PLPI, including the refinancing of the deposit, and Duta, Inc. The loan was
approved on a clean basis and is subject to an interest rate computed as the sum of the prevailing
three-month BVAL rate (which replaced and succeeded the PDST-R2 as the benchmark rate effective
October 29, 2018) and 150 basis points divided by 0.99, or 4.00% divided by 0.99 per annum for the
period commencing from the availment of the commitment up to the end of the eighth quarter,
whichever is higher. The interest rate shall be repriced at the start of the ninth quarter up to the final
repayment date based on the higher of sum of the prevailing three-month BVAL and 150 basis points
divided by 0.95, or 4.00% divided by 0.95 per annum, whichever is higher. The principal loan is payable
quarterly in 28 installments. The first 27 installments shall be for the amount of P165.0 million quarterly
while the last installment shall be P1,545.0 million.

The TLA requires the Parent Company to maintain debt-to-equity ratio of not more than 3:1, current ratio
of at least 1.1, borrower’s ratio of not more than 6.0 and interest coverage ratio of at least 1.5. The TLA
also requires the Parent Company to comply with affirmative and negative covenants relating to the
exclusive use of the proceeds for the purpose indicated in the TLA, maintenance of adequate records
and prohibition to make any material change in the present nature of business of the Parent Company,
PLPI and Duta, among others.

The Parent Company has complied with the financial, affirmative and negative covenants for the past
years except that, in 2019, it had lower than the indicated current ratio. Prior to December 31, 2019, the
Parent Company requested for the waiver of this financial covenant and management is confident that
such will be approved based on preliminary discussion with BDO. The Parent Company has received
approval on the waiver of breach in the current ratio requirement, subject to the condition that such
breach is remedied by June 30, 2020 to be tested on or before August 31, 2020 using the Group’s
consolidated unaudited interim financial statements as of June 30, 2020.

(b) Notes Payable

The promissory notes represented the borrowings from local banks or investment houses with interest
rates ranging from 4.25% to 8.00% per annum and normally has a tenor of less than a year. Some of
these loans are clean and unsecured. Certain loans are guaranteed by certain stockholders through
surety agreement with the Banks (see Note 29.5). The notes payable does not include financial,
affirmative and negative covenants.

(c) TLA with PNB

On January 29, 2016, the Parent Company signed with PNB a five-year term clean loan amounting to
P500.0 million to be used for capital expenditures and general corporate purposes. The loan is subject
to annual interest rate of 6.21% and is payable in twenty quarterly installments.

This loan does not include financial, affirmative and negative covenants.

(d) Medium-Term Loan with MIB

The Parent Company signed with MIB a clean medium-term loan amounting to P200.0 million with a
tenor of 547 days. The loan proceeds were used for working capital requirements. The loan is subject

to a fixed annual interest rate of 3.75% and has matured on April 30, 2019. This loan does not include
financial, affirmative and negative covenants.
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(e) TLA with LBP

On November 3, 2017, the Parent Company signed with LBP a three-year term clean loan amounting to
P1,000.0 million to partially finance the permanent working capital requirements of the Parent
Company. The loan is subject to a floating rate of 4.00% per annum subject to repricing semi-annually.
Interest is payable semi-annually in arrears and the principal is payable in equal semi-annual
amortization starting at the end of the first semester. As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, the
outstanding principal balance amounted to P333.3 million and P666.7 million, respectively.

On July 5, 2018, the Parent Company signed with LBP a seven-year term loan with no grace period
amounting to P5,000.0 million to partially finance the general corporate requirement of the company.
The loan was approved on a clean basis and is subject to an interest rate of 4.85% and shall be
repriced semi-annually. The principal loan is payable in semi-annually. The first 13 installments shall be
for the amount of P25.0 million semi-annually while the last installment shall be P4.675.0 million.

The TLA requires the Parent Company to maintain debt-to-equity ratio of not more than 3:1. The TLA
also requires the Parent Company to comply with affirmative and negative covenants relating to
maintenance of adequate records, prohibition to engage in any business other than its registered
activities and avoidance to enter into an agreement as guarantor of the loan of another company,
business or person, among others. The Parent Company has complied with all the financial, affirmative
and negative covenants.

() TLA with RBC

On October 9, 2015, the Parent Company signed with RBC a five-year clean term loan amounting to
P500.0 million to be used for capital expenditures and general corporate purposes. The loan is

subject to annual interest rate of 5.50% and is payable in twenty equal quarterly installments. This loan
does not include financial, affrmative and negative covenants.

18.3 Liabilities under Short-term Commercial Papers (STCPs)

In 2019, the Parent Company issued its second and third series of short-term commercial papers
(STCP), with PNB Capital and Investment Corporation being the Sole Issue Manager and the Lead
Underwriter, amounting to P3,500.0 million and P3,000.0 million, respectively. Each paper has a term of
360 days and carries a discount rate of 7.00% for the second series and 4.67% for the third series. The
Parent Company used the proceeds to refinance its existing short-term loans, which are used to finance
the working capital requirements of the Parent Company.

In December 2018, the Parent Company issued STCPs amounting to P7,000.0 million with PNB Capital
and Investment Corporation being the Sole Issue Manager and the Lead Underwriter. The amount
represented the first of the two tranches totalling to P10,000.0 million of STCP registered with the SEC.
Half of the first tranche consisted of 180-day paper that carries a discount rate of 7.10% while 350-day
paper with discount rate of 7.50%. The Parent Company used 70.00% of the proceeds to finance the
working capital requirements for the importation of fuels and lubricants, and the rest will be used to repay
outstanding short-term loans with various banks. The first series of STCP has been settled by the Parent
Company in 2019.

The underwriting agreement requires the Parent Company to maintain debt-to-equity ratio of not more
than 3:1. The underwriting agreement also requires the Parent Company to comply with affirmative and
negative covenants relating to maintenance of adequate records, prohibition to engage in any business
other than its registered activities and avoidance to enter into merger or consolidation, unless the Parent
Company is the surviving entity, among others. The Parent Company has complied with all the financial,
affirmative and negative covenants.

The outstanding liabilities under STCP as of December 31, 2019 and 2018 amounted to P6,191.2 million
and P6,596.9 million, respectively. The outstanding balances as of December 31, 2019 and 2018 are net of
the capitalized and unamortized debt issuance cost of P48.75 million and P45.2 million, respectively.
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18.4 Credit Line

The Parent Company has an available credit line under LC/TR of P12,620.2 million and

P17,111.3 million as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively. These lines obtained from
various banks are being utilized by the Parent Company for procurement of inventories both local and
foreign. The credit lines are mostly granted on a clean basis while some of the credit lines are
partially secured by the Joint Several Signatures of certain stockholders.

18.5 Interest Expense

Interest expense for 2019, 2018 and 2017 are presented as part of Finance Costs in the
consolidated statements of comprehensive income amounted to P2,582.9 million, P1,377.0 million
and P780.9 million (see Note 25.1), respectively, which is already exclusive of the capitalized
borrowing cost of P695.7 million, P261.6 million and P19.7 million for 2019, 2018 and 2017,
respectively (see Note 11.1).

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Presented below is the reconciliation of the Group’s liabilities arising from financing activities, which
includes both cash and non-cash changes.

Liabilities
under LC Liabilities Lease
and TR Term Loans under STCP Liabilities
(see Note 18) (see Note 18) (see Note 18) see Note 12) Total
Balance as of
January 1, 2019 P 3,045,567,756 P 30,257,526,103 P 6,596,913,591 P - P 39,900,007,450
Effect of adoption of
PFRS16 - - - 973,167,940 973,167,940
Cash flows from
financing activities
Additional borrowings - 66,463,776,671 6,088,546,547 - 72,552,323,218
Repayment of
borrowings, TR,
and lease liabilities ( 22,090,498,231)(  59,544,221,408 ) (  7,000,000,000) ( 203,455,083) ( 88,838,174,722)

Non-cash financing activities

Availment of LC and TR 25,251,698,308 - - 25,251,698,308

Additions to lease liability - - - 403,090,922 403,090,922
Business combination 321,141,124 - - 321,141,124
Amortization of discount

and bond issue cost - - 505,737,602 80,990,270 586,727,872
Accrued interest - - - ( 3,5680,974) ( 3,580,974)

Balance as of

December 31, 2019 P_6,206,767,833 P _37,498,222,490 P _6,191,197,740 P__1,250,213,075 P _51,146,401,138

Balance as of

January 1, 2018 P 5,139,141,223 P 23,032,292,775 P - P - P 28,171,433,998
Cash flows from

financing activities

Additional borrowings - 50,798,571,804 7,000,000,000 - 57,798,571,804
Repayment of
borrowings
and TR ( 28,300,249,382 ) ( 43,573,338,476 ) - - ( 71,873,587,858)
Bond issue cost - - ( 45,238,000) - ( 45,238,000)
Non-cash financing activities
Availment of LC and TR 25,780,675,915 - - - 25,780,675,915
Business combination 426,000,000 - - - 426,000,000
Unamortized discount - - ( 357,848,409) - ( 357,848,409)

Balance as of
December 31, 2018 P_3,045,567,756 P_30,257,526,103 P 6596913591 P - P 39,900,007,450
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20. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

21.

This account consists of:

Notes 2019 2018
Trade payables:
Third parties P 10,244,468,510 P 6,142,277,375
Related parties 29.2,29.3, 29.11 34,074,046 84,630,306
10,278,542,556 6,226,907,681
Accrued expenses 910,580,684 895,209,882
Non-trade payables 233,126,209 112,877,855
Retention payable 138,869,144 137,666,139
Advances from customers 117,930,781 7,208,523
Contract liability 23.1 16,102,117 -
Others 146,509,602 54,969,172

P11,841,661,093 P_7.434,839,252

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are generally settled within 30 to 90 days.

Accrued expenses mostly pertain to payables to various contractors for the construction of retail stations
that remain unpaid at the end of the year. In addition, this comprises amounts to be paid in relation to
charter hire cost, repairs and maintenance, interest expense arising from loans and professional fees.

Retention payable is the amount withheld by the Group from its contractors for the construction of
buildings, depot and pier facilities. The amount of retention, which is equivalent to ten percent of the
total contract price, is payable upon the completion and turnover by the contractor of a construction
project and the acceptance thereof by the Group. Moreover, significant portion of the retention payable
pertains to the construction of gasoline and LPG stations equipment, which are expected to be
completed within one year after the reporting period.

Non-trade payables pertain to liabilities to various suppliers of goods and services that are not related to
primary business activities of the Group, such as, utility bills, travel expenses and purchase of office
supplies, among others.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

In 2019, PNX SG entered into forward contracts with notional amount of P7,922.6 million, maturing in
2020. For purposes of estimating the fair value of the derivative contract, whenever possible, the Group
utilizes quoted market price and, if not available, estimates from third-party brokers or banks. These
brokers’ or banks’ estimates are corroborated with multiple sources and/or other observable market
data utilizing assumptions about risk and market liquidity.

The purpose of these contracts is to mitigate the fluctuations of expected physical oil sales and
purchase contracts.

As of December 31, 2019, derivative financial instruments with negative fair value related to forward
contracts amounted to P311.0 million and is presented as Derivative Financial Liabilities in the 2019
consolidated statement of financial position.

In 2019, the Group recognized fair value loss on derivative contracts amounting to P464.2 million,
presented as part of Net purchases under Cost of sales in the 2019 statement of profit or loss
(see Note 23.2).
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22. OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

This account consists of:

Note 2019 2018
Customers’ cylinder deposits P 440,803,046 P 276,285,558
Cash bond 306,311,395 56,702,491
Security deposits 100,979,556 266,616,512
Post-employment defined
benefit obligation 26.3 58,747,779 771,210
Unearned rent 30,427,368 20,226,494

P 7,269,144 P 620,602,265

Security deposits represent deposits received from dealers for the lease of retail stations and equipment
that are installed in retail stations. These deposits are refundable at the end of the lease terms and are
measured at amortized cost. The fair values on initial recognition of the security deposits were
determined by calculating the present value of the estimated future cash flows anticipated until the end
of the lease terms using the market interest rate of comparable financial instrument at the inception of
the lease. Meanwhile, interest on subsequent amortization of rental deposits using effective interest
method amounted to P15.4 million, P3.6 million and P6.3 million in 2019, 2018 and 2017, respectively,
and is presented as part of Finance Costs in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income
(see Note 25.1).

The excess of the principal amount of the security deposit over its present value is recognized in the
consolidated statements of financial position as unearned rent. Subsequent amortization of the
unearned rent amounted to P4.2 million, P5.6 million and P6.4 million as of December 31, 2019, 2018
and 2017, respectively, and is presented as part of Rent Income in the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income.

Customers’ cylinder deposits represent the net amounts received for LPG cylinders loaned out to
various dealers/customers. These deposits are non-interest bearing and refunded to the dealers upon
return of the cylinders. This account is amongst the assumed liabilities as a result of business
combination with PLPI in 2017. In 2019 and 2018, there were no refunds made to the dealers.

The composition of this account as of December 31 are as follows:

2019 2018
Deposits for cylinders P 520,730,811 P 431,736,323
Less:
Amortization of cylinder deposits ( 79,927,765) ( 63,609,144)
Gain on reversal of cylinder deposits - ( 91,841,621)

P_ 440803046 P 276285558

The Group recognized gain on reversal of cylinder deposits amounting to nil, P91.8 million and nil in
2019, 2018 and 2017, respectively, and is presented as part of Fuel Service and Other Income in the
consolidated statements of comprehensive income.

Cash bond deposits consists of cash received from PLPI dealers upon entering dealership agreement.
This serves as a bond or security in case a dealer defaults from payment. The deposit will be returned
to the dealer upon termination of the agreement.
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23. REVENUES AND COST OF SALES AND SERVICES

23.1 Revenues

Disaggregation of Contract Revenues

The Group derives revenue from the transfer of goods and services in the following primary
geographical markets and major goods or service lines:

December 31, 2019

Primary geographical markets
Philippines
Singapore
Vietnam

Major goods/service lines
Fuel and by-products
LPG
Merchandise
Lubricants
Management service
Hauling and into-plane
Others

December 31, 2018

Primary geographical markets
Philippines
Singapore

Major goods/service lines
Fuel and by-products
LPG
Merchandise
Lubricants
Hauling and into-plane
Others

Depot and
Trading Logistics
(point in time) (over time) Total

P 70,608,485,903
23,930,537,249
1,962,630,037

P 1,076,337,219
129,118,676
289,092

P 71,684,823,122
24,059,655,925
1,962,919,129

P 96,501,653,189 P _1.205,744,987 P 97,707,398,176

P 88,384,504,235
6,658,249,908
1,261,783,677

197,115,369

P -

686,538,216
299,614,442
219,592,329

P 88,384,504,235
6,658,249,908
1,261,783,677

197,115,369
686,538,216
299,614,442
219,592,329

P _96,501,653,189 P__1,205,744,987 P 97,707,398,176

P 66,671,555,943
21,001,166,720

P 824,182,312

P 67,495,738,255
21,001,166,720

P 87,672,722,663

P 81,233,780,249
4,241,227,274
1,437,531,031

699,008,147

61,175,962

P 824,182,312

P 3,214,286

820,968,026

P_88,496.904.975

P 81,236,994,535
4,241,227,274
1,437,531,031

699,008,147
820,968,026
61,175,962

P _87,672,722.663

P 824,182,312 P_88.496.904.975

All of the Group’s revenues except revenues from management service, hauling and into-plane
services and franchise fees (insignificant in amount), which are presented as part of Fuel Services
and Other Revenues are recognized at a point in time.
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Contract Balances

The Group recognizes contract assets, due to timing difference of payment and satisfaction of
performance obligation, to the extent of satisfied performance obligation on all open contracts as of
the end of the reporting period. However, the management assess that contract assets, if any, are of

insignificant amounts.

Changes in the contract assets and contract liabilities are recognized by the Group when the right to
receive payment is already established and upon performance of unsatisfied performance obligation,
respectively. Contract liabilities amounted to P16.1 million and nil as of December 31, 2019 and
2018, respectively (see Note 20).

23.2 Cost of Sales and Services

(a) Costs of Sales and Services

This account is composed of the following:

Notes 2019 2018 2017
Cost of fuels and
lubricants P 81,968,236,723 P 74,428,515,179 P 37,251,184,765
Cost of LPG 3,884,245,585 3,439,226,822 1,093,919,764
Cost of merchandise 958,804,773 971,222,819 -

24  P_86,811,287,081 P 78,838,964,820 P_ 38,345,104,529

(b) Cost of Fuels, Lubricants, LPG and Merchandise Sold

The cost of inventories sold are broken down as follows:

Notes 2019 2018 2017

Inventories at

beginning of year P 11,135,494,286 P 12,416,237,073 P  2,998,780,146
Net purchases

during the year 21 87,272,448,848 77,381,553,342 47,660,988,176
Overhead costs 11.2 65,183,757 95,924,146 38,427,130
Business combination 14 17,777,095 80,744,545 63,146,150
Goods available for sale 98,490,903,986 89,974,459,106 50,761,341,602
Inventories at

end of year 8 (__11,679,616,905) (_ 11,135,494,286) (_ 12,416,237,073)

P_86,811,287,081 P 78,838.964,820 P_38,345,104,529
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24. COSTS AND EXPENSES BY NATURE

The details of the Group’s costs and expenses by nature are shown below.

Notes 2019 2018 2017

Cost of inventories sold P 86,746,103,324 P  78,743,040,674 P 38,306,677,397
Depreciation

and amortization 11.2,12.1,16 1,436,858,782 1,056,749,318 851,080,582
Salaries and

employee benefits 26.1 1,105,276,877 868,282,821 438,875,069
Freight and trucking

charges 903,075,451 859,631,739 667,780,304
Rent 12.3,17,29.3,33.3 650,422,093 865,873,379 654,110,277
Taxes and licenses 16 533,449,335 531,258,432 581,832,247
Advertising and

promotions 506,812,297 373,530,774 267,197,963
Service fees 242,782,883 123,721,448 134,022,166
Utilities 173,645,341 154,238,778 73,874,917
Professional fees 152,814,551 78,808,924 53,176,668
Security fees 119,510,213 114,708,711 82,623,951
Repairs and maintenance 108,313,018 167,873,962 90,491,317
Fuel, oil and lubricants 94,388,831 69,321,906 50,194,019
Travel and transportation 92,173,989 82,991,673 58,361,503
Outside services 90,809,455 14,924,503 2,881,506
Insurance 72,622,096 71,827,325 40,957,246
Dues and subscriptions 58,014,578 37,887,492 -
Management fee 40,916,557 - -
Office supplies 40,475,106 42,948,909 16,634,489
Impairment losses

on trade and

other receivables 7,294 29,938,952 68,465,111 50,335,399
Representation 27,338,499 27,946,580 9,814,799
Donations and

contributions 29.13 22,720,000 91,762,500 -
Royalties 335 13,203,844 12,790,403 -
Sales incentives 4,330,921 20,965,232 13,481,660
Provision for loss

on lost cylinders 11 - 24,290,486 -
Deficiency taxes - 45,858 5,295,972
Miscellaneous 63,355,992 76,828,179 102,433,029

P 93,329,352,985 P__ 84,580,715117 P__ 42,552,132,480

The expenses are classified in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income as follows:

Note 2019 2018 2017
Cost of sales and
services 23.2 P 86,811,287,081 P 78,838,964,820 P 38,345,104,529
Selling and
administrative
expenses 6,518,065,904 5,741,750,297 4,207,027,951

P_93,329,352,985 P 84,580,715117 P_42,552,132,480
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25. FINANCE COSTS AND FINANCE INCOME

The breakdown of these accounts follows:

25.1 Finance Costs

Interest expense on
bank loans and
other borrowings

Bank charges

Interest expense from
lease liabilities

Foreign currency
exchange
losses — net

Interest expense from
security deposits

Interest expense from
post-employment
defined benefit
obligation — net

25.2 Finance Income

Foreign currency
exchange
gains — net
Interest income from
cash in banks
Interest income on
amortization of
rental deposits
Interest income from
restricted deposits
Interest income on
retirement benefits
Interest income from
overdue trade
receivables
Others

Notes 2019 2018 2017
185 P 2,582,918,502 P 1,376,994786 P 780,917,196
140,127,818 54,113,374 16,779,298
12.4 80,990,270 - -
18,882,435 14,575,031 92,823
22 15,375,962 3,564,480 6,341,824
26.3 - - 576,720
P_2,838294987 P 1449247671 P___ 804,707,861
Notes 2019 2018 2017
P 51,070,736 P 37,007,589 P 37,832,533
6 30,008,994 27,225,602 15,662,627
17 3,109,626 2,761,638 2,711,436
9 2,178,826 1,437,706 106,880
26.3 120,023 1,148,645 -
- 1,796,910 -
107,585 1,996,252 -
P__ 86595790 P 73374342 P__ 56,313,476
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26. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
26.1 Salaries and Employee Benefits Expense

Expenses recognized for salaries and employee benefits are presented below.

Notes 2019 2018 2017
Short-term benefits:
Salaries and wages P 827,449,755 P 673,553,312 P 323,104,897
Employee welfare
and other benefits 189,633,713 103,315,524 63,959,232
13" month pay and
bonuses 57,299,929 67,321,587 30,893,578
Post-employment
defined benefit 26.3 22,037,668 16,848,732 9,327,496
Employee share options  26.2 8,855,812 7,243,666 11,589,866

24 P 1,105,276,877 P_ 868,282,821 P__438,875.069

26.2 Employee Share Option Plan (ESOP)

On January 24, 2013, the BOD of the Parent Company approved the ESOP. Under the ESOP
program, the Parent Company will allocate up to a total of 2.20% of its issued and outstanding common
shares to be granted to eligible employees. Share options benefit expense included as part of Salaries
and employee benefits under Selling and Administrative Expenses in the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income amounted to P8.9 million, P7.2 million, P11.6 million and P5.8 million in

2019, 2018 and 2017, respectively, while the corresponding credit to Retained Earnings of the same
amount are presented under the Equity section of the consolidated statements of financial position.
Other information related to the ESOP are presented in Note 30.7.

26.3 Post-employment Defined Benefit Plan
(a) Characteristics of the Defined Benefit Plan

The Group has maintained a partially funded, tax-qualified, noncontributory post-employment
defined benefit plan that is being administered by a trustee bank that is legally separated from

the Group. The trustee bank managed the fund in coordination with the Group’s management

who acts in the best interest of the plan assets and is responsible for setting the investment policies.
The post-employment plan covers all regular full-time employees.

The normal retirement age is 60 with a minimum of five years of credited service. Normal
retirement benefit is an amount equivalent to 75.00% of the final monthly covered compensation
(average monthly basic salary during the last 12 months of credited service) for every year of
credited service.

(b) Explanation of Amounts Presented in the Consolidated Financial Statements
Actuarial valuations are made annually to update the retirement benefit costs and the amount of

contributions. All amounts presented below are based on the actuarial valuation report obtained from
an independent actuary in 2019 and 2018.
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The amounts of post-employment defined benefit obligation, which is presented as part of
Other Non-current Liabilities account (see Note 22) in the consolidated statements of financial
position, are determined as follow:

2019 2018
Present value of obligation P 243,226,068 P 169,428,265
Fair value of plan assets ( 184,478,289) (___170,568,742)
Funded status 58,747,779 ( 1,140,477)
Effect of asset ceiling - 1,911,687

P_ 58747779 P 771,210

The movements in the present value of the post-employment defined benefit obligation recognized in the
books are as follows:

2019 2018

Balance at beginning of year P 169,428,265 P 123,569,725
Current service cost 22,037,668 16,848,732
Effect of business combination - 3,664,685
Remeasurements:
Actuarial losses (gains) arising from:

Changes in financial assumptions 41,582,356 ( 32,969,509)

Changes in demographic assumptions 834,124 3,091,223

Experience adjustments 33,621 51,934,933
Benefits paid from plan assets ( 3,400,197) ( 4,036,824)
Interest expense 12,710,231 7,325,300
Balance at end of year P 243,226,068 P_169,428,265

The movements in the fair value of plan assets are presented below.

2019 2018

Balance at beginning of year P 170,568,742 P 122,023,565
Contributions to the plan - 54,718,273
Benefits paid from plan assets ( 3,400,197) ( 4,036,824)
Interest income 12,982,615 8,473,945
Gain (loss) on plan assets

(excluding amounts

included in net interest) 4327129 ( 10,610,217)

Balance at end of year P 184478289 P 170,568,742

The composition of the fair value of plan assets at the end of the reporting period by category and risk
characteristics is shown in the succeeding page.
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2019 2018
Cash and cash equivalents P 16,782,873 P 14,929,101
Quoted equity securities:
Holding 4,900,000 1,036,800
Property 4,091,760 7,374,000
Construction 2,721,139 2,658,740
Telecommunications 2,130,000 2,044,800
Manufacturing (Preferred) 7,017,260 1,799,780
20,860,159 14,914,120
Government bonds 58,784,525 55,700,985
Unit investment trust funds (UITF) 37,957,399 68,001,187
Corporate Bonds 49,171,013 17,023,349
Others 922.320 -

P_184,478,280 P 170.568,742

The fair value of the above investments are determined based on quoted market prices in active
markets (classified as Level 1 in the fair value hierarchy), excluding UITF and certain Corporate bond
amounting to P6.4 million and nil in 2019 and 2018, respectively (classified as Level 2 in the fair value
hierarchy). Plan assets do not comprise any of the Group’s own financial instruments or any of its
assets occupied and/or used in its operations.

The components of amounts recognized in profit or loss and in other comprehensive income in
respect of the defined benefit post-employment plan are as follows:

Notes 2019 2018 2017

Reported in profit or loss:
Current service cost 26.1 P 22,037,668 P 16,848,732 P 9,327,496
Net interest
expense (income) 25.1,25.2 ( 120,023) ( 1,148,645) 576,720
Settlement loss - - 3,582,092

P_21917,645 P 15700087 P _13.486.308

Reported in other
comprehensive income:
Actuarial gains or
Losses arising
from changes in:

Financial

assumptions P 41,582,356 (P 32,969,509) (P  5,478,352)
Demographic

assumptions 834,124 3,091,223 ( 355,175)
Experience

adjustments 33,621 51,934,933 ( 5,001,689)

Return (loss) on plan
assets (excluding
amounts included
in net interest

expense) ( 2,560,261) 10,610,217 ( 3,399,323)
Effect of asset
ceiling - 1,727,069 174,463

P_ 39,889,840 P 34,393,933 (P_14,060,076)
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Current service cost is presented as part of salaries and employee benefits under Selling and
Administrative Expenses in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income (see Note 23).

The net interest expense is included as part of Finance Costs under the Other Charges (Income)
(see Note 25.1).

In determining the amounts of the defined benefit post-employment obligation, the following
significant actuarial assumptions were used:

2019 2018 2017
Discount rates 5.06% to 5.22% 7.53% to 7.97% 5.70% to 5.82%
Expected rate of salary
increases 5.00% 2.00% to 6.00% 5.00% to 6.00%

Assumptions regarding future mortality experience are based on published statistics and mortality
tables. The average remaining working lives of an individual retiring at the age of 60 for both males
and females is 25.1 and 20.0 for the Parent Company and PLPI, respectively.

These assumptions were developed by management with the assistance of an independent actuary.
Discount factors are determined close to the end of each reporting period by reference to the interest
rates of a zero coupon government bond with terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the
post-employment obligation. Other assumptions are based on current actuarial benchmarks and
management’s historical experience.

(c) Risks Associated with the Retirement Plan

The plan exposes the Group to actuarial risks such as investment risk, interest rate risk,
longevity risk and salary risk.

(i) Investment and Interest Risk

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is calculated using a discount rate
determined by reference to market yields of government bonds. Generally, a decrease in the
interest rate of a reference government bond will increase the plan obligation. However, this
will be partially offset by an increase in the return on the plan’s investments and if the return on
plan asset falls below this rate, it will create a deficit in the plan. Currently, the plan has
relatively balanced investment in cash and cash equivalents, quoted equity securities and
UITF.

(i) Longevity and Salary Risks

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is calculated by reference to the best
estimate of the mortality of the plan participants both during and after their employment, and to
their future salaries. Consequently, increases in the life expectancy and salary of the plan
participants will result in an increase in the plan obligation.

(d) Other Information
The information on the sensitivity analysis for certain significant actuarial assumptions and the

timing and uncertainty of future cash flows related to the retirement plan are described in the
succeeding page.
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(e) Sensitivity Analysis

The following table summarizes the effects of changes in the significant actuarial assumptions
used in the determination of the post-employment defined benefit obligation as of December 31:

2019
Impact on Post-employment Benefit Obligation

Change in Increase in Decrease in
Assumption Assumption Assumption
Discount rate +/-1.00% P 24,298,496 (P 20,982,932)
Salary increase rate +/-1.00% 24,089,410 ( 21,199,591)
2018
Impact on Post-employment Benefit Obligation
Change in Increase in Decrease in
Assumption Assumption Assumption
Discount rate +/- 1.00% (P 13,482,291) P 15,252,253
Salary increase rate +/- 1.00% 15,529,199 ( 13,461,468)

The above sensitivity analysis is based on a change in an assumption while holding all other
assumptions constant. This analysis may not be representative of the actual change in the
defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in
isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated. Furthermore, in
presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit obligation
has been calculated using the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period,
which is the same as that applied in calculating the defined benefit obligation liability
recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position.

The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not
change compared to the previous years.

(i) Asset-liability Matching Strategies

To efficiently manage the retirement plan, the Group through its BOD, ensures that the
investment positions are managed in accordance with its asset-liability matching strategy to
achieve that long-term investments are in line with the obligations under the retirement
scheme. A large portion of the plan assets as of December 31, 2019 and 2018 is allocated to
market gains and losses and accrued receivables.

(i) Funding Arrangements and Expected Contributions

As of December 31, 2019, the plan is underfunded by P58.7 million based on the latest actuarial
valuation. While there are no minimum funding requirement in the country, the size of the
underfunding may pose a cash flow risk in about 21 years' time when a significant number of
employees is expected to retire.

The Group expects to make contribution of P13.3 million to the plan during the next reporting
period.

The maturity profile of undiscounted expected benefit payments from the plan within ten years
as of December 31 follows:

2019 2018
Within one year P 21,109,357 P 23,403,502
More than one year to five years 86,856,520 71,661,736
More than five years to ten years 190,971,465 149,066,180

P_298,937,342 P 244131418

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting
period is ten years.
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27. REGISTRATION WITH THE BOARD OF INVESTMENTS

The Parent Company and PLPI were registered with the Board of Investments (BOI) for certain
terminal and facilities that entitled the entities certain tax and non-tax incentives. Terminal and
facitlities registered with the BOI are as follows:

Entity Date of Income Tax Holiday (ITH)

Note Location of Project Registered Registration Period Expiry

27.1  Bacolod City PPPI May 10, 2012 5 Years May 9, 2017
27.2  Cagayan De Oro City PPPI May 10, 2012 5 Years May 9, 2017
27.3  Naga City, Cebu PLPI March 7, 2013 5 Years March 6, 2018
27.4 Tayud, Consolacion PPPI Nov 24, 2017 5 Years Nov 24, 2022
27.5  Calapan,Oriental Mindoro PPPI Sep 9, 2017 5 Years Sep 9, 2022
27.6  Villanueva, Misamis Oriental PPPI Oct 12, 2017 5 Years Oct 12, 2022
27.7  Calaca, Batangas Expansion PPPI Dec 22, 2017 5 Years Dec 22, 2022
27.7  Calaca, Batangas Expansion 2 PPPI April 3, 2019 5 Years April 3, 2024
27.8  General Santos City PPPI March 14, 2019 5 Years March 14, 2024

27.1 BOI Registration for New Investment — Bacolod Storage Terminal

The Parent Company was registered with the BOI as a new industry participant with new investment
in storage, marketing and distribution and bulk marketing of petroleum products under Republic Act
8479, Downstream Oil Industry Deregulation Act (RA 8479) for its storage terminal in Bacolod City.
Under its registration, the Parent Company is required to observe certain general and specific terms
and conditions stated in the provisions of the Omnibus Investments Code of 1987.

27.2 BOI Registration for New Investment — Cagayan De Oro City Storage

Terminal

On May 10, 2012, the Parent Company was registered with the BOI as a new industry participant with
new investment in storage, marketing and distribution and bulk marketing of petroleum products
under RA 8479 for its storage terminal in Cagayan de Oro City. Under its registration, the Parent
Company is required to observe certain general and specific terms and conditions stated in the

provisions of the Omnibus Investments Code of 1987.

Under its registration, the Parent Company’s transaction relating Cagayan de Oro City storage

terminal is also entitled to certain tax and non-tax incentives as also mentioned previously.

The ITH for Cagayan de Oro City Storage expired on May 10, 2017.

27.3 BOI Registration for New LPG Import Terminal and Lubricant Storage Facilities in Naga

City, Cebu

On March 7, 2013, the PLPI has registered with the BOI under Registration No. 2013-060 for its new
investment for the construction of New LPG Import Terminal and Lubricant Storage Facilities in Naga
City, Cebu. PLPI's Naga Plant Site is entitled to avail the incentives, which include, among others,

ITH for a period of five years without extension from March 2014 or date of registration whichever is
earlier but in no case earlier than the date of registration. The ITH for this terminal and storage facility
expired on March 6, 2018.

27.4 BOI Registration for New Investment in Tayud, Consolacion, Cebu Oil Depot

On September 19, 2017, the Parent Company has registered with BOI under Registration

No. 2017-267 its new project for the Bulk Marketing of Petroleum Products in Tayud, Consolacion,
Cebu Oil Depot with 16.7 million liters combined capacity of six storage tanks. Under its new
registration, the Parent Company is required to observe certain general and specific terms and

conditions stated in the provisions of the Omnibus Investments Code of 1987. The Parent

Company'’s transactions relating to Cebu Oil Depot are entitled to avail the incentives which include,
among others, ITH for a period of five years without extension from September 2017 or date of
registration whichever is earlier but in no case earlier than the date of registration.
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27.5 BOI Registration for New Investment in Calapan, Oriental Mindoro Oil Depot

On October 12, 2017, the Parent Company has registered with BOI under Registration

No. 2017-287 its new project for the Bulk Marketing of Petroleum Products in Calapan, Oriental
Mindoro Oil Depot with 5.0 million liters combined capacity of two storage tanks. Under its new
registration, the Parent Company is required to observe certain general and specific terms and
conditions stated in the provisions of the Omnibus Investments Code of 1987. The Parent
Company'’s transactions relating to Calapan, Oriental Mindoro Oil Depot are entitled to avail the
incentives which include, among others, ITH for a period of five years without extension from October
2017 or date of registration whichever is earlier but in no case earlier than the date of registration.

27.6 BOI Registration for New Investment in Villanueva, Misamis Oriental Oil Depot

On November 24, 2017, the Parent Company has registered with BOI under Registration

No. 2017-320 its new project for the Bulk Marketing of Petroleum Products in Villanueva, Oriental
Mindoro Oil Depot with 49.7 million liters combined capacity of six storage tanks. Under its new
registration, the Parent Company is required to observe certain general and specific terms and
conditions stated in the provisions of the Omnibus Investments Code of 1987. The Parent
Company’s transactions relating to Villanueva, Oriental Mindoro Qil Depot are entitled to avail the
incentives which include, among others, ITH for a period of five years without extension from
November 2017 or date of registration whichever is earlier but in no case earlier than the date of
registration.

27.7 BOI Registration for New Investment in Calaca, Batangas Oil Depot

On December 22, 2017, the Parent Company has registered with BOI under Registration

No. 2017-353 its new project for the Bulk Marketing of Petroleum Products in Calaca, Batangas Oil
Terminal with 78.3 million liters combined capacity of seven storage tanks. Under its new
registration, the Parent Company is required to observe certain general and specific terms and
conditions stated in the provisions of the Omnibus Investments Code of 1987. The Parent
Company'’s transactions relating to Oriental Mindoro Oil Depot are entitled to avail the incentives
which include, among others, ITH for a period of five years without extension from January 2018 or
date of registration whichever is earlier but in no case earlier than the date of registration.

On April 3, 2019, the Parent Company has registered with BOIl under Registration No. 2019-068 its
expansion for the Bulk Marketing of Petroleum Products in Calaca, Batangas Terminal, which
pertains to the additional one storage tank with capacity of 16.1 million liters. Under its new
registration, the Parent Company is required to observe certain general and specific terms and
conditions stated in the provisions of the Omnibus Investments Code of 1987. The Parent
Company'’s transactions relating to the additional one storage tank are entitled to avail the incentives
which include, among others, ITH for a period of five years without extension from April 2019 or date
of registration whichever is earlier but in no case earlier than the date of registration.

27.8 BOI Registration for New Investment in General Santos City Oil Depot

On March 14, 2019, the Parent Company has registered with BOI under Registration No. 2019-051
its new project for the Bulk Marketing of Petroleum Products in General Santos City Oil Depot.
Under its new registration, the Parent Company is required to observe certain general and specific
terms and conditions stated in the provisions of the Omnibus Investments Code of 1987. The
Parent Company’s transactions relating to General Santos City Oil Depot are entitled to avail the
incentives which include, among others, ITH for a period of five years without extension from
March 2019 or date of registration whichever is earlier but in no case earlier than the date of
registration.

As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Parent Company and PLPI have complied with the terms
and conditions under their ITH registrations.
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The components of tax expenses reported in the consolidated profit or loss and in the consolidated
other comprehensive income is presented below.

Reported in profit or loss:
Current tax expense:
Regular corporate income tax
(RCIT) at 30.00% and 17.00%
Concessionary tax at 10.00%
Final tax at 20.00% and 7.50%
Minimum corporate income
tax (MCIT) at 2.00%

Deferred tax expense (income)
relating to origination and
reversal of temporary
differences

Reported in other comprehensive income:
Deferred tax expense relating to
origination and reversal of
temporary differences

2019 2018 2017

P 306,486,865 P 723,376,187 P 558,801,190
3,480,410 - -

2,495,031 9,174,318 3,157,079

1,428,924 12,308,333 1,657,937

313,891,230 744,858,838 563,616,206

33,768,003 ( 138,270,517) ( 155,548,968)
P 347,659,233 P 606,588,321 P 408,067,238
(P 31,647,040) P 355,635,633 P 4,218,023

A reconciliation of tax on pretax profit computed at the applicable statutory rates to tax expense
reported in the consolidated profit or loss is as follows:

Tax on pretax profit at
30.00% and 17.00%
Adjustment for income
subjected to lower
income tax rates
Tax effects of:

Adjustment for income and
expenses under ITH
Non-deductible expenses

Non-taxable income
Share benefit expense on
on exercised stock
options
Reversal of MCIT
Unrecognized deferred tax asset
Recognition of previously
unrecognized deferred tax
asset on impairment losses
Reversal of net operating
loss carry over (NOLCO)
Reversal of deferred tax
liability on 2017
unrealized forex gain,
realized in 2018
Derecognition of previously
recognized deferred
tax assets

Tax expense reported in
consolidated statements of
comprehensive income

2019 2018 2017
P 599,910,093 P 893,092,261 P 804,031,571
5,128,568 ( 1,671,503) ( 186,606,000 )

319,235,104) (

353,339,769) ( 190,713,945 )

98,250,449 17,551,587 62,995,167
36,005,434) ( 7,656,113) ( 2,732,284)
2,656,016) ( 2,533,289) ( 2,528,710)
2,266,677 2,696,116 3,157,282
. 72,038,868 -

- ( 16,415,482) -

. 1,881,501 2,761,014

. 44,144 83,181,314)

- - 884,457
P 347,659,233 P 606,588,321 P 408,067,238
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The net deferred tax assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2019 and 2018 pertain to the following:

Deferred tax assets:

Provision for losses on lost
cylinders

Unamortized past service cost

Post-employment benefit
obligation

NOLCO

Unrealized foreign currency
loss — net

MCIT

Accrued rent expense

Others

Deferred tax liabilities:
Lease liability
Fair value gains on
investment property

Gain on revaluation of land

Right-of-use assets

Impairment losses on trade
and other receivables

Accrued rent income

Unrealized foreign currency
gains — net
Net deferred tax asset (liability)

Net deferred tax income (expense)

Consolidated
Statements of
Financial Position

Combination

Effects of
Business

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

Profit or Loss

Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

2019 2018 2019 2019 2018 2017 2019 2018 2017

P 789145501 P 78914501 P . P - P 7,287,145 P - P - P - -

22,583,297 33,066,105 - ( 10,482,808) 25,335,330 1,600,550 - - -
19,129,322 587,075 . 6,575,296 ( 11,624,391) ( 6,006,157) 11,966,951 10,318,180 ( 4,218,023)
18,460,448 1,570,632 - 11,492,684 ( 13,720,738) 4,116,765 - - -

10,484,099 12,912,783 . ( 2,428,684) 11,063,337 1,110,382 - - -

6,209,364 6,967,764 . 4,638,732 347,035 ( 1,037,884) - - -

- 13,465,656 - ( 13,465,656) 13,465,656 2,593,275) - - -

- - - - ( 761.428) ( 1,041,871) - - -
155,781,031 147,484,516 - ( 3,670,436) 31,391,946 ( 3,851,490) 11,966,951 10,318,180 ( 4.218,023)

P 224,575,042 P - P . P 224575042 P - P - P - P - -

(  472,357,724) (  408,299,316) - ( 42,764,656)(  187,482,300) (  220,817,016) ( 21,293,752) - -

( 463,161,826) ( 365,953,813) (  110,446,823) 35,559,049 - - ( 22,320,239) ( 365,953,813) -

( 202,536,021) - - ( 202,536,021) - - - -

198,825,527 172,626,073 . 26,199,454 37,127,041 ( 3,955,666) - - -

( 24,578,726)(  13,987,805) - ( 10,590,921) ( 3,145,841) ( 10,106,110) - - -

( 9,164,871) (__ 16.161,363) - 6,996,492 ( 16.161,363) 83,181,314 - - -

(__748,398,599) (_ 631.776.224) (__110,446,823) 37,438,439 (__ 169.662.463) (__ 151.697.478)( 43.613,991) (__ 365.953.813) -

(P_592,617,568) (P_484,291,708) (P_110,446,823)

P__ 33,768,003 (P__ 138,270,517) (P__155,548,968)(P___31,647,040) (P__355,635,633) (P 4,218,023)
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The amounts of NOLCO and the applicable years these are valid and deductible from the taxable
income are shown below.

Original Valid

Taxable Years Amount Tax Effect Until
2019 P 58,778,118 P 17,633,435 2022
2017 2,756,710 827,013 2020

P 61534,828 P 18,460,448

Except for foreign subsidiaries, which are governed by taxes as prescribed by tax authorities of the
countries they are domiciled, the Group is subject to MCIT, which is computed at 2.00% of gross income
net of allowable deductions, as defined under the tax regulations, or RCIT, whichever is higher. MCIT
was higher than RCIT for all the years presented for PGMI, PPMI and SPTT, respectively.

The amounts of MCIT and the applicable years that are valid and deductible from future regular
income tax payable are shown below.

Excess of
Normal MCIT over Valid
Taxable Years Income Tax MCIT Income Tax Tax Effect Until
2019 P - P 1,428,924 P 1,428,924 P 1,428,924 2022
2018 - 3,113,011 3,113,011 3,113,011 2021
2017 - 1,667,430 1,667,430 1,667,430 2020
P - P 6,209,365 P_6,209,365 P 6,209,365

In 2019, 2018 and 2017, the Group claimed itemized deductions in computing for its income
tax due.

29. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group’s related parties include the ultimate Parent Company, PPHI, stockholders, the Group’s
key management personnel, entities under common ownership by the ultimate parent Company and
others as described in the succeeding pages.

The summary of the Group’s transactions with its related parties as of December 31, 2019, 2018, and
2017 is presented in the next page.
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Related Party Amount of Transactions Outstanding Balance
Category Notes 2019 2018 2017 2019 2018
Other related parties
under common
ownership
Sale of subsidiaries 7,29.9 P - P - P - P 500,000,000 500,000,000
Sale of goods 7,291 7,480,791,892 4,732,957,659 2,038,584,803 4,207,636,773 1,851,288,462
Sale of services 7,29.10 686,538,216 322,703,055 - 714,935,482 346,703,054
Purchase of goods 22,29.2 3,438,172,675 1,035,334,676 - 34,074,046 56,511,741
Purchase of services 20,29.2 - 352,010,893 115,202,871 - 2,467,366
Purchase of land 20,29.11 - 92,880,000 - - 19,876,320
Advances to suppliers 7,29.2 1,154,125,041 115,305,467 - 30,811,857 115,305,467
Management fees 7,29.6 281,173 - ( 2,139,028) 86,614,907 86,598,808
Rentals 20,29.3 101,414,780 104,531,407 41,194,056 - 5,774,879
Prepaid Rent 9,362,671 - - - 9,362,671
Advances for option to
purchase properties  7,17,29.12 ( 77,036,191) 2,577,036,191 - 2,500,000,000 2,577,036,191
Due from related
parties 29.4 2,073,628 421,266,746 ( 988,966,628) 1,986,811 939,271,644
Donations 24,29.13 8,825,000 30,610,000 - - -
Ultimate parent
Advances to suppliers 17,29.2 950,752,328 742,356,217 13,456,176  1,651,621,799 1,167,194,841
Lease liability 12,24,25.1,29.3 167,656,447 - - 167,656,447 -
Rentals 20,29.3 - 7,106,449 1,101,775 - -
Sale of services 7,29.10 443,569,686 100,000,000 - 497,082,768 112,000,000
Sale of goods 7,29.1 795,636 392,022 - - 126,897
Key management personnel
Salaries and
Employee benefits 24,29.7 264,741,615 258,103,179 80,182,994 - -

29.1 Sale of Goods

The Group sells products to certain related parties under common ownership. Goods are sold on the
basis of the price lists in force with non-related parties. Revenues arising from these transactions are
presented as part of Sale of Goods in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income. The
outstanding receivables from sales of goods to other related parties are presented as part of Trade
Receivables under the Trade and Other Receivables account in the consolidated statements of
financial position (see Note 7).

The outstanding receivables from related parties are unsecured, do not bear any interest and
collectible in cash on demand. In 2018, as a result of adoption of PFRS 9, allowance for impairment
losses for trade receivables from related parties that is charged to opening retained earnings
amounted to P17.2 million (see Notes 4.3 and 7). No additional impairment loss was recognized in
2019 based on management’s assessment.

29.2 Purchases of Goods and Services

The Group purchased goods and services from related parties on the basis of price lists in force with
non-related parties. Total purchase of goods and services from related parties is presented as part of
Cost of Sales in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income and the related outstanding
payables for goods purchased and services obtained are presented as part of trade payables under
Trade and Other Payables account in the consolidated statements of financial position (see Note 20).
The outstanding balances are unsecured, non-interest bearing, payable on demand and normally
settled in cash.

In addition, the Group advances certain amount to certain related parties for the purchase of services.
The amount is credited upon the performance of the contractual obligation by the related parties. The
outstanding balances are presented as part of advances to suppliers under Trade and Other
Receivables account in the consolidated statements of financial position (see Note 7). Certain
advances to the Group’s ultimate parent were also made for the purchase of properties and is
presented as Advances to Supplier under other non-current assets in the consolidated statements of
financial position (see Note 17). The outstanding balances are unsecured, non-interest bearing,
payable on demand and normally settled in cash.
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29.3 Rentals

The Group has the following lease agreements with the following related parties under common
ownership:

(a) Udenna Corporation — of which total rent expense incurred in the years 2019, 2018 and 2017
amounted to nil, P7.1 million and P1.1 million, respectively. Refundable rental deposits amounted to
P0.77 million and nil as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively, and is presented as part of
refundable rental deposits under Other Non-current Assets in the consolidated statements of
financial position (see Note 17).

(b) Udenna Land, Inc. (ULI) — of which total rent expense in the years 2019, 2018 and 2017
amounted to nil, P7.2 million and P6.3 million, respectively. Prepaid rent amounted to nil and
P1.3 million in 2019 and 2018, respectively (see Note 10). Rental deposit for the lease amounted
to P6.7 million and P6.5 million as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively, is presented as
part of refundable rental deposits under Other Non-current Assets in the consolidated statements
of financial position (see Note 17).

(c) Valueleases, Inc. (VLI) — of which total rent expense on short-term leases in the years 2019,
2018 and 2017 amounted to P78.4 million, P72.4 million and P34.9 million, respectively.
Prepaid rent amounted to P9.3 million and P17.8 million in 2019 and 2018, respectively
(see Note 10). Refundable rental deposits amounted to P21.1 million and P19.0 million as of
December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively, and is presented as part of refundable rental
deposits under Other Non-current Assets in the consolidated statements of financial position
(see Note 17).

The rent expenses aforementioned are presented as part of Selling and Administrative Expenses in
the consolidated statements of comprehensive income (see Note 24) and the related outstanding rent
payables for ULl and VLI are presented as part of Trade Payables while the outstanding rent payable
to Udenna Corporation is presented as part of Accrued Expenses, both under Trade and Other
Payables account in the consolidated statements of financial position (see Note 20).

In 2019, PFM entered into lease agreement with Udenna Corporation for 15 years. PFM recognized
lease liability of P164.5 million at initial recognition. PFM also recognized depreciation expense and
interest expense amounting to P4.6 million and P4.5 million, respectively (see Notes 12, 24

and 25.1).

29.4 Due from Related Parties

The Group grants and obtains unsecured advances to and from related parties under common
ownership for working capital requirements and other purposes.

As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, the outstanding receivable from related parties are shown as
Due from Related Parties in the consolidated statements of financial position. Due from Related
Parties are either receivable in cash or paid through offsetting, unsecured non-interest-bearing
liabilities and are expected to be paid within one year.

The breakdown of the Due from Related Parties as of December 31 is as follows:

Note 2019 2018

PAPI P 1,979,538 P 5,241,248
P-H-O-E-N-I-X Philippines

Foundation, Inc. (PPFI) 94,089 58,118
Calaca Industrial Seaport

Corp. (CISC) - 933,096,022

Galaxi Petroleum Fuels, Inc. - 876,256

Udenna Corporation - 540,810

2,073,627 939,812,454

Allowance for impairment 4.2(b) ( 86,816) ( 1,908,282)

P 1,986,811 P 937,904,172




-80-

The movement of Due from Related Parties as of December 31 is as follows:

Notes 2019 2018
Balance at beginning of year P 937,904,172 P 516,096,616
Reclassification 7 ( 933,096,022) ( 77,018,291)
Collections ( 6,716,432) ( 25,952,983)
Additions 2,073,627 524,778,830
Recovery of bad debts 1,908,282 -
Impairment loss for the year 24 ( 86,816) -
Balance at end of year P 1,986,811 P 937,904,172

29.5 Loan Collaterals

The TLA with DBP, OLSA with BDO and PBComm, loan agreement with HSBC and CBC and certain
banks loans of the Parent Company were guaranteed by certain stockholders through a surety
agreement with the respective banks (see Note 9).

29.6 Management Fees

The Parent Company’s non-trade receivables include receivable from CISC representing
management fees for the services rendered by the Parent Company to CISC when the latter is still a
wholly-owned subsidiary by the former. Under the Management Contract entered into by the Parent
Company and CISC, the former will manage CISC:

(a) to secure and maintain a strong market position for CISC in the real estate industry;
(b) sustain the long-term profitability of CISC; and,
(c) develop a core of competent and effective management professionals in CISC.

In return, CISC will pay a certain amount of management fee annually. Previous to the
deconsolidation, the outstanding balance pertaining to the management fees were being eliminated in
the consolidated financial statements. Total receivable from CISC is presented as part of Non-trade
receivables under Trade and Other Receivables in the consolidated statements of financial position
(see Note 7) and are unsecured, non-interest bearing, payable on demand and normally settled in
cash.

29.7 Key Management Compensations

The compensation of key management personnel are broken down as follows:

2019 2018 2017
Salaries and wages P 209,333,343 P 215,217,266 P 59,621,546
13" month pay and bonuses 21,772,957 17,622,482 5,488,660
Honoraria and allowances 13,110,558 13,192,196 6,242,372
Post-employment benefits 16,794,233 8,494,913 3,623,132
Share-based payment 3,730,524 3,576,322 5,207,284

P_ 264,741,615 P_258,103,179 P__80,182,994

29.8 Retirement Plan

The Group’s retirement fund for its defined benefit post-employment plan is administered and
managed by a trustee bank. The fair value and composition of the plan assets as of
December 31, 2019 and 2018 is shown in Note 26.3. As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, the
retirement plan has no investment in shares of stocks of the Parent Company and other listed
related parties.
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The retirement fund neither provides any guarantee or surety for any obligation of the Group nor its
investments covered by any restrictions or liens.

The details of the contributions of the Group and the benefits paid out by the plan are presented in
Note 26.3.

29.9 Sale of Subsidiaries

In 2016, the Parent Company disposed its equity share in CSC to Chelsea Logistics and
Infrastructure Holdings Corp. (CLIHC), and in CISC to Udenna Land, Inc. (ULI). Total consideration
of the sale of subsidiaries amounted to P3,000.0 million, in which a total of P500.0 million is still
receivable as of both December 31, 2019 and 2018. The outstanding receivables arising from the
sale of subsidiaries is presented as part of Non-trade receivables under Trade and Other Receivables
in the 2019 and 2018 consolidated statement of financial position (see Note 7).

29.10 Sale of Service

In 2019 and 2018, the Group entered into a service agreement with certain related parties to
temporarily operate and manage the related parties’ operations. Total service income recognized in
2019 and 2018 amounted to P686.5 million and P337.5 million, respectively. The outstanding balance
from services rendered to related parties amounted to P1.3 billion and P458.7 million in 2019 and
2018, respectively.

The service income is presented as part of Fuel Service and Other Revenues in the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income and the related outstanding receivables are presented as part
of Non-Trade Receivables under Trade and Other Receivables account in the consolidated
statements of financial position (Note 7). The outstanding balances are unsecured, non-interest
bearing, payable on demand and normally settled in cash.

29.11 Purchase of Land

In 2018, the Group acquired land from CISC amounting to P92.9 million, with outstanding balance of
P19.9 million presented as part of Trade Payables under Trade and Other Payables account in the
consolidated statements of financial position (Note 20). The outstanding balances are unsecured,
non-interest bearing, payable on demand and normally settled in cash. The amount was settled in
2019.

29.12 Advances for Option to Purchase Properties

In 2018, the Group entered into reservation agreements with a one-year option period with Global
Gateway Development Corporation (GGDC) and Udenna Tower Corporation (UTOWCO) for option to
purchase leasehold rights and properties, respectively. The consideration paid for GGDC and
UTOWCO amounted to P2,322.7 million and P254.2 million, respectively. The payments made are
creditable to the payment of the purchase price of the leasehold rights and properties in the event that
a Contract of Sublease covering the purchase of the sublease rights of the properties is executed or
returned or refunded to the Group in the event that the referenced Contract of Sublease is not
executed within the option period. The related advances are presented as part of Advances to
Suppliers under Trade and Other Receivables in the 2018 consolidated statement of financial position
(see Note 7).

In 2019, the option to purchase properties remained unexercised. Accordingly, this was reclassified to
Other Non-current Assets in the 2019 consolidated statement of financial position (see Note 17).

29.13 Others

The Group granted P8.8 million and P30.6 million donations to Udenna Foundation, Inc. in

2019 and 2018, respectively. These are presented as part of Donations and Contributions under the
Selling and Administrative expenses account in the consolidated statements of comprehensive
income (see Note 24).
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30. EQUITY

30.1 Capital Stock

Capital stock consists of:

Shares Amount
2019 2018 2017 2019 2018 2017

Preferred — cumulative,

nonvoting,

non-participating,

non-convertible into

common shares -

P1 par value
Authorized: 50,000,000 _ 50,000,000 __ 50,000,000 P 50,000,000 P 50,000,000 P 50,000,000
Issued:

Balance at beginning of year 32,000,000 30,000,000 30,000,000 32,000,000 P 30,000,000 P 30,000,000

Issuance during the year 7,000,000 2,000,000 - 7,000,000 2,000,000 -

Redemption ( 2,000,000) - - 2,000,000) - -

Balance at end of year 37,000,000 32,000,000 30,000,000 37,000,000 32,000,000 30,000,000
Treasury shares

Balance at beginning of year ( 10,000,000) ( 5,000,000) ( 5,000,000) ( 10,000,000) ( 5,000,000) ( 5,000,000)

Redemption - ( 5,000,000) - - ( 5,000,000) -

Balance at end of year (__10,000,000) (__10,000,000) ( 5,000,000) ( 10,000,000)(__10,000,000) ( 5,000,000)

Issued and outstanding

27,000,000 __22,000,000 __25,000,000 P 27,000,000 P 22,000,000 P__ 25,000,000

Common - P1 par value

Authorized:

Issued:

Balance at beginning of year 1,434,304,232

2,500,000,000 2,500,000,000 2,500,000,000 P2,500,000,000 P2,500,000,000 P2,500,000,000

1,431,538,232 1,428,777,232 P1,434,304,232 P1,431,5638,232 P1,428,777,232

Issuance during the year 2,900,000 2,766,000 2,761,000 2,900,000 2,766,000 2,761,000

Balance at end of year 1,437,204,232 1,434,304,232 1,431,538,232 1,437,204,232 1,434,304,232  1,431,538,232
Treasury shares (__31,000,000) (__31,000,000) - (___344,300,000) (__344,300,000) -
Issued and outstanding 1,406,204,232 1,403,304,232 1,431,538,232 P1,092,904,232 P1,090,004,232 P1,431,538,232

(@)

(b)

(c)

(d)

P1,119,904,232 P1.112,004,232 P1,456.,538,232

On April 23, 2012, the SEC approved the Parent Company’s increase in authorized capital
stock from P800.0 million divided into 750.0 million common shares with a par value of P1 and
P50.0 million preferred shares with par value of P1 per share to P2,550.0 million divided into
2,500.0 common shares with par value of P1 per share and 50.0 million preferred shares with
par value of P1 per share.

In 2016, the Parent Company’s BOD approved the buy-back share program of PNX (common)
shares of up to P450.0 million. In various dates in 2016, the Parent Company purchased its
54.4 million of its shares with corresponding total cost of P330.7 million.

In 2017, the Parent Company purchased 15.8 million of its shares with corresponding total cost
of P109.4 million. Subsequently, the Parent Company sold all of its treasury shares amounting
to P440.1 million. The total consideration received on November 6, 2017 for the sale of
treasury shares amounted to P807.2 million which resulted to an additional paid-in capital of
P367.1 million (see Note 30.4).

In 2018, the Parent Company purchased a total of 31.0 million of its common shares with
corresponding total cost of P344.3 million.



(e)

()

-83-

On December 20, 2013, the Parent Company redeemed the preferred shares issued in 2010
(1stand 2 tranche) and re-issued the same amount of P5.0 million (5.0 million shares at
P1 par value).

The preferred shares shall have the following features as provided in the subscription
agreement:

e Non-convertible into common shares;

¢ Non-participating in any other corporation activities or other further dividends, non-voting,
except in cases specified by law;

¢ No pre-emptive rights over the holders of common shares as to distribution of net assets in
the event of dissolution or liquidation and in the payment of dividends at a specified rate.
The BOD shall determine its issued value at the time of issuance and shall determine its
dividend rates and the dividends shall be paid cumulatively; and,

e The preferred shares shall be redeemable at the Parent Company’s option under such
terms as the BOD may provide at the time of issuance. It shall also be re-issuable when
fully redeemed.

o Dividends on the preferred shares shall have a fixed rate of 8.25% per annum calculated in
respect of each share with reference to the Issue Price thereof in respect to each dividend
period.

o Dividends shall be payable every September 21, December 21, March 21 and June 21 of
each year (each a “Dividend Payment Date”). The dividends onthe Preferred Shares shall
be calculated on a 30/360 day basis and shall be paid quarterly in arrears on the last day of
each 3-month dividend period (each a Dividend Payment Date), as and if declared by the
BOD. If the Dividend Payment Date is not a banking day, dividends shall be paid on the
next succeeding banking day, without adjustment as to the amounts of dividends to be
paid.

o The preferred shares shall have priority in the payment of dividends at the stipulated rate at
the time of issuance and in the distribution of corporate assets in the event of liquidation
and dissolution of the Parent Company. As such, the BOD to the extent permitted by law
shall declare dividends each quarter sufficient to pay the equivalent dividend. Dividends on
the shares shall be cumulative. If for any reason the Parent Company’s BOD does not
declare a dividend on the Preferred Shares for a particular dividend period, the Parent
Company shall not pay a dividend for said dividend period. However, on any future
Dividend Payment Date on which dividends are declared, the holders of the shares shall
receive the dividends accrued and unpaid to the holders of the Preferred Shares prior to
such Dividend Payment Date. Holders of Preferred Shares shall not be entitled to
participate in any other further dividends beyond the dividends specifically payable on the
Preferred Shares.

Moreover, the subscription agreement requires that the Parent Company undertakes to
maintain a debt to equity ratio of 3:1 throughout the life of the preferred shares. The Parent
Company complied with this requirement in all applicable years presented.

On December 18, 2015, the Parent Company issued and listed its 20.0 million perpetual
preferred shares (P1.0 par value) Series 3 with the PSE (the 3rd tranche). The preferred
shares’ offer price is P100 per share and issued to various subscribers in two subseries —
PNX3A and PNX3B (see Note 30.2).
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The 3 tranche of preferred shares have the same features with the 1t and 2™ tranche of preferred
shares except for the following:

Dividend rates: PNX3A 7.43% per annum
PNX3B 8.11% per annum
Dividend payment dates: Dividends shall be payable on March 18, June 18, September 18

and December 18 on each year. The dividends on these shares
shall be calculated on a 30/360 day basis and shall be paid
quarterly in arrears on the last day of each three-month dividend
period based on the offer price calculated in respect of each share
for each dividend period, as and if declared by the Parent
Company’s BOD.

The subscription agreement does not include financial, affirmative and negative covenants.

On December 3, 2018, the Parent Company entered into a Subscription Agreement for a
perpetual preferred shares with RCBC Capital Corporation, which was taken from the unissued
portion of the authorized capital stock of the Parent Company. The preferred shares with the
same features under Note 28.1(e) were issued on December 5, 2018. The issuance was by way
of private placement of P2,000.0 million, consisting of 2,000.0 million preferred shares at an
offered price of P1,000.0 per share. Initial dividend rate is at 8.25% per annum. The subscription
agreement does not include financial, affirmative and negative covenants.

On November 7, 2019, the Parent Company issued and listed its 7.0 million perpetual preferred
shares (P1.0 par value) Series 4 with the PSE. The preferred shares’ offer price is P1,000.00 per
share and issued to various subscribers (see Note 30.2).

The Series 4 of preferred shares have the same features with the 3 tranches of preferred shares
except for the following:

Dividend rates: PNX4 7.5673% per annum (Initial dividend rate)

Unless the preferred shares are redeemed by the

Parent Company on the 3 anniversary of the issue date, the
applicable dividend rate shall be adjusted to the higher of the
initial dividend rate and the simple average of the yield designated
as “Final BVAL YTM” for the 7-year Republic of the Philippines
peso-denominated domestic government bonds, for three (3)
business days immediately preceding (and including) the

3 anniversary of the issue date plus 850 basis points.

Dividend payment dates: Dividends shall be payable on February 7, May 7, August 7 and
November 7 on each year. The dividends on these shares shall be
calculated on a 30/360 day basis and shall be paid quarterly in
arrears on the last day of each three-month dividend period based
on the offer price calculated in respect of each share for each
dividend period, as and if declared by the Parent Company’s BOD.

The subscription agreement does not include financial, affirmative and negative covenants.
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30.2 Listing with PSE

On July 11, 2007, the Parent Company offered a portion of its common stocks for listing with the PSE.
Number of common shares registered was 29.0 million with an issue price of P9.80.

The Parent Company’ successfully listed its perpetual preferred shares Series 3 with the PSE on
December 18, 2015 (see Note 30.1).

On November 7, 2019, the Parent Company has listed its Series 4 preferred shares with the PSE
(see Note 30.1).

The market prices of the shares as of December 31 are as follows:

2019 2018 2017
PNX (Common) P 194 P 10.74 P 12.88
PNX 3A (Preferred) 100.60 100.00 103.70
PNX 3B (Preferred) 106.70 102.00 108.80
PNX 4 (Preferred) 1,022.00 - -

30.3 Track Registration of Shares

The number of shareholders as of December 31 are as follows:

2019 2018 2017

Common 62 66 60
Preferred

a) Firsttranche - - -

b) Second tranche 1 1 1

c) PNX3A 5 5 5

d) PNX3B 4 4 4

e) PNX4 3 - -
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In accordance with the Revised Securities Regulation Commission Rule 68, Annex 68-K ; presented

below is a summary of the Parent Company’s track record of registration of securities.

Type of Stock No. of Shares
Transaction Common or Preferred Reqistered

Registered, not listed Common 10,000,000 P
Registered, not listed Common 40,000,000
Registered, not listed Common 50,000,000
Registered, not listed Common 300,000,000
Initial public offering Common

30% stock dividends Common

40% stock dividends Common

Placement SSS Common

Increase Common 350,000,000
Increase Preferred 50,000,000
40% stock dividends Common

30% stock dividends Common

Increase Common 1,750,000,000
50% stock dividends Common

CSC Acquisitions Common

Placements Common

30% stock dividends Common

Payment for PPHI subscription Common

Issuance Preferred

Redeemed treasury shares
Issuance
Issuance

Redeemed treasury shares
Redeemed treasury shares
Redeemed treasury shares
Redeemed treasury shares
Redeemed treasury shares
Redeemed treasury shares
Redeemed treasury shares
Redeemed treasury shares
Redeemed treasury shares
Redeemed treasury shares
Redeemed treasury shares
Redeemed treasury shares
Redeemed treasury shares
Redeemed treasury shares
Redeemed treasury shares

(Amounts carried forward)

Treasury Shares

Preferred
Preferred

Common
Common
Common
Common
Common
Common
Common
Common
Common
Common
Common
Common
Common
Common
Common

2,550,000,000

Issue/Offer Price
and Par Value

[{e] -
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Date of Issued and
Approval Outstanding
Par value 1/11/2004 2,500,000
Issue price
Par value 1/12/2006 25,000,000
Issue price
Par value 8/7/2006 13,500,000
Issue price
Par value 12/29/2006 75,000,000
Issue price
Par value 7/11/2007 29,000,000
Issue price
Par value 8/6/2008 43,000,198
Par value 8/3/2009 73,660,476
Par value 11/13/2009 7,500,000
Issue price
9/7/2010
9/7/2010
10/20/2010 107,664,266
5/6/2011 113,047,475
4/23/2012
4/26/2012 244,936,203
Par value 9/6/2012 171,250,798
Issue price
Par value 3/11/2013 130,000,000
Issue price
6/10/2013 329,717,816
Par value 10/8/2013 63,000,000
Issue price
Par value 9/21/2010 5,000,000
Issue price
12/20/2013 ( 5,000,000 )
Par value 12/20/2013 5,000,000
Par value 12/18/2015 20,000,000
Issue price
5/31/2016 ( 500,000 )
6/13/2016 ( 500,000 )
6/21/2016 ( 500,000 )
6/23/2016 ( 1,100,000 )
6/27/2016 ( 250,000)
6/28/2016 ( 500,000 )
6/30/2016 ( 900,000)
7/1/2016 ( 897,700)
71412016 ( 1,900)
71512016 ( 498,900 )
71712016 ( 228,400)
7/8/2016 ( 2,650,000 )
7/11/2016 ( 4,001,700
7/12/2016 ( 2,000,000)
7/14/2016 ( 3,000,000)

P1,436,248,632
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No. of Shares
Reqistered

(Amounts brought forward)

Redeemed treasury shares
Redeemed treasury shares
Redeemed treasury shares
Redeemed treasury shares
Redeemed treasury shares
Redeemed treasury shares
Redeemed treasury shares
Redeemed treasury shares
Redeemed treasury shares
Redeemed treasury shares
Redeemed treasury shares
Redeemed treasury shares
Redeemed treasury shares
Redeemed treasury shares
Redeemed treasury shares
Redeemed treasury shares
Redeemed treasury shares
Redeemed treasury shares
Redeemed treasury shares
Redeemed treasury shares
Redeemed treasury shares
Redeemed treasury shares
Redeemed treasury shares
Redeemed treasury shares
Redeemed treasury shares
Redeemed treasury shares
Redeemed treasury shares
Redeemed treasury shares
Redeemed treasury shares
Redeemed treasury shares
Redeemed treasury shares
Redeemed treasury shares
Redeemed treasury shares
Redeemed treasury shares
Redeemed treasury shares
Redeemed treasury shares
Redeemed treasury shares
Redeemed treasury shares
Redeemed treasury shares
Redeemed treasury shares
Redeemed treasury shares
Redeemed treasury shares
Redeemed treasury shares
Redeemed treasury shares
Redeemed treasury shares
Redeemed treasury shares
Redeemed treasury shares
Redeemed treasury shares
Redeemed treasury shares
Redeemed treasury shares

Amounts carried forward)

Common
Common
Common
Common
Common
Common
Common
Common
Common
Common
Common
Common
Common
Common
Common
Common
Common
Common
Common
Common
Common
Common
Common
Common
Common
Common
Common
Common
Common
Common
Common
Common
Common
Common
Common
Common
Common
Common
Common
Common
Common
Common
Common
Common
Common
Common
Common
Common
Common
Common

2,550,000,000

2,550,000,000

Issue/Offer Price
and Par Value

A A A

Date of Issued and

Approval Outstanding
P1,436,248,632
7/15/2016 ( 3,600,700)
7/19/2016 ( 1,000,000 )
7/22/2016 ( 500,000)
8/1/2016 ( 150,000 )
8/2/2016 ( 203,600)
8/5/2016 ( 500,000 )
8/11/2016 ( 200,000)
8/12/2016 ( 500,000 )
8/18/2016 ( 500,000 )
8/19/2016 ( 1,000,000 )
8/23/2016 ( 200,000)
8/26/2016 ( 500,000)
8/30/2016 ( 1,000,000 )
8/31/2016 ( 287,300)
9/1/2016 ( 700,000)
9/2/2016 ( 760,000)
9/6/2016 ( 500,000)
9/7/2016 ( 200,000)
9/8/2016 ( 298,800 )
9/9/2016 ( 1,000,000 )
9/13/2016 ( 500,000)
9/19/2016 ( 1,000,000 )
9/20/2016 ( 300,000)
9/21/2016 ( 600,000 )
9/23/2016 ( 200,000)
9/26/2016 ( 100,000 )
9/27/2016 ( 386,600 )
9/28/2016 ( 1,000,000 )
10/3/2016 ( 1,029,000 )
10/4/2016 ( 700,000)
10/5/2016 ( 1,000,000 )
10/6/2016 ( 600,000 )
10/7/2016 ( 1,000,000 )
10/10/2016 ( 650,000 )
10/12/2016 ( 500,000)
10/13/2016 ( 1,000,000 )
10/17/2016 ( 500,000)
10/20/2016 ( 500,000 )
10/21/2016 ( 500,000)
10/24/2016 ( 500,000 )
10/26/2016 ( 850,000 )
10/27/2016 ( 500,000 )
11/2/2016 ( 500,000 )
11/7/12016 ( 300,000)
11/9/2016 ( 300,000 )
11/10/2016 ( 100,000 )
11/16/2016 ( 100,000 )
11/17/2016 ( 300,000)
12/8/2016 ( 198,700 )
12/9/2016 ( 700,000)

P1,406,233,932
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Type of Stock No. of Shares
Transaction Common or Preferred Reqistered
(Amounts brought forward) 2,550,000,000
Redeemed treasury shares Common
Redeemed treasury shares Common
Redeemed treasury shares Common
Redeemed treasury shares Common
Redeemed treasury shares Common
Redeemed treasury shares Common
Redeemed treasury shares Common
Redeemed treasury shares Common
Redeemed treasury shares Common
Redeemed treasury shares Common
Redeemed treasury shares Common
Redeemed treasury shares Common
Redeemed treasury shares Common
Redeemed treasury shares Common
Redeemed treasury shares Common
Redeemed treasury shares Common
Redeemed treasury shares Common
Redeemed treasury shares Common
Redeemed treasury shares Common
Redeemed treasury shares Common
Redeemed treasury shares Common
Redeemed treasury shares Common
Redeemed treasury shares Common
Redeemed treasury shares Common
Redeemed treasury shares Common
Redeemed treasury shares Common
Redeemed treasury shares Common
Redeemed treasury shares Common
Redeemed treasury shares Common
Redeemed treasury shares Common
Redeemed treasury shares Common
Redeemed treasury shares Common
Redeemed treasury shares Common
Redeemed treasury shares Common
Redeemed treasury shares Common
Redeemed treasury shares Common
Redeemed treasury shares Common
Redeemed treasury shares Common
Redeemed treasury shares Common
Redeemed treasury shares Common
Redeemed treasury shares Common
Redeemed treasury shares Common
Redeemed treasury shares Common
Redeemed treasury shares Common
Redeemed treasury shares Common
Redeemed treasury shares Common
Issuance Common
Issuance Common
Sale of treasury shares Common

Amounts carried forward)

2,550,000,000

Issue/Offer Price
and Par Value

Date of Issued and
Approval Outstanding

RN\ U\ O\ O O OO G O O OO\ O N O U G G

P1.406,233,932

12/19/2016 ( 500,000 )
12/20/2016 (1,000,000 )
12/21/2016 (1,000,000 )
12/22/2016 500,000 )
12/23/2016 (3,000,000 )
12/27/2016 ( 513,100 )
12/28/2016 ( 336,900 )
1/4/2017 ( 300,000)
1/5/2017 ( 18,800 )
1/5/2017 ( 209,200 )
1/912017 ( 111,800 )
1/9/2017 ( 88,200)
1/10/2017 ( 200,000 )
1/10/2017 ( 300,000 )
11212017 ( 500,000 )
1/6/2017 ( 93,800)
1/6/2017 ( 206,200 )
1/12/2017 ( 10,000 )
1/12/2017 ( 125,500 )
1/12/2017 ( 14,500 )
1/13/2017 ( 200,000 )
1/11/2017 ( 999,000 )
1/11/2017 ( 107,000 )
1/11/2017 ( 193,000 )
1/16/2017 ( 286,000 )
1/17/2017 ( 200,000 )
1/23/2017 ( 300,000 )
1/24/2017 ( 500,000 )
1/25/2017 ( 500,000 )
1/27/2017 (1,000,000 )
1/31/2017 ( 300,000)
2/2/2017 ( 500,000 )
2/6/2017 ( 500,000 )
2/16/2017 ( 800,000 )
21232017 ( 750,000 )
2/24/2017 ( 500,000 )
2/27/2017 ( 300,000 )
3/21/2017 ( 500,000 )
3/23/2017 ( 187,100 )
3/27/2017 ( 500,000 )
3/31/2017 ( 1,000,000)
3/31/2017 ( 1,000,000)
3/31/2017 ( 500,000 )
4/12/2017 ( 500,000 )
4/18/2017 ( 500,000 )
5/3/2017 ( 1,000,000)
71112017 2,160,000
71112017 601,000

11/6/2017 70,193,400

P1.456,538,232
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Type of Stock No. of Shares Issue/Offer Price Date of Issued and
Transaction Common or Preferred Reqistered and Par Value Approval Outstanding

(Amounts brought forward) 2,550,000,000 P1,456,538,232

Issuance Common 1 5/23/2018 73,000

Issuance Common 1 6/30/2018 2,128,000

Redeemed treasury shares Common 1 9/12/2018 ( 25,000,000 )

Issuance Common 1 9/30/2018 447,000

Redeemed treasury shares Common 1 11/21/2018 ( 3,500,000)

Redeemed treasury shares Common 1 11/21/2018 ( 2,500,000)

Issuance Preferred 1 Parvalue 12/5/2018 2,000,000
1,000 Issue price

Issuance Common 1 12/31/2018 118,000

Redeemed treasury shares Treasury Shares 1 12/20/2018 ( 5,000,000 )

Issuance Common 1 Parvalue 7/1/2019 2,572,000

Redeemed treasury shares Preferred 1 Parvalue 8/15/2019 ( 500,000)
1,000 Issue price

Issuance Common 1 Parvalue 11/4/2019 328,000

Redeemed treasury shares Preferred 1 Parvalue 11/6/2019 ( 1,500,000 )
1,000 Issue price

Issuance Preferred 1 Parvalue 11/8/2019 7,000,000
1,000 Issue price

Total 2,550,000,000 P1,433,204,232

30.4 Additional Paid-in Capital

In 2019, the Parent Company issued 7.0 million of its preferred shares at P1,000.00 per share.
Premiums received in excess of the par value amounting to P6,784.7 million, net of stock issue cost
of P208.3 million, were recorded as part of Additional Paid-in Capital account in the 2019
consolidated statement of financial position. In addition, the Parent Company also redeemed

2.0 million shares at P1,000.0 per share for a total consideration paid of P2,000.0 million. The
payment in excess of the par value of the redeemed share was recorded as reduction under the
Additional Paid-in Capital account amounting to P1,998.0 million.

In 2019, the Parent Company issued 2.9 million of its common shares at exercise price of P5.68 per
stock option resulting to an additional premium of P22.4 million (Notes 30.1 and 30.7). The fair value of
stock options exercised in 2019, which was previously recorded as part of Retained Earnings was
reclassified to Additional Paid-in Capital account in the consolidated statements of financial position.
The total amount reclassified from Retained Earnings amounted to P8.9 million, which is computed at
P3.05 per stock option.

In 2018, the Parent Company issued 2.0 million of its preferred shares at P1,000.0 per share.
Premiums received in excess of the par value amounting to P1,998.0 million were recorded as part of
Additional Paid-in Capital account in the 2018 consolidated statement of financial position.

In addition, the Parent Company also redeemed 5,000.0 million shares at P100.0 per share for a total
consideration paid of P500.0 million. The payment in excess of the par value of the redeemed share
was recorded as reduction under the Additional Paid-in Capital account amounting to P495.0 million.

In 2018 and 2017, the Parent Company issued 2.8 million of its common shares at exercise price of
P5.68 per stock option resulting to an additional premium of P21.4 million and P12.9 million,
respectively (see Notes 30.1 and 30.7). The fair value of stock options exercised in 2018 and 2017,
which was previously recorded as part of Retained Earnings was reclassified to Additional Paid-in
Capital account in the consolidated statements of financial position. The total amount reclassified from
Retained Earnings amounted to P8.4 million, which is computed at P3.05 per stock option.

In 2017, the Parent Company redeemed 70.2 million of its treasury shares at a total cost of P807.2 million.
Premiums received in excess of the cost of treasury shares amounting to P367.1 million were recorded
under Additional Paid-in Capital account in the 2017 consolidated statement of financial position

(see Note 30.1).
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In 2015, the Parent Company issued 20.0 million of its preferred shares at P100.0 per share.
Premiums received in excess of the par value during the public offering amounting to P1,952.9 million
were recorded under Additional Paid-in Capital account in the 2015 consolidated statement of financial
position.

In 2013, the Parent Company issued 130.0 million of its common shares at P9.40 per share

and 63.0 million common shares at P5.10 per share. The excess of the par value for such subscriptions
amounting to P1,350.3 million was recorded as part of Additional Paid-in Capital account in the 2013
consolidated statement of changes in equity. In addition, direct cost of the share issuances amounting
to P34.1 million was deducted from the Additional Paid-in Capital account.

In 2012, the Parent Company issued 171.3 million shares in favor of Udenna Management and
Resources Corporation (UMRC) in relation to the share-for-share swap acquisition of Chelsea Shipping
Corporation (CSC). The business combination under common control was accounted for under pooling
of interest-type method. The excess of par value of such issuance amounted to P1,248.9 million was
recorded as part of the beginning balance of the Additional Paid-in Capital account.

In 2010, the Parent Company issued 5.0 million of its preferred shares at P100 per share. The excess
of par value for such subscription amounting to P495.0 million was recorded as part of Additional
Paid-in Capital account in the consolidated statements of financial position. In addition, the excess of
the selling price over the acquisition cost of the treasury shares sold in 2010 also constitutes the
Additional Paid-in Capital account. The preferred shares issued in 2010 were redeemed on
December 20, 2013 and on the same date, the same share and value of preferred shares were
issued, except for the reduced rate.

In 2009, the Social Security System has bought an initial 2.83% stake in the Parent Company
representing 7.5 million subscribed common shares for P42.0 million or at P5.60 per share.

The excess of par value for such subscription amounting to P34.5 million was recorded under Additional
Paid-in Capital account in the consolidated statements of financial position.

In 2007, the Parent Company listed its shares of stock with PSE. Premiums received in excess of the
par value during the public offering amounting to P227.1 million were recorded under Additional Paid-in
Capital account in the consolidated statements of financial position.

30.5 Revaluation Reserves
The components and reconciliation of items of other comprehensive income presented in the

consolidated statements of changes in equity at their aggregate amount under Revaluation Reserves
account, are shown below and in the succeeding page.

Actuarial Gain

Revaluation or Loss on Accumulated
of Defined Benefit Translation
Land Obligation Adjustment Total

Balance as of January 1, 2019
As previously reported P 853,892,230 (P 26,381,802) P - P 827,510,428
Prior period adjustment

[see Note 2.1(b)] - - 24,928,394 24,928,394

As restated 853,892,230 ( 26,381,802) 24,928,394 852,438,822
Revaluation increment 145,379,972 - - 145,379,972
Remeasurements of post-employment

defined benefit obligation - ( 39,889,840 ) - ( 39,889,840 )
Translation adjustment - - ( 69,712,613 ) ( 69,712,613 )
Tax income (expense) ( 43,613,991) 11,966,951 - ( 31,647,040)
Other comprehensive income (loss)

after tax 101,765,981 ( 27,922,889) ( 69,712,613) 4,130,479

Transfer to retained earnings due to
change in the use of land
(see Notes 11 and 16) ( 49,685,423 ) - - ( 49,685,423 )
Translation adjustment attributable
to non-controlling interests ( 14,903 ) ( 14,903 )

( 49.685.423 ) - ( 14,903) ( 49,700,326 )

Balance as of December 31, 2019 P__905972788 (P_54,304,691) (P__44.799,122) P___806,868,975
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Actuarial Gain

Revaluation or Loss on Accumulated
of Defined Benefit Translation
Land Obligation Adjustment Total

Balance as of January 1, 2018
As previously reported P - (P 2,306,049) P - (P 2,306,049 )
Prior period adjustment

[see Note 2.1(b)] - - 3,791,486) ( 3,791,486)

As restated - ( 2,306,049) ( 3,791,486 ) ( 6,097,535)
Revaluation increment 1,219,846,043 - - 1,219,846,043
Remeasurements of post-employment

defined benefit obligation - ( 34,393,933) - 34,393,933)
Translation adjustment - - 28,719,880 28,719,880
Tax income (expense) ( 365,953,813 ) 10,318,180 - ( 355,635,633 )
Other comprehensive income (loss)

after tax 853,892,230 ( 24,075,753 ) 28,719,880 858,536,357
Balance as of December 31, 2018 P__ 853,892,230 (P 26,381,802) P 24928394 P 852,438,822
Balance as of January 1, 2017 P - (P 12,148,102) P - (P 12,148,102)
Remeasurements of post-employment

defined benefit obligation - 14,060,076 - 14,060,076
Translation adjustment - - ( 3,791,486 ) ( 3,791,486 )
Tax expense - ( 4,218,023) - ( 4,218,023)
Other comprehensive income (loss)

after tax - 9,842,053 ( 3,791,486) 6,050,567
Balance as of December 31, 2017 P - (P 2,306,049) (P 3,791,486) (P 6,097,535)

30.6 Retained Earnings

On March 14, 2019, the Parent Company’s BOD approved the declaration and payment of common
share cash dividends of 15 centavos per share totalling to P210.5 million, record date of April 8, 2019.
A total of P312.5 million cash dividends were also declared and distributed to 2" and 3™ tranche, and
private placement preferred stockholders in 2019. No stock dividends were declared and distributed in
2019.

On January 26, 2018, the Parent Company’'s BOD approved the declaration and payment of common
share cash dividends of 15 centavos per share totalling to P214.7 million, record date of April 2, 2018.
A total of P194.9 million cash dividends were also declared and distributed to 2" and 3™ tranche
preferred stockholders in 2018. No stock dividends were declared and distributed in 2018.

On January 25, 2017, the Parent Company’s BOD approved the declaration and payment of common
share cash dividends of 1 centavo per share totalling to P136.2 million, record date of March 30, 2017.
A total of P194.9 million cash dividends were also declared and distributed to 2n and 3 tranche
preferred stockholders in 2017. No stock dividends were declared and distributed in 2017.

30.7 ESOP
On January 24, 2013, the Parent Company’s BOD approved the ESOP for its eligible employees.

The initial offering date of the option was on July 1, 2016 and will vest five years from the date of grant.
Pursuant to this ESOP, on July 1, 2016, the Parent Company granted share options to certain key
executives to subscribe to 24.5 million common shares of the Parent Company equivalent to 2.2% of
the total issued shares, at an exercise price of P5.68 per share.

Stock options will be granted in two tranches until July 1. 2021. The allocation for Tranche 1 every
year is computed at 10.0% of the total available shares for exercise. Meanwhile, the allocation for
Tranche 2 is based on the forecasted assessment of the executives’ performance rating for five years.
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The fair value of the option granted was estimated using a variation of the Black-Scholes valuation
model that takes into account factors specific to the ESOP. The following principal assumptions were
used in the valuation:

Life of the option 5 years
Current share price at grant date P 6.25
Exercise price at grant date P 5.68
Standard deviation of the rate of return 0.4
Risk-free interest rate 3.80%

The underlying expected volatility was determined by reference to historical date of the Group’s
shares over a period of time consistent with the option life.

The underlying expected volatility was determined by reference to historical date of the Company’s
shares over a period of time consistent with the option life.

A total of P8.9 million, P7.2 million and P11.6 million share-based executive compensation is
recognized in 2019, 2018 and 2017, respectively, and presented as part of Employee benefits under
Selling and Administrative Expenses account in 2019, 2018 and 2017 consolidated statements of
comprehensive income, respectively, with a corresponding credit to Retained Earnings account.

30.8 Capital Management Objectives, Policies and Procedures
The Group’s capital management objectives are:
e To ensure the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern; and,
e To provide an adequate return to shareholders by pricing products and services commensurately
with the level of risk.
The Group monitors capital on the basis of the carrying amount of equity as presented on the face of

the consolidated statements of financial position. Capital for the reporting periods under review is
summarized as follows:

2019 2018
Total liabilities P 65,034,622,017 P 48,846,319,163
Total equity 21,922,755,249 15,973,672,857
Debt-to-equity ratio 3.0:1.0 3.0:1.0

The increase of the total assets and liabilities in 2019 is due to: 1) the business combination, wherein
the Group acquired the assets and assumed the liabilities of the new subsidiaries acquired; 2) increase
in interest-bearing loans and borrowings utilized for the acquisition; and, 3) impact on adoption of

PFRS 16, leases, where the Group recognized right-of-use assets and the related lease liabilities. The
increase in equity is due to the issuance of the Parent Company’s fourth series of (PNX 4) preference
shares, the net effect business combination, revaluation of land under Property, Plant and Equipment
and appraisal of its investment properties, and the net profit in 2018 less the cash dividend declared and
paid during the period for common shares.

The Group’s goal in capital management is to maintain a debt-to-equity structure ratio that is in line with
the Group’s covenants related to its bank borrowings.

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to its overall financing structure, i.e., equity and
financial liabilities. The Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of
changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.
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EARNINGS PER SHARE

EPS were computed as follows:

2019 2018 2017
a) Net profit pertaining to
common shares P 853,982,096 P 2,455,907,552 P 1,521,422,847
b) Net profit attributable to
common shares and
potential common shares 853,982,096 2,455,907,552 1,521,422,847
c¢) Weighted average number of
outstanding common shares 1,404,437,174 1,424,576,265 1,372,487,454
d) Weighted average number of
outstanding common and
potential common shares 1,405,612,929 1,426,593,300 1,377,270,489
Basic EPS (a/c) P 0.61 P 1.72 P 1.1
Diluted EPS (b/d) P 0.61 P 1.72 P 1.10

The potential dilutive common shares totalling 1,175,755, 2,017,035 and 4,783,035 shares in relation
to the unexercised share warrants were considered in the computation of diluted EPS in 2019, 2018
and 2017.

SEGMENT REPORTING
32.1 Business Segments

In identifying its operating segments, management generally follows the Group’s product and service
lines, which represent the main products and services provided by the Group, namely fuels and
lubricant sales (trading segment), depot and logistics services, shipping and cargo services and real
estate sales. These are also the bases of the Group in reporting its primary segment information.

(a) Trading segment is engaged in marketing, merchandising, purchasing, selling, dealing,
acquiring, disposing and distribution of goods and wares such as but not limited to petroleum
products (on wholesale basis), adhesives, glues, bonding agents, epoxy resins, lubricants and
other products.

(b) Depot and logistics services segment is engaged in operating of oil depots, storage facilities and
provides logistics services to various entities.

(c) Real estate segment is involved in real estate development, management and operations.
32.2 Segment Assets and Liabilities

Segment assets include all operating assets used by a segment and consist principally of operating
cash, receivables, inventories and property, plant and equipment, and other assets, net of allowances
and provisions. Segment liabilities include all operating liabilities and consist principally of trade and
other payables, interest-bearing loans and borrowings, and other liabilities. Segment assets and
liabilities do not include deferred tax assets or liabilities.

32.3 Intersegment Transactions

Segment revenues, expenses and performance include sales and purchases between segments and
between geographical segments. Such sales and purchases are eliminated upon combination.

The tables presented in the succeeding page present revenue and profit information regarding
business segments of the Group for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 and certain asset
and liability information regarding industry segments as of December 31, 2019 and 2018

(in thousands).



TOTAL REVENUES

Sales to external customers
Intersegment sales

Total revenues

COSTS AND OTHER
OPERATING EXPENSES
Cost of sales and services
excluding depreciation
and amortization
Depreciation and amortization

SEGMENT OPERATING
PROFIT (LOSS)

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Segment assets
Segment liabilities

OTHER SEGMENT
INFORMATION

Interest expense
Interest income
Income tax expense
Equity share in
net income
of joint venture
Fair value loss
on financial liabilities
at FVTPL

Sale of Goods
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Fuel Service and Other Revenue

Trading Depot and Logistics Real Estate Total
2019 2018 2017 2019 2018 2017 2019 2018 2017 2019 2018 2017
P 96,501,653 P 87,672,723 P 44,148,952 P 1,205,745 P 824,182 P 301,403 P 115,711 P 113,863 P 92,627 P 97,823,109 P 88,610,768 P 44,542,982
42,720,298 _ 20,139,519 4,180,373 333,355 209,985 - 18,519 16,721 22,338 43,072,172 20,366,225 4,202,711
139,221,951 _ 107,812,242 48,329,325 1,539,100 1,034,167 301,403 134,230 130,584 114,965 140,895,281 _ 108,976,993 48,745,693
134,268,949 102,895,593 45,419,830 674,835 958,174 437,631 20,882 36,424 46,303 134,964,666 103,890,191 45,903,764
1,429,361 1,047,919 841,340 6,849 8,130 9,040 649 700 700 1,436,859 1,056,749 851,080
135,698,310 _ 103,943,557 46,261,170 681,684 966,304 446,671 21,531 37,124 47,003 136,401,525 _ 104,946,940 46,754,844
P_3,523,641 P 3,868,685 P 2,068,155 P 857,416 P 67,863 (P__145,268) P___ 112,699 P 93,460 P 67,962 P 4,493,756 P 4,030,053 P 1,990,849
P 99,840,747 P 70,099,484 P 567,205 P 564,287 P 1,421,142 P 415,081 P 101,829,094 P 71,078,852
73,370,565 51,410,451 416,632 421,481 1,312,806 318,206 75,100,003 52,150,138
P 2,582,919 P 1,376,995 P 780,917 P - P - - P 80,990 P - P - P 2,663,909 P 1,376,995 P 780,917
32,307 28,663 15,770 - - - 3,110 2,762 2,711 35,417 31,425 18,481
338,042 600,167 404,457 4,310 5,642 2,761 5,307 779 849 347,659 606,588 408,067
16,510 7,342 - - - - - - - 16,510 7,342 -
464,161 - - - - - - - - 464,161 - -
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32.1 Reconciliations

Presented below is a reconciliation of the Group’s segment information to the key financial information
presented in its consolidated financial statement (in thousands).

2019 2018 2017
Revenues
Total segment revenues P 140,895,281 P 108,976,993 P 48,745,693
Elimination of intersegment
revenues ( 43,072,172) ( 20,366,225) ( 4.202.711)
Revenues as reported
in profit or loss P 97,823,109 P 88,610,768 P 44,542,982
Profit or loss
Segment operating
profit P 4,493,756 P 4,030,063 P 1,990,849
Fair value on investment
property 71,570 624,941 -
Equity share in net income
of joint venture 16,510 7,342 -
Excess of fair value of
net assets acquired
over acquisition costs - - 650,182
Other unallocated income 12,100 87,267 36,853
Operating profit as reported
in profit or loss 4,593,936 4,749,603 2,677,884
Finance costs ( 2,838,295) ( 1,449,248) ( 804,708)
Finance income 86,596 73,375 56,313
Profit before tax as reported
in profit or loss P 1,842,237 P 3,373,730 P 1,929,490
Assets
Segment assets P 101,829,094 P 71,078,852
Right-of-use assets — net 1,142,726 -
Deferred tax assets — net 155,781 147,485
Elimination of intercompany
accounts ( 16,170,224) ( 6,566,058)
Total assets reported in the
consolidated statements of
financial position P__ 86,957,377 P 64,660,279
Liabilities
Segment liabilities P 75,100,003 P 52,150,138
Lease liabilities 1,096,852 -
Deferred tax liabilities — net 748,399 631,776
Elimination of intercompany
accounts ( 11,910,632) ( 4,095,308)

Total liabilities as reported in the
consolidated statements of

financial position P__65,034,622 P__ 48,686,606
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32.2 Geographical Segments

The Group has identified three geographical areas as operating segments, which represent the
location of the Group’s operations in 2019. The Group is operating in the Philippines, Singapore and
Vietnam. In 2018 and 2017, the Group assessed that geographical segments other than the
Philippines are not significant and relevant to present separately.

Presented below are the reportable geographical segments of the Group (in thousands) in 2019.

Philippines Singapore Vietnam Total

TOTAL REVENUES
Sales to external customers P 71,800,534 P 24,059,656 P 1,962,919 P 97,823,109
Intersegment sales 496,997 42,575,175 - 43,072,172
Total revenues 72,297,531 66,634,831 1,962,919 140,895,281
COSTS AND OTHER
OPERATING EXPENSES
Cost of sales and services

excluding depreciation

and amortization 24,234,193 109,153,582 1,576,891 134,964,666
Depreciation and amortization 1,265,861 106,909 64,089 1,436,859

25,500,054 109,260,491 1,640,980 136,401,525

SEGMENT OPERATING
PROFIT (LOSS) P 46,797,477 (P 42,625.660) P 321,939 P 4,493,756
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Segment assets P 87,300,573 P 13,026,609 P 1,501,912 P 101,829,094

Segment liabilities 62,476,882 11,283,239 1,339,882 75,100,003

33. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

33.1 Capital Commitments

As of December 31, 2019, the Group has commitments of more than P6,000.0 million for expansion on
petroleum retail network, depot, terminalling and logistics facilities, information technology infrastructure
and other major expansions related to its business development. The Group has a network of

655 operating retail service stations as of December 31, 2019. An additional of 55 retail service
stations are under various stages of completion as of December 31, 2019.

The Group plans to expand further its petroleum retail service stations and carry out its investments in
its subsidiaries to put up depot and terminalling facilities in strategic locations and complete its chain of
logistical support to strengthen its foothold in the industry.

In addition, in view of PLPI's development and innovation to provide legal, safer and cheaper alternative
to the LPG refilled butane canisters, PLPI has entered in 2018 a purchase contract of around

P100.0 million capital commitments to purchase Refillable Welded Stainless Steel (RWSS) LPG
cylinders. Further, starting 2017, PLPI has about P1.0 billion commitments for purchase of LPG
cylinders to augment its current operations and re-establish its market in the Luzon areas.

33.2 Unused LCs

As of December 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018, the Parent Company has unused LCs amounting to
P12,620.2 million and P17,111.3 million, respectively (see Note 18.4).
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33.3 Operating Lease Commitments — Group as Lessee (2018)

The Group is a lessee under several operating leases. The leases have terms ranging from

5 to 15 years, with renewal options, and include annual escalation rates ranging from 3.00% to
10.00%. The future minimum rentals payable under these cancelable operating leases as of
December 31, 2018 are presented as follows:

Within one year P 502,525,573
After one year but not

more than five years 1,714,046,926
More than five years 2,376,914,724

P_4,593,487,223

Total rent expense for the years 2018 and 2017 amounted to P865.9 million and P654.1 million,
respectively (see Note 24).

33.4 Operating Lease Commitments — Group as Lessor

The Group is a lessor under several operating leases with third parties. The leases have terms
ranging from 1 to 5 years, with renewal options, and include annual escalation rates ranging

from 5.00% to 10.00%. The future minimum rentals receivables under these cancelable operating
leases are presented below.

2019 2018
Within one year P 121,127,284 P 97,563,919
After one year but not
more than five years 255,243,357 135,545,769
More than five years 70,121,251 3,545,631

P__ 446491892 P 236,655,319

Rent income in 2019, 2018 and 2017 amounting to P115.7 million, P113.9 million and P92.6 million,
respectively, is presented as Rent Income in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income.

Rent income recognized in 2019 on lease of investment properties and sublease of
right-of-use assets amounted to P20.2 million and P95.5 million, respectively. No impairment on
right-of-use assets related to subleased properties were recognized in 2019.

33.5 PFM'’s Franchise
(a) PFM as Franchisee

PFM has area franchise agreement with FamilyMart Co. Ltd., whereby the latter will grant exclusive
rights to the PFM for operating the FamilyMart stores in the Philippines as an Area Franchisor using the
FamilyMart System for a period of ten years and six months, renewable at the option of the PFM.

The agreement provides for an initial franchise fee of US$1.0 million and royalty fees amounting to
1.00% of gross sales, exclusive of VAT, of all FamilyMart stores computed at the end of every month.
On January 2, 2013, the PFM paid the initial franchise fee amounting to P41.1 million.

On December 11, 2017, as part of the acquisition of PFM by the Parent Company, the franchise
agreement was renewed for ten years starting on the date of renewal at no additional cost to PFM. As
of December 31, 2018, the carrying value of the franchise fee amounted to P18.5 million and is
presented as part of Intangible Assets in the 2018 consolidated statement of financial position

(see Note 13).
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Royalty expense recognized by PFM in 2019 and 2018, amounted to P13.21 million P12.79 million, and
is presented under Selling and Administrative Expenses in the 2019 and 2018 consolidated statements
of comprehensive income (see Note 24). As of December 31, 2019, PFM recognized royalty payable
amounting to P1.1 million as part of Others under Trade and Other Payables in the 2019 consolidated
statement of comprehensive income (see Note 20). There are no outstanding payable in 2018 relating
to the royalty.

(b) PFM as Franchisor

In December 2014, PFM started entering into franchise agreements whereby, as an Area Franchisor,
PFM grants exclusive rights to qualified persons and entities (Franchisees) to own and operate
FamilyMart stores at locations in the Philippines approved by it. The agreement is for a term of five
years unless earlier terminated by either party and provides for a one-time franchise fee plus monthly
royalties to PFM equivalent to a percentage of gross profit. Cash receipts of the franchised stores from
merchandise sales are initially deposited to PFM. Deductions are made from this fund for the cost of
merchandise sales, share of PFM on the store’s monthly gross profit and other costs. The remaining
balance is subsequently remitted to the franchisees.

One-time franchise fees, which pertain to the initial investment of the franchisees are also presented as
part of Non-trade Payables under Trade and Other Payables in the 2018 consolidated statement of
financial position until PFM has performed initial services as franchisor as agreed under the agreement.
As of December 31, 2019, there are no outstanding liabilities. Revenues from franchise fees in 2019
and 2018 amounted to P64.6 million and P56.0 million, respectively, and is presented as part of Fuel
service and other revenues in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income with the
corresponding outstanding receivable from the franchisees amounting to P14.7 million, presented as
part of Non-trade Receivables under Trade and Other Receivables in the 2019 consolidated financial
statements.

33.6 Lawsuits

In the opinion of the Group’s management and its legal counsel, the eventual liability under these
lawsuits or claims, if any, will not have a material or adverse effect on the Group’s consolidated financial
position and its results of operations.

(@) InMay 2011, the Bureau of Customs (BOC) filed before the Department of Justice (DOJ) a
complaint against the Group’s President and Chief Executive Officer and other respondents for
alleged violation of Sections 3602, 2501(1)(1) & (5), 1801, 1802 and 3604 of the Tariff and
Customs Code of the Philippines. In November 2012, the DOJ dismissed the case for lack of
probable cause against all respondents. In April 2013, the DOJ, upon motion for reconsideration
filed by the BOC, reversed its earlier resolution and recommended the filing of Criminal
Information against the respondents. Criminal Information for alleged violations of Section 3602,
in relation to Sections 3601, 2530 1 (I) & 5, 1801 and 3604 of the Tariff and Customs Code of the
Philippines were filed before the Regional Trial Courts (RTC) of Batangas and Davao City in
August 2013. Separately, in September and October 2013, RTC Batangas and Davao City,
respectively, have dismissed all charges against the Parent Company’s President and Chief
Executive Officer.

(b)  On October 7, 2013, the DOJ filed a Motion for Reconsideration with Motion for Inhibition of
Judge Ruben A. Galvez dated October 7, 2013 with RTC Batangas. On the other hand, on
November 15, 2013, the DOJ filed a Motion for Reconsideration with Motion for Inhibition of
Judge George A. Omelio dated November 15, 2013 with RTC Davao. On December 6, 2013,
RTC Batangas issued an Order dated December 6, 2013 denying the DOJ’s Motion for
Reconsideration with Motion for Inhibition. On July 7, 2014, RTC Batangas issued a Certificate of
Finality of even date stating that its Order dated December 6, 2013 affirming the Order dated
September 17, 2013 is now final and executory since no appeal was filed.
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On August 18, 2014, RTC Davao issued an order of even date denying the DOJ’s Motion for
Reconsideration. The Office of the Solicitor General, on behalf of the People of the Philippines,
filed the Petition for Certiorari dated October 27, 2014 with the Court of Appeals seeking the
reversal of the Orders dated October 4, 2013 and August 18, 2014 issued by public respondents
Judges Omelio and Hon. Loida S. Posadas-Kahulugan. On October 24, 2016, the Group
received the decision of the Court of Appeals denying the Petition for Certiorari dated October 27,
2014. On November 10, 2016, Mr. Uy received a copy of the Motion for Reconsideration filed
with the CA.

A Motion for Reconsideration filed by the DOJ and the BOC, seeking the reversal of the decision
dated July 25, 2014 of the Court of Appeals’ Special Former Special Tenth (10th) Division in the
Consolidated Petitions of Dennis Uy, docketed as CA-G.R. SP No. 131702, and Jorlan Cabanes,
docketed as CA-G.R. SP No. 129740, with the Court of Appeals, which involve the same basic
facts and issues as those raised in CA-G.R. SP No. 06500-MIN. On July 23, 2015, the Group
received a resolution denying the said Motion for Reconsideration.

On October 8, 2015, the SOJ and the BOC filed a Petition for Review on Certiorari with the
Supreme Court (SC), seeking to set aside the Decision dated July 24, 2014 and Resolution dated
July 2, 2015 issued by the CA. On October 12, 2016, the Court denied the Petition for Certiorari
and further denied petitioner’s Motion for Reconsideration on January 25, 2017.

On April 4, 2017, the Group received a copy of the Petition for Review on Certiorari dated

March 27, 2017 filed by petitioner docketed as GR No. 229705 with the SC, Manila, 3rd Division.
As of December 31, 2017, the Group is awaiting for the SC’s issuance on the resolution directing
the Group to file Comment to the Petition for Review.

A qualified theft case was filed against former crew of M/T Chelsea Denise Rodrigo Yana, et al
on June 29, 2015 with the RTC Branch 15 for taking and misappropriation of substantial portion
of the Group’s cargo consisting of 23,500.9 Liters of diesel worth P754,353 on June 26, 2015 at
the Davao Terminal. On January 20, 2017, the Court grants (1) Prosecution’s Motion for
Reconsideration that the testimony of Joel Sularte shall remain as part of the records of the case;
and (2) application of the accused to post bail amounting to P100,000. On February 8, 2017, a
Motion for Partial Reconsideration of the Court’s order was filed by the Group seeking the
reversal of the approval of the application of the accused to post bail.

Several grave coercion complaints were filed against Norman Navarro, et al., along with the
BOD of the Group (including Dennis Uy and Cherylyn Uy) for the closure of five Phoenix Fuel
Stations namely, Phoenix Bankerohan, Cabaguio, Boulevard, Acacia and Ponciano Stations.
On July 19 and 27, 2016, complaint was dismissed for Acacia, Ponciano and Bankerohan
Stations as respondent’s action could not be considered unlawful or illegal. On December 29,
2017, the Petition for Review was dismissed in a Joint Resolution issued by the Regional
Director Janet Grace Fabrero.

Six separate cases of libel against the BOD of the Group and the Editors of newspapers as the
alleged authors/originators for an alleged libelous Notice posted in the Mindanao Daily Mirror/
Sunstar Davao and other local newspapers. On July 19, 2017, all cases and Motion for
Reconsideration were dismissed in a resolution dated June 19, 2017.

Several cases of Grave Coercion, Robbery and Libel were filed against the Sales Team of
South Mindanao and other officers, including all the members of the BOD except for Domingo
T. Uy, Paul G. Dominguez and Carolina Inez Angela S. Reyes, in relation to the Parent
Company'’s closure and take-over of six Phoenix Fuel Stations in Davao City. To date, the
cases have been dismissed by the City Prosecutor’s office of Davao City.

The Parent Company’s Independent Director, Monico V. Jacob, in his capacity as then
Chairman of Petron Corporation, was impleaded in a case together with some government
officials for Violation of Republic Act 3019 otherwise known as the Anti-Graft and Corrupt
Practices Act involving tax credit payments. The case has been dismissed by the
Sandiganbayan, Fourth Division, Quezon City in a Resolution dated March 2, 2017.
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Other court cases typical and customary in the course of the business operations of the Group such as
those, among others, involving collection, qualified theft and reckless imprudence have been filed by
and against the Group by and against its employees and/or third parties.

In the normal course of business, the Group makes various commitments and incurs certain
contingent liabilities that are not given recognition in the consolidated financial statement. As of
December 31, 2019 and 2018, the management believes that losses, if any, that may arise from
these commitments and contingencies will not have material effects on the consolidated financial
statements.

EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD

34.1 Assignment and Transfer of Retail Stations to PPMI

On January 27, 2020, the BOD of the Parent Company authorized the management to assign and
transfer 72 Company-Owned Dealer-Operated (CODO) retail stations worth P700.0 million from the
Parent Company to PPMI as part of additional investment in PPMI.

34.2 Subsequent Recognition of Settlement Gains on Purchases subject to Hedge Instruments
In January 2020, PNX SG recognized P166.6 million forward contract settlement gains in relation to the
fair value loss on derivative financial instrument recognized by PNX SG for the month of December

2019 amounting to P88.0 million. This pertain to purchases and sale transactions of PNX SG of
20,149 metric tons of LPG to third parties.






P-H-O-E-N-I-X Petroleum Philippines, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Financial Soundness Indicators
December 31, 2019

Ratio
Ratio Formula 2019 2018
Current Ratio Current Assets
Current Liabilities 0.84 1.10
Acid test ratio Cash and cash equivalents + Trade and other
receivables - net + Due from related parties 0.51 0.70
Current Liabities
Cash Ratio Cash and Cash Eq.L.uvaIents 0.19 0.23
Current Liablities
Solvency Ratio After Tax Net Profit + Depreciation 0.05 0.08
Long term liabilities + Short term Liabilities ’ ’
Debt to Equity Ratio Total L|a.b|I|t|es 297 3.05
Equity
Debt Service Coverage Ratio Net Operating Income
1.16 1.63
Net Interest Expense + Long-term repayments
Asset to Equity Ratio Total A§sets 3.99 4.06
Equity
Interest Rate Coverage Ratio Earnings Before Interest and Taxes
1.71 3.45
Interest Expense
Gross Profit Margin Sales - Cost of Goods Sold 0.11 0.11
Sales
Return on Assets Net Income 0.02 0.04
Total Assets
Return on Equity Net Income 0.07 017

Equity
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P-H-O-E-N-I-X Petroleum Philippines, Inc. and Subsidiaries
List of Supplementary Information
December 31, 2019

Schedule Content Page No.

Schedules Required under Annex 68-J of the Revised Securities Regulation Code Rule 6t

A Financial Assets 1
B Amounts Receivable from Directors, Officers, Employees,

Related Parties and Principal Stockholders (Other than Related Parties) 2
C Amounts Receivable from Related Parties which are Eliminated during

the Consolidation of Financial Statements 3
D Long-term Debt 4
E Indebtedness to Related Parties (Long-term Loans from Related Companies’ N/A
F Guarantees of Securities of Other Issuers N/A
G Capital Stock 5

Other Required Information
Reconciliation of Retained Earnings Available for Dividend Declaratior 6

Map Showing the Relationship Between the Company and its Related Entities 7



P-H-O-E-N-I-X Petroleum Philippines, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Schedule A - Financial Assets
December 31, 2019

| Description | Carrying Value |

Fair Value

Loans and receivables:

Cash and cash equivalents P 9,810,770,115 P 9,810,770,115
Trade and other receivables - net 15,617,098,103 15,617,098,103
Due from related parties 1,986,811 1,986,811
Construction bond 6,727,753 6,727,753
Restricted deposits 54,462,326 54,462,326
Refundable rental deposits 323,634,283 323,634,283

P 25,814,679,391 P 25,814,679,391

Notes:

1) There are no other financial assets applicable to the Group, except for loans and receivables.

2) Trade and other receivables excludes advances to suppliers and advances to subject to liquidation.

3) Construction bond is included as part of Others under Prepayments and Other Current Assets.
4) Net of allowance for impairment losses of P655,639,182.



P-H-O-E-N-I-X Petroleum Philippines, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Schedule B - Amounts Receivable from Directors, Officers, Employees, Related Parties and Principal Stockholders (Other than Related Parties)

December 31, 2019

Ending Balance
Name and Designation of debtor Balance at l?eg inning Additions Amounts collected Reclassification Current Non-current Balance ?t end of
of period period

Calaca Industrial Seaport Corporation P 933,096,022 - P - (P 933,096,022) P - P - -
P-H-O-E-N-I-X Philippines Foundation, Inc. 58,118 94,000 ( 58,118 ) - 94,090 - 94,090
Phoenix Asphalt Philippines, Inc. 5,241,248 1,979,538 ( 5,241,248 ) - 1,979,538 - 1,979,538
Galaxi Petroleum Fuels, Inc. 876,256 - ( 876,256 ) - - - -
Udenna Corporation 540,810 - ( 540,810 ) - - - -

P 939,812,454 2,073,627 ( P 6,716,432) ( P 933,096,022) P 2,073,627 P - 2,073,627

Notes:

1) There are no amounts written-off. However, allowance for impairment of P86,816 was recognized. Balance at end of period net of allowance for impairment losses amounted to P1,986,810.
2) All are related parties under common ownership except for Udenna Corporation, which is the Ultimate Parent Company.




P-H-O-E-N-I-X P Philippi Inc. and
Cc- of i from Related Parties
which are Elimi during C idation of Financial
December 31, 2019

Balance at beginning
Creditor Name and designation of debtor of period Additions Amounts Collected Set-off and Adjustments Current Non- Current Balance at end of period

P-H-O-E-N-I-X Petroleum Philippines, Inc.

Advances to subsidiaries/parent P-H-O-E-N-I-X Global Mercantile, Inc. P 28,846,863 P 21,370,735 P - P 25,833,140 P 24,384,458 P - P 24,384,458
PFL Petroleum Management, Inc. 435,701,685 1,678,237,329 18,905,540 390,225,000 1,704,808,474 - 1,704,808,474
Subic Petroleum Trading and Transport Phils., Inc. 1,246,786,873 2,967,902,092 2,898,276,100 - 1,316,412,865 - 1,316,412,865
PNX Petroleum Singapore, PTE Ltd. 24,442,898 24,442,898 - - - -
DUTA, Inc. 267,349,103 971,142,857 2,180,648 - 1,236,311,312 - 1,236,311,312
Phoenix LPG Philippines, Inc. 55,152,138 20,191,729 45,063,886 - 30,279,981 - 30,279,981
Action.Able, Inc. 198,892,712 177,157,030 35,320,566 - 340,729,176 - 340,729,176
Philippine Familymart CVS, Inc. 692,498,930 222,869,692 1,042,247 - 914,326,375 - 914,326,375
Phoenix Pilipinas Gas and Power, Inc. - 300,100,000.00 - - 300,100,000 - 300,100,000
P 2,949,671,202 P 6,358,971,464 P 3,025,231,886 P 416,058,140 P 5,867,352,640 P - P 5,867,352,641
P-H-O-E-N-I-X Petroleum Philippines, Inc.
Trade and Other Receivables P-H-O-E-N-I-X Global Mercantile, Inc. P 6,015,926 P 1,313,581 P - P - P 7,329,507 P - P 7,329,507
PFL Petroleum Management, Inc. 14,299,648 86,435,630 88,185,654 - 12,549,624 - 12,549,624
Phoenix LPG Philippines, Inc. 161,417,629 212,949,986 154,248,973 - 220,118,642 - 220,118,642
PNX Petroleum Singapore, PTE Ltd. 97,261,125 - 97,261,125 - - - -
Philippine Familymart CVS, Inc. 58,122 2,629,900 23,050 - 2,664,972 - 2,664,972
Action.Able, Inc. - 7,231,271 - - 7,231,271 - 7,231,271
P 279,052,450 P 310,560,368 P 339,718,802 P - P 249,894,016 P - P 249,894,016
Phoenix LPG Philippines, Inc. P-H-O-E-N-I-X Petroleum Philippines, Inc. P 16,104,048 P - P 16,104,048 P - P - P - P -
Advances in subsidiaries/parent DUTA, Inc. 44,883,631 60,378,024 55,857,526 - 49,404,129 - 49,404,129
P 60,987,679 P 60,378,024 P 71,961,574 P - P 49,404,129 P - P 49,404,129
Phoenix LPG Philippines, Inc.
Trade and Other Receivables PNX Petroleum Singapore, PTE Ltd. P 138,847,494 P - P 138,847,494 P - P - P - P -
DUTA, Inc. Phoenix LPG Philippines, Inc. (Lease Receivable) P 13,703,343 P 8929 P 2,297,523 P - P 11,414,748 P - P 11,414,748
PFL Petroleum Management, Inc. P-H-O-E-N-I-X Petroleum Philippines, Inc. (Trade Receivables) P 1,072,527 P 1,265,636 P 1,975421 P - P 362,742 P - P 362,742
PNX Petroleum Singapore, PTE Ltd.
Trade and Other Receivables P-H-O-E-N-I-X Petroleum Philippines, Inc. P 1,847,066,349 P 4,024,727273 P - P - P 5,871,793,622 P - P 5,871,793,622
Phoenix LPG Philippines, Inc. - 126,299,647 - - 126,299,647 - 126,299,647
Subic Petroleum Trading & Transport Phils., Inc. - 360,506,688 - - 360,506,688 - 360,506,688
P 1,847,066,349 P 4,511,533,609 P - P - P 6,358,599,958 P - P 6,358,599,958
PNX Petroleum Singapore, PTE Ltd.
Advances in subsidiaries/parent P-H-O-E-N-I-X Petroleum Philippines, Inc. P - P 5,230,027 P - P - P 5,230,027 P - P 5,230,027
Action.Able, Inc.
Trade and Other Receivables P-H-O-E-N-I-X Petroleum Philippines, Inc. P - P 3,929,138 P - P - P 3,929,138 P - P 3,929,138
Phoenix LPG Philippines, Inc. - 321,429 - - 321,429 - 321,429
Philippine Familymart CVS, Inc. - 235,000 - - 235,000 - 235,000
P - P 4,485,566 P - P - P 4,485,566 P - P 4,485,566

Terms and conditions:
All receivables/payables are unsecured, non-interest bearing, collectible/payable on demand and generally settled in cash.



P-H-O-E-N-I-X Petroleum Philippines, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Schedule D - Long-Term Debt
December 31, 2019

Amount shown under

Amount shown under

) . - Amount authorized by caption"Current portion of o - "

Title of issue and type of obligation indenture long-term debt" in related c[aptron Long-Term Debt Terms
in related balance sheet
balance sheet

Installment, notes and loans payable
Peso-denominated
BDO Unibank, Inc. 6,000,000,000 660,000,000 3,828,129,172 Interest rate of 5.3884%, seven-year term, maturing on August 7, 2024
BDO Unibank, Inc. 1,000,000,000 - 1,000,000,000 Interest rate of 5.713%, five year term, maturing on, August 18, 2021
BDO Unibank, Inc. 1,000,000,000 - 1,000,000,000 Interest rate of 5.3840%, maturing on November 10, 2022
BDO Unibank, Inc. 1,000,000,000 - 1,000,000,000 Interest rate of 5.3840%, maturing on November 10, 2022
Land Bank of the Philippines 5,000,000,000 50,000,000 4,900,000,000 Interest rate of 6.500%, seven-year term, maturing on July 4, 2025
Philippine National Bank 500,000,000 100,000,000 25,000,000 Interest rate of 6.2105%, five-year term, maturing on January 2, 2021
Total Installment, notes and loans payable 14,500,000,000 810,000,000 11,753,129,172
TOTAL P 14,500,000,000 P 810,000,000 P 11,753,129,172




P-H-O-E-N-I-X Petroleum Philippines, Inc.
Schedule G - Capital Stock

December 31, 2019

Number of shares held by
Number of shares
issued and Number of shares
Title of Issue Number of_ shares outstanding as reserved for optro.ns, Related parties Directors, officers Others
authorized shown under the warrants, coversion and employees
related balance and other rights
sheet caption

Preferred shares - P1 par value

Non-voting, non-participating,

non-convertible into common shares

Issued and outstanding - 27,000,000 50,000,000 27,000,000 - - - 27,000,000
Common shares - P1 par value

2,500,000,000 1,406,204,232 - 717,852,743 7,576,326 680,775,163

Issued and outstanding




P-H-O-E-N-I-X Petroleum Philippines, Inc.
Stella Hizon Reyes Road, Barrio Pampanga, Davao City
Reconciliation of Retained Earnings Available for Dividend Declaration
December 31, 2019

UNAPPROPRIATED RETAINED EARNINGS AS ADJUSTED TO

AVAILABLE FOR DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION, BEGINNING P 4,116,624,114
Net Profit based on the audited Statement of Comprehensive Income P 1,615,932,685
Less: Non-actual/unrealized income net of tax
Other unrealized gains or adjustment to retained earnings as a result of
day one gain on financial instrument 11,714,075
Add: Non-actual losses
Unrealized foreign exchange loss - net (except those attributable
to cash and cash equivalents 21,511,838
Other unrealized loss or adjustment to retained earnings as a result of
day one loss on financial instrument 17,730,707
Equity in net loss of joint venture net of tax 471,893
Subtotal 28,000,362
Net income actually earned during the period 1,643,933,047 1,643,933,047
Add/Less:
Dividend declarations during the period:
Common shares cash dividends ( 210,495,635)
Preferred shares cash dividends ( 312,550,868 ) ( 523,046,503 )
UNAPPROPRIATED RETAINED EARNINGS,
AS ADJUSTED, ENDING P 5,237,510,658
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T'o be an Indispensable partner In the journey of everyone
whose life we touch.

PHOENIX

14 April 2020

Hon. Rachel Esther J. Gumtang-Remalante

Director, Corporate Governance and Finance Department
Securities and Exchange Commission

Secretariat Building, PICC Complex,

Roxas Boulevard, Pasay City

Dear Dir. Gumtang-Remalante:

We write in relation to the submission of Sustainability Report as required by
Commission to be filed by Publicly Listed Companies along with its Annual Report, as
per SEC Memorandum Circular No. 4, Series of 2019.

This is the first time that the Company will be submitting this report and we are unable
to finish and complete the same on time due not only to the intricacies of the
information required but likewise the same was interrupted by Enhanced Community
Quarantine imposed by the National government due to the COVID-19 pandemic. We
are currently fraught with the required information and hence would like to earnestly
request for an extension to file the said report until the end of June 2020 to give us
ample time to materially comply with the said report.

Looking forward to your kind consideration and best regards.

Slncerely yours

oo

Socorro Ermac-Cabreros
Cor rate Secretary

NEAD OFPICE FIoetm BUs Dapnx L sy Dvwes cny NANMILA OF FICEG 100 1700 ot LS NMA Timnt 00w Dane 1as 47 Aamran CREL OFPFICE: Pt s Bty Camods s et M L Sronms S
000 P g Bondacs Gobad Dty Tagag 16O Pripgire Haetans Haghamy. Magaicay Vandoos Oy Cets G018 P ippows
TrursSem .«',)-:_ ALY Trakdew +03 24004210 Toaptoee <00 22 2% S1ED /22 DICO
Fax +01 53 23 D Pon +02 2 40D 3099

www.phoenixfuels.ph




Request for Extension to File Sustainability Report /e ® U

LR R

Socorro E. Cabreros @ 222 PM (B minutes ogo)  Sr
fo msrd_covid19, nbleguarda, Resalio, me =

Sir

In bahalf of Phoanik Petroéoum Philppines, Inc | weo would like losubmit tha attached lottar request or an axlension
1 file the Susiginabilly Report due fo some difficulbies encountered by the Company

PINKY ERMAC CABREROS
Vice Pragiden!, Corporate Legal

PHOEMIX PETROLEUM PHILIPPINES
Phoenix Bulk Plant. Lanang, Cavac Gty
Trunkline: +53082 235 8820 local 104



Tio be an indispensable partner fn the journey of everyons
whose fife we fowch

PHOENIX

30 July 2020

Securities & Exchange Commission
Secretariat Building, PICC Complex
Roxas Blvd, Metro Manila

Philippine Stock Exchange

Disclosure Department

6/F PSE Tower, 28th Street corner 5t Avenue,
BGC, Taguig City, Metro Manila

Philippine Dealing & Exchange Corporation
Philippine Dealing & Exchange Corp.

29/F, BDO Equitable Tower,

8751 Paseo de Roxas, Makati City

Attention: Hon. Vicente Graciano P. Felizmenio, Jr.
Director, Market and Securities Regulation Department
Securities & Exchange Commission

Ms. Janet Encarnacion
Head - Disclosure Department
Philippine Stock Exchange

Atty. Marie Rose M. Magallen-Lirio
Head - Issuer Compliance and Disclosure Department (ICDD)

Sir and Mesdames:

Pursuant to the SEC Memorandum Circular No. 13, Series of 2020, P-h-o-e-n-i-x
Petroleum Philippines, Inc. (the "Corporation") hereby submits the attached
Amended Annual Report (SEC Form 17-A) to include the Sustainability Report for
the year ended 31 December 2019.

Relative thereto, we hereby certify that the following conditions have been met:

1) The information contained in the Amended Annual Report are true and
correct;

2) An Annual Report (SEC Form 17-A) had been previously filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) and was submitted to the SEC
through electronic mail on April 14, 2020.



3) The Amended Annual Report is filed solely for the purpose of submitting the
Sustainability Report attached thereto and no other changes were made to the
Annual Report as previously filed.

The undersigned is duly authorized by the Corporation to prepare and file the
Sustainability Report.

Thank you and warm regards.

ty. Socorro Ermac Cabreros
Acting Compliance Officer

Attested By:
of
HENRY ALBERT R. FADULLON
President
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S -+ 200 B R Faar +005 400 $00

www.phoenixfuels.ph




2019 SUSTAINABILITY REPORT

Contextual Information

Company Details

Name of Organization P-H-O-E-N-I-X PETROLEUM PHILIPPINES, INC.
Location of Headquarters Stella Hizon Reyes Road, Bo. Pampanga, Lanang, Davao City
Location of Operations Philippines

Report Boundary: Legal entities P-H-O-E-N-I-X PETROLEUM PHILIPPINES, INC.
(e.g. subsidiaries) included in this

report*

Business Model, including Engaged in the Marketing, Distribution, Storage, and Retail of
Primary Activities, Brands, different Products, including fuels, lubricants, LP, and other
Products, and Services retail products.

Reporting Period January 1, 2019 to December 31, 2019

Highest Ranking Person Atty. Socorro T. Ermac-Cabreros

responsible for this report Vice President for Corporate Legal

*If you are a holding company, you could have an option whether to report on the holding company only
or include the subsidiaries. However, please consider the principle of materiality when defining your
report boundary.

Materiality Process

Explain how you applied the materiality principle (or the materiality process) in identifying your
material topics.

The company, engaged in the wide-scale marketing, distribution, storage, and retail, primarily of fuel
and other products (which now includes food through its subsidiary Philippine Familymart CVS, Inc),
operates on a supply chain model, which formed the basis of determining the materiality of topics in
relation to economic, environmental and social impacts. The major stages of its business operations
are:
1) Procurement, sourcing, or development of products and services - involves external
stakeholders such as vendors, suppliers, business partners, etc.
2) operation of depots for the supply including storage of fuel products
3) Packaging/processing, marketing, and sales of products and actual operations and
administration of the business - involves internal stakeholders such as management and
employees
4) Distribution and sales of products - involves external stakeholders such as consumers,
resellers, dealers, etc.

' See GRI 102-46 (2016) for more guidance.


https://www.globalreporting.org/standards/media/1037/gri-102-general-disclosures-2016.pdf#page=34

Economic Performance

Direct Economic Value Generated and Distributed

Disclosure Amount Units
Direct economic value generated (revenue) 97,823,109,245 PhP
Direct economic value distributed:
a. Operating costs 5,746,390,879 PhP
b. Employee wages and benefits 1,105,276,877 PhP
c. Payments to suppliers, other operating costs 92,492,494,203 Php
d. Dividends given to stockholders and interest payments 3,295,957,953 PhP
to loan providers
e. Taxes given to government 533,449,335 PhP
f.  Investments to community (e.g. donations, CSR) 22,720,000 PhP

What is the impact and where
does it occur? What is the
organization’s involvement in the
impact?

Which stakeholders are
affected?

Management Approach

Since it was established, it has
been at the core of Phoenix
Petroleum Philippines, Inc. to
create value to the diverse
communities it serves. As it grew
from a small company in Davao to
the multi-industry corporation that
it is today, it has created an impact
by being an effective enabler of
entrepreneurship, employment,
and investment. It creates a ripple
of shared value, from production
and manufacturing to operation
and maintenance, by providing
income opportunities to partner
businesses, and jobs to its

The economic impact of
the organization spans
across investors,
customers, employees,
business partners
(including dealers and
franchisees), and the
government.

In carrying out business, the
management abides by the laws and
regulations imposed by government
authorities and other governing agencies,
including the Department of Labor and
Employment, Bureau of Customs,
Securities and Exchange Commission, the
Philippine Stock Exchange, and the
Bureau of Internal Revenue, among
others, to ensure compliance and
fairness.

The Company considers compliance of
these regulations as a serious matter for
the smooth continuity of the operations




employees, while supplying
consumers high-value products and
services. By being a formidable
player in the industries it is present
in, it helps maintain quality,
fairness, and competitiveness,
which ultimately benefits the
public. It also contributes to the
economic development of the
government through tax
contributions, most especially on
imports.

of its business and commitment to its
stakeholders.

What are the Risk/s Identified?

Which stakeholders are
affected?

Management Approach

Having a robust supply chain with
multiple elements that are
codependent on each other could
potentially collapse if one cannot
function properly.

Trading and distribution of its
products to its retail network is one
of crucial parts of its operations.
Hence, it is important that
compliance of government
requirements such as permit and
licenses are processed swiftly.
However, there is also the risk of
red tape and unjust bidding
practices which is out of the
control of the Company.

IA number of domestic and
international factors influence the price
of petroleum products, including, but
not limited to, the changes in global
supply and demand for crude oil,
economic conditions, conflicts or acts
of terrorism, weather conditions, and
domestic and foreign governmental
regulation as well as other factors over
which the Company has no control.

Suppliers, private
business partners, and
the government are
affected.

The company formed an internal audit
group which oversees the financial
performance of the company, making
sure that it follows protocols set by its
management and the government. This is
on top of an external audit agency that
reviews the company’s financials and
economic impact.

Supply, Retail and Road Transport Group
within the Company are required to make
their regular projections as far as supply
of fuel products are concerned.

The company also discloses and declares
its financials in the PSE and SEC through
its Annual Report,Quarterly Report and
other material unstructured actions
approved by the Company’s Board of
Directors.




While the Company actively monitors
international and domestic market fuel
prices as it seeks to anticipate any price
movements and plan contingencies to
manage the disposition of existing
inventory as necessary to various
distributors and wholesalers, the
Company  remains systematically
exposed and vulnerable to the crude oil
price fluctuations.

IAs competition is mainly driven by
price, the Company’s business,
operational and financial condition
may be materially affected if it is
unable to compete effectively against
other players, which will be primarily
driven by its ability to manage
overhead costs, streamline
transportation and distribution costs,
and maximise utilisation of its assets
and operations and effectively hedge
against fluctuations in oil prices.

Smuggling and illegal trading activities
of petroleum products have likewise
affected the domestic petroleum
market. These activities have
translated to lower sales prices and
volumes for legitimate market players
in the domestic market. The
Company’s financial condition and
results of operations may be affected if]
the Philippine government is unable to
properly enforce and regulate the
domestic oil market.

What are the Opportunity/ies Which stakeholders are |[Management Approach

Identified? affected?

There are opportunities to The stakeholders affected [Being a homegrown Filipino brand, the
contribute to the nation’s public  [finclude the general organization aims to empower the
funds, and enable livelihoods public, the company’s community by hiring local talents, and
across multiple industries, while  [partners, and its working with Filipino business partners
also providing employment. employees. and suppliers as much as possible.

Internal controls, such as a standard
bidding process and dealer selection, are
imposed.




Climate-related risks and onoortuni’cies2

Disclose the
organization’s
governance around
climate-related risks
and opportunities

The organization abides
by the laws and
guidelines of regulating
bodies of the
government, including
the Department of
Environment and
Natural Resources, and
the Department of
Energy. A dedicated
business unit (Health,
Safety, and
Environment) was
established to guide
the organization in
identifying and
handling
climate-related risks
and opportunities.

Disclose the actuasl and
potential impacts of
climate-related risks
and opportunities on
the organization’s
businesses, strategy,
and financial planning
where such information
is material

Besides the actual
damage to the climate
and the rest of the
natural resources that
could be affected, any
violations of
government-imposed
laws and regulations
could hinder operations
and cause conflicts in
the supply chain.

Disclose how the
organization identifies,
assesses, and manages
climate-related risks

The organization’s own
HSE unit conducts
internal audit and
review guided by the
standards of regulating
bodies (local and
international)
responsible for
climate-related issues.

Disclose the metrics
and targets used to
assess and manage
relevant
climate-related risks
and opportunities
where such information
is material

Internal risk and
opportunities ratings
and certifications are
used.

Recommended Disclosures

a) Describe the
board’s oversight of
climate-related
risks and
opportunities

a) Describe the
climate-related
risks and
opportunities the
organization has
identified over the
short, medium and
long term

a) Describe the
organization’s
processes for
identifying and
assessing
climate-related
risks

a) Disclose the
metrics used by the
organization to
assess
climate-related
risks and
opportunities in
line with its
strategy and risk
management
process

* Adopted from the Recommendations of the Task Force on Climate-Related Financial Disclosures. The TCFD Recommendations apply to
non-financial companies and financial-sector organizations, including banks, insurance companies, asset managers and asset owners.

? For this disclosure, impact refers to the impact of climate-related issues on the company.




Support in ensuring that
standard systems
are in place via the
ISO International
Systems Standards

Natural weather

occurrences
(applicable to the
Philippines as a
tropical region) are
considered in the
formulation of risk

Executive and

Management are
adequately
represented in the
hazards and risks
identification
exercise and are

Quantified and

measurable risk
ratings and
timeframes are
specified in the risk
and opportunities
register.




and opportunities
register.

signatories of the
relevant policies
and registers.

b) Describe

b) Describe the

b) Describe the

b) Describe the

management’s role impact of organization’s targets used by the
in assessing and climate-related processes for organization to
managing risks and managing manage
climate-related opportunities on climate-related climate-related
risks and the organization’s risks risks and
opportunities businesses, strategy opportunities and
and financial performance
planning. against targets
There is an existing The internal safety Written policies and 1. Periodic emergency
register of risks and management procedures have response drills

opportunities as an
element in our
Integrated
Management
System, an effort
we actively
undertake for our
ISO Certification.

Currently certified
under the following
ISO Systems:

1.1S0 9001:2015 QMS

2.1S0 14001:2015 EMS

3.1S0 45001:2018 IMS

system is validated
and certified by the
official ISO
certifying body.

been formulated
and imposed which
include managing
impacts of severe
weather
occurrences that
may affect our
operating sites.

1. Integrated
Management
Systems Manual

2. IMS Risk and
Opportunities
Register

includes response
to natural/
environmental
disasters (i.e. fire,
earthquake,
volcanic eruption)

2. Periodic internal
audit and ISO
(external audit) are
scheduled to verify
and validate the
consistency of the
system.

c) Describe the
resilience of the
organization’s
strategy, taking into
consideration
different
climate-related
scenarios including
a 2°Cor lower
scenario

c) Describe how
processes for
identifying,
assessing, and
managing
climate-related
risks are integrated
into the
organization’s
overall risk
management

By far, severe weather
events have no
sustained
detrimental impact
to our business
operations.

The identified hazards
and risks of natural
weather disturbances
are integral elements of
our ISO risk and
opportunities register.




Procurement Practices

Proportion of spending on local suppliers

Disclosure

Quantity Units

Percentage of procurement budget used for significant locations

of operations that is spent on local suppliers

21 %

What is the impact and where
does it occur? What is the
organization’s involvement in the
impact?

Which stakeholders are
affected?

Management Approach

As a company that relies heavily on
importation of products, Phoenix’s
procurement process affects the
whole operations of the business
and its supply chain. Because of it’s
nationwide operations, the
company has partnered with
numerous and diverse companies
in the country, either to purchase
products or services or supply
Phoenix’s products and services.
\With subsidiaries operating outside
the Philippines, the company’s
procurement process also extends
to other parts of Asia where the
company is present.

Affected stakeholders
include suppliers, partner
businesses, commercial
and retail partners,
government, community.

The company has a set of protocols that it
follows for its procurement process. The
policy is available for viewing at the
company’s intranet.

The company also formed a group of
high-ranking officials that scrutinizes,
evaluates, and decides on suppliers
during the bidding process and dealers
selection.

What are the Risk/s Identified?

Which stakeholders are
affected?

Management Approach

There are risks of red tape and
unjust bidding processes.

Suppliers, partners, and
the government are
affected stakeholders.

Creation of a procurement business unit
that will handle all procurement
processes of the company to ensure
streamlined and strict compliance of the
company’s procurement rules and the
government’s regulations.

What are the Opportunity/ies
Identified?

Which stakeholders are
affected?

Management Approach

The organization’s procurement
practices can be further improved.
There is an opportunity for cost

Employees, suppliers are
affected stakeholders.

Creation of internal automated system for
procurement processing.




savings. There is also an
opportunity for digitalization and
automation of the procurement
process to ensure fast and efficient
process, and minimize human-error
related risks.

Setting of limits per authorized approver
for a fast and efficient process.

Anti-corruption
Training on Anti-corruption Policies and Procedures

Disclosure Quantity Units
Percentage of employees to whom the organization’s 0 (zero) %
anti-corruption policies and procedures have been

communicated to

Percentage of business partners to whom the organization’s 0 (zero) %
anti-corruption policies and procedures have been

communicated to

Percentage of directors and management that have received 0 (zero) %
anti-corruption training

Percentage of employees that have received anti-corruption 0 (zero) %
training

Which stakeholders are
affected?

What is the impact and where
does it occur? What is the

Management Approach

organization’s involvement in the

impact?

e Anti-corruption policies Employees and |Management has developed anti-corrupt
and procedures impact the suppliers practices guidelines that will form part of
company supply chain in its Company the employee handbook with
procurement of raw management, corresponding sanctions and penalties for
materials and goods, as national and local {those found in violation of such
well as the engagement of government guidelines. Soon to be rolled out
services of providers for its units, internally, these guidelines have been
business operations, government established to create and reinforce a
marketing, human agencies and culture in the organization that is averse
resources (manpower), etc. regulatory to corrupt practices in dealings with

It also impacts the
legitimacy of business
operations in terms of
securing the necessary
legal and government
permits, licenses to
operate, compliance, etc.

bodies/agencies

businesses and government.




What are the Risk/s Identified?

Which stakeholders are
affected?

Management Approach

® Corruption defined as
favorable awarding of

suppliers and vendors
poses a risk to financial
bottomline in terms of
increased cost spending
and misappropriated
funds.

e Corruption defined as
favors extended to

local laws.

procurement contracts to

government and regulatory
stakeholders poses a risk to
violations of national and

e Employee and
suppliers

e Company
management,
national and local
government
units,
government
agencies and
regulatory bodies

Establishment of an
institutionalized, computerized
and transparent procurement
process

Creation of a government
relations function and
appointment of such
representative in the company
management

What are the Opportunity/ies
Identified?

Which stakeholders are
affected?

Management Approach

e Opportunities to save on e Employees and e Establishment of an
procurement costs through suppliers institutionalized, computerized
transparent, professional e Company and transparent procurement
and competitive biddings subsidiaries and process
for contracts affiliates/sister e Synergy with affiliates for

companies procurement needs

(within Udenna

Group of

Companies)
Incidents of Corruption
Disclosure Quantity Units
Number of incidents in which directors were removed or 0 (zero) incidents
disciplined for corruption
Number of incidents in which employees were dismissed or 0 (zero) incidents
disciplined for corruption
Number of incidents when contracts with business partners were | 0 (zero) incidents
terminated due to incidents of corruption

What is the impact and where
does it occur? What is the

Which stakeholders are
affected?

Management Approach
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organization’s involvement in the
impact?

'The organization has not identified
any incidents of corruption.

The organization has not
identified any incidents of
corruption. .

The organization has not identified any
incidents of corruption.

What are the Risk/s Identified?

Which stakeholders are
affected?

Management Approach

The organization has not identified
any incidents of corruption.

The organization has not
identified any incidents of
corruption.

The organization has not identified any
incidents of corruption.

What are the Opportunity/ies
Identified?

Which stakeholders are
affected?

Management Approach

The organization has not identified
any incidents of corruption.

The organization has not
identified any incidents of
corruption.

The organization has not identified any
incidents of corruption.
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Resource Management

Energy consumption within the organization:

Disclosure Quantity Units
Energy consumption (renewable sources) GJ
Energy consumption (gasoline) GJ
Energy consumption (LPG) GJ
Energy consumption (diesel) GJ
Energy consumption (electricity) 1,047,264 (Y2019) kWh
Reduction of energy consumption (no data available for comparison)
Disclosure Quantity Units
Energy reduction (gasoline) GJ
Energy reduction (LPG) GJ
Energy reduction (diesel) GJ
Energy reduction (electricity) kWh
Energy reduction (gasoline) GJ
What is the impact and where Which stakeholders are [Management Approach
does it occur? What is the affected?
organization’s involvement in the
impact?

(

Employees, community,
vulnerable groups and
government

Electricity consumption impacts on
depletion of non-renewable
resources (fossil fuels) in the
generation of electricity. Majority
of electricity consumed from depot
and terminal operations.

Monitoring of electrical consumption on a
imonthly basis from the depots and
terminals. Information campaign on
energy consumption.

Which stakeholders are
affected?

What are the Risk/s Identified?

Management Approach

Increased cost of purchased
electricity due to power demand.
Lack of electricity source if non
renewable sources are depleted

12



Employees, community,
vulnerable groups and
government

Monitoring of electrical consumption and
cost of electricity. Switching to energy
efficient lighting sources. Information
campaign on energy consumption.

What are the Opportunity/ies
Identified?

Which stakeholders are
affected?

Management Approach

Invest in other sources of electricity
i.e solar power, etc.

Cost saving opportunities in energy
conservation programs

Employees, community,
vulnerable groups and
government

Encourage energy conservation within
the organization. Support energy
conservation projects/initiatives.

Water consumption within the organization

Disclosure Quantity Units
Water withdrawal Cubic
meters
Water consumption 13,602 Cubic
meters
Water recycled and reused Cubic
meters

What is the impact and where
does it occur? What is the
organization’s involvement in the
impact?

Which stakeholders are
affected?

Management Approach

Water consumption impacts on
depletion of non-renewable
resources (surface and
groundwater) and in the electricity
consumed in producing clean
water. Majority of water consumed
from depot and terminal
operations.

Employees, community,
vulnerable groups and
government

Monitoring of water consumption on a
imonthly basis from the depots and
terminals. Information campaign on
water conservation. Visual inspection of
water lines for leaks.

What are the Risk/s Identified?

Which stakeholders are
affected?

Management Approach

Identify risk/s related to material
topic of the organization

Monitoring of water consumption on a
monthly basis from the depots and
terminals. Information campaign on
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Increased cost of water due to Employees, community,
demand. Loss of water supply. vulnerable groups and
government

water conservation. Visual inspection of
water lines for leaks.

What are the Opportunity/ies Which stakeholders are
Identified? affected?

Management Approach

Identify the opportunity/ies related
to material topic of the

organization Employees, community,

vulnerable groups and
Invest in water conservation government

projects i.e. rainwater catchment,
water recycling, etc.

Encourage water conservation. Support
water conservation projects/initiatives.

Materials used by the organization (no data available)

Disclosure Quantity Units
Materials used by weight or volume
® renewable kg/liters
® non-renewable kg/liters
Percentage of recycled input materials used to manufacture the %
organization’s primary products and services

What is the impact and where Which stakeholders are
does it occur? What is the affected?
organization’s involvement in the
impact?

Management Approach

Identify the impact and where it |(e.g. employees,

occurs (i.e., primary business community, suppliers,
operations and/or supply chain) government, vulnerable
groups)

Indicate involvement in the impact
(i.e., caused by the organization or
linked to impacts through its
business relationship)

What policies, commitments, goals and
targets, responsibilities, resources,
grievance mechanisms, and/or projects,
programs, and initiatives do you have to
manage the material topic?

What are the Risk/s Identified?  |Which stakeholders are
affected?

Management Approach

Identify risk/s related to material
topic of the organization

What are the Opportunity/ies Which stakeholders are
Identified? affected?

Management Approach
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Identify the opportunity/ies related
to material topic of the
organization

Ecosystems and biodiversity (whether in upland/watershed or coastal/marine)

Disclosure Quantity Units
Operational sites owned, leased, managed in, or adjacent to, (identify all sites) sites
protected areas and areas of high biodiversity value outside 1 - Sarangani Bay
protected areas near Gensan Depot

site

2 - Mangrove areas

near Villanueva

Terminal and Cebu

Depot

1 - Marine protected

site (Samal Island))

near Depot terminal
Habitats protected or restored ha
IUCN Red List species and national conservation list species with | (list)
habitats in areas affected by operations

What is the impact and where
does it occur? What is the
organization’s involvement in the
impact?

Which stakeholders are
affected?

Management Approach

Destruction of protected areas due
to land, air and water pollution.
Depot/terminals sites are situated
near water bodies where fuel
cargo is received or delivered. Spills
from these operations could result
in water pollution and land
pollution of shores or mangrove
areas near sites.

Employees, community,
vulnerable groups and
government

Efficient and safe depot/terminal vessel
operations to prevent leaks/spills.
Inspection and maintenance of pier
facilities/equipment

Engage local community for local shore
clean ups, tree planting, etc.

What are the Risk/s Identified?

Which stakeholders are
affected?

Management Approach

Risk of violation from the
government. Large penalties and
fines. Remediation costs to restore
the protected area to its original

Employees, community,
vulnerable groups and
government

Efficient and safe depot/terminal vessel
operations to prevent leaks/spills.
Inspection and maintenance of pier
facilities/equipment

* International Union for Conservation of Nature
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state. Effect on company
reputation.

clean ups, tree planting, etc.

Engage local community for local shore

What are the Opportunity/ies
Identified?

Which stakeholders are
affected?

Management Approach

Better community and government
relations due to good
environmental performance of the
site

Employees, community,
vulnerable groups and
government

clean ups, tree planting, etc.

Engage local community for local shore

Environmental impact management

Air Emissions

GHG

Disclosure Quantity Units

Direct (Scope 1) GHG Emissions 22.28 Tonnes CO.e
Energy indirect (Scope 2) GHG Emissions 772.39 Tonnes COe
Emissions of ozone-depleting substances (ODS) N/A Tonnes

What is the impact and where
does it occur? What is the
organization’s involvement in the
impact?

Which stakeholders are
affected?

Management Approach

GHG emissions coming from
electricity consumption and fuel
consumption from stationary
sources measured in CO2
equivalent. Impact of GHG in global
warming and climate change which
is responsible for extreme weather
events, drought, floods, loss of
biodiversity, etc. . Majority of GHG
emissions from electricity from
depot/terminal operations.

Employees, community,
vulnerable groups and
government

Future programs in determining GHG

electricity and fuel consumption from
stationary sources

lemissions from other sources aside from

What are the Risk/s Identified?

Which stakeholders are
affected?

Management Approach

Risks related to effects of extreme
weather events such as flood,
drought, food supply disruption,
health risks due to heat waves, etc.

Employees, community,
vulnerable groups and
government

plans in the event of these risks

Develop BCP and emergency response
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What are the Opportunity/ies
Identified?

Which stakeholders are
affected?

Management Approach

Invest in GHG emission reduction
projects

Employees, community,
vulnerable groups and
government

Support for GHG emission reduction
initiatives and projects

Air pollutants

Disclosure Quantity Units
NO, 566 (highest kg/Ncm

concentration)

(within DENR

standard of 2000

mg/Ncm)
SO, N/A kg
Persistent organic pollutants (POPs) N/A kg
Volatile organic compounds (VOCs) N/A kg
Hazardous air pollutants (HAPs) N/A kg
Particulate matter (PM) N/A kg

What is the impact and where
does it occur? What is the
organization’s involvement in the
impact?

Which stakeholders are
affected?

Management Approach

Air emission coming from
stationary sources such as genset
and fire pump use in the depots
and terminals. Air pollutants
contributing to air pollution within
the area. Impact on health of the
employees and community.

Employees, community,
vulnerable groups and
government

Monitoring of air emission from the
stationary sources. Annual sampling of
lemission from the equipment. Regular
maintenance of equipment.

What are the Risk/s Identified?

Which stakeholders are
affected?

Management Approach

Risk of violation from the
government if air emission
concentration falls beyond the
emission standards. Risk of
lpenalties and fines due to violation.
Effect on company reputation. Risk

Employees, community,
vulnerable groups and
government

Monitor compliance of sites with
emission standards
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to health of employees and
surrounding community.

What are the Opportunity/ies
Identified?

Which stakeholders are
affected?

Management Approach

Identify other air emission sources
and develop mitigating strategies
to reduce air emissions

Better community and government
relations due to good
environmental performance

Employees, community,
vulnerable groups and
government

Monitor compliance of sites with
emission standards

Solid and Hazardous Wastes
Solid Waste

Disclosure Quantity Units

Total solid waste generated 17,744 kg
Reusable 0 kg
Recyclable 944 kg
Composted 0 kg
Incinerated 0 kg
Residuals/Landfilled 16,800 kg

What is the impact and where
does it occur? What is the
organization’s involvement in the
impact?

Which stakeholders are
affected?

Management Approach

ISolid waste generated from
depot/terminal operations and
offices. Solid waste generation in
general impacts on land, air and
water pollution.

Employees, community,
vulnerable groups and
government

Solid waste segregation at source before
disposal to municipal waste hauler. Solid
waste segregation education/awareness.

What are the Risk/s Identified?

Which stakeholders are
affected?

Management Approach

Risk of violation to national and
local regulations on solid waste
management. Fines and penalties
related to the violation and risks to
company reputation.

Employees, community,
vulnerable groups and
government

local regulations through audits and
inspection.

Solid waste segregation at source before
disposal to municipal waste hauler. Solid
waste segregation education/awareness.
Strengthening compliance to national and
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What are the Opportunity/ies
Identified?

Which stakeholders are
affected?

Management Approach

Cost saving from disposal of less
residuals and income generation
from sale of scraps/recyclables.
Less wastes brought to sanitary
landfills.

Better community and government
relations due to good
environmental performance

Employees, community,
vulnerable groups and
government

Solid waste segregation at source before
disposal to municipal waste hauler. Solid
waste segregation education/awareness.
Support in solid waste management
projects.

Hazardous Waste

Disclosure Quantity Units
Total weight of hazardous waste generated 103,667 kg
Total weight of hazardous waste transported 34,000 kg

What is the impact and where
does it occur? What is the
organization’s involvement in the
impact?

Which stakeholders are
affected?

Management Approach

Hazardous wastes generated from
depot and terminal operations
which consist of degraded oil and
oil contaminated materials.
Contributes to air, water and land
pollution.

Employees, community,
vulnerable groups and
government

Monitoring of hazardous waste
generation. Regular inspection of
equipment for leaks that would
contribute in ground soil contamination.
Regular inspection of hazardous waste
storage areas. Regular disposal of
hazardous wastes to DENR accredited
transporters/treaters.

What are the Risk/s Identified?

Which stakeholders are
affected?

Management Approach

Risk of violation from the
government if hazardous wastes
are not managed properly. Fines
and penalties due to violation.
Effect on company reputation.
Health risks to employees and
community.

Employees, community,
vulnerable groups and
government

Monitoring compliance to government
regulations on hazardous waste
management. Regular inspection of
storage areas.

What are the Opportunity/ies
Identified?

Which stakeholders are
affected?

Management Approach
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Cost savings in the transport and
treatment of hazardous wastes if
less is generated.

Better community and government
relations due to good
environmental performance

Employees, community,
vulnerable groups and
government

Support on the site initiatives/projects

on hazardous waste management.

Effluents

Disclosure Quantity Units

Total volume of water discharges 3,055 Cubic
meters

Percent of wastewater recycled 0 %

What is the impact and where
does it occur? What is the
organization’s involvement in the
impact?

Which stakeholders are
affected?

Management Approach

Effluent coming from the
wastewater treatment facility of
the depots/terminals which could
contribute to water pollution.

(Employees, community,
vulnerable groups and
government

Monitoring of effluent discharge quality

thru regular sampling. Regular inspection

of water treatment facility.

What are the Risk/s Identified?

Which stakeholders are
affected?

Management Approach

Risk of violation from the
government if untreated
wastewater is discharged to
surface waters. Fines and penalties
due to violation. Effect on company
reputation. Health risks to
employees and community.

Employees, community,
vulnerable groups and
government

Monitor compliance to effluent
standards. Regular inspection of the
facility.

What are the Opportunity/ies
Identified?

Which stakeholders are
affected?

Management Approach

Upgrading the wastewater
treatment facility to further
enhance effluent quality

Better community and government
relations due to good
environmental performance

Employees, community,
vulnerable groups and
government

Support in site initiatives/projects in
wastewater treatment upgrade
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Environmental compliance

Non-compliance with Environmental Laws and Regulations

Disclosure Quantity Units
Total amount of monetary fines for non-compliance with 0 PhP
environmental laws and/or regulations

No. of non-monetary sanctions for non-compliance with 0 #
environmental laws and/or regulations

No. of cases resolved through dispute resolution mechanism 0 #
What is the impact and where Which stakeholders are [Management Approach

does it occur? What is the
organization’s involvement in the
impact?

affected?

Impact on company reputation if
sites are non-compliant.

(Employees, community,
vulnerable groups and
government

Monitor compliance of sites thru regular
audits

What are the Risk/s Identified?

Which stakeholders are
affected?

Management Approach

Cost of penalties and fines. Closure
of business. Loss of revenue from
closure of business.

Employees, community,
vulnerable groups and
government

Monitor compliance of sites thru regular
audits

What are the Opportunity/ies
Identified?

Which stakeholders are
affected?

Management Approach

Better community and government
relations due to compliance of sites
with environmental regulations

Longer validity of permits if sites
are consistently complying with
regulations

Employees, community,
vulnerable groups and
government

Monitor compliance of sites thru reqular
audits
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Employee Management
Employee Hiring and Benefits

Employee data as of December 31, 2019

Disclosure Quantity Units
Total number of employeesa
a. Number of female employees 325 employee
s
b. Number of male employees 750 employee
s
Attrition rate’ 16.93 %
Ratio of lowest paid employee against minimum wage **(Lowest 240:0 ratio
paid employees are those in the lowest Job Grade in the
organization)

Employee benefits

List of Benefits Y/N % of female employees | % of male employees
who availed for the year | who availed for the year
SSS Y 100.00% 100.00%
PhilHealth Y 100.00% 100.00%
Pag-ibig Y 100.00% 100.00%
Parental leaves Y 0.00% 3.47%
Vacation leaves Y 81.53% 82.80%
Sick leaves Y 70.45% 56.00%
Medical benefits (aside from Y 78.13% 78.40%
PhilHealth))
Housing assistance (aside from Y 3.13% 2.80%
Pag-ibig) *Relocation
Retirement fund (aside from SSS) Y 0.00% 0.53%
Further education support N 0.00% 0.00%
Company stock options Y 32.10% 34.13%
Telecommuting N 0.00% 0.00%
Flexible-working Hours Y 73.30% 41.20%
(Others) N 0.00% 0.00%

What is the impact and where does it occur? What |[Management Approach
is the organization’s involvement in the impact?

* Employees are individuals who are in an employment relationship with the organization, according to national law or its application (GRI

Standards 2016 Glossary)

¢ Attrition are = (no. of new hires — no. of turnover)/(average of total no. of employees of previous year and total no. of employees of current
year)
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Phoenix recognizes the importance of hiring the right
people in the success of running the business. We
endeavor to become the employer of choice by giving
a  positive  recruitment  experience,  offering
competitive and attractive compensation and benefit
lbackages and creating a corporate culture which
enables the company to attract and hire competent
talent to run the business.

We have several HR policies strictly implemented
such as :

Grievance Handling

Recruitment Policy

Payroll & Leave of Absence Policy
Employee Movements Policy

AWDNR

What are the Risk/s Identified?

Management Approach

We are implementing the “non-discriminatory hiring
practices” that allow us to hire applicants with
pre-existing medical conditions which may later affect
the employees’ performance in terms of productivity
and efficiency, and high utilization of HMO

Hired employees with pre-existing conditions are
endorsed and in priority list of health monitoring
program which is being monitored by the
Company Physician ad Company Nurse

What are the Opportunity/ies Identified?

Management Approach

Attracts and hires calibre talents with varied skills
necessary to perform in the achievement of business
targets and support business growth

Attraction and hiring of young talents that can easily
adapt to company’s culture and bring in fresh and
innovative ideas

Talents that are trainable and ready to assume higher
lpositions

Develops internal training and or provides
external trainings that will address identified
competency gaps

Defined salary structure that provides equitable
pay vis a vis candidate or employee’s skills and
experience.

Development of Succession planning to ensures
business continuity by identifying the right talent
for the position, impart knowledge and skills
through various training, mentoring, and job
rotations

Employee Training and Development

Disclosure Quantity Units
Total training hours provided to employees
a. Female employees 30,806 hours
b. Male employees 39,347 hours
Average training hours provided to employees
a. Female employees 7.3 hours
b. Male employees 7.3 hours
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is the organization’s involvement in the impact?

What is the impact and where does it occur? What

Management Approach

Providing  professional  development for
employee in the organization resulting
achievement of the company’s targets.

each
in the

Development of a career roadmap for the
employees to ensure that everyone is given an
equal opportunity for professional development
aligned with their goals, allowing them to reach
their  potentials and  maximize training
opportunities. It also gives employees the
opportunity to enhance their capabilities to
perform and meet the company’s targets

What are the Risk/s Identified?

Management Approach

Uncertainty in Return Investment due

of

after training.

possibilities of employee separation to the company

to

Implementation of training bond in the form of
service in the company for an equivalent amount
of time as specified in the Training Policy

What are the Opportunity/ies Identified?

Management Approach

Design and development of functional, professional
and leadership training that will enhance the
competencies of the employees

People Development Programs such as:

1. Career development program
2. Succession Planning
3. Job Rotation

Labor-Management Relations

Disclosure Quantity Units
% of employees covered with Collective Bargaining 0 0%
Agreements

Number of consultations conducted with employees 0

concerning employee-related policies

What is the impact and where does it occur? What

is the organization’s involvement in the impact?

Management Approach

No labor union, no CBAs, only minor labor cases that

are resolved and managed within the organization
since employees’ concerns and/or issues are being
attended to immediately. Awareness of the

Awareness program in the following company
policies:

1. Code of Conduct in place with due process

handling
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company's standard operating procedures, policies
and rules and regulation is being ensured.

2. Grievance Management Committee in
place

What are the Risk/s Identified?

Management Approach

No risk identifies

Maintaining current Labor Management
practices

What are the Opportunity/ies Identified?

Management Approach

Creates a good Industrial relation image to both
internal and external business partners

\We ensure to maintain a high level of employee
engagement with all employees of Phoenix

Diversity and Equal Opportunity

Disclosure Quantity Units

% of female workers in the workforce 325 counts
% of male workers in the workforce 750 counts
Number of employees from indigenous communities and/or 3 counts
vulnerable sector*

*Vulnerable sector includes, elderly, persons with disabilities, vulnerable women, refugees, migrants,
internally displaced persons, people living with HIV and other diseases, solo parents, and the poor or the

base of the pyramid (BOP; Class D and E).

What is the impact and where does it occur? What
is the organization’s involvement in the impact?

Management Approach

Since we are implementing the “non-discriminatory
hiring practices” it allows us to hire applicants with
varied skills and competencies regardless of gender
preference, ethnicity, educational background, and/or
age group . This assures that we have drivers of
excellence and innovation, and a diverse pool of
talents.

We have established a Recruitment Policy which
enables the team to attract, sort, select and hire
right talents.

What are the Risk/s Identified?

Management Approach

It may result to fast turnover of employees due to
difficulty in adapting to company values and culture
which is the result of the diverse back of employees

We ensure that we:

1. Implement of programs that
continuously cultivate company’s culture

2. Employee Engagement activities that
fosters camaraderie

3. Annual evaluation of employee’s state of

mind in the company is being facilitated
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What are the Opportunity/ies Identified?

Management Approach

Having a diverse workforce increases the productivity
of the company, boosts our reputation, allows us to
generate innovative ideas, reduces fear, increases
lperformance and attracts and retains talents.

We develop and implement programs that
encourage and allows innovations that will
improve the processes or system of the company
and enhances the innovative and analytical skills
of the employees which will result to increase in
productivity level of the employees

Workplace Conditions, Labor Standards, and Human Rights

Occupational Health and Safety

Disclosure Quantity Units

Safe Man-Hours 5,406,697.03 Man-hours
No. of work-related injuries 1 #

No. of work-related fatalities 1 #

No. of work related ill-health 0 #

No. of safety drills 118 #

What is the impact and where does it occur? What
is the organization’s involvement in the impact?

Management Approach

Identify the impact and where it occurs (i.e., primary
business operations and/or supply chain)

Indicate involvement in the impact (i.e., caused by the
organization or linked to impacts through its business
relationship)

What policies, commitments, goals and targets,
responsibilities, resources, grievance mechanisms,
and/or projects, programs, and initiatives do you
have to manage the material topic?

Workplace health and safety impacts the company
through protecting workers from injury and illness. It
also lower injury/illness costs, reduce absenteeism
and turnover, increase productivity and quality, and
raise employee morale.

Corporate KPI Target includes Zero LTI ( Loss Time
Injury).

What are the Risk/s Identified?

Management Approach

Identify risk/s related to material topic of the
organization

Exposure to hazards that may result to personal
injury or damage to property.

Creation and implementation of safety controls
to mitigate risks

What are the Opportunity/ies Identified?

Management Approach
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Identify the opportunity/ies related to material topic
of the organization

Prevention of safety incidents from occurring.

Monitoring and implementation of safety
controls and continuous improvement of existing
process.

Labor Laws and Human Rights

Disclosure

Quantity Units

No. of legal actions or employee grievances involving forced #

or child labor

Do you have policies that explicitly disallows violations of labor laws and human rights (e.g. harassment,

bullying) in the workplace?

Topic Y/N If Yes, cite reference in the company policy

Forced labor

Child labor

Human Rights

What is the impact and where does it occur? What
is the organization’s involvement in the impact?

Management Approach

Identify the impact and where it occurs (i.e., primary
business operations and/or supply chain)

Indicate involvement in the impact (i.e., caused by the
organization or linked to impacts through its business
relationship)

What policies, commitments, goals and targets,
responsibilities, resources, grievance mechanisms,
and/or projects, programs, and initiatives do you
have to manage the material topic?

What are the Risk/s Identified?

Management Approach

Identify risk/s related to material topic of the
organization

What are the Opportunity/ies Identified?

Management Approach

Identify the opportunity/ies related to material topic
of the organization

Supply Chain Management

Do you have a supplier accreditation policy? If yes, please attach the policy or link to the policy:
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Do you consider the following sustainability topics when accrediting suppliers?

Topic Y/N

If Yes, cite reference in the supplier policy

Environmental performance

Forced labor

Child labor

Human rights

Bribery and corruption

What is the impact and where does it occur? What
is the organization’s involvement in the impact?

Management Approach

Identify the impact and where it occurs (i.e., primary
business operations and/or supply chain)

Indicate involvement in the impact (i.e., caused by the
organization or linked to impacts through its business
relationship)

What policies, commitments, goals and targets,

responsibilities, resources, grievance mechanisms,
and/or projects, programs, and initiatives do you

have to manage the material topic?

What are the Risk/s Identified? Management Approach

Identify risk/s related to material topic of the

organization

What are the Opportunity/ies Identified? Management Approach

Identify the opportunity/ies related to material topic

of the organization

Relationship with Community

Significant Impacts on Local Communities

Operations Location Vulnerable Does the Collective or Mitigating
with significant groups (if particular individual measures (if
(positive or applicable)* operation rights that negative) or
negative) have have been enhancement
impacts on impacts on | identified that | measures (if
local indigenous | or particular positive)
communities people concern for the

(exclude CSR (Y/N)? community

projects; this
has to be
business
operations)
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*Vulnerable sector includes children and youth, elderly, persons with disabilities, vulnerable women,
refugees, migrants, internally displaced persons, people living with HIV and other diseases, solo parents,
and the poor or the base of the pyramid (BOP; Class D and E)

For operations that are affecting IPs, indicate the total number of Free and Prior Informed Consent (FPIC)
undergoing consultations and Certification Preconditions (CPs) secured and still operational and provide

a copy or link to the certificates if available:

Certificates Quantity Units
FPIC process is still undergoing #
CP secured #

What are the Risk/s Identified?

Management Approach

Identify risk/s related to material topic of the
organization

What are the Opportunity/ies Identified?

Management Approach

Identify the opportunity/ies related to material topic
of the organization

Customer Management

Customer Satisfaction

Disclosure Score Did a third party conduct

the customer satisfaction
study (Y/N)?

Customer satisfaction

What is the impact and where does it occur? What
is the organization’s involvement in the impact?

Management Approach

Identify the impact and where it occurs (i.e., primary
business operations and/or supply chain)

Indicate involvement in the impact (i.e., caused by the
organization or linked to impacts through its business
relationship)

What policies, commitments, goals and targets,
responsibilities, resources, grievance mechanisms,
and/or projects, programs, and initiatives do you
have to manage the material topic?

What are the Risk/s Identified?

Management Approach
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Identify risk/s related to material topic of the
organization

What are the Opportunity/ies Identified? Management Approach

Identify the opportunity/ies related to material topic
of the organization

Health and Safety

Disclosure Quantity Units
No. of substantiated complaints on product or service 0 #
health and safety*

No. of complaints addressed 0 #

*Substantiated complaints include complaints from customers that went through the organization’s
formal communication channels and grievance mechanisms as well as complaints that were lodged to
and acted upon by government agencies.

What is the impact and where does it occur? What |[Management Approach
is the organization’s involvement in the impact?

Identify the impact and where it occurs (i.e., primary |What policies, commitments, goals and targets,
business operations and/or supply chain) responsibilities, resources, grievance mechanisms,
and/or projects, programs, and initiatives do you

Indicate involvement in the impact (i.e., caused by the have to manage the material topic?

organization or linked to impacts through its business
relationship)

What are the Risk/s Identified? Management Approach

Identify risk/s related to material topic of the
organization

What are the Opportunity/ies Identified? Management Approach

Identify the opportunity/ies related to material topic
of the organization

Marketing and labelling

Disclosure Quantity Units
No. of substantiated complaints on marketing and #
labelling*

No. of complaints addressed #

*Substantiated complaints include complaints from customers that went through the organization’s
formal communication channels and grievance mechanisms as well as complaints that were lodged to
and acted upon by government agencies.
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What is the impact and where does it occur? What
is the organization’s involvement in the impact?

Management Approach

Identify the impact and where it occurs (i.e., primary
business operations and/or supply chain)

Indicate involvement in the impact (i.e., caused by the
organization or linked to impacts through its business
relationship)

What policies, commitments, goals and targets,
responsibilities, resources, grievance mechanisms,
and/or projects, programs, and initiatives do you
have to manage the material topic?

What are the Risk/s Identified?

Management Approach

Identify risk/s related to material topic of the
organization

What are the Opportunity/ies Identified?

Management Approach

Identify the opportunity/ies related to material topic
of the organization

Customer privacy

Disclosure Quantity Units
No. of substantiated complaints on customer privacy* #

No. of complaints addressed #

No. of customers, users and account holders whose H
information is used for secondary purposes

*Substantiated complaints include complaints from customers that went through the organization’s
formal communication channels and grievance mechanisms as well as complaints that were lodged to

and acted upon by government agencies.

What is the impact and where does it occur? What
is the organization’s involvement in the impact?

Management Approach

Identify the impact and where it occurs (i.e., primary
business operations and/or supply chain)

Indicate involvement in the impact (i.e., caused by the
organization or linked to impacts through its business
relationship)

What policies, commitments, goals and targets,
responsibilities, resources, grievance mechanisms,
and/or projects, programs, and initiatives do you
have to manage the material topic?

What are the Risk/s Identified?

Management Approach

Identify risk/s related to material topic of the
organization

What are the Opportunity/ies Identified?

Management Approach
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Identify the opportunity/ies related to material topic
of the organization

Data Security

Disclosure

Quantity Units

No. of data breaches, including leaks, thefts and losses
of data

0 incidents

What is the impact and where does it occur? What
is the organization’s involvement in the impact?

Management Approach

The organization has not identified any incidents of
data breaches, including leaks, thefts, and losses of
data.

Identify the impact and where it occurs (i.e., primary
business operations and/or supply chain)

Indicate involvement in the impact (i.e., caused by the
organization or linked to impacts through its business
relationship)

The organization has not identified any incidents
of data breaches, including leaks, thefts, and
losses of data.

What policies, commitments, goals and targets,
responsibilities, resources, grievance mechanisms,
and/or projects, programs, and initiatives do you
have to manage the material topic?

What are the Risk/s Identified?

Management Approach

The organization has not identified any incidents of
data breaches, including leaks, thefts, and losses of
data.

Identify risk/s related to material topic of the
organization

The organization has not identified any incidents
of data breaches, including leaks, thefts, and
losses of data.

What are the Opportunity/ies Identified?

Management Approach

The organization has not identified any incidents of
data breaches, including leaks, thefts, and losses of
data.

Identify the opportunity/ies related to material topic
of the organization

The organization has not identified any incidents
of data breaches, including leaks, thefts, and
losses of data.
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UN SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT GOALS

Product or Service Contribution to UN SDGs

Key products and services and its contribution to sustainable development.

Key Products and Societal Value / Potential Negative Management Approach
Services Contribution to UN SDGs | Impact of Contribution to Negative Impact
Main business SDG 8: Decent Work and -Labor issues -Career planning and
operations Economic Growth succession
SDG 10: Reduced -Management training
Inequalities program
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-Workplace inclusivity
and diversity policies

Fuel (gas) SDG 7: Affordable and -Pollution/emissions -Pivot to renewable
Clean Energy energy from fossil fuels
SDG 11: Sustainable Cities
and Communities

Food SDG 2: Zero Hunger -Food quality -Sustainable supply

-Access/affordability

chain

CSR - Disaster
Relief, Education
and Environmental
Initiatives

SDG 4: Quality Education
SDG 3: Good Health and
Well-Being

-Temporary solutions
-Dependency on aid

-Long-term social
investment and shared
value programs

* None/Not Applicable is not an acceptable answer. For holding companies, the services and products of
its subsidiaries may be disclosed.
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